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LETTERS OF TRANSMITTAL



OFFICE OF THE MAYOR

JOHN A. DELANEY 117 W. DUVAL STREET

MAYOR JACKSONVILLE, FL 32202

Dear Members of the City Council and Citizens of Jacksonville:

It is my pleasure to submit to you the City of Jacksonville’s Comprehensive
Annual Financial Report for the fiscal year 2001/2002.

The City continues efforts to improve public services, strengthen
neighborhoods, manage growth and preserve our natural assets. Today,
Jacksonville is home to the largest urban park system in America. The City of
Jacksonville is committed to its efforts toward continuous improvement as
recognized by the Sterling Award in 2001.

Efficiencies in city government continue to provide greater resources for
critical needs such as social services, children’s programs, land acquisition and the
arts. Our employees are committed to an efficient and responsive government, and
through this document, the City of Jacksonville is proud to offer residents a full
disclosure of the City’s financial status. Sound and prudent financial management
is a key component of any effective organization, and this report clearly reflects the
City of Jacksonville’s commitment to responsible public service.

I hope you find this document useful. Jacksonville has one of the most
responsive and efficient city governments in America, and is clearly the best place
in the nation to live, work and raise a family.

Sincerely,
/
—A M__\

John A. Delaney

iii
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DEPARTMENT OF ADMINISTRATION AND FINANCE

Office of the Director

March 28, 2003

The Honorable Mayor
Members of the City Council
and Citizens of the City of Jacksonville

Introduction

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (Report) of the City of Jacksonville, Florida (the City), for the fiscal
year ended September 30, 2002 is hereby submitted. Responsibility for both the accuracy of the data and the
completeness and fairness of presentation, including all disclosures, rests with the City. The Report fulfills the
requirements set forth in the City Charter, Section 5.11; Chapter 166.241, Florida Statutes and Chapter 10.550
Rules of the Florida Auditor General, requiring publication of financial statements which have been audited by
independent auditors.

We believe that the Report, prepared by the City's Department of Administration and Finance - Accounting
Division, based on accounting principles generally accepted (GAAP) in the United States, presents fairly and
consistently the City's financial position and changes in financial position and conforms to the standards of
governmental accounting and financial reporting principles as promulgated by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB). We believe the data, as presented, is accurate in all material respects; that it is presented
in a manner designed to set forth fairly the financial position and the changes in financial position of the City; and
that all disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain an understanding of the City's financial activity have
been included.

Report Format. The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report is presented in three sections: (1) the Introductory
Section includes general information about the City and summarizes financial activity for the fiscal year; (2) the
Financial Section includes the Independent Certified Public Accountants Report on the City’s Basic Financial
Statements, Management’s Discussion and Analysis, the Basic Financial Statements, Notes to Financial
Statements, Required Supplementary Information, and the Combining and Individual Fund Financial Statements
and Schedules; and (3) the Statistical Section, containing unaudited financial and other data of an economic,
financial and demographic nature for prior and current years. The Notes to Financial Statements, in the financial
section, are necessary for an understanding of the information included in the statements. They include the
summary of significant accounting policies and other necessary disclosures of matters relating to the financial
position of the City.

117 West Duval Street, Suite 300
Jacksonville, Florida 32202
Telephone (904)630-1298 Fax (904)630-3615
www.coj.net

Recipient of the 2001 Governor's Sterling Award



Financial Reporting Entity. The financial reporting entity includes all funds of the primary government
(Consolidated Government City of Jacksonville/Duval County), as well as all of its component units. Component
units are legally separate organizations for which the City is financially accountable and, for financial statement
purposes, are either blended with the activities of the City or discretely presented. The criteria used to determine
whether an organization should be a part of the City of Jacksonville's reporting entity were those outlined by the
GASB under Statement No. 14, The Financial Reporting Entity. The criteria considered in establishing financial
accountability, set forth in GASB Statement No. 14, include appointing a voting majority of the organization's
governing body and either (1) the ability to impose its will on the organization or (2) the potential for the
organization to provide specific benefits to or to impose financial burdens on the City. Also included are
component units where the nature and significance of their relationship with the City are such that their exclusion
would cause the financial statements to be misleading or incomplete.

The Jacksonville Public Library Board has been classified as a dependent special district by the State of Florida
Department of Community Affairs. Per GASB Statement No. 14, the Library Board is not considered a component
unit of the City, as it is not a legally separate organization. Therefore, its activity is included as part of the primary
government.

Blended component units, although legally separate entities, are reported as part of the City because they are so
intertwined with the City that they are, in substance, the same as the City. The Police and Fire Pension Fund and
the Metropolitan Planning Organization are component units of the City blended into the appropriate fund types.
The JEA, the Jacksonville Airport Authority, the Jacksonville Seaport Authority, the Jacksonville Transportation
Authority, the Jacksonville Economic Development Company, Inc., the Jacksonville Economic Development
Commission, the Downtown Vision Inc., the Duval County Housing Finance Authority, and the Jacksonville
Health Facilities Authority are reported as discretely presented component units. The Jacksonville Housing
Authority is considered a related organization. The Duval County School Board did not meet the above criteria
and is not a component unit of the City.

The City's Constitutional Officers (Sheriff, Tax Collector, Property Appraiser, Supervisor of Elections, and Clerk
of the Circuit Court) are reported as part of the City's primary government activities because they do not possess
the corporate powers necessary to meet the GASB Statement No. 14 definition of separate legal standing.

The reader is directed to Note 1.B. in the Notes to the Financial Statements for a more complete description of the
factors used to define the reporting entity.

Form of Government. The City provides a full range of services including police and fire protection, parks,
recreation facilities, courts, planning and zoning, street maintenance, elections and voter registration, emergency
transport system, community health, housing and human services, planning and economic development programs,
agricultural extension, and general administrative services. The City also owns and operates five enterprise
activities, the significant ones consisting of a solid waste disposal, collection, and recycling system; a parking
system; and a sports complex, convention center and performing arts center.

The City is a home-rule municipal corporation operating under the laws of the State of Florida, first organized and
incorporated as a city February 11, 1832. The City's current charter, its municipal constitution, has been amended
many times since its original adoption by the electorate on October 1, 1968, when the City of Jacksonville and
Duval County governments were combined into the single, consolidated government of the City of Jacksonville.
The laws of the State of Florida prevail when conflicts exist between the charter and the state constitution and in
matters where the charter is silent. The City's charter can only be amended by the Florida Legislature and/or by
a majority of the City's voters.



The Charter provides for a strong mayor-council form of government. Legislative authority is vested with a 19-
member council; 14 members are elected by district and 5 members are elected at-large to serve for four-year
terms. The Council fixes compensation of City officials and employees and enacts ordinances and resolutions
relating to City services, tax levies, appropriations and borrowings, licensing and regulating of businesses and
trades, and other municipal purposes. The City's Chief Executive Officer is the Mayor, elected to a four-year term.
The Mayor has the power to veto any legislation passed by Council with certain limited exceptions. The present
term of the elected Mayor and members of the City Council expires on June 30, 2003. To conform to the
traditional organization of county governments within the State of Florida, the City retained the elected
constitutional offices of Sheriff, Property Appraiser, Tax Collector, Supervisor of Elections, and the Clerk of the
Circuit Court.

Economic Condition and Outlook

Situated in the corner of Northeast Florida, Jacksonville is considered to be the metropolitan market for over ten
Florida and South Georgia Counties. The city is the hub of an array of services that include a deep-water port, an
international airport, tourism, sporting events, shopping and cultural amenities. With a Metropolitan Statistical
Area (MSA) population of over a million, Jacksonville is on the verge of being classified as a first-tier city. The
Jacksonville MSA consists of Baker, Clay, Duval, Nassau, Putnam, and St. Johns Counties.

Summary of local economy:

Population Growth: The Jacksonville MSA population increased from 1,115,000 in 2001 to 1,229,030 in 2002,
a 1.0% increase.

Employment: The Jacksonville MSA continues to possess a strong labor force. The service industry employment
leads the way with 31% of the total employment, with retail and total government at 22% and 11%, respectively.

Employment by Industry
PROJECTED PROJECTED

INDUSTRY EMPLOYMENT EMPLOYMENT ANNUAL CHANGE
TITLE 2002 2010 TOTAL PERCENT
Total All Industries 666,287 761,667 11,923 1.79
Agriculture, Forestry, and Fishing, Total 11,430 2,634 151 1.32
Mining, Total 489 473 ) (0.41)
Construction, Total 33,532 37,960 554 1.65
Manufacturing, Total 43,024 44,433 176 0.41
Transportation, Communications,

and Public Utilities, Total 42,128 47,865 717 1.70
Wholesale and Retail Trade, Total 146,764 161,461 1,837 1.25
Finance, Insurance, and Real Estate, Total 60,679 71,965 1,411 2.32
Services, Total 205,787 255,343 6,195 3.01
Government, Total 74,678 79,057 547 0.73
Self-Employed and Unpaid Family Workers 47,776 50,476 338 0.71

Source: Florida Agency for Workforce Innovation, Occupational Employment Projections

2002 Economic Activity

The Cornerstone Division of the Jacksonville Chamber of Commerce announced 28 business projects in 2002,
which retained a total of 122 jobs and brought 4,030 new jobs to the area. Private capital investment associated
with these projects totaled $115 million.



Major Economic Development Program Announcements 01/01/02-12/31/02

Company Name Type of Business Projected New Jobs Capital Investment

Merrill Lynch & C. Client Support 350 (new) No New Cap. Inve.

Ringpower Heavy Equip Distri. 100 (new) 12,500,000

Option One Mortgage Servicing Co. 400 (new) 2,500,000

American Online Inc. Information Technology 300 (new) No New Cap. Inve.

SYSCO Corp. Wholesale Food Distri. 125 (new) 18,750,000

BMW SE Reg. Corp. Finished 50 (new) 12,000,000
Goods Distri.

CF Gomma Auto Parts Manufacturer 250 (new) 6,000,000

Henry Schein, Inc. Distri. Of Pharmaceutical 110 (new) 8,250,000
Supplies

Burris Refrigerated Logistics Refrigerated warehousing 75 (new) 12,000,000
expansion

CitiStreet Employee benefits 200 (new) 3,800,000
management

The Jacksonville International Airport serviced over 4.9 million passengers in 2002. This total reflects a 36.9%

increase since 1996 and reflects the City’s position as an emerging tourist and business center.

Future Economic Activity

The strength of Jacksonville’s economy lies in its uniquely diversified structure, not heavily dependent on any
one major employer or employment sector. The community enjoys a natural location for distribution and
warehousing activities. Quality lifestyle, labor force, and cultural/educational/medical facilities are key
resources in the market’s ability to sustain continued high growth in 2002 and beyond. The following listing

from various sources highlights the community:

Expansion Management magazine has ranked Jacksonville as the #1 “Hottest City” in America for
business relocation in its January 2003 issue. Jacksonville has ranked in the top ten for five straight
years and is the only city to be ranked #1 three times.

In the September 2002 issue of Expansion Management magazine, Jacksonville was ranked #2 in the Top
328 Logistics Friendly Cities.

Jacksonville has earned the nation’s first Well City USA award from The Wellness Councils of America
(Summer 2002).

According to the results of a survey generated by Get There, a Sabre online meeting planning tool,
Jacksonville ranks as the most economic location for corporate meetings (October 2002).

Jacksonville was ranked eighth in the “Top 10 Southern Major Markets” by Southern Business &
Development magazine in its Summer 2002 issue.

Florida Community College Jacksonville was ranked by Yahoo Internet Life online magazine as the
second most “wired” community college in the nation for 2002.

In the February 2001 issue of Expansion Management magazine, Jacksonville has been ranked in the Top
15% of all metro areas in the U.S. for Fiber Optic Connectivity.

The University of North Florida was ranked in the Top Southern Public Universities in the annual U.S.
News 2001 College Rankings report.

JEA, the electric, water and sewer authority for Jacksonville, was ranked among the top electric utilities
in the Southern Region in terms of customer satisfaction in J.D Power & Associates 2001 Electric Utility
Residential Customer Satisfaction Study.

In the annual report of the “Top 40 Real Estate Markets” in the August 2001 issue of Expansion
Management magazine, Jacksonville was ranked fourteenth out of 329 metropolitan areas studied.



Major Initiatives

The City of Jacksonville received the Governor’s Sterling Award in June 2001. Based on the criteria for the
national Malcolm Baldridge Award, the prestigious Sterling Award recognizes Jacksonville as a model of an
efficient government committed to a philosophy of continuous improvement benefiting the city’s residents.

The Better Jacksonville Plan continues to improve roads and infrastructure, protect the environment, target
economic development as well as build new and improved public facilities. Information on a number of initiatives,
including The Better Jacksonville Plan, follows:

The Better Jacksonville Plan

The Better Jacksonville Plan is a $2.2 billion comprehensive growth management strategy that provides road and
infrastructure improvements, environmental preservation, targeted economic development and new and improved
public facilities. The plan is funded through a half-penny sales tax and by leveraging existing revenue sources.

With $1.5 billion set aside for road and infrastructure improvements, neighborhoods in all parts of the City are
seeing direct benefits from the plan. Targeted economic development will encourage job growth in areas that have
lagged in development opportunities. The plan includes funding to improve the environment through land
preservation, enhancing neighborhood parks, and sewer infrastructure in critical areas. The Better Jacksonville
Plan is building new public facilities and includes funding for improved branch libraries as well as a new main
library, sports and entertainment arena, baseball park and county courthouse complex. The ballpark and arena
will open in 2003.

The Better Jacksonville Plan marries all of these elements into a design that encourages managed growth while
improving the quality of life for all of Jacksonville’s residents.

An integral piece of The Better Jacksonville Plan is the accountability measure that is actually a part of the
legislation. The ordinance calls for a Finance Administration Committee and a Program Administration
Committee. In addition, the Mayor reports quarterly to a Citizens Oversight Committee and the City Council.

Government Efficiency

Total Quality Government. The City of Jacksonville’s strategic plan provides a road map for achieving the City’s
vision and mission. Major areas of focus are effective, responsive customer-focused government, families,
neighborhoods and schools, growth management, promoting Jacksonville as a green community and economic
development. Some of these initiatives are further highlighted in this section. Resources are allocated based on
these key areas of focus. In addition, departments continue to review their key service processes in an ongoing
effort to improve and better meet customer needs.

Tax Cut. In fiscal year 2002/2003, Mayor Delaney again reduced the property tax rate. This eighth consecutive
property tax cut reduced the millage to its lowest rate in two decades. The tax cuts have saved taxpayers $120
million dollars over eight years.

Neighborhoods

Intensive Care Neighborhoods. The City has focused services and resources on six targeted neighborhoods in
Jacksonville with the goal of improving learning environments for kids, enhancing infrastructure, improving
recreational opportunities as well as improving public safety, social services and housing.




Neighborhoods Department. The City's Neighborhoods Department serves as a model for cities throughout the
nation. With neighborhood coordinators assigned to six planning districts, the department helps residents navigate
through community issues and resolve them. In addition, the department helps organize residents to improve their
own communities. Through the Clean It Up, Green It Up Division, residents join together for more than 1,000
neighborhood cleanups each year and have planted one million trees.

Growth Management/Environment

Preservation Project

In January 1999, Mayor Delaney established the Preservation Project, a major land acquisition initiative. It is
designed to manage growth, preserve environmentally sensitive lands, improve water quality and access to the
city’s unique natural areas.

The Preservation Project was launched with a vision of setting aside 10 to 20 square miles of developable land
in Duval County within five years. The city and its partners have preserved more than 33 square miles, creating
the largest urban park system in the nation. The City of Jacksonville initially committed $21 million to the
program, and voters, through The Better Jacksonville Plan, added another $50 million to the program in September
2000. The balance of the funds is raised through state, federal and private sources.

St. Johns River. Designated in 1998 by the President of the United States as an American Heritage River, the St.
Johns River continues to play a critical role in the everyday life of our community. Mayor Delaney hosted the St.
Johns River Summit in January 2003. Federal, state and local officials meet to ensure that the needs of the river
are met. The City and other river partners continue to commit time and resources to restore the river and its water
quality. A number of these agencies are also working together to eliminate septic tanks in sanitary nuisance areas
and help homeowners hook up to sewer lines.

Other Financial Information

Pension Trust Funds. The City sponsors two public employee retirement systems administered by two separate
and distinct pension Boards of Trustees that provide retirement, death, and disability benefits to 7,720 active City
employees, 509 DROP participants for the Police and Fire Pension Plan and 5,619 retirees and beneficiaries at
September 30, 2002. The General Employees Pension Plan (a multi-employer contributory defined benefit plan)
covers substantially all full-time employees of the City and the JEA, a discretely presented component unit of the
City, except for police officers and firefighters. The Police and Fire Pension Plan (a single-employer contributory
defined benefit plan) covers eligible employees of the Office of the Sheriff and the Department of Fire and Rescue.

In addition, certain City employees (less than 1% of total payroll) participate in the State of Florida Retirement
System.

During fiscal year 2002, the net plan assets of the General Employees Pension Plan ($1.3 billion at September 30,
2002) decreased a net of $132.0 million. The net plan assets of the Police and Fire Pension Plan ($639.6 million

at September 30, 2002) decreased a net of $88.0 million during fiscal year 2002, with the plan being 75.44%
funded.

The City made all of its required contributions in 2002 to the respective pension funds in accordance with

actuarially determined contribution requirements. The City's pension plans are further explained in Note 9 in the
Notes to Financial Statements.



Debt Administration. The City's sound financial condition is evidenced by the continuation of its long-held high
grade of bond ratings on indebtedness from the major credit rating services. Among the factors most commonly
cited by these services in support of the "Aa2" rating from Moody's Investor Services on its general obligation debt
include the following: (1) a well-diversified employment and tax base that provides a solid foundation to absorb
future spending requirements; (2) moderate debt burden and well-managed finances; (3) sound financial condition;
and (4) a consolidated city/county government structure. The City of Jacksonville also maintains an "A+" rating
from Standard & Poor's, a “AA” rating from Fitch Ratings, and an "Aa3" rating from Moody's Investors Service
on its revenue bond issues. The City continues to follow prudent fiscal policies and practices to maintain these
strong credit ratings.

Cash Management. The City has a detailed written statement of investment policy which it follows. The
investment goal of the City is to invest public funds in a manner which will earn a competitive yield on its
portfolio, consistent with its primary function of safeguarding public assets by minimizing credit and market risks.
Safety of principal is regarded as the foremost objective of the investment program. Maintaining sufficient
liquidity is also an important investment objective. In keeping with this policy, at September 30, 2002, of the $3.0
billion of cash and investments, $2.9 billion are categorized under GASB Statement No. 3,Deposits with Financial
Institutions, Investments, and Reverse Repurchase Agreements, as "Category 1," or the most secured custodial
relationship. The remaining $59.7 million, representing U.S. Government and Agency Securities and Repurchase
Agreements held by a counterparty or its trust department not in the City's name, are categorized as "Category 3."
These investments are stated at fair value. The City's investment policies are periodically reviewed for
classification under the lowest risk category. The City's investment portfolio contains no derivative securities,
floating rate securities, collateralized mortgage obligations or reverse repurchase agreements. Cash, investments,
and the City's collateralizing process are further explained in Note 3 of the Notes to Financial Statements.

All of the City's deposits and the deposits of certain of the City's component units are held in qualified public
depositories, pursuant to State of Florida Statutes, Chapter 280, Florida Security for Public Deposits Act ("the
Act"), and are covered by federal depository insurance, and, for the amount in excess of such federal depository
insurance, by the Act. Cash is pooled, except for that held by revenue bond trustees, fiscal and escrow agents, and
certain debt service and trust and agency funds, for maximum investing efficiency. Cash temporarily idle during
the year is aggregated and invested in certificates of deposit, money market instruments, obligations of the U.S.
Government, and repurchase agreements collateralized by U.S. Government securities for all funds except the
City's pension trust funds, which are administered separately outside the City's pooled cash operations. Assets of
the City's pension plans are maintained in separate investment pools, and investment management responsibility
rests with the two pension Boards of Trustees.

Earnings on investments, other than those held by the City's pension funds, totaled $29.4 million during the fiscal
year ended September 30, 2002. From this total, $17.4 million was derived from a City-administered, commingled
investment pool which generated a total weighted average yield of 2.337% on an average daily invested balance
of $757.9 million. The remaining $11.7 million in earnings was derived from a variety of segregated investments
and investment programs primarily linked to the investment of bond proceeds.

The City has a short-term investment horizon to minimize the level of market risk. At September 30, 2002, the
general investment portfolio of government securities carried a weighted-average number of days to maturity of
632 days and a weighted average yield of 3.330%.

Risk Management. The City administers a comprehensive risk management and loss-control program, the primary
objectives of which are to (1) identify potential exposures to loss, (2) evaluate the frequency and severity of losses,
(3) reduce or eliminate risks or losses through established procedures and practices, and (4) determine the most
efficient use of financial resources to satisfy losses.




The City's risk management policy is to rely primarily on the concept of self-insurance, supplemented by excess
insurance coverage, when dealing with its various loss exposures, including workers' compensation, automobile
liability, and general liability. Participants in the risk management pool include the City and independent agencies
electing to be included. The City funds its risk retention losses dollar-for-dollar on an actuarially computed basis.

Unlike commercial insurance, establishment of a self-insurance fund, accounted for by the participant, does not
result in the pure transfer of risk. The program’s self-insured liability remains among and between the participants
in varying degrees of risk sharing. State sovereign immunity statutes limit the liability to the participants for
certain general liability risk exposures to $100,000 per individual and $200,000 per occurrence. There is a $1

million retention for workers' compensation and no excess insurance for automobile liability and general liability.
Various cost containment measures, such as managed care, are utilized by the workers' compensation self-
insurance program in order to appropriately minimize medical claim costs.

Commercial insurance has been purchased for other risk exposures, including aviation, marine, property, fidelity
bonding and employee benefits (medical, disability, dental, vision, prescription drug, and life).

General Information

Discussion of Controls. Management of the City is responsible for establishing and maintaining an internal control
structure designed to ensure that the assets of the City are protected from loss, theft, or misuse and to ensure that
adequate accounting data are compiled to allow for the preparation of financial statements, in conformity with
generally accepted governmental accounting principles. The internal control structure is designed to provide
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that these objectives are met. The concept of reasonable assurance
recognizes that (1) the cost of a control should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived, and (2) the valuation
of costs and benefits requires estimates and judgements by management.

Accounting System. The City's accounting system is organized and operated on a fund basis. A fund is defined
as an independent fiscal and accounting entity with a self-balancing set of accounts. The types of funds to be used
are determined by generally accepted governmental accounting principles and the number of individual funds
established is determined by sound financial administration and statutory and ordinance requirements of the
Council.

Budget System. Detailed provisions regulating the City's budget, tax levies, and appropriations are set in the Laws
of Florida, in the City Charter, and in the City's Ordinance Code. The Mayor is required to submit his
appropriations budget, called "The Mayor's Proposed Budget," to Council by the second Tuesday in July of each
year. The Mayor's Proposed Budget is to comply with state and local legal requirements for a balanced financial
plan of operation for the government which coincides with and is limited to the City's fiscal year. As a financial
plan, the Mayor's Proposed Budget identifies revenues and other financial resources which are anticipated to be
available for appropriations, makes recommendations for appropriations, expenditures and uses of financial
resources, and otherwise presents concise policy direction and guidance for the continuing financial operation of
the City. At the beginning of each new fiscal year the Council adopts a balanced annual budget in the form of an
ordinance which contains estimated revenues and other financing sources, appropriations, authorizations of full

time positions and temporary employee hours, and any amendments to the Ordinance Code which relate to the
Annual Budget.

Independent Audit. The City Charter, Section 5.11, and Chapter 166.241 Florida Statutes, require the City's
financial statements to be audited by an independent firm of certified public accountants selected by the City
Council. This requirement has been complied with, and the report of the independent certified public accountants,




rendered by Ernst & Young LLP, is included in the financial section of this report. The audit was conducted in
accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing Standards set forth by the
Comptroller General of the United States. The financial statements of certain component units were audited by
other auditors as described in the Ernst & Young LLP audit opinion.

As a recipient of federal and state financial assistance, the City is also required to undergo an annual audit in
conformity with the provisions of the Single Audit Act of 1984; U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular
A-133, Audits of State and Local Governments and Non-profit Organizations, and the Florida Single Audit Act.
As a part of the City's Single Audit, tests are made to determine the adequacy of internal control, including that
portion related to federal and state financial assistance programs. The information related to the Single Audit,
including the schedule of expenditures of federal awards and state financial assistance, reports of the independent
certified public accountants on internal control and compliance with applicable laws and regulations, and findings
and questioned costs, is in a report to be issued separately at a later date.

Reporting Achievements. The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA)
awarded a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the City of Jacksonville for its
comprehensive annual financial report for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2001. The Certificate of
Achievement is a prestigious national award, recognizing conformance with the highest standards for preparation
of state and local government financial reports.

In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a government unit must publish an easily readable and
efficiently organized comprehensive annual financial report, whose contents conform to program standards. Such
comprehensive annual financial reports must satisfy both accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States and applicable legal requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. The City of Jacksonville has received this
Certificate for twenty-two consecutive years (fiscal years 1980 through 2001). We believe our current report
continues to conform to the Certificate of Achievement program requirements, and we are submitting it to the
GFOA.

Use of the Report and Acknowledgments. The Report represents the thirty-fourth (1969 - 2002) Comprehensive
Annual Financial Report of the City audited by a nationally recognized firm of certified public accountants, since
the City of Jacksonville and Duval County Governments were consolidated on October 1, 1968. Approximately
350 copies of this report will be distributed. In addition to citizens of the community, the recipients will include
city, state, and federal officials; university students; schools; libraries; newspapers; investment banking firms;
banks and rating agencies.

The Report will be made available to any person or organization requesting it. The extensive effort of preparation
and distribution of this report fulfills the Department of Administration and Finance's goal of full disclosure of
the City's finances. We are committed to issuing reports that are informative and meet the highest standards of
governmental accounting and financial reporting. Reports that meet these standards provide the reader with an
opportunity to make more informed judgements about the government's financial position and changes in financial
position.

The 2002 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report represents our commitment to this goal and could not have
been prepared without the efficient and dedicated efforts of the entire staff of the Department of Administration
and Finance - Accounting Division and Treasury Division, who devoted many hours in compiling and assembling
the report. We also wish to express our appreciation to all other City personnel who have contributed to its
preparation. In addition, we thank the City's independent certified public accountants, Ernst & Young LLP and
the Office of the Council Auditor for their efforts and professional conduct throughout the audit engagement.



Special acknowledgment is due Mayor John Delaney, Council President Jerry Holland, and Councilperson Dr.
Gwen Chandler, Finance Committee Chair, and other members of the City Council, for their strong and effective
leadership and continued support in the coordination and planning of the financial affairs of the City of
Jacksonville in a responsible and progressive manner.

Respectfully submitted,

by o

Calvin C. Ray Kevin G. Stork, CPA, CGFM
Director, Department of City Comptroller -
Administration and Finance Chief, Accounting Division
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E” ERNST& YOUNG & Ernst & Young Lip & Phone: (904) 358-2000

50 North Laura Street www.ey.com
Suite 1500
Jacksonville, Florida 32202

Report of Independent Certified Public Accountants '

Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council
City of Jacksonville, Florida

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, business-type
activities, the Jacksonville Transportation Authority and Jacksonville Airport Authority, both discretely
presented component units, each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of the of the
City of Jacksonville, Florida (the City), as of and for the year ended September 30, 2002, which
collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. These
financial statements are the responsibility of the City’s management. Our responsibility is to express
opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We did not audit the financial statements of the
following component units, which statements reflect total assets and total revenues as of September 30,
2002 and for the year then ended of the respective fund type as follows:

Total Total Type of
Assets Revenues Component Unit
(in thousands)

JEA $6,598,243 $987,839 Proprietary Fund Type
Jacksonville Seaport Authority 405,238 27,641 Proprietary Fund Type
Police and Fire Pension Trust Fund 717,905 (20,716)  Fiduciary Fund Type
Downtown Vision, Inc. 1,357 925 Governmental Fund Type

Those financial statements were audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us, and
our opinions on the financial statements, insofar as it relates to data included for the aforementioned
component units, are based solely on the reports of the other auditors.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States and
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An
audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made
by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our
audit and the reports of other auditors provide a reasonable basis for our opinions.

03010386671 A Member Practice of Ernst & Young Global
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Management’s discussion and analysis, the schedule of revenue, expenditures and changes in fund
balance — budget and actual — general and major special revenue funds, and the schedules of employer
contributions and funding progress listed under required supplemental information in the table of contents
are not a required part of the financial statements but are supplemental information required by the
Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB). We have applied certain limited procedures, which
consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation
of the supplemental information. However, we did not audit the information and express no opinion on it.

In our opinion, based on our audit and the reports of other auditors, the financial statements referred to
above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental
activities, business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund
and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City as of September 30, 2002, and the respective
changes in financial position and cash flows, where applicable, thereof for the year then ended in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States.

As disclosed in Note 1.W. to the financial statements, effective October 1, 2001, the City adopted the
provisions of GASB Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements — and Management’s Discussion and
Analysis — for State and Local Governments, GASB Statement No. 37, Basic Financial Statements — and
Management’s Discussion and Analysis — for State and Local Governments: Omnibus, and GASB
Statement No. 38, Certain Financial Statement Note Disclosures.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated February 11,
2003 on our consideration of the City’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants. That report is an integral
part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be read in
conjunction with this report in considering the results of our audit.

Our audit was made for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the City’s basic financial statements. The combining and individual fund financial statements
and schedules listed in the table of contents are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a
required part of the basic financial statements of the City. Such information has been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in our audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly
stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

The information presented in the introductory and statistical sections is presented for purposes of
additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial statements of the City. Such
information has not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in our audit of the basic financial
statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it.

St ¥ MLLP

February 11, 2003

0301-0386671
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The City of Jacksonville’s discussion and analysis is designed to provide an objective and easy to read
overview analysis of the City’s financial activities, focus on significant financial issues, identify material
deviations from the financial plan (the approved budget), identify changes in the City’s financial position
(its ability to address the next and subsequent year challenges), and identify individual fund issues or
concerns.

This is the first year the City has presented its financial statements under the new reporting model required
by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement Number 34. The Management’s
Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) is designed to focus on the current years activities, resulting changes
and currently known facts. The information contained within this MD&A should be considered only a part
of the entire report. Please read and evaluate all sections of this report, including the Transmittal Letter at
the front of this report and the City’s Financial Statements, which follow this section.

HIGHLIGHTS

Financial Highlights

e The City of Jacksonville’s total net assets exceeded its liabilities at the close of the 2002 fiscal
year. For the year, net assets increased by $126 million.

o Capital assets were $883 million at September 30, 2002, up $271 million over last year, an
increase of 44%.

e The City took advantage of historically low interest rates during the year, refunding old bond
issues and borrowing new money to fund capital improvements in the amount of $192 million.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the City of Jacksonville’s basic
financial statements. As indicated in the following graphic (Figure A-1), the City of Jacksonville’s basic
financial statements comprise three components: 1) city-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial
statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements. This report also contains supplementary and statistical
information in addition to the basic financial statements themselves.



Figure A-1
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City-Wide Financial Statements

The citywide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the City of
Jacksonville’s finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business.

The focus of the Statement of Net Assets is designed to be similar to bottom line results for the City and its
governmental and business-type activities. This statement, for the first time, combines and consolidates
governmental funds current financial resources (short-term spendable resources) with capital assets and
long term obligations. The Statement of Activities distinguishes functions of the City of Jacksonville that
are principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities such as;

police, fire, public works, recreation, and general administration) from other functions that are intended to
recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-type activities such
as; solid waste, sports complex, public parking, and ferry operations).



Component Units, which are other governmental units over which the City can exercise influence and/or
may be obligated to provide financial subsidy, are presented as a separate column in the city-wide
statements. The City of Jacksonville’s separate entities are as follows; JEA, Jacksonville Transportation
Authority, Jacksonville Airport Authority, Jacksonville Seaport Authority, Duval County Housing Finance
Authority, Downtown Vision, and Jacksonville Economic Development Commission. The Jacksonville
Metropolitan Planning Organization functions as a blended component unit. The focus of the statements is
on the Primary Government and the presentation allows the user to address the relationship with the
Component Units.

The two statements (Statement of Net Assets and Statement of Activities) demonstrate how the City’s net
assets have changed. Increases or decreases in net assets are good indicators of whether the city’s financial
health is improving or deteriorating over time. Other non-financial factors such as changes in the city’s
property tax base are important considerations to assess the City’s overall financial condition.

Fund Financial Statements

A fund is a grouping of related accounts used to maintain control over resources that have been segregated
for specific activities or objectives. Traditional users of governmental financial statements will find the
Fund Financial Statements presentation more familiar. The focus is on Major Funds, rather than fund
types, as reported in the previous financial models. The City of Jacksonville, like other state and local
governments, uses funds to ensure and demonstrate compliance with financial requirements imposed by
law, bond covenants, and local administrative and legislative actions. All of the City’s funds can be
divided into three categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds.

Governmental Funds

Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as
governmental activities in the city-wide financial statements. However, unlike the city-wide
financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and
outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end
of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in evaluating a government’s near-term
financing requirements.

Since the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the city-wide financial statements,
it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar information
presented for governmental activities in the city-wide financial statements. This allows readers to
better understand the long-term impact of the government’s near-term financing decisions.

Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison
between governmental funds and governmental activities.

Governmental fund information is presented separately in the governmental fund balance sheet
and in the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances
for the General Fund, Transportation Fund, General Projects Fund, and Better Jacksonville Project
Fund, all of which are considered to be major funds. Information from other non-major funds is
combined into a single, aggregated presentation.



Proprietary Funds

Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the business-type activities in the city-
wide financial statements, only in more detail. The proprietary fund financial statements can be
found in the Basic Financial Statements section of this report.

The City of Jacksonville maintains two major types of proprietary funds.

Enterprise funds are used to report the same functions presented as business-type
activities in the city-wide financial statements. The City uses enterprise funds to report
separate information on operations such as solid waste, ferry operations, and sports
complex activities.

The internal service funds are used to account for activities that provide goods and
services to the City’s other programs and activities. Since the internal service funds
predominantly benefit governmental rather than business-type functions, they have been
included within governmental activities in the city-wide financial statements.

Fiduciary Funds

The City of Jacksonville is the trustee, or fiduciary, for trusts such as the City employee’s
retirement plan. Because of a trust arrangement, these assets can be used only for the trust
beneficiaries. The City is responsible for ensuring that the assets reported in these funds are used
for their intended purposes. All of the City of Jacksonville’s fiduciary activities are reported in a
separate statement of fiduciary net assets and a statement of changes in fiduciary net assets. These
activities are excluded from the city-wide financial statements because the assets cannot be used to
support or finance the City’s programs or operations.

Notes to the Financial Statements

The notes to the financial statements provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding
of the data provided in the city-wide and fund financial statements. The notes can be found as a part of the
Basic Financial Statements section of this report.

Other Information

This report additionally includes required supplementary information (RSI) containing budgetary
comparisons and the progress of the City’s employees pension obligations.

The combining statements in connection with non-major governmental and enterprise funds, internal
service funds, fiduciary funds and nonmajor component units are presented following the required
supplementary information.

Additional statistical information is presented to give report users a better historical perspective and assist
in assessing current financial status and trends of the governmental unit.

Economic data is presented to allow a broader understanding of the economic and social environment in
which the City government operates.



CITY-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS
Since this is the first year that the City has presented financial information under the provisions of GASB
Statement No. 34, no comparative data is available. Comparative information will be provided in future
years' MD&As.

Net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of government’s financial position.

As of September 30, 2002, the City of Jacksonville is able to report positive balances in net assets, both for
governmental and business-type activities. (See Table A-1)

Table A-1
Summary Statement of Net Assets
(In Thousands)
as of September 30, 2002
Business Total
Governmental Type Primary
Activities Activities Government
Cash and Investments $ 890,778 $ 61,444 $952,222
Other Current Assets 123,991 39,822 163,813
Capital Assets 602,789 280,239 883,028
Total assets T,617,558 331,505 1,999,063
Current Liabilities 123,548 10,391 133,939
Long-term debt outstanding 1,482,831 100,037 1,582,868
Total liabilities 1,606,379 110,428 1,716,807
Net assets
Invested in capital assets,
net of related debt (635,233) 201,456 (433,777)
Restricted 448,836 11,884 460,720
Unrestricted 197,576 57,737 255,313
Total net assets - §$ ILIT79 T § ZIMU77 T % 282756

The largest portion of the City’s net assets reflects its capital projects, investments and capital assets. The
City maintains a cash and investment pool that is available for use by all funds except for monies which are
legally restricted to separate administration (i.e. pension plan custodians and deferred compensation plan
administrators). The “Equity in cash and investments” consist of cash and investments owned by each fund
and defined as resources that can be liquidated without delay or penalty. In addition, cash and investments
separately held and individually accounted for by several of the City’s funds where contractual
arrangements and bond covenants provide for and require such arrangements are classified as “restricted
assets.”

Net Assets- The net asset category Invested in Capital Assets, net of related debt, is negative because
infrastructure assets such as roads and bridges were not required under governmental accounting rules to be
reported on the City’ Statement of Net Assets. Historically, much of those improvements have been
financed by bonds, which are reported on the Statement of Net Assets. New accounting rules regarding
infrastructure reporting (see Notes to the Financial Statements, Note 1) require these assets to be reported
prospectively beginning this year, and retroactively reported within four years. The City intends to report
infrastructure assets from previous years within that deferral period. That amount is expected to be
significant, and will reduce or eliminate the negative net asset balance reported in this category.

-10 -



Investment earnings are allocated to the individual funds as provided by statute; earnings for all other
participants are credited to the General Fund.

The City’s general governmental revenues increased to $1.05 billion (see Table A-2). More than half of the
City’s revenue comes from taxes. Almost a quarter comes from intergovernmental and the major portion of
the remainder is charges for services.

Governmental activities increased the City of Jacksonville’s net assets by $133 million, accounting for
100% of the total growth in net assets.

The following Table A-2 provides a summary of the City’s operations for the 2002 fiscal year end.

Table A-2
Statement of Activities
(In Thousands)
as of September 30, 2002

Business Total
Governmental Type Primary
Activities Activities Government
Revenues:
Program Revenues:
Fines & Charges for services $ 95,493 $ 50,013 $ 145,506
Operating grants/contributions 86,833 229 87,062
Capital grants/contributions 26,453 1,371 27,824
General revenues:
Property/utility service/sales taxes 558,090 558,090
Intergovernmental 122,145 117 122,262
Payments from component units 111,054 111,054
Payment in lieu of taxes 2,984 2,984
Unrestricted earnings on investmts 26,743 2,787 29,530
Miscellaneous 20,275 2,542 22,817
Total Revenues 1,050,070 57,059 T,I07,129
Expenses
General government 112,505 112,505
Human Services 95,609 95,609
Public safety 332,829 332,829
Cultural and recreational 47,832 47,832
Transportation 91,594 91,594
Economic & physical environment 95,015 95,015
Payments to component units 58,585 58,585
Interest on long term debt 55,745 55,745
Parking system 3,497 3,497
Sports complex 20,471 20,471
Motor vehicle inspections 706 706
Solid Waste 65,323 65,323
Ferry - 1,871 1,871
Total Expenses 889714 IT,868 981,587
Increases (decreases) in net 160,356 (34,809) 125,547
assets before transfers
Transfers (27,215) 27,215 -
Increase (decrease) in net assets 5 133,141 ¥ (7,593) s 125,547

- 11 -



FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY GOVERNMENT’S FUNDS

The focus of the City of Jacksonville's governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows,
outflows, and balances of spendable resources, Such information is useful in assessing the City’s financing
requirements. In particular, unreserved fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a government’s net
resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

GENERAL GOVERNMENTAL REVENUES

REVENUES Lic & Porrrits 1% Crurgesfor
BY SOURCE Mecdlaeas 7% Sendoss

Fres & Forfoits 1% 8%

oo
1%

The total cost of programs and services was virtually unchanged. The City’s expenditures cover a range of
services, with over half related to public safety and capital outlay.

GENERAL GOVERNMENTAL EXPENDITURES

EXPENDITURES
BY CATEGORY

General Gov't 8%
Capital Dutlay 24% Human Bervices 9%

Debt Service
P

Physical Environment 2% Public Safety 30%

Economic

Environment Debt Bervice 9%
6%

Cudture & Rec 8%
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The City of Jacksonville uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related
legal requirements.

At the end of the current fiscal year, the City of Jacksonville’s governmental funds reported combined
ending fund balances of $766 million. Approximately 8.5% of this total amount constitutes unreserved
funds balance. The remainder of the fund balance is reserved to indicate that it is not available for new
spending because it has already been committed to pay for encumbrances, to provide for prepaid items, to
pay for debt service and to provide for advances to other funds.

All nonmajor funds of each governmental fund type with legally adopted annual budgets are included in the
Combining Schedule of Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance — Budget and Actual. The
General Fund and Major Special Revenue Fund Budget and Actual Schedules are included as RSI
following the Notes to the Financial Statements.

Governmental Funds:

e The City’s general governmental revenues increased by $48 million, expenditures increased by
$151 million. Capital outlay expenditures were the major portion of the increase. Additional increases
are from Other Financing Sources (Proceeds From Sale of Notes and Bonds and Issuance of Other
Debt Obligations) of $252 million.

o  Atthe close of the 2002 fiscal year, the City of Jacksonville’s governmental funds reported combined
ending fund balances of $766 million.

o The unreserved fund balance for the general fund was $47 million or 76% of the total general fund
balance. Management has designated 88% of these reserved funds toward capital projects and next
year budget appropriations. Taxes, the largest source of City revenue, reported a 10% increase in
2002, $50.8 million over last year, largely due to Ordinance 2002-794-E which changed the tax
structure and established a new communication service tax. This service tax replaced chapter 790, the
public service tax, and broadened the base for collection.

¢ Public Safety increased $15.9 million, an increase of 29.6% compared to 2001. Most of this increase
is the product of the Sheriff’s Department receiving additional monies to fund various grant programs.

e Transportation decreased $18.8 million, a decrease of 8.4% compared to 2001 due to projects being
completed and major roadwork such as resurfacing currently being done under the Better Jacksonville
Plan.

General Fund

e Ad Valorem millage rate was reduced two tenths of a mill for the seventh consecutive year.

e Assessed tax roll increased by $2.2 billion on a July to July basis, a 7.5% increase.

e The City continues its effort to build up reserves. General Fund cash carryover has been increased by
$500 thousand to a total of $24.5 million.

o The contribution to Shands Hospital/Jacksonville in support of indigent care was set at $23.8 million.

¢ Funding to the Jacksonville Children’s Commission has again been increased by $1 million. Ninety
percent of the new money will translate into additional direct services to children.

e Fire Rescue received an additional 48 positions: 37 were firefighters, 7 were EMTs, and 4 positions for
Fire Prevention.

e Funding was provided for replacement of fire fighting equipment totaling $6.8 million.

o The Office of the Sheriff received five additional police officers.
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Over the course of the year, the city Council revised the City budget several times. These budget
amendments fall into three categories:

e Amendments and supplemental appropriations approved shortly after the beginning of the year to
reflect the actual beginning account balances (correcting the estimated amounts).

e  Changes made in the third quarter to account for the midyear hiring and overtime freeze, and some of
the City’s staff restructuring efforts.

e Increases in appropriations to prevent budget overruns.

Differences between the original budget and the final amended budget were relatively minor ($4.8 million
increase in appropriations). The original budget projected $30 million (adjusted for cash carryover) would
be used from available fund balance. During the year, revenues exceeded budgetary estimates and
expenses were less than budgetary estimates, thus $3.5 million was added to the available fund balance.

CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION
Capital Assets

The City of Jacksonville’s investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities as
of September 30, 2002, amounts to $883,028 million (net of accumulated depreciation). This investment in
capital assets includes land, buildings and improvements, furniture and equipment, current year
infrastructure, and construction in progress (see Table A-3).

Table A-3
Capital Assets
Net of Accumulated Depreciation
(In Thousands)
as of September 30, 2002

Business
Governmental Type
Activities Activities Total
Land $ 163,162 $31,553 $194,715
Buildings and improvements 305,201 312,258 617,459
Fumiture & Equipment 49,433 15,514 64,947
Construction in progress 63,490 14,658 78,148
Infrastructure 118,807 118,807
Captial assets reported in
Internal Service Funds, net 63,831 63,831
Less accumulated depreciation (161,135) (93,744) (254,879)
Total ¥ 602,789 $280,239 $ 883,028

Major capital asset events during the current fiscal year included the following:

e Capital outlay increased $122.5 million, 889.5%, over fiscal year 2001.

o The Better Jacksonville Plan began major projects such as a new arena, a baseball park and a new main
library. The ballpark and arena are scheduled to open in 2003.

e Additionally a variety of street construction projects in new residential developments and widening
and expansion projects for existing streets and bridges began.
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The City of Jacksonville’s Capital Improvement Program schedule includes total projects budgeted at
$1,427.6 million. This amount is composed of $10.5 million in new appropriations for the new year and
$1,417.1 million appropriated in prior years but not yet expended.

The majority of the newly appropriated funding comes from the financing of the joint City and Jacksonville
Transportation Authority road, bridge and drainage capital improvement projects used to finance
transportation infrastructure projects.

Debt Administration

Debt Service Funds account for the accumulation of resources for, and the payment of, interest and
principal on most general governmental obligations. Individual debt service funds are described below.

The General Bonded Debt Obligations Fund accounts for the accumulation of resources for, and the
payment of, principal and interest on the Duval County Certificates of Indebtedness of 1972 General
Obligation Bonds for the construction of the Police Administration Complex.

The Special Bonded Debt Obligations Fund accounts for the accumulation of resources for, and the
payment of, principal and interest on the City’s special and limited bonded obligations payable solely from
and secured by a lien upon and pledge of the revenues under the respective bond ordinances.

The Special Bonded Debt - Better Jax Obligations Fund accounts for the accumulation of resources for,
and the payment of, principal and interest on the City’s special bonded obligations payable, which are
related to the Better Jacksonville Plan.

The Other Non-Bonded Debt Obligations Fund accounts for the accumulation of resources for, and the
payment of, principal and interest on other non-bonded debt obligations including the River City
Renaissance Commercial Paper debt.

At year-end the City had $1.4 billion in bonds and notes outstanding as shown in Table A-4. Additional
information on the City of Jacksonville’s long term-debt can be found on pages 80-92 of this report.

Table A-4
Outstanding Debt at Year End
(In Thousands)

Bonds and Notes Payable

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total

General Long-Term Obligations $ 605 $ 605
Special Obligation Bonds 1,276,835 1,276,835
Revenue Bonds Payable $ 79,670 79,670
Notes Payable 71,165 71,165
Deferred Amounts (896) (2,897) (3,793)

Total ¥ 1,337,709 376,773 $ 1,323,387

The City of Jacksonville’s debt Service increased by $19.3 million as compared to fiscal year 2001. This
increase was due to the October 1, 2002 Better Jacksonville Plan bond. The City anticipates future debt
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activity to continue funding the Better Jacksonville Plan, refinancing various bonds and additional needs
for drainage and park improvements.

The City does not borrow for operating needs. All of its outstanding long-term indebtedness is for capital
needs only. At September 30, 2002, the City of Jacksonville had $0.6 million in general obligation bonds
payable from ad valorem taxes, $881 million in special obligation bonds payable from specific revenue
sources other than ad valorem taxes, $395 million in special obligation bonds payable from other specific
revenue sources (Better Jacksonville Plan), $80 million in bonds payable from Enterprise Funds, and $71
million in commercial paper and U.S. Government-Guaranteed Notes. The direct net debt per capita as of
September 30, 2002, was $1,769.

All required principal and interest payments on outstanding debt were remitted timely and in full. The
reserve requirements and sinking fund remittances mandated by the bond covenants remain funded at the
prescribed levels at September 30, 2002.

On April 8, 2002 the City closed on the sale of $46,735,000 Excise Taxes Revenue Bonds, Series 2001B.
The proceeds were used to provide funds for public improvements and infrastructure improvements for the
redevelopment of the Jacksonville Shipyards property.

On July 3, 2002, the City closed on the forward delivery sale of $56,685,000 in Excise Taxes Refunding
and Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 2002A. The proceeds were used to defease a current refunding of
$57,255,000 previously outstanding Excise Taxes Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 1992 and for
improvements to the City’s Animal Care and Control Center. As a result of the refunding, the City realized
an economic gain of $4,065,665 or 7.10% as a percentage of bonds refunded. The present value savings
were used to lower future debt service and provide additional proceeds as previously mentioned.

Also on July 3, 2002, the City closed on the sale of $115,265,000 Guaranteed Entitlement Revenue
Refunding and Improvement Bonds, Series 2002. The issuance provided net proceeds of $114,766,205 to
fund the costs of various improvements and to purchase securities that were placed in an irrevocable trust
with an escrow agent to provide all future debt service payments on the $61,360,000 refunded Guaranteed
Entitlement Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 1992A. As a result of the refunding an economic gain was
realized of $495,836.24 or 0.81% as a percentage of bonds refunded. A portion of the proceeds of the 2002
Guaranteed Entitlement Bonds will be applied by the City to pay the costs of a new building for the
Children’s Commission, a new documents processing facility for the Clerk of the Court, replacement or
expansion of fire stations, historic preservation expenditures, a new facility for processing and review of
plans and permits, park development, acquisition and development of renovations plans for the
Haverty/YMCA building for City use and other capital expenditures.

In addition, the City closed on September 9, 2002 on $123,225,000 Capital Improvement and Refunding
Revenue Bonds, Series 2002A, Crossover Series 2002B, and Crossover Series 2002C. The issuance
provided net proceeds of $124,545,447 to fund the $40,000,000 in improvements to Alltel Stadium and to
fund escrow deposits for crossover refunding of the City’s Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series
1994, lien ascension date October 1, 2004, and the Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 1995, lien
ascension date October 1, 2005. This debt will not be legally defeased until each lien ascension date,
therefore the liability for the 1994 and 1995 bonds has not been removed from the governmental activities
column. This advance refunding was undertaken to reduce total debt service payments by $84,606.36 over
the next 24 years and an economic gain was realized of $2,399,380.86 or 3.70% as a percentage of bonds
refunded.

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR’S BUDGETS AND RATES

The State of Florida, by constitution, does not have a state personal income tax and therefore the State
operates primarily using sales, gasoline and corporate income taxes. Local governments (cities, counties
and school boards) primarily rely on property and a limited array of permitted other taxes (sales, gasoline,
utilities services, etc.) and fees (franchise, occupational license, etc.) for their governmental activities.
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There are a limited number of state-shared revenues and recurring and non-recurring (one-time) grants
from both the state and federal governments.

Other Economic Factors;

The unemployment rate for the City of Jacksonville is less than 5%. This compares favorably to
the state’s average unemployment rate and the national average unemployment rate.

o Inflationary trends in the region compare favorably to national indices.
e CSX Transportation will be moving its headquarter to Jacksonville in 2003. With this move the
City of Jacksonville is home to two Fortune 500 Companies, CSX and Winn Dixie.
Budget Highlights;

Ad Valorem millage rate reduced for the eighth consecutive year of millage cuts, resulting in a
10% decrease over the eight years. This represents tax savings to taxpayers of approximately $36
million in FY 2003. A millage rate decrease in FY 2003 from FY 2002 resulted in a decrease of
1.8% ($5.8 million).

The Police Operations Division has added 30 new police officers as part of the COPS program for
the Universal Hiring Program. Salaries and benefits will be funded by the Federal Government.
As part of the Better Jacksonville Plan, the new baseball park and the new arena are scheduled for
opening in March, 2003 and October, 2003 respectively. Construction in underway for the new
main library and new city courthouse.

CONTACTING THE CITY’S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, and investors and creditors
with a general overview of the City’s finances and to demonstrate the City’s accountability for the money it
receives. If you have questions about this report or need additional financial information, contact the
Department of Administration and Finance, Accounting Division, 117 West Duval Street, Suite 375,
Jacksonville, Florida 32202, or call (904) 630-1250.
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS (in thousands)

SEPTEMBER 30, 2002
PRIMARY GOVERNMENT
GOVERNMENTAL BUSINESS-TYPE COMPONENT
ACTIVITIES ACTIVITIES TOTAL UNITS
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS:
Equity in cash and investments..........cccc.coeerivveeeeneneecncnnn $ 856,172 $ 61,444 $ 917,616 $ 1,169,890
Cash in escrow and with fiscal agents.... 34,606 - 34,606 -
Receivables, net..........cccoevvvveviircneeeenneen. 21,471 3,389 24,860 183,182
Due from primary gOVEINMENt.......c.c.ceveceruererereerereerereerecrenns - - - 3,900
Due from independent agencies and other governments....... 91,932 363 92,295 30,231
INVENLOTIES.......viviiiiiiiiccce e 2,927 3 2,930 114,804
Prepaid expenses and other assets.............. 6,297 224 6,521 491,367
Deferred charge - Landfill related costs - 35,303 35,303 -
Other deferred charges...........cccoovineieiiineniin s 1,364 540 1,904 -
CAPITAL ASSETS:
Land and Work in Progress..........cocoeeeereeenenieeeeeenenrenennenenes 226,710 46,211 272,921 2,097,908
Other capital assets, net of depreciation............cccccccevveennene. 376,079 234,028 610,107 3,927,716
TOTAL ASSETS $ 1,617,558 $ 381,505 $ 1,999,063 $ 8,018,998
LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities............coccoerreeneee. $ 83,479 $ 6,638 $ 90,117 $ 100,616
Contracts payable..........cocceierniinneinec e 2,006 1,280 3,286 128,405
Due to COMPONENt UNILS........ccccvreuireerenecrriiereereereeneeeeenenenes 3,900 - 3,900 -
Due to independent agencies and other governments........... 178 34 212 163
DEPOSIES....cuivreercrereeererieteeeiest ettt eee ettt e e aes 453 123 576 18,453
Deposits held for construction and events..........c..c.ceecenenee. - 252 252 -
Accrued interest payable 28,258 2,010 30,268 79,021
DEfErTEd TEVENUE........veeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeseeeeee e sese e eeeeeeseesesens 5,274 54 5,328 153,244
Liabilities payable from restricted assets...........c.ccecuervenennene. - - - 90,000
NONCURRENT LIABILITIES:
Due within 0ne year..........cocccceieiirireniceieeceeeeeeee e 114,103 4,264 118,367 115,914
Due in more than one year........c.cccoceeveveiecenenerceseeee e 1,368,728 95,773 1,464,501 4,677,334
TOTAL LIABILITIES 1,606,379 . 110,428 1,716,807 5,363,150
NET ASSETS:
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt........................ (635,233) 201,456 (433,777) 1,586,015
Restricted for:
Debt Service........ccevererereeeennnne. et s 104,058 205 104,263 16,786
Capital projects 344,778 11,679 356,457 580,149
Other purposes...... - - - 6,057
UNIESIICLEd. ....ooviveceeeeieeeceeereceeec e 197,576 57,737 255,313 466,841
TOTAL NET ASSETS $ 11,179 $ 271,077 $ 282,256 $ 2,655,848
-20 -
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES (in thousands)

SEPTEMBER 30, 2002
PROGRAM REVENUES PRIMARY GOVERNMENT
FINES AND
CHARGES OPERATING CAPITAL BUSINESS-
FOR GRANTS AND GRANTS AND GOVERNMENTAL TYPE COMPONENT
FUNCTIONS/PROGRAMS EXPENSES SERVICES CONTRIBUTIONSCONTRIBUTIONS ACTIVITIES ACTIVITIES TOTAL UNITS
PRIMARY GOVERNMENT:
Governmental activities:
General government........................ $ 112505 $ 54,848 $ 3,114 $ 157 ($ 54,386) ($ 54,386)
Human Services............ccoocooeoerenne. 95,609 347 19,972 - (75,290) (75,290)
Public safety............cccocoooiieniinnns 332,829 34,779 8,592 - (289,458) (289,458)
Culture and recreation...................... 47,832 2,641 2,094 2,072 (41,025) (41,025)
Transportation............. 91,594 2,081 - 21,422 (68,091) (68,091)
Economic environment. 81,615 - 49,292 2,767 (29,556) (29,556)
Physical environment....... . 13,400 797 3,769 35 (8,799) (8,799)
Payments to component units........... 58,585 - - - (58,585) (58,585)
Interest on long term debt................ 55,745 - - - (55,745) (55,745)
Total governmental activities.............. 889,714 95,493 86,833 26,453 (680,935) (680,935)
Business-type activities:
Parking system............ccccocovrrreenrnnn. 3,497 2,858 - - - (3 639 (639)
Sports complex.. 20,471 9,578 - 1,366 - (9,527) (9,527)
Motor vehicle inspections . 706 548 - - - (158) (158)
Solid Waste.............coccevrveeeiinnns 65,323 35,987 229 - - (29,107) (29,107)
FeITY ..ot 1,871 1,042 - 5 - (824) (824)
Total business-type activities.............. 91,868 50,013 229 1,371 - (40,255) (40,255)
Total primary government............... $981,582 $ 145,506 $ 87,062 $ 27,824 (680,935) (40,255) (721,190)
COMPONENT UNITS:
Housing programs.............c.cccooeeen. $ 1,332 $ - $ - $ - ($ 1,332
Economic development programs.... 7,113 3 - - (7,110)
Downtown development programs... 835 756 - 163 74
UtilIties......ooviieicc e 1,035,296 987,839 - 29,991 (17,466)
39,542 27,641 - 16,594 4,693
53,318 46,963 - 18,261 11,906
76,507 19,884 7,747 21,134 (27,742)
Total component units.................... $ 1,213,943 $ 1,083,086 $ 7,747 $ 86,133 (36,977)
General revenues:
PIOPEILY TAXES.......iviviiiiiiictiiice et 312,551 - 312,551 -
ULility SEIVICE tAXES........viiiiiiiiiiiiei s 93,978 - 93,978 -
Sales and toUTriSt tAXES. ...........cviiiiiiiiiiiiic e 151,561 - 151,561 57,471
Intergovernmental................... . 122,145 117 122,262 8,406
Payments from component units........... . 111,054 - 111,054 -
Payments (to) from primary government.. . - - - (52,469)
Payment in lieu 0f taXes. ..o 2,984 - 2,984 -
Unrestricted earnings on inVeStMents................c.c.ocoerriiieeininnieeeeennns 26,743 2,787 29,530 56,833
MISCEIANEOUS. ..ottt 20,275 2,542 22,817 65,924
TIANSTETS ..ot (27,215) 27,215 - (56,968)
Total general revenues, special items, and transfers................................. 814,076 32,661 846,737 79,197
Change in NEL @SSELS.............oveviviiieririririeireeeeee e 133,141 (7,594) 125,547 42 220
Net assets, beginning of year, as restated....................cccooooeieeririirevieonnn, (121,962) 278,671 166,709 2,613,628
Net assets, end Of Yar..........cccoviviiiiiiiii s _$11,179 $ 271,077 $282256  §2,655,848

See accompanying independent auditors' report.
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MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS:
GENERAL FUND

The General Fund is the principal fund of the City and is used to account for all activities
not included in other funds. The General Fund accounts for the normal recurring activities
of the City (i.e, police, fire, public works, courts, general government, etc.) These activities
are funded principally by property taxes, intergovernmental revenues, and licenses and fees.

SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

The Transportation Fund accounts for revenue from the City's six cent local option gas
tax, the state shared 5th and 6th cent gas tax, and the one-half cent local option sales tax used
to fund major road and related capital infrastructure construction and maintenance and the
City's mass transit and automated skyway express system operations.

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS

The Bond Projects Fund receives proceeds from the sale of bonded debt issued by the City
to fund major capital improvement projects.

The General Projects Fund receives monies appropriated from the General Fund and other
sources including proceeds from non-bonded debt for general capital improvements.

The Better Jax Construction Projects Fund receives revenues from the two local option
sales tax programs and proceeds from the sale of bonded debt issued by the City to fund
projects under the Better Jacksonville Plan.



CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA

BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS (in thousands)

SEPTEMBER 30, 2002
BETTER
JACKSONVILLE
PLAN OTHER TOTAL
GENERAL TRANSPORTATION BOND GENERAL CONSTRUCTION GOVERNMENTAL GOVERNMENTAL
FUND FUND PROJECTS PROJECTS PROJECT FUNDS FUNDS
ASSETS:
Equity in cash and investments...............c...cccoceornirennns $ 37,999 $ 13,982 $ 155,951 $ 81,656 $ 206,669 $ 225,078 $ 721,335
Cash in escrow and with fiscal agents.............c.cccooeeeeni - - 276 - - 34,330 34,606
Receivables (net, where applicable, of
allowances for uncollectibles):
TAXES ..ottt 28 - - - - - 28
Accounts and interest.................cc.ococvovveeiiiiieri e 3,585 - - - - 48 3,633
MOTtEAZES. ... 48 - - - - 14,765 14,813
Oher ... 2,638 - - - - - 2,638
Due from independent agencies and other governments.... 38,875 22,288 - 196 - 27,472 88,831
INVENLOTIES. .....c.ooiiiiiieee e 1,521 - - - - - 1,521
Prepaid iemS............cooviiiiiciicee - - - - 1,364 - 1,364
TOTAL ASSETS $ 84,694 $ 36,270 $ 156,227 $ 81,852 $ 208,033 $ 301,693 $ 868,769
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities....................c.co.e.... $ 15,091 $ 21,688 $ 2,917 $ 3,797 $ 24,100 $ 7,317 $ 74910
Contracts payable...........cocooiiiiiiieiinin e - - 439 312 865 390 2,006
Due to other funds 25 - - - 1,364 1,529 2,918
Due to COmMPONENt UNItS..........oovviriiiiiiietieiecieee e 3,900 - - - - - 3,900
Due to independent agencies and other governments............ 162 - - - - - 162
Due to individuals............ccooovoeiiiieeecceee - - - - - 305 305
Matured bonds and interest payable..................ccococeriinnnnns - - - - - 39 39
DIPOSIES. ...t - - - - - 453 453
Deferred reVenue. .............c.coooeiiiioiieiieeeeeeeeeeeee e 3,936 - - - - 1,069 5,005
Advances from other funds......................ccoooieiiiiiiin, - - - 12,593 - - 12,593
TOTAL LIABILITIES. 23,114 21,688 3,356 16,702 26,329 11,102 102,291
FUND BALANCES:
Reserved for:
Encumbrances.............c..cccoo..... 12,847 6,484 59,753 20,368 180,958 30,848 311,258
Imprest cash and cash in €sCrow................coccovvvniicnns 329 - 276 - - 34,291 34,896
Mortgages receivable.............cccooviniiicc, 48 - - - - 14,765 14,813
INVENTOTIES. ... .ooviviieiieieic et 1,521 - - - - - 1,521
Dbt SEIVICE.........cveviiiiiiiiiecee e - - - - - 142,438 142,438
Unreserved:
Designated for capital projects.................cococovviiviriiienne 3,973 - 92,269 44,484 - 5,272 145,998
Designated for subsequent years' budget......................... - - - - - 379 379
Designated for budget stabilization.................cccoooevennne 5,473 - - - - - 5,473
Designated for changes in fair value of investments........ 140 68 573 298 746 4,826 6,651
Designated for next year's budget appropriation.. 37,228 - - - - - 37,228
Undesignated (deficit)..........cccccoovviiveninicinnnn 21 8,030 - - - - 8,051
Unreserved, reported in nonmajor:
Special revenue funds.. - - - - - 60,459 60,459
Capital projects funds..............cocoveviiiieeeiiiiicean - - - - - (2,857) (2,857)
Permanent fund..........ccoooooiiiii - - - - - 170 170
TOTAL FUND BALANCES 61,580 14,582 152,871 65,150 181,704 290,591 766,478
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES........... $ 84,694 $ 36,270 $ 156,227 $ 81,852 $ 208,033 $ 301,693 $ 868,769

See accompanying independent auditors' report.
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City of Jacksonville, Florida
Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet
to the Statement of Net Assets
September 30, 2002
(in thousands)

Total fund balances- governmental funds $ 766,478
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net
assets are different because:
Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial
resources and therefore are not reported in the funds 538,958
Long term liabilities liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and
are not reported in the funds:
Bonds and notes payable $ 1,348,605
Unamortized bond discounts (1,362)
Unamortized bond premium 5,705
Unamortized loss on advance refunding of debt (5,239)
Compensated absences 60,142
Interest payable 28,219
(1,436,070)
Certain assets reported in governmental activities are not financial
resources and therefore are not reported in the funds:
Umamortized bond issuance costs 4,238
Interest receivable 115
Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of certain activities,
such as fleet maintenance and insurance, to individual funds. The assets and liabilities
of internal service funds are included in governmental activities in the statement
of net assets 137,460
Net assets of governmental activities $ 11,179
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA

STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS (in thousands)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2002

BETTER
JACKSONVILLE
PLAN OTHER TOTAL
GENERAL TRANSPORTATION BOND GENERAL CONSTRUCTIONGOVERNMENTAL GOVERNMENTAL
FUND FUND PROJECTS PROJECTS PROJECT FUNDS FUNDS
REVENUE:
Property taXes......c.covvvrieernrreeneercieieeeeseenenene $ 310,460 $ - $ -8 - $ - $ 2,091 $ 312,551
Utility Service taxes 93,978 - - - - - 93,978
Sales and tourist taXes...........coeevvvevieiiieinnnes - 85,153 - - - 66,408 151,561
Licenses and permits...........cccoeevverveeienveeercnnene 10,238 - - - - - 10,238
Intergovernmental 118,973 6,543 - - - 90,788 216,304
Charges for Services........oveeeeevenerirreennenenns 53,014 - - - - 21,295 74,309
Fines and forfeitures.........ccccccoceviiicnincncnnne 8,425 - - - - 2,521 10,946
Payment in lieu of taxes... 2,984 - - - - - 2,984
INEEIESE....evveeeeiiceei e 4,769 467 2,087 2,055 5,797 7,943 23,118
OtheT .. e 9,327 - - 2,834 - 8,114 20,275
Total REVENUE......c...cevevieereiriieiceeirccee e 612,168 92,163 2,087 4,889 5,797 199,160 916,264
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
General 2OVernment..........coceevereecveerreennnennes 95,153 - - - - 7,016 102,169
Human services 66,274 - - - - 28,101 94,375
Public safety........ccooveviiieiiieiiiiceeee 303,418 - - - - 24,216 327,634
Culture and recreation............c..oceveeevvevveenens 44 552 - - - - 5,040 49,592
Transportation 34,767 56,884 - - - 288 91,939
Economic environment................ccceeveeeennnenn. 7,256 - - - - 57,311 64,567
Physical environment...........c.ccocvenveiiniencnne. 12,302 - - - - 5,384 17,686
Capital outlay..........cccceeiviiniiiiiiiiiee - - 45,239 23,266 184,087 6,894 259,486
Debt service:
Principal......c.cccoovviniiinicc - - - - - 35,960 35,960
Interest on fiscal charges... - - - - - 52,675 52,675
Other - cost of issuance........ - - 4,415 - - - 4,415
Total EXpenditures..........cccccovvivierieiieniinecncnnens 563,722 56,884 49,654 23,266 184,087 222,885 1,100,498
EXCESS OF REVENUE OVER
(UNDER) EXPENDITURES.........cccccceruernnee. 48,446 35,279 (47,567) (18,377) (178,290) (23,725) (184,234)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Long term debt issued..........ccoevviiiiiiiinnnn. - - 138,690 - - 203,220 341,910
Premium on special obligation bonds payable. - - 5,833 - - - 5,833
Discount on special obligation bonds payable. - - (1,409) - - - (1,409)
Payment to escrow agent - refunded bonds...... - - - - - (123,854) (123,854)
Operating transfers in........c...ccoeveeeeveccrecnnnes 4,964 - - 16,460 41,192 105,617 168,233
Operating transfers out..........cocccceveevvenrenennen. (115,000) (4,513) (89) (759) - (70,545) (190,906)
Transfers - In from component units................ 76,682 - - - 25,368 9,004 111,054
Transfers - Out to component units.................. (11,809) (30,428) - (7,000) (9,031) (317) (58,585)
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)............... (45,163) (34,941) 143,025 8,701 57,529 123,125 252,276
NET CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES..... 3,283 338 95,458 (9,676) (120,761) 99,400 68,042
FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING
OF YEAR, AS RESTATED.......cccccenvimerennn 58,101 14,244 57,413 74,826 302,465 191,191 698,240
Change in reserve for inventory of supplies..... 196 - - - - - 196
FUND BALANCES, END OF YEAR............. $ 61,580 $ 14,582 $152,871  $65150 $ 181,704 $ 290,591 $ 766,478

See accompanying notes.
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City of Jacksonville, Florida

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures,
and Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds

to the Statement of Activities
For The Year Ended September 30, 2002

Net change in fund balances- total governmental activities

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement

(in thousands)

of activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives

and reported as depreciation expense. Also, certain capital assets are contributed

to the City upon completion, requiring recognition of income not reported

in the funds.
Capital assets acquired by use of financial resources
Capital assets contributed by developers
Capital assets transferred from proprietary funds of the City
Current year depreciation

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial resources are

not reported in the fund statements:
Accrued interest earned

Governmental funds report certain bond transactions as resources or uses. However, in the
statement of activities these transactions are reported over the life of the debt as expenses.

Bond issuance costs

Amortization of issuance costs

Discounts on bonds sold

Amortization of bond discounts

Premium on bonds sold

Additional current year interest expense, bond premiums

Repayment of bond principal is an expenditure in governmental funds, but the repayment
results in a reduction of long-term liabilities in the statement of net assets. Issuing debt
provides current financial resources to governmental funds, but issuing debt increases
long-term liabilities in the statement of net assets. This is the amount by which debt issued

($341,910) exceeded principal repayment ($159,884).

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities did not require the use of
current financial resources and therefore are not reported as expenditures in

governmental funds:
Accrued interest expense
Increases in compensated absences payable
Changes in reserves for inventory

Internal service funds are used to charge the cost of certain activities to individual funds. The

net revenue (expense) is reported with governmental activities.
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$ 68,042
247,701
18,970
2,853
(11,984)
257,540
115
4415
a77)
1,409
47)
(5.833)
128
(105)
(182,026)
(3,151)
(5,878)
196
(1,592)
S 133141



(This page is intentionally left blank.)



MAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS:

Enterprise Funds account for operations that are financed and operated in a manner similar
to private business enterprises and where the costs of providing goods or services to the
general public are recovered primarily through user charges; or where the city has decided
that determination of net income is appropriate for capital maintenance, public policy,
management control, accountability or other purposes. Individual major enterprise funds are
described below.

The Public Parking System Fund accounts for the City's on-street, off-street, and parking
garage facility operations, including revenue collection and enforcement.

The Sports Complex, Convention Center and Auditorium Fund accounts for the
operation of the ALLTEL Stadium-Wolfson Baseball Park-Veterans Memorial Coliseum
sports complex, the Prime Osborn Convention Center and Performing Arts Center.

The Solid Waste Disposal Fund accounts for collection, recycling, and disposal of
commercial and residential garbage services throughout the City, including operation of three
municipally owned landfill sites, two of which are closed.



CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS - PROPRIETARY FUNDS (in thousands)

SEPTEMBER 30, 2002
ENTERPRISE FUNDS
SPORTS
COMPLEX,
PUBLIC CONVENTION SOLID INTERNAL
PARKING CENTER AND WASTE OTHER SERVICE
SYSTEM AUDITORIUM DISPOSAL ENTERPRISE TOTAL FUNDS
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS:
Equity in cash and investments............ccccoeireeincnenenennn. $ 2,294 $ 2,570 $ 42,875 $ 563 $ 48,302 $ 134,837
Receivables (net, where applicable, of
allowances for uncollectibles):
Accounts - 1,938 1,312 92 3,342 188
Other......... - - - - - 56
Due from other funds - - - - - 5,362
Due from independent agencies and other governments....... - - 160 203 363 3,101
Advances to other funds...........c..coooovvviiiiiiiiieee e - - - - - 12,593
TNVENLOTIES. .. vviieeiie ettt e s - - - 3 3 1,406
Prepaid expenses and other assets............c.ccoceverenernienene - 124 - 100 224 2,059
Total Current ASSELS.......ccveeeuiieiiieeiireecciee e 2,294 4,632 44,347 961 52,234 159,602
NONCURRENT ASSETS:
Sinking fund cash and investments...........c.ccccceoveeeeniccnnennne - 205 - - 205 -
Construction fund cash and investments - - 12,937 - 12,937 -
Accounts and interest receivable...................... - 47 - - 47 -
CAPITAL ASSETS:
Land and work in progress.......cccceeeeivevrerieeviinienieresesenneenes 4,573 24,576 16,420 642 46,211 58
Other capital assets, net of depreciation 9,033 195,806 24,944 4,245 234,028 63,773
Deferred charge - Landfill related costs..........cocooeveneeennne. - - 35,303 - 35,303 -
Other deferred charges..........cocoevvirnininienieceeee, - - 540 - 540 -
Total Noncurrent ASSELS.......c.cccverieiiiiiinierieiiene e esieeenens 13,606 220,634 90,144 4,887 329,271 63,831
TOTAL ASSETS $ 15,900 $ 225,266 $ 134,491 $ 5,848 $ 381,505 $ 223,433
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS - PROPRIETARY FUNDS (in thousands)

SEPTEMBER 30, 2002
ENTERPRISE FUNDS
SPORTS
COMPLEX,
PUBLIC CONVENTION SOLID INTERNAL
PARKING CENTERAND WASTE OTHER SERVICE
SYSTEM AUDITORIUM DISPOSAL ENTERPRISE TOTAL FUNDS
LIABILITIES
CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities...........cc.ccceccnrnee. $ 73 $ 2,681 $ 347 $ 413 $ 6,638 $ 8264
Contracts payable............cccooviiiinicinnnnnnn. 15 7 1,258 - 1,280 -
Due to other funds - - - - - 2,444
Due to independent agencies and other governments.... 34 - - - 34 16
Capitalized lease obligations, current portion................ - - - - - 3,252
DEPOSIES. ...t 78 - 45 - 123 -
Deposits held for construction and events.............ccocceeuee. - 252 - - 252 -
Accrued interest payable............cccccoereinenee 568 - 1,442 - 2,010 -
Current portion of bonds payable..........c..cocevereeierninieinnne 1,245 - 2,500 - 3,745 -
Deferred revenue.........c.cooooeecinieieiieneicneennee - 31 - 23 54 269
Accrued compensated absences, current portion................... 91 - 400 28 519 2,239
Total Current Liabilities.............ccoveiviiiiviiiiiiieiecceee e 2,104 2,971 9,116 464 14,655 16,484
NONCURRENT LIABILITIES:
Estimated liability for self-insured losses..........ccccccceeeenrnnenn. - - - - - 53,587
Liability for landfill closure and postclosure care - - 22,556 - 22,556 -
Accrued compensated absences.............coecereeeneriniiennenan 24 - 153 12 189 710
Capitalized lease obligations...........c.ccccveviniiiiniininnan. - - - - - 15,192
Revenue bondS..........ccveoeiiiieieciecce et 20,172 - 52,856 - 73,028 -
Total Noncurrent Liabilities.......c....occvvvvvviviiinieeiiieeieieeeee. 20,196 - 75,565 12 95,773 69,489
TOTAL LIABILITIES 22,300 2,971 84,681 476 110,428 85,973
NET ASSETS:
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt....................... (8,379) 220,382 (15,434) 4,887 201,456 45,387
Restricted for:
DEDBE SEIVICE. ...cuveniiiirieeiiiniiniieterieee et - 205 - - 205 -
Capital............. - - 11,679 - 11,679 -
Unrestricted 1,979 1,708 53,565 485 57,737 92,073
TOTAL NET ASSETS $ (6,400) $ 222,295 $ 49,810 $ 5,372 $ 271,077 $ 137,460

See accompanying independent auditors' report.
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA

STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS (in thousands)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2002

ENTERPRISE FUNDS
SPORTS
COMPLEX,
PUBLIC CONVENTION SOLID INTERNAL
PARKING CENTER AND WASTE OTHER SERVICE
SYSTEM AUDITORIUM DISPOSAL ENTERPRISE TOTAL FUNDS
OPERATING REVENUE:
$ 9,578 $ 35,987 $ 1,590 $ 50,013 $ 131,522
- - - - 15,639
- - - - 404
9,578 35,987 1,590 50,013 147,565
OPERATING EXPENSES:
Personal SErviCes........couiviniriiiiriiineeeeee e 1,307 8,211 5,723 1,133 16,374 22,484
Supplies and materials............ccccoccivvniiiiiiiiii 104 2,160 182 144 2,590 11,388
Central services 817 140 2,544 24 3,525 4,310
Interdepartmental Charges...............ccooeevevvereeveeeeeeeereeeeeeeeeans 507 471 22 - 1,000 -
Other services and charges...........coccoeoevvevirieenincenieenneeneens 216 3,788 51,586 961 56,551 26,461
Depreciation and amortization 546 5,701 2,383 315 8,945 17,544
COUTt TEPOITET SETVICES. ....vvvertirereiiieiteieree ettt - - - - - 25
Claims and 10SSES.......ccovviiiiiiiiiieeeee e - - - - - 12,079
Insurance premiums and participant dividends..........c.ccccooue... - - - - - 49,737
Total Operating EXPenses..........ccccccvveirieiiininenene e 3,497 20,471 62,440 2,577 88,985 144,028
OPERATING INCOME (LOSS).... (639) (10,893) (26,453) (987) (38,972) 3,537
NON-OPERATING REVENUE (EXPENSES):
INEEIESt TEVEMUE. .....cuiiiiiiiiticeeie ettt 1,005 66 1,694 22 2,787 3,510
0 - (2,883) - (2,883) -
0 - 229 - 229 -
222 2,388 (63) (5) 2,542 (1,401)
1,227 2,454 (1,023) 17 2,675 2,109
INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE CONTRIBUTIONS
AND TRANSFERS 588 (8,439) (27,476) (970) (36,297) 5,646
Capital contributions...........coeoveiriireiiiinenc e - 1,366 - 5 1,371 157
Operating transfers iN...........c.ooovveriiiiriivieiiicceccee e 1,447 3,872 26,412 823 32,554 4,172
Operating transfers out............ocooevviviiirieiiiicccce s (4,262) (960) - - (5,222) (11,567)
CHANGES IN NET ASSETS.......... (2,227) (4,161) (1,064) (142) (7,594) (1,592)
NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR (4,173) 226,456 50,874 5,514 278,671 139,052
NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR ($ 6,400) $ 222,295 $ 49,810 $5,372 $ 271,077 $ 137,460

See accompanying independent auditors' report.
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS (in thousands)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2002

ENTERPRISE FUNDS
SPORTS
COMPLEX,
PUBLIC CONVENTION
PARKING CENTER AND
SYSTEM AUDITORIUM
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Receipts from customers $ 2,858 $ 8,699
Payments to suppliers......... (1,250) (5,362)
Payments to employees (1,293) (8,211)
Internal activity- payments to other funds............cccoceviiiiiiiiiiiiiiis - -
Other reCIPLS (EXPEINSES)...eveeurerreeierieentiererterieereinreesiesreesbe st stestesaeesneereesaeesasense e 222 2,388
Other operating cash PaymMents..........cccccueiriiiiiiiiiiiiii e (143) (471)
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES.............. 394 (2,957)
NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Operating grants reCeIVEd........cuevuiriiiiiiiiiriiniiiiit e - -
Cash received through operating transfers from other funds.............ccccoceiiiiiiin. 1,447 3,872
Cash received from capital contributions............cccccveiviiiiin - 1,366
Cash payments through operating transfers to other funds...........cccoeoevivinivncicnne (4,262) (960)
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) NONCAPITAL FINANCING
ACTIVITIES. ..ottt sb e (2,815) 4,278
CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Additions to property, plant and €qUIPMENt............cccoviiiiiiiiiiici (546) (5,701)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment.............ccccociviiiiiinniiiinnnns 1,381 3,741
Increase in construction fund cash and investments...........ccccceovvnviininiiniiicenne - -
Principal paid on long-term obligations (1,104) -
Increase in capitalized lease obligations.............ccccooviiiiiiiiiiiiiiie - -
Additions to contributed capital @SSELS........c.ecueciiiririiriiiiii s - -
Interest and payments to refunded bond escrow agent............cccecveeneveniinenicnienenns - -
NET CASH (USED IN) CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES.......cooiiiiiiiiiiieinene e (269) (1,960)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Interest and dividends on INVESIMENTS.........cccovvviiivivieiniiiniiiiceec e 1,005 66
NET CASH PROVIDED BY INVESTING ACTIVITIES........ccccocecniivirnnenn 1,005 66
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS................ (1,685) (573)
Cash and cash equivalents at October 1........ccccoceiiiriniiieiniiceceeee 3,979 3,143
Cash and cash equivalents at September 30..........ccooceveniiiiiieiniieeee e $ 2,294 $ 2,570
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ENTERPRISE FUNDS

SOLID

WASTE OTHER
DISPOSAL ENTERPRISE
$ 37,412 $ 1,294
(54,264) (885)
(5,679) (1,118)
(63) -
1,419 -
(21,175) (709)
229 -
26,412 823
26,641 823
(2,383) (315)
3,039 88
(610) -
(2,379) -
(2,883) -
(5,216) (227)
1,694 22
1,694 22
1,944 (91)
40,931 654
$ 42,875 $ 563

See accompanying independent auditors' report.

(continued)
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INTERNAL

SERVICE

TOTAL FUNDS
$ 50,263 $ 145,030
(61,761) (88,894)
(16,301) (22,506)
- 2,444
2,547 (1,249)
805 (17,361)
(24,447) 17,464
229 -
32,554 4,172
1,366 (11,567)
(5,222) -
28,927 (7,395)
(8,945) (37,479)
8,249 .
(610) -
(3,483) 13,860
. 2,713
- 7
(2,883) -
(7,672) (20,899)
2,787 3,510
2,787 3,510
(405) (7,320)
48,707 142,157
$ 48,302 $ 134,837



CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS (in thousands; continued)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2002

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO NET CASH
PROVIDED BY (USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
OPERATING INCOME (LOSS)....cittteiiieieierieietriereic ettt seeveees e esaeeenes
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss)
to net cash provided by (used in) operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization...................
Other non-operating revenue/(expenses)
Change in assets and liabilities:
Decrease (increase) in receivables and other current assets, net....
(Increase) in due from other funds..........ccoeveoiiiincinii e
Decrease (increase) in due from independent agencies and other governments...
(Increase) in due from other governments....................
(Increase) in inVeNntories...........ocvevvereeneeereens
Decrease (increase) in prepaid EXPEnSes.........cvvvereeuieirerenenenerenieeeeeseseeneennes
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and accrued expenses..... e
Increase in due to other funds..........coceiviiiiiniiiii e
Increase (decrease) in contracts payable..........ccooerierienieniinienieenenieiieniens
Increase in due to independent agencies and other governments......
Increase (decrease) in deposits..........oeververeirineiiiisenieceenee
(Decrease) in interest payable............cccccoeenene.
Increase in current portion of bond payables
Increase (decrease) in deferred revenue...........coceceeveeiciineniennenne.
Increase in liability for landfill closure and postclosure care.....
(Decrease) in liability for self-insured losses............ccccvevvrnrrnnnne
Increase (decrease) in accrued compensated absences.....
TOTAL ADJUSTMENTS

NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN)
OPERATING ACTIVITIES.......cooooiiiiiiiiiiniiiccciceeieeneese s

NONCASH INVESTING, CAPITAL AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Change in the fair value of INVEStMENTS.......cccovvrueieieierieiiieec e

TOTAL NONCASH INVESTING, CAPITAL AND FINANCING
ACTIVITIES

ENTERPRISE FUNDS
SPORTS
COMPLEX,
PUBLIC CONVENTION
PARKING CENTER AND
SYSTEM AUDITORIUM
($ 639) ($ 10,893)
546 5,701
222 2,388
- (866)
- 6
(46) 719
(46) 7
31 .
8 -
(21) -
325 -
- (19)
14 -
1,033 7,936
$ 394 ($ 2,957)
$_ 2 $ 3
$ 2 $ 3
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ENTERPRISE FUNDS

SOLID

WASTE OTHER

DISPOSAL ENTERPRISE
($ 26,453) ($ 987)
2,383 315
(63) -
1,227 (66)
198 -

- (203)

- (20)

27 244

70 -

(2) -

(49) -

105 -

- (7)

1,338 -

44 15

5,278 278

($ 21,175) ($ 709)
$ 54 $ -
$ 54 $ -

TOTAL

($ 38,972)

8,945
2,547

295
198
(203)

(14)
944
31
31
6
(70)
430
(26)
1,338
73
14,525

($ 24,447)

$ 55

INTERNAL
SERVICE
FUNDS

$ 3,537

17,544
(1,249)

43
(1,858)
(1,009)

(18)
(2,059)
3,045
2,444

269

(3,203)
(22)
13,927

$ 17,464

__ 8 125

__ 8 125

See accompanying independent auditors' report.
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FIDUCIARY FUND LEVEL
STATEMENTS

PENSION TRUST FUNDS are funds administered by independent boards for which the
City performs a fiduciary role under a defined benefit program those retirement funds for
which the participant's retirement annuity is based on a statutory formula utilizing such
factors as age, average salary, length of service and others.

PRIVATE PURPOSE TRUST FUND is used to report all trust arrangements, other than
those properly reported in pension trust funds, under which principal and income benefit
individuals. The City reports its James Brady Disabled Scholarship, Michael Jackson Music
Scholarship, and J.B. Smith Memorial Scholarship funds as private purpose trusts.

AGENCY FUNDS are funds which hold monies in an agency capacity for various
government units, individuals or funds. Individual fund descriptions follow.



CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS (in thousands)
FIDUCIARY FUNDS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2002
PRIVATE
PENSION PURPOSE
TRUST TRUST AGENCY
FUNDS FUND FUNDS
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS:
Equity in cash and investments.............cccevvreiniineicciiineccinnes $ 115,833 $ 154 $ 28,959
Receivables (net, where applicable, of
allowances for uncollectibles):
Interest and dividends............coeveivininiiininiec 10,518 - -
Accounts . 45 - 3,377
Total receivables........covvvviiviieiiiieeieie et 10,563 - 3,377
Investments, at fair value:
U.S. Government obligations............ccceveviviriniecnieeiiiieeeen 471,441 - -
Municipal Bonds..........ccoccovevineiniiiininiiiies 1,114 - -
Domestic corporate bonds... 357,542 - -
Commercial paper..........cccooceeveiiiiiiiiiiiinnnns 5,996 - -
Domestic stocks............ e 886,122 - -
International stocks....... e 159,218 - -
Real Estate.................... e rbeeeeeeeiiraeeeeea i tb—rreeeeaan—araeeaaaares 7,250 - -
Total INVEStMENTS........coeiiiriiieiiieneciece e 1,888,683 - -
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS.....cooiiiiiiiiineieesereeesee e 2,015,079 154 32,336
CAPITAL ASSETS
Other capital assets, net of depreciation...............cecoeveviiiiiineins 318 - -
TOTAL CAPITAL ASSETS, Net 318 - -
TOTAL ASSETS 2,015,397 154 $ 32,336
LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities.............ccoceveveneniienenins 3,308 - $ 175
Due to independent agencies and other governments.... - - 8,543
Due to individuals..........ccoeeiiiiiiiiiiieii e, - - 2,111
Current portion of long-term liabilities.... 31 - -
Deposits held in €SCrow.........cccoeiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiccce, - - 21,507
Total Current Liabiliti€s.........ccouviiiviviiiiriiiieiieeeee e 3,339 - 32,336
NONCURRENT LIABILITIES:
Accrued compensated absences 42 - -
Due to Drop participants 77,538 - -
TOTAL LIABILITIES 80,919 - $ 32,336
NET ASSETS HELD IN TRUST FOR PENSION BENEFITS
AND OTHER PURPOSES $ 1,934,478 $ 154

See accompanying independent auditors' report.
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS (in thousands)

FIDUCIARY FUNDS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2002

ADDITIONS

Contributions:
EMPIOYRT.....ceiiiiiiiiiiiie e
Plan MEmDbET.........coveiviiieiieiicccieceeeee et
Total contributions.............coceeviriiiiiiee e

Other additions:

State insurance contributions...........ccccovevvveeveieceeceeeceeceeen,

Court fines & penalties

Parking reVenUES........cceoueieuieiiieerteeeeeece e

MIiSCEIIANEOUS. .......cvieeeieeiccie et

Operating transfer in..........c.ccocceevvevennn.

Gain/Loss on Sale of Fixed Assets
Total other additions............ccceevvviveeeiieecieeceecie e

Investment income:
Net depreciation
in fair value of investments..............cccoccveveevevreceeriecreenene
Interest.....c.ooveeeeiiiiceciececeeen
Dividends
Rebate of Commissions
Rental iNCOME...........ccveevviiiiiieieccecce e
Earnings other miscellaneous e
Total investment iNCOME...........ccveveeeveeereeniieiree e
Less investment EXPense..........cevvrrerereirerineerenreneneeenennenens
Less rental expense
Net investment iNCOME...........coveevuieiuieeireeeeeeereeeeeeeeeeeenns

TOTAL ADDITIONS

DEDUCTIONS

Benefits payments.........cccocvveirieerieinieinieeseene e
Refunds of contributions
Operating transfers out...........coceeveeveinnnieieeeee e
Administrative eXPenSes.........covoveirieeriniirerierineeieneeeeerieeseseennns
Operating EXPenses.........covuerieiieieniiiieieeieeeeesve s

TOTAL DEDUCTIONS

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS.....cooiiiirirrccirereceeeenene

NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR......c.ccccovveeininrirennes

NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR.....c.ccccveinnereineeneecseenns

PENSION
TRUST

FUNDS

$ 9619
24,524

34,143

5,222
3,117
155
89

104
8,687

(182,096)
55,780
15,281

726
493
1,037

(108,779)

(7,359)
(135)

(116,273)

(73,443)

140,661
2,356
123
3,482

146,622

(220,065)

2,154,543

$ 1,934,478

PRIVATE
PURPOSE
TRUST

"<

[}

152

$ 154

See accompanying independent auditors' report.
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1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting policies of the City of Jacksonville, Florida (the City) conform to accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States (GAAP) as applicable to governments. The
following is a summary of the more significant policies. Notes 1.C. through 18 are note
disclosures of the primary government with significant disclosures for major component
units incorporated within. Additional significant component unit disclosures are presented
in Note 19 and condensed financial information for component units is presented in Note 20.

A. Basis of Presentation:

The accompanying financial statements of the City have been prepared in conformity
with GAAP as prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB),
the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB), and the American Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (AICPA). Under the auspices of GASB Statement No. 20,
the City does not apply FASB pronouncements issued after November 30, 1989, for
proprietary activities, unless the GASB amends its pronouncements to specifically adopt
FASB pronouncements issued after that date. GASB is the accepted standard-setting
body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles for
units of local government.

B. Financial Reporting Entity:

The City is a consolidated city/county political entity created by Chapter 67-1320 of the
Laws of Florida. When consolidation occurred on October 1, 1968, all existing
municipalities, authorities, and public agencies within Duval County, except for the
Duval County School Board, were merged into a single new corporate and political entity
also known as the City of Jacksonville. At the same time, however, the cities of
Jacksonville Beach, Atlantic Beach, Neptune Beach, and the Town of Baldwin elected
to retain local autonomy for certain municipal purposes and were reconstituted as
separate and distinct urban service districts. The Consolidated City government, which
is comprised of an elected City Council (19 members) and Mayor, provides, under the
administration of an appointed Chief Administrative Officer, services to approximately
807,000 residents living in an 840.1 square mile area.

To conform to the traditional county organization of government in the State of Florida,
the City retained the offices of the Sheriff, Property Appraiser, Tax Collector, Supervisor
of Elections, and Clerk of the Circuit Court, which are also elected by the citizenry.
These officers are considered to be not only county officers, but also officers of the
consolidated government as well, and therefore are considered as part of the primary
government. The three beach cities and the Town of Baldwin continue to function as
separate municipal governments.

- 48 -



CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2002

1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
B. Financial Reporting Entity: (continued)

This report includes all funds, departments, agencies, boards and commissions, and other
organizational units that are administered by the Mayor and/or controlled by or
dependent upon the City Council as set forth in the City Charter. The City, a primary
government, has also considered for inclusion all potential component units for which
it may be financially accountable and other organizations for which the nature and
significance of their relationship with the City are such that exclusion would cause the
City's financial statements to be misleading or incomplete. In accordance with GASB
Statement No. 14, The Financial Reporting Entity, the GASB has set forth criteria to be
considered in determining financial accountability. These criteria include appointing a
voting majority of an organization's governing body and (1) the ability of the City to
impose its will on that organization or (2) the potential for the organization to provide
specific financial benefits to or impose specific financial burdens on the City.

As required by GAAP, these financial statements present the City of Jacksonville (the
primary government) and its component units. The City has identified and included
within the financial reporting entity, as its component units, legally separate
organizations for which the City is financially accountable or for which a significant
relationship with the City exists such that exclusion would cause the City's financial
statement to be misleading or incomplete.

The Jacksonville Public Library Board has been classified as a dependent special district
by the State of Florida Department of Community Affairs. Per GASB Statement No. 14,
the Library Board is not considered a component unit as it is not a legally separate
organization. Therefore, its activity is included as part of the primary government.

The Jacksonville Economic Development Company, Inc. (JEDCO), was established as
a not-for-profit corporation under the Laws of Florida in 1981 to provide a centralization
of economic development programs. City Ordinance 2001-1271-E authorized the
"privatization" of JEDCO. The Mayor and the Jacksonville Economic Development
Commission also approved a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) with JEDCO to
continue to provide certain services pursuant to the terms of the agreement. JEDCO and
the City determined that it was in their mutual best interest for JEDCO to become
independent of the City. Therefore, JEDCO is no longer a component unit of the City.

Blended Component Units. There are two component units, which are legally separate
from the City, but are so intertwined with the City that they are, in substance, the same

as the City. They are reported as part of the City and blended into the appropriate funds.

The Jacksonville Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO) was established
under Chapter 339.175, Laws of Florida, to encourage and promote the development
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1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
B. Financial Reporting Entity: (continued)

of transportation systems for the Jacksonville urbanized area. The members of MPO
are also members of the City Council. MPO provides services exclusively to the City
in the form of transportation planning and capital improvement program
development.

The MPO is blended in the Special Revenue Funds. There are no separately issued
financial statements for the MPO.

The Jacksonville Police and Fire Pension Board of Trustees, created under Article
22 of the City Charter, provides retirement services and benefits to eligible
employees of the Office of the Sheriff and the Department of Fire and Rescue. The
City appoints two of the five-member board; one member is a police officer; one
member is a firefighter; and the remaining member is appointed by the other four
members. As sponsor, the City has the ability to modify the plan and to approve the
defined benefit contribution to the Police and Fire Pension Board of Trustees in the
City's annual budget. The Police and Fire Pension Board of Trustees issues separate
financial statements on the fund, which may be obtained from its administrative
office at 3200 Emerson Street, Jacksonville, Florida 32207. These transactions are
blended in the Fiduciary Funds.

Discrete Component Units. These component units are entities which are legally
separate from the City, but are financially accountable to the City, or whose relationships
with the City are such that exclusion would cause the City's financial statements to be
misleading or incomplete. The component units are reported separately to emphasize that
they are legally separate from the primary government and are governed by separate
boards. The footnotes include the financial data of these entities. Each component unit
listed below has a September 30 fiscal year end.

Major Component Units

JEA (formerly known as the Jacksonville Electric Authority) was created by Chapter
67-1569 of the Laws of Florida to own, manage, and operate an electric utility system
and a water and sewer utility system in the City and any or all counties adjacent
thereto. The governing body of the JEA consists of seven members appointed by the
Mayor and confirmed by the City Council. The City has the ability to impose its will
on the JEA manifested principally through formal budgetary approval. The JEA
issues separate financial statements, which may be obtained from its administrative
office in the JEA Plaza at 21 West Church Street, Jacksonville, Florida 32202.
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
B. Financial Reporting Entity: (continued)

The Jacksonville Seaport Authority (JSA) was created by Resolution 2000-1104-
A, which abolished the Jacksonville Port Authority (JPA). The JPA was created in
1963 by Chapter 63-1447 of the Laws of Florida, to own and operate marine and
aviation facilities in the Consolidated City/County Government of
Jacksonville/Duval County. These state laws were repealed and separate seaport and
airport authorities were established. The governing body of the JSA consists of
seven members, four of whom are appointed by the Mayor and confirmed by the City
Council, and three of whom are appointed by the Governor. The City can impose its
will on the JSA through modification and approval of its budgets, which ensures
strong accountability to the local constituent citizenry. The JSA issues separate
financial statements, which may be obtained from its administrative office at 2831
Tallyrand Avenue, Jacksonville, Florida 32206.

The Jacksonville Airport Authority (JAA) was created by Resolution 2000-1104-
A, which abolished the Jacksonville Port Authority (JPA). The JPA was created in
1963 by Chapter 63-1447 of the Laws of Florida, to own and operate marine and
aviation facilities in the Consolidated City/County Government of
Jacksonville/Duval County. These state laws were repealed and separate seaport and
airport authorities were established. The governing body of the JAA consists of
seven members, four of whom are appointed by the Governor, and three of whom are
appointed by the Mayor and confirmed by the City Council. The JAA is, however,
fiscally dependent upon the City because the City Council can modify the budget and
also has to approve it, which ensures strong accountability to the local constituent
citizenry. The JAA issues separate financial statements, which may be obtained from
its administrative office at P.O. Box 18018, Jacksonville, Florida 32229-0018.

The Jacksonville Transportation Authority (JTA) is a public body politic and
corporate agency of the State of Florida under Chapter 349 of the Florida Statutes.
The governing body of the JTA consists of seven members, three of whom are
appointed by the Governor of Florida, three of whom are appointed by the Mayor and
confirmed by the City Council, and the seventh member is the district engineer of the
Florida Department of Transportation. The JTA is empowered to construct, improve,
operate, and lease the Jacksonville Expressway System. The JTA is, however,
fiscally dependent upon the City under Section 14 of the City Charter through
approval of its budgets which ensures strong accountability to the local constituent
citizenry. The JTA issues separate financial statements, which may be obtained from
its administrative office at 100 North Myrtle Avenue, Jacksonville, Florida 32203.
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1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
B. Financial Reporting Entity: (continued)

Non-major Component Units

The Duval County Housing Finance Authority (DCHFA), created under Chapter
65.105 of the City Ordinance Code pursuant to Chapter 78-89 of the Laws of Florida,
provides money for loans and technical assistance for construction and rehabilitation
of housing to alleviate a shortage of housing and capital for investment in housing
in Jacksonville. The City appoints DCHFA board members and has the ability to
impose its will. There are no separately issued financial statements for the DCHFA,
whose financial activity is accounted for by the City as a special revenue fund during
the year. However, for financial reporting purposes, fund financial statements for
DCHFA are presented in the Combining Individual Fund Statements and Schedules
section of this report.

The Jacksonville Economic Development Commission (JEDC), created July 1,
1997, under Chapter 92-341, Laws of Florida, provides a focal point for economic
development in the City that results in a centralization of economic development
programs under the auspices of one agency, thus ensuring a more efficient and
practical means of addressing the goals, objectives and strategies for future economic
development in the City. The JEDC operates with all the powers and authority
of a community redevelopment agency under Part III, Chapter 163, Florida Statutes
and as an industrial development authority under Part III, Chapter 159, Florida
Statutes. The mayor appoints the board members and a chairman, who are confirmed
by the City Council, and the City has the ability to impose its will. There are no
separately issued financial statements for the JEDC, whose financial activity is
accounted for by the City as a special revenue fund during the year. However, for
financial reporting purposes, fund financial statements for JEDC are presented in the
Combining Individual Fund Statements and Schedules section of this report.

The Downtown Vision, Inc. (DVI), was established as a not-for-profit corporation
under the Laws of Florida in 1997. DVI was created to provide community
enhancements in the downtown area, with associated costs assessed to the properties
benefited. The assessment is levied and collected by the City in accordance with the
Enhanced Municipal Services Agreement, and was approved by City Ordinance
1999-1175-E. The DVI is governed by a 15-member Board of Directors, of which
two are City representatives. The City has the ability to impose its will on the DVI
through annual budget approval. The enhanced services are provided to property
owners within several of the City's Downtown Community Redevelopment areas,
including some properties owned by the City. DVI issues separate financial
statements, which may be obtained from its main office at 220 East Bay Street, 14™
Floor, Jacksonville, Florida 32202.
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1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
B. Financial Reporting Entity: (continued)

The Jacksonville Health Facilities Authority (JHFA), created under Chapter 490
of the City Ordinance Code pursuant to Chapter 154 Part III, Laws of Florida,
provides appropriate additional means to assist in the development, improvement and
maintenance of the public health. The JHFA provides a method for the financing and
refinancing, on a tax-exempt basis, of projects on behalf of private corporations and
organized not-for-profits that are authorized by law to provide hospital or nursing
home services, thus providing facilities at favorable interest costs with a resultant
decrease in health care costs for the users of health facilities within the City. All five
members are appointed by the City Council, and the City is able to impose its will
on the JHFA.

The bonds issued by the JHFA are special limited obligations of the JHFA and the
principal and interest are payable from rental payments. The principal and interest
on the bonds shall never constitute an indebtedness of the City of Jacksonville, Duval
County, the State of Florida or any municipality or political subdivision thereof.
Accordingly, the bonds issued and outstanding are included in Note 8.H. Conduit
Debt. During the fiscal year presented, JHFA had no financial transactions or assets

and liabilities to report. Therefore, there are no separately issued financial statements
for JHFA.

Related Organizations

The Jacksonville Housing Authority (JHA), is governed by a seven member Board,
whose members are appointed by the Mayor and confirmed by City Council.
However, the City does not have the ability to impose its will on JHA. The City
cannot remove appointed members of the JHA's Board at will. JHA's managers are
appointed by the JHA Board of Directors. The Board approves the operating budget
and amendments to the budget. The City does not exercise influence in JHA's
management or operations. It does not approve JHA budgets, and does not provide
or collect major revenues of the JHA. Accordingly, the financial activities of the JHA
are not included in the City's financial statements.

The Duval County Research and Development Authority (Authority) is governed
by a five member Board whose members are appointed by the City Council.
However, the City does not have the ability to impose its will on the Authority. The
City does not exercise influence in the management or operations of the Authority
and is not financially accountable for the actions of the Authority. Accordingly, the
financial activities of the Authority are not included in the City's financial statements.
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1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

C. Basic Financial Statements:

The basic financial statements include both city-wide and fund level statements. The
City, as the primary government, is reported separately from its component units. The
city-wide statements report on all of the activities of the City and its component units
except those that are fiduciary in nature. Statements for fiduciary activities, such as
employee pension plans, are presented in a separate section of this report. Both the city-
wide and fund level statements classify primary activities of the City as either
governmental activities, which are primarily supported by taxes and intergovernmental
revenues, or business type activities, which are primarily supported by user fees and
charges.

The city-wide statement of net assets reports all assets and liabilities of the City,
including both long-term assets and long-term debt and other obligations. The statement
of activities reports the degree to which direct expenses of City functions are offset by
program revenues, which include program specific grants and charges for services
provided by a specific function. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable
with a specific function or program. The net cost of these programs, which was not
reported in the previous statement model, is funded from general revenues such as taxes,
intergovernmental revenue, and interest earnings.

The fund level statements are similar to the statements presented in the previous
reporting model. The fund level statements report on governmental, proprietary, and
fiduciary fund activities. Major individual governmental funds and major individual
enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in the fund level financial statements.

Since the fund level statements for governmental activities are presented using a different
measurement focus and basis of accounting than the city-wide statements' governmental
column (as discussed under Basis of Accounting in this summary of significant
accounting policies), a reconciliation is presented on the page following each fund level
statement which briefly explains the adjustments necessary to convert the fund level
statements into the city-wide governmental column presentations.

As a general rule, the effect of inter-fund activity has been eliminated from the city-wide
financial statements.

. Fund Structure:

The City's accounts are maintained in accordance with the principles of fund accounting
to ensure compliance with limitations and restrictions placed on the use of resources
available to it. Under fund accounting, individual funds are established for the purpose
of carrying on activities or attaining objectives in accordance with specific regulations,
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1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
D. Fund Structure: (continued)

restrictions, or limitations. Each individual fund is a self-balancing set of accounts
recording assets and other financing resources, together with liabilities and residual
equities or balances, and changes therein. For financial statement presentation, funds
with similar characteristics, including those component units referenced above, are
grouped into generic classifications as required by GAAP. A brief description of these
classifications follows:

Governmental Funds. These funds report transactions related to resources received and
used for those services traditionally provided by city/county government. The following
are major governmental funds used by the City:

General Fund - The General Fund is the general operating fund of the City. It is used to

account for all financial resources except those required to be accounted for in another
fund.

Special Revenue Fund:

Transportation Fund - The Transportation Fund accounts for revenue from the City's six
cent local option gas tax, state shared fifth and sixth cent gas tax, and the one-half cent
local option sales tax used to fund major road and related capital infrastructure
construction and maintenance and the City's mass transit and automated skyway express
system operations.

Capital Project Funds:

Bond Projects Fund - The Bond Projects Fund receives money from the sale of bonded
debt issued by the City to fund major capital improvement projects.

General Projects Fund - The General Projects Fund receives monies appropriated from
the General Fund and other sources including proceeds from non-bonded debt for general
capital improvements.

Better Jacksonville Plan Construction Projects Fund - The Better Jacksonville Plan
Construction Projects Fund receives revenues from the two local option sales tax
programs and proceeds from the sale of bonded debt issued by the City to fund projects
under the Better Jacksonville Plan.

Other Governmental Funds - This is the aggregate of all of the non-major governmental
funds. Individual fund statements for these funds are included in the Combining
Individual Fund Statements and Schedules Section.

Proprietary Funds. These funds report transactions related to activities similar to those
found in the private sector. Major proprietary funds include:
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1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
D. Fund Structure: (continued)

Public Parking System Fund - This fund accounts for the City's on-street, and parking
garage facility operations, including revenue collection and enforcement.

Sports Complex, Convention Center, and Auditorium Fund - This fund accounts for the
operation of ALLTEL Stadium/Wolfson Baseball Park/Veteran's Memorial Coliseum
sports complex, the Prime Osborn Convention Center, and the Performing Arts Center.

Solid Waste Disposal Fund - This fund accounts for the collection, recycling, and
disposal of commercial and residential garbage services throughout the City, including
operation of three municipally owned landfill sites, two of which are closed.

Other Enterprise - This is the aggregate of all of the non-major enterprise funds.
Individual fund statements for these funds are included in the Combining Individual
Fund Statements and Schedules Section.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating
revenues and expenses. Operating revenues and expenses generally result from
providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with the funds'
principal ongoing operation. The principal operating revenues for the City's enterprise
funds are charges to customers for sales and services. Operating expenses include direct
expenses of providing the goods or services, administrative expenses, and depreciation
on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as
non-operating revenues and expenses.

In addition, the City reports the following fund types:

Internal Service Funds - These funds account for services provided primarily to various
departments of the City and to other governmental agencies. Since these funds
principally service the City's departments, internal service fund statements are
consolidated into the governmental activities column in the city-wide presentations.
These activities are fleet management, copy center, data processing, legal, and various
risk management activities. Services provided to other governmental agencies are not
considered to be material.

Private-purpose Trust Funds - These funds account for resources legally held in trust
for the benefit of individuals pursuing higher education in music and urban studies.
Earnings on invested resources may be used to support these activities but no expenditure
may be made from the principal of these funds.

Pension Trust Funds - These funds account for the activities of the general employees
and the police and fire pension funds, which accumulates resources for pension benefit
payments for qualified employees.
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1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
D. Fund Structure: (continued)

Permanent Fund - This fund is used to account for activities of the City relative to
cemetery maintenance at specified locations. All resources of the fund, including
earnings on invested resources, may be used to support these activities. There is no
requirement that any portion of these resources be preserved as capital.

Agency Funds - These funds account for monies held as an agent for other governmental
units or individuals.

. Basis of Accounting:

The accounting and financial reporting treatment applied to a fund is determined by its
measurement focus. The city-wide financial statements are reported using the economic
resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary
and fiduciary fund financial statements. Under this method, revenues are recorded when
earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing
of the related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenue in the year in which
they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue when all eligibility
requirements imposed by the provider are met.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using a current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. With this measurement
focus only current assets and current liabilities generally are included on the balance
sheet. Operating statements of these funds present increases (i.e. revenues and other
financing sources) and decreases (i.e. expenditures and other financing uses) in net
current assets.

Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when
susceptible to accrual (i.e. when they become both measurable and available).
"Measurable" means the amount of the transaction can be determined and "available"
means collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to be used to pay
liabilities of the current period. Major revenues that are determined to be susceptible to
accrual include property taxes, taxpayer-assessed tax revenues including sales and
utilities services taxes, state shared revenue, intergovernmental revenue, charges for
services and investment income. Federal grants collected on a reimbursement basis are
recognized as revenue when reimbursable expenditures are made.

Revenues collected on an advance basis, including certain federal grant revenue, to which
the City does not yet have legal entitlement, are not recognized as revenue until the
related commitment arises. Generally, the City considers a 60-day availability period for
revenue recognition.
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1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
E. Basis of Accounting: (continued)

Property taxes billed but uncollected as of the end of the fiscal year are reflected in the
accompanying financial statements as due from individuals offsetting a liability due to
other governments in the Tax Collector Agency Fund. These amounts are not considered
to be available by the City to finance current operations. Accordingly, property taxes are
recognized as revenue in the fiscal year in which they are collected and remitted to the
City's General Fund by the Tax Collector Agency Fund. (See Note 5.)

Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred, except for items
that are not planned to be liquidated with expendable available resources. Exceptions to
the general modified accrual expenditure recognition criteria include principal and
interest on general long-term indebtedness and capital lease obligations, which are
recognized when paid and payments for compensated absences and claims and judgments
which are recognized when due.

Agency funds are accounted for on the accrual basis of accounting. Agency funds are
custodial in nature (i.e. assets equal liabilities) and do not measure the results of
operations.

The City's policy is to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources, when
both are available for use to fund an activity.

. Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Investments:

Cash, cash equivalents and investments and related accrued investment earnings are
reported in the financial statements as "Equity in cash and investments" under the City's
"pooling" concept. (See Note 3.) All monies, which are not legally restricted to separate
administration, are pooled together for investment purposes while each individual fund
and/or account is maintained on a daily transaction basis by the City Treasurer.
Investment earnings are distributed in accordance with the participating funds' relative
percentage of investments. All Fund Types deposit monies into the Equity in Cash and
Investments Pool of the City. The Proprietary Fund Types use this pool as a demand
deposit account, and accordingly all amounts in the pool are considered cash and
equivalents for purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows. Investments are stated at fair
value. Increases and decreases in the fair value of investments are reported as investment
income.
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1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

G. Receivables:

Receivables are stated net of estimated allowances for uncollectible amounts, which are
determined based on past collection experience and current economic conditions, except
for mortgages receivable which are reported as a reservation of fund balance because
they are not considered a current financial resource available for expenditure. Types of
receivables include amounts that are principally due from the State of Florida for state-
shared revenues. Receivables in other funds have arisen in the ordinary course of
business.

. Inventories:

Inventories of materials and supplies are determined by both physical counts and through
perpetual inventory systems stated at cost, which approximates market, using the average
weighted costing method. In governmental fund types, inventories are recorded as
expenditures when purchased. Reported inventories in governmental funds are equally
offset by a reservation of fund balance since they are unavailable for appropriation. In
proprietary fund types, inventories are expended when consumed.

Capital Assets:

All purchased capital assets are recorded at cost where historical records are available
and at estimated cost where no historical records exist. Donated capital assets are valued
at their estimated fair market value on the date received. Generally, capital assets costing
more than $750 or having a useful life of more than one year are capitalized. The costs
of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially
extend asset lives are not capitalized. Capital assets are reported in the applicable
governmental or business-type column in the city-wide financial statements.

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 34, an extended period of deferral until
September 30, 2006 fiscal year end is available before the City is required to record and
depreciate infrastructure assets acquired prior to October 1, 2001. Infrastructure assets
include roads, bridges, drainage improvements, traffic signals, etc. The City has elected
to defer reporting of infrastructure assets acquired prior to October 1, 2001. Infrastructure
assets acquired during the 2001-02 fiscal year are reported on the city-wide Statement
of Net Assets. This asset category is likely to be a significant asset of the City. As
allowed by prior accounting rules, the City opted not to include the cost of these assets
on its financial statements prior to implementation of GASB Statement No. 34.

Depreciation on all capital assets is calculated using the straight line method over the
following useful lives:

Infrastructure 12 - 50 years
Bridges 100 years

Buildings and improvements 12 - 45 years
Furniture and equipment 3 - 10 years
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1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

J. Contributed Capital:

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 34, Contributed Capital has been reclassified
as a component of net assets.

. Interfund Transactions:

Quasi-external transactions are accounted for as revenues, expenditures or expenses.
Transactions that constitute reimbursements to a fund for expenditure/expenses initially
made from it that are properly applicable to another fund, are recorded as
expenditure/expenses in the reimbursing fund and as reductions of expenditures/expenses
in the fund that is reimbursed.

All other interfund transactions, except quasi-external transactions and reimbursements,
are reported as operating transfers.

. Restricted Assets:

Assets are reported as restricted in the city-wide Statement of Net Assets and the
enterprise fund level statements when constraints are placed on net asset use. The
constraints are either: (1) Externally imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws
or regulations of other governments; or (2) Imposed by law or through constitutional
provisions or enabling legislation.

. Compensated Absences:

City employees may accumulate earned personal leave benefits (compensated absences)
at various rates within limits specified in collective bargaining agreements. For all funds,
this liability reflects amounts attributable to employee services already rendered,
cumulative, probable for payment, and reasonably estimated in conformity with GASB
Statement No. 16, Accounting for Compensated Absences.

Compensated absences liabilities are accrued when incurred in the city-wide financial
statements, and the proprietary and fiduciary fund level financial statements. No
expenditure is reported in the governmental funds for these amounts until payment is
made. No liability is recorded for nonvesting, accumulated sick pay benefits.
Compensated absences liability is determined based on current rates of pay.

. Risk Financing:

The City is self-insured for general and automobile liability and up to $1 million per
occurrence of workers' compensation. (See Note 13.) The liability for self-insured losses
is based on individual case estimates for reported claims, historical loss data, and
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1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
N. Risk Financing: (continued)

valuations performed by independent actuaries at September 30, 2002, for incurred but
not yet reported claims and claims development. The liability for self-insured losses is
accounted for in the Self-Insurance Fund (internal service fund) that pays for claims
made against the City.

. Pension Costs:

Substantially all permanent, full-time employees of the City are covered under two City
sponsored defined benefit pension plans. Employer contributions are recorded as pension
expenditure/expenses when the related payroll is accrued based on an actuarially
determined rate in accordance with GASB Statement No. 27, Accounting for Pensions
by State and Local Governments.

. Landfill Closure and Postclosure Care Costs:

The City recognizes municipal solid waste landfill closure and postclosure care costs
under the State of Florida's Solid Waste Management Act of 1988 (the "1988 Act"),
regulations of the Federal Environmental Protection Agency (EPA), and GASB
Statement No. 18, Accounting for Municipal Solid Waste Landfill Closure and
Postclosure Care Costs. For those landfills that stopped accepting solid waste prior to
final implementation of the 1988 Act and EPA regulations, the estimated total cost of
municipal solid waste landfill (MSWLF) closure and postclosure care is recognized as
a deferred charge and a corresponding liability in the Solid Waste Disposal Enterprise
Fund, in accordance with FASB Statement No. 71, Accounting for the Effects of Certain
Types of Regulation, (FAS 71). The City issued bonds to pay for closure costs on closed
landfills. Post-closure care costs on closed landfills are recorded as a liability based on
engineers’ estimates. The City Council establishes rates that are designed to recover costs
and believes it is reasonable to assume that such rates, which will recover the costs, can
be charged to and collected from customers. Accordingly, the provisions of FAS 71 are
applied. The City intends to recover these MSWLF costs through future operating
revenues of the Solid Waste Disposal Enterprise Fund. Accordingly, MSWLF costs are
recognized as expense each year to match the flow of revenue and bonds principal
payments, thereby reducing the deferred charge. Expenses for closure and postclosure
care costs are recorded each year and the liability is adjusted to the engineer’s estimate.
MSWLF closure and postclosure care costs incurred for landfills accepting solid waste
after final implementation of the 1988 Act and EPA regulations are recognized as an
expense. A liability is recorded based upon the landfill capacity used during that year
applied to the engineer’s estimate of closure and postclosure care costs. (See Note 14.C.)
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1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Q. Long-Term Obligations:

In the city-wide financial statements, and proprietary funds in the fund financial
statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in
the applicable governmental activities, business-type activities, or proprietary funds
statement of net assets.

General obligation bonds are supported by ad valorem taxes and constitute a debt of the
City and a lien upon any property situated within the City. Special obligation bonds
which are supported by certain general revenues (other than ad valorem taxes) do not
constitute a debt of the City within the meaning of any constitutional or statutory
limitation or provision, and the City is not obligated to pay the bonds except from
revenues pledged for such purposes.

. Reservations and Designations of Fund Equity:

In the fund level statements, reservations of fund balance are established to identify the
existence of assets that have been legally segregated for specific purposes. Assets of
legally restricted budgetary funds are an example of this type of reservation. Reservations
are also established for assets that are not current in nature, such as long-term advances,
mortgages receivable, appreciation in market value of investments, and inventories.
Designations of fund equity reflect management's plans for financial resource allocation
in a future period. Such plans or intentions are subject to change and may never result
in expenditures.

Explanations of significant designations include:

(1) Fund Balance Designated for Capital Projects - Tentative plans for utilization of fund
balances in future periods for capital projects designated in the City's Annual Budget
for the coming fiscal year.

(2) Fund Balance Designated for Subsequent Years’ Budget - Tentative plans for
utilization of fund balances for expenditures designated in the City's Annual Budget
for upcoming fiscal years, primarily associated with multi-year grants.

(3) Fund Balance Designated for Budget Stabilization - The General Fund's fund balance
not otherwise appropriated as a source of funding in future periods to be designated
as a financial resource to prevent budgetary deficits.

(4) Fund Balance Designated for Next Year’s Budget Appropriation - Tentative plans

for utilization of fund balances for other expenditures designated in the City's Annual
Budget for the coming fiscal year.
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1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

S. Bond Discounts, Premiums and Issuance Costs:

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds recognize bond discounts,
premiums and issuance costs in the current period. The face amount of debt issued and
bond premiums are reported as other financing sources while discounts on debt issuance
are reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the
debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures.

In the city-wide financial statements and for proprietary funds, material bond discount,
premium and issuance costs are deferred and amortized as a component of interest
expense over the term of the bonds using the straight-line method, which approximates
the effective interest method. Issuance costs are recorded as deferred charges and bond
discount/premium are included in Long-Term Liabilities - Revenue Bonds.

. Deferred Loss on Debt Refundings:

Losses resulting from advance refundings of debt in the city-wide and proprietary fund
statements are deferred and amortized over the shorter of the life of the new debt or the
remaining life of the old debt. The amount deferred is reported as a component of Long-
Term Liabilities in the accompanying financial statements and is amortized and reported
as a component of interest expense.

. Use of Estimates:

The preparation of financial statements, in accordance with GAAP, requires management
to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements, and the reported amount of revenues and expenses during the reporting
period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

. Reclassification:

Certain amounts in the separately issued financial statements of component units have
been reclassified to conform to the presentation of the primary government.

. New Accounting Standards:

The City adopted the provisions of GASB Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements
- and Management's Discussion and Analysis - for State and Local Governments, and
Statement No. 37, the related Omnibus Statement, for the fiscal year ending September
30, 2002. The statements establish financial reporting standards for state and local
governments, including states, cities, towns, villages, and special-purpose governments
such as school districts and public utilities. They establish that the basic financial
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
W. New Accounting Standards: (continued)

statements and required supplementary information for general purpose governments
should consist of Management's discussion and analysis, basic financial statements, and
required supplementary information.

The City also adopted the provisions of GASB Statement No. 38, Certain Financial
Statement Note Disclosures, for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2002. This
statement modifies, establishes, and rescinds certain financial statement disclosure
requirements.

Several funds were reclassified to comply with GASB Statement No. 34 provisions.
Accordingly, beginning fund balances have been restated to reflect these changes.

Fund balances reported at September 30, 2001 do not include certain assets and liabilities
required to report financial position. The necessary changes in fund balance are
presented below (in thousands):

Fund Balances, September 30, 2001 $ 698,074
Non-expendable trust funds reclassified from Fiduciary
Fund to Permanent Fund and added to governmental 166
698,240
Amounts not included in fund balances:
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 281,418
Bonds, Notes and compensated absences (1,160,940)
Amounts due to component units (400)
Compensated absences payable (54,264)
Interest payable on long term debt (25,068)
Internal service funds 139,052
City-Wide Net Asset Balances at September 30, 2001 ($ 121,962)

2. BUDGETARY DATA

The City uses the following procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the
financial statements.

A. The City adopts its budget in accordance with Chapters 129 and 200, Florida Statutes,
the City Charter and Municipal Ordinance Code.

(1) The Mayor's Proposed Budget is presented to the City Council on the second
Tuesday in July; the budget ordinance, millage levy ordinance, and related
resolutions are introduced.

(2) During the first Council meeting in September, public hearings are held on both the
budget and the millage rate. Following the public hearings, the Council adopts a
tentative budget and tentative millage rate. A final budget and millage is adopted by
full Council to be in effect on October 1.
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BUDGETARY DATA (continued)

The City presents a Budgetary Comparison Schedule as Required Supplementary
Information for the General Fund and each major special revenue fund with a legally
adopted budget. The City has opted to make this presentation in the format and
classifications of the budget document. These schedules report actual expenditures using
generally accepted accounting principles as well as expenditures on the budgetary basis,
which include amounts encumbered for future spending.

. All funds of each governmental fund type with legally adopted annual budgets are

included in the Combining Schedule of Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund
Balance - Budget and Actual.

. The City adopts annual budgets for the General Fund, certain Special Revenue Funds,

and Proprietary Funds. The City reports Budgetary Comparisons for its General Fund
and Major Special Revenue Funds in the Required Supplementary Information section
of this report. Proprietary Fund budgets are adopted for management control purposes.
The City is not required to include Budgetary Comparisons for Proprietary Funds in this
report. Project or program budgets, which may not coincide with the City's fiscal year,
or which may exceed a single annual period, are adopted by separate ordinance for most
Special Revenue Funds and Capital Project Funds. Budgets are not formally adopted for
Debt Service Funds as internal spending controls are set by compliance with bond
covenants. The Special Revenue Funds which are not budgeted annually include the
following: Community Development Block Grant, Housing Rehabilitation and Home
Investment and Opportunity Grants, Job Training Partnership Act Grant, Maintenance,
Parks and Recreation, Metropolitan Planning Organization, Other Federal, State and
Local Grants, State Housing Initiative Partnership, Better Jacksonville Trust Fund and
Non-Budgeted General Government.

. Level of Budgetary Control - Expenditures may not exceed appropriations and are

controlled in the following manner:

(1) The budget is adopted by Ordinance which sets the legal level of control at the fund
level by department.

(2) The City has adopted more stringent administrative policies that control expenditures
at the major category (Personal Services, Operating Expense, Capital Outlay, Debt
Service) level within divisions within individual funds.

(3) The City, additionally, has adopted a Municipal Ordinance Code Policy that provides

transfer authority to the Mayor, without City Council approval, within an individual
fund.
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2.

BUDGETARY DATA (continued)

E.

G.

Supplemental Appropriations - The City Council may, through passage of an ordinance,
amend the budget in any manner permissible under State and Local Law, with one
exception. Bond covenants, trust and agency agreements, and certain clauses of
ordinances in effect may restrict certain budgetary items in terms of amount or use.

In certain instances the City may supplement the appropriations in a fund due to
unexpected high levels of receipts or under estimates of carry forward balances.
Supplemental appropriations to the Fiscal Year 2002 Annual Budget Ordinance were
made throughout the year, the effects of which were not material.

All appropriations in annually budgeted funds, except for amounts corresponding to
outstanding encumbrances, lapse at year-end or at the close of the authorizing
project/program, unless specifically carried forward by ordinance.

Formal budgetary integration is used as a management control device for all funds of the
City, except certain Debt Service Funds as explained in Note 2.C.

CASH AND INVESTMENTS

A.

Equity in Cash and Investments:

The City maintains a cash and investment pool that is available for use by all funds
except for monies which are legally restricted to separate administration (i.e. pension
plan custodians and deferred compensation plan administrators). This gives the City the
ability to invest large amounts of idle cash for short periods of time and to maximize
earnings potential. The "Equity in cash and investments" consist of cash and investments
owned by each fund and defined as resources that can be liquidated without delay or
penalty. In addition, cash and investments separately held and individually accounted for
by several of the City's funds where contractual arrangements and bond covenants
provide for and require such arrangements are classified as "restricted assets."

Investment earnings are allocated to the individual funds as provided by statute; earnings
for all other participants are credited to the General Fund.

Cash on Deposit:

At September 30, 2002, the City's cash on deposit in its bank accounts was $140.7
million including interest bearing accounts, all of which was insured by federal deposit
insurance or collateralized pursuant to Chapter 280, Florida Statutes. The related book
balance was $560.3 million. Monies which are placed on deposit with financial
institutions in the form of demand deposit accounts, time deposit accounts and
certificates of deposit are defined as public deposits. All of the City's public deposits are
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3.

CASH AND INVESTMENTS (continued)
B. Cash on Deposit: (continued)

held in qualified public depositories pursuant to State of Florida Statutes, Chapter 280,
"Florida Security for Public Deposits Act" and covered by federal depository insurance
and, for the amount in excess of such federal depository insurance, by the Act. Under the
Act, all qualified public depositories are required to pledge eligible collateral having a
market value equal to or greater than the average daily or monthly balance of all public
deposits, times the depository's collateral pledging level. The pledging level may range
from 50% to 125% depending upon the depository's financial condition and
establishment period. The Public Deposit Security Trust Fund has a procedure to allocate
and recover losses in the event of a default or insolvency. When public deposits are made
in accordance with Chapter 280, no public depositor shall be liable for any loss thereof.
Any losses to public depositors are covered by applicable deposit insurance, sale of
securities pledged as collateral and, if necessary, assessments against other qualified
public depositories of the same type as the depository in default.

All cash deposits of the City are placed with qualified financial institutions and are
classified as Category 1 credit risk, which means they are insured or collateralized. Credit
risk is the exposure to the default of another party to the transaction (the counterparty).

. Investments and Investment Practices:

The City is authorized to invest in certificates of deposit, money market certificates,
obligations of the U. S. Treasury, its agencies and instrumentalities, repurchase
agreements collateralized by U. S. securities, and the Florida Counties Investment Trust.
The pension trust funds are also authorized to invest in obligations of the City of
Jacksonville, of the State of Florida, commercial paper rated A-1 or P-1 by a nationally
recognized rating service, bankers' acceptances, corporate bonds, including collateralized
mortgage obligations, preferred stocks, common stocks, and real estate limited trusts. No
derivative or similar investment transactions, as defined by GASB Technical Bulletin 94-
1, were used, held, or written by the City during fiscal 2002.

Investments at September 30, 2002, are categorized in accordance with GASB Statement
No. 3 in the following table (in thousands) to indicate the level of risk assumed by the
City: Category 1 includes investments that are insured or registered or for which the
securities are held by the City or its agent in the City's name; Category 2 includes
uninsured or unregistered investments for which the securities are held by the
counterparty's trust department or agent in the City's name; Category 3 includes
uninsured and unregistered investments for which the securities are held by the
counterparty, or by its trust department or agent, but not in the City's name. Due to
significantly higher cash flows at certain times during the year, the City's investment in
overnight repurchase agreements, for which the underlying securities were held by the
dealer, fluctuated throughout the period. As a result, the amounts that were in Category
3 at those times were marginally higher than at year-end.
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C. Investments and Investment Practices: (continued)

(in thousands)
Credit Risk Category

Classified as to 1 5 3 Fair
Credit Risk Value
All Fund Types
Except For Pension
Repurchase Agreements $ - $ - $ 59,240 $ 59,240
U.S. Government and

Agency Securities 493,104 - 499 493,603

Total $493,104 $ - $ 59,739 552,843

Pension Trust Funds
U.S. Government and

Agency Securities $ 471,441 $ - $ - 471,441
Corporate Bonds 357,542 - - 357,542
Common Stock 1,045,340 - - 1,045,340
Real Estate 7,250 7,250
Municipal Bonds 1,114 - - 1,114
Commercial Paper 5,996 - - 5,996

Total $1,888,683 $ - $ - 1,888,683

Total Risk-Classified Investments 2,441,526
Unclassified as to Credit Risk:
Accrued Interest Receivable 14,078
Cash Bank Deposits 560,330

Less: Equity in cash and investments of certain
Component units discretely presented and
Related organizations (19,565)

Total Cash and Investments at September 30, 2002 $ 2,996,369

Summary of Cash and Investment Accounts:

Equity in Cash and Investments $2,948,621
Cash in Escrow and with Fiscal Agents 34,606
Restricted Cash and Investments 13,142

Total Cash and Investments at September 30, 2002 $ 2,996,369
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4.

S.

ACCOUNTS AND MORTGAGES RECEIVABLE

The accounts and mortgages receivable balances in the funds listed below, in thousands, are
shown net of an allowance for doubtful accounts. No other funds had an allowance for

doubtful accounts at September 30, 2002.

Accounts Allowance for Net Amount Shown
Fund Receivable Doubtful Accounts on Balance Sheet
General Fund $18414 ($ 14,829) $ 3,585
Non-Major Special Revenue
Funds:
Sports, Convention &
Tourism Development 13 (6) 7
Budgeted  General
Government 78 (39) 39
Major Enterprise Fund:
Solid Waste Disposal 1,329 a7 1,312
Mortgages Allowance for Net Amount Shown
Fund Receivable Doubtful Accounts on Balance Sheet
Non-Major Special Revenue
Funds:
Community Development
Block Grant 2,162 (1,127) 1,035
Housing Rehabilitation
and Home Investment
and Opportunity Grants 15,198 (5,482) 9,716
State Housing Initiative
Partnership 5,545 (1,531) 4,014
PROPERTY TAXES

A. Ad Valorem Property Taxes:

Property tax collections are governed by Chapter 197, Florida Statutes. The Duval
County Tax Collector bills and collects all property taxes levied within the Consolidated
City/County. Discounts of 4, 3, 2, and 1% are allowed for early payment in November,
December, January, and February, respectively. The total millage rate levied by the City
was 10.3465 for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2002.

The Florida Constitution, as amended under Article VII, Section 4, limits the increase
in homestead property valuations for ad valorem tax purposes to a maximum of the lessor
of (i) three percent (3%) of the assessment for the prior year, or (ii) the percent change
in the Consumer Price Index for the preceding calendar year. The first tax year in which
the limitations of these constitutional provisions apply is January 1, 1995. Calendar year
1995 is the base year upon which assessed just value of the homestead property is
determined.

- 69 -



CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2002

S.

PROPERTY TAXES (continued)

B. Property Tax Calendar:

The Tax Collector remits collected taxes at least monthly to the City. The City
recognizes property tax revenue as it is received from the Tax Collector since virtually
all taxes levied will be collected through the tax collection process. The calendar of

events is as follows:

January 1 Property taxes are based on assessed value at this date as determined by the
Duval County Property Appraiser.

July 1 Assessment roll approved by the state.

September 30 Millage resolution approved by the City Council.

October 1 Beginning of fiscal year for which taxes have been levied.

November 30 Last day for 4% maximum discount.

April 1 Unpaid property taxes become delinquent.

May 31 Tax certificates are sold by the Duval County Tax Collector. This is the first

lien date on the properties.

CAPITAL ASSET ACTIVITY

Capital asset activity for the year ended September 30, 2002, was as follows (in thousands):

Primary Government

Governmental activities:
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land
Construction in progress
Land reported in Internal Service Funds
CIP reported in Internal Service Funds
Total capital assets not being depreciated
Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings
Furniture and equipment
Improvements
Infrastructure
Capital assets reported in
Internal Service Funds, net
Total assets being depreciated
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings
Furniture and equipment
Total accumulated depreciation
Total capital assets being depreciated, net
Governmental activities capital assets, net

Restated
Beginning Balance Ending Balance
September 30, Dispositions/ September 30,
2001 Additions  Reclassifications 2002
$ 113,183 § 53,824 $ 3,845 $ 163,162
- 63,490 - 63,490
58 - - 58
12 - 12 -
113,253 117,314 3,857 226,710
275,939 3,654 (3,873) 283,466
53,477 5,638 9,682 49,433
- 21,735 - 21,735
- 118,807 - 118,807
43,828 19,993 48 63,773
373,244 169,827 5,857 537,214
124,505 6,079 4,557 126,027
36,676 5,905 7,473 35,108
161,181 11,984 12,030 161,135
212,063 157,843 (6,173) 376,079
$ 325,316 § 275,157 ($ 2,316) $ 602,789
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6.

CAPITAL ASSET ACTIVITY (continued)

Primary Government

Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Balance
Business-type activities:
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land $ 30,334 $ 1,277 $ 58 $ 31,553
Construction in progress 14,728 932 1,002 14,658
Total capital assets not being depreciated 45,062 2,209 1,060 46,211
Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings and improvements 311,633 625 - 312,258
Furniture and equipment 16,006 320 812 15,514
Total assets being depreciated 327,639 945 812 327,772
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings and improvements 73,634 8,006 - 81,640
Furniture and equipment 12,212 939 1047 12,104
Total accumulated depreciation 85,846 8,945 1047 93,744
Total capital assets being depreciated, net 241,793 (8,000) (235) 234,028
Business-type activities capital assets, net $ 286,855 ($ 5,791) $ 825 $ 280,239

Depreciation expense was charged to the functions of the primary government as follows (in

thousands):

Governmental activities:
General government
Human services
Public safety
Culture and recreation
Transportation
Economic environment
Physical environment

Total depreciation expense - governmental activities

Business-type activities:
Parking system
Sports complex
Motor vehicle inspections
Solid waste
Ferry

Total depreciation expense - business-type activities

$ 2,393
5,574
315

90

164
1,608
1,840

$11,984

$ 546
5,701

17

2,383
298

$ 8,945

General Fixed Asset balances reported in the prior year have been restated as follows (in

thousands):

Balance at September 30, 2001

Less: Accumulated Depreciation at September 30, 2001
Restatement of Operating Leased Assets of Shands Hospital

Add: Internal Service Funds - Capital Assets, net

Governmental Activities Capital Assets at October 1, 2001
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$ 633,599
(161,181)
(191,000)

43,898

$ 325316




CITY OF JACKSONVILLE , FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2002

7. INTERFUND RECEIVABLES, PAYABLES AND TRANSFERS

A summary of interfund transactions follows (in thousands):

DUE TO OTHER FUNDS

MAJOR FUNDS:

General Fund
General Fund
General Fund
General Fund
General Fund
Total

Capital Projects

Better Jacksonville Plan Construction Project
Total

NONMAJOR FUNDS:

Special Revenue

Community Development Block Grant
Metropolitan Planning Organization

Internal Service Funds
Insured Programs

TOTAL

ADVANCES FROM OTHER FUNDS

MAJOR FUNDS:

Capital Projects
General Projects

TOTAL

$ 12,593
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AMOUNT DUE FROM OTHER FUNDS
$ 8 Fleet Management
6 Information Technologies
10 Legal
1 Self Insurance
25
1,364 Insured Programs
1,364
1,262  Self Insurance
267  Self Insurance
1,529
2,444  Self Insurance
2,444
$ 5362
AMOUNT ADVANCES TO OTHER FUNDS
$ 12,593  Self Insurance



CITY OF JACKSONVILLE , FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2002

7. INTERFUND RECEIVABLES, PAYABLES AND TRANSFERS (continued)

TRANSFERS IN AMOUNT TRANSFERS OUT

MAJOR FUNDS:

General Fund

General Fund $ 400 Public Parking System
General Fund 110  Concurrency Management
General Fund 244  Sports, Convention and Tourism Development
General Fund 16  General Government - Budgeted
General Fund 172 Maintenance, Parks and Recreation
General Fund 21  Other Federal, State and Local Grants
General Fund 607  General Government - Non-Budgeted
General Fund 320 Information Technologies
General Fund 250 Legal
General Fund 1,401  Self Insurance
General Fund 1,300 Insured Programs
General Fund 123 Police and Fire Pension
Total 4,964
Capital Projects
General Projects 5,248  General Fund
General Projects 500 Sports, Convention and Tourism Development
General Projects 5,285  General Government - Budgeted
General Projects 2 General Government - Non-Budgeted
General Projects 5,425  Self Insurance
Better Jacksonville Plan Construction Projects 4,513  Transportation
Better Jacksonville Plan Construction Projects 36,679 Better Jacksonville Plan Trust Fund
Total 57,652

Enterprise Funds

Public Parking System 1,447  General Fund
Sports Complex, Convention Center and Auditorium 3,822  General Fund
Sports Complex, Convention Center and Auditorium 50 Maintenance, Parks and Recreation
Solid Waste Disposal 26,412  General Fund
31,731

In the fund financial statements, total transfers out are greater than total transfers in by $2,853. This is due to the
treatment of transfers of capital assets from the Public Parking Fund to the general government. No amounts were
reported in the governmental funds as the amount did not involve the transfer of financial resources. The Public
Parking Fund reports a transfer out of $2,853.
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7. INTERFUND RECEIVABLES, PAYABLES AND TRANSFERS (continued)

TRANSFERS IN

NON-MAJOR FUNDS:

Special Revenue

Air Pollution Control and Monitoring
General Government - Budgeted

Tax Increment Districts

Jacksonville Children's Commission
Jacksonville Children's Commission
Jacksonville Children's Commission
Community Development Block Grant
Maintenance, Parks and Recreation
Metropolitan Planning Organization
Metropolitan Planning Organization
Other Federal, State and Local Grants
Other Federal, State and Local Grants
General Government - Non-Budgeted
General Government - Non-Budgeted
General Government - Non-Budgeted
General Government - Non-Budgeted

General Government - Non-Budgeted
Total

Debt Service

Special Bonded Debt Obligations
Special Bonded Debt Obligations
Special Bonded Debt Obligations
Special Bonded Debt Obligations

Special Bonded Debt Obligations

Special Bonded Debt - Better Jacksonville

Plan Obligations
Other Non-Bonded Debt Obligations
Other Non-Bonded Debt Obligations
Total

Capital Projects

Grant Capital Improvement Projects

Grant Capital Improvement Projects

Grant Capital Improvement Projects
Total

T4

Other Federal, State and Local Grants
General Government - Non-Budgeted

Jacksonville Children's Commission

Maintenance, Parks and Recreation

Sports Complex, Convention Center and

Sports, Convention and Tourism Development

Sports Complex, Convention Center and

Better Jacksonville Plan Trust Fund

Maintenance, Parks and Recreation

AMOUNT TRANSFERS OUT
400 General Fund
933  General Fund
2 General Fund
14,039  General Fund
50
50
75 Tax Increment Districts
796  General Fund
100 General Fund
36 Concurrency Management
5,623  General Fund
156
263  General Fund
6
89 Bond Projects
545  General Projects
1 Auditorium
23,164
50,796 General Fund
9,854
1,478 Tax Increment Districts
1,009  Public Parking System
959 Auditorium
14,117
1,838  General Fund
977 Tax Increment Districts
81,028
1,179  General Fund
32
214  General Projects
1,425



CITY OF JACKSONVILLE , FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2002

7. INTERFUND RECEIVABLES, PAYABLES AND TRANSFERS (continued)

TRANSFERS IN AMOUNT TRANSFERS OUT

NON-MAJOR FUNDS: (continued)

Enterprise Funds

Mayport Ferry 823  General Fund
Total 823

Internal Service Funds

Fleet Management 103  General Fund

Fleet Management 22  General Government - Budgeted

Fleet Management 600 Information Technologies

Fleet Management 1,600 Legal

Fleet Management 198  Self Insurance

Fleet Management 400 Group Health

Information Technologies 104  General Fund

Self Insurance 1,072  General Fund

Group Health 45  Self Insurance

Insured Programs 28  Self Insurance
Total 4,172

Fiduciary Funds

Private Purpose Trust 6  General Government - Non-Budgeted
Total 6

TOTAL $ 204,965
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7. INTERFUND RECEIVABLES, PAYABLES AND TRANSFERS (continued)

A summary of intra-entity transactions follows (in thousands):

DUE TO COMPONENT UNITS AMOUNT DUE FROM PRIMARY GOVERNMENT
MAJOR FUNDS:
General Fund $ 3,900 Jacksonville Seaport Authority
Total $ 3,900
TRANSFERS IN FROM COMPONENT UNIT AMOUNT PAYMENTS TO PRIMARY GOVERNMENT
MAJOR FUNDS:
General Fund $ 76,607 JEA
General Fund 75  Duval County Housing Finance Authority
Special Bonded Debt - Better Jacksonville Plan Obligations 9,004  Jacksonville Transportation Authority
Better Jacksonville Plan Construction Projects 25,368  Jacksonville Transportation Authority
Total $ 111,054
TRANSFERS OUT TO COMPONENT UNIT AMOUNT PAYMENTS FROM PRIMARY GOVERNMENT
MAJOR FUNDS:
General Fund $ 6,357 Jacksonville Economic Development Commission
General Fund 1,040  Jacksonville Transportation Authority
General Fund 512 Jacksonville Airport Authority
General Fund 3,900 Jacksonville Seaport Authority
Transportation 30,428  Jacksonville Transportation Authority
General Projects 7,000 Jacksonville Economic Development Commission
Better Jacksonville Plan Construction Projects 1,109  Jacksonville Transportation Authority
Better Jacksonville Plan Construction Projects 7,922 JEA

Total $ 58,268
NON-MAJOR FUNDS:

State Housing Initiative Partnership $ 317 Duval County Housing Finance Authority

Total $ 317
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7.

INTERFUND RECEIVABLES, PAYABLES AND TRANSFERS (continued)

During fiscal year 1999, the self-insurance fund advanced $14,000,000 to the capital projects
fund for the purpose of fulfilling City obligations under a redevelopment agreement for a
new 900-room hotel with substantial convention and business space. The total capital
investment for the project is $126.0 million. The City Council passed an ordinance to treat
the funding from the self insurance fund as a loan which will be repaid from general fund
revenues commencing on May 1, 2000 in equal annual installments over 20 years, plus
simple interest of 4.45%. The balance of this advance was $12,593,398 at September 30,
2002.

During fiscal year 2002, the City had financial transactions with its discretely presented
component units classified as follows for financial reporting purposes:

JEA:

Commercial Paper Program - In fiscal year 1994, JEA and the City worked together
to develop a mutually beneficial structure for the City's Commercial Paper Program to
provide financing for the River City Renaissance (RCR) Program. Currently, JEA makes
an annual contribution to the City's General Fund based upon gross kilowatt-hours sold
by JEA during the 12-month period ending on May 31 of each fiscal year. As part of the
RCR Program, the City and JEA have entered into an agreement, which requires JEA to
pay a supplemental contribution after October 1, 1997, to offset any increase in financing
costs for the RCR Program incurred by the City as a result of the initial financing of the
RCR Program with commercial paper. To the extent that funding costs for the RCR
Program would result in debt service being greater than $17,403,000 the supplemental
contribution would be equal to the amount in excess of $17,403,000. For fiscal year 2002
no additional supplemental contribution was required.

Enhanced Joint Agency Financing Program - On November 5, 1996, JEA and the City
executed a Financial Agreement in relation to the use of an “enhanced joint agency
financing program” (the “EJ Program”) in conjunction with the issuance of $57,150,000
Excise Taxes Revenue Bonds, Series 1996B for the benefit of various marine facilities
for the Jacksonville Seaport Authority (JSA). The City and JEA have agreed that JEA’s
annual contribution to the City under Article 21 of the City Charter and Section
106.202(c) of the City Ordinance Code will be supplemented to offset any shortfall in
certain cash flows in the City revenues dedicated for the benefit of the JSA (See
discussion below concerning the allocation of three sources of revenue by the City to the
JSA). As of September 30, 2002, revenues dedicated for the support of debt service
requirements of the 1993 Bonds and the 1996B Bonds have been sufficient so as to avoid
the need to call upon supplemental contributions from JEA in support of the EJ Program.
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7.

INTERFUND RECEIVABLES, PAYABLES AND TRANSFERS (continued)

Jacksonville Seaport Authority:

Interlocal Agreement - In connection with a major port and marine facilities capital
improvement project (the Project), the City and the Jacksonville Seaport Authority (JSA)
entered into an Interlocal Agreement upon the issuance of $43,605,140 Excise Taxes
Revenue Bonds, Series 1993. Subsequent to this transaction, the parties entered into an
Amended and Restated Interlocal Agreement in conjunction with the issuance of
$57,150,000 Excise Taxes Revenue Bonds, Series 1996B. Under the Amended and
Restated Interlocal Agreement, the City agreed to issue the 1993 Bonds and the 1996B
Bonds to finance the port and marine facilities capital improvement project, and the JSA,
in consideration therefore, agreed to reimburse the City for debt service payments on the
1993 Bonds and the 1996B Bonds from certain revenues allocated to the JSA. Any
insufficiency in the extent of such revenues allocated to the JSA under the Amended and
Restated Interlocal Agreement or any changes in the Amended and Restated Interlocal
Agreement does not affect in any manner any obligation of the City pursuant to the terms
of the 1993 Bonds or the 1996B Bonds. The Amended and Restated Interlocal
Agreement is not for the benefit of the holders of the 1993 Bonds or the 1996B Bonds
and the JSA has no obligation under that Amended and Restated Interlocal Agreement
to any third party bondholder. The revenues allocated to the JSA and supplemental
contributions to the City from the JEA in conjunction with the EJ Program are not
pledged as security for the 1993 Bonds and the 1996B Bonds.

The Amended and Restated Interlocal Agreement provides for the allocation of three
sources of revenue (collectively referred to as the “pledged revenues”) by the City to the
JSA. The first source of revenue relates to the allocation of half of the increased revenues
in the Telecommunications tax, which is 85% of the Communication Services Tax
("Authority Allocation No. 1"). The second source of revenue relates to the amount
calculated by multiplying one quarter (.25) mills by the gross kilowatt hours (as defined
in Article 21 of the City Charter) sold by JEA during the twelve month period ending
May 31 of the prior fiscal year (the “Authority Allocation No. 2"). The third source of
revenue relates to the $800,000 annual contribution remitted to the JSA as described in
Section 5(a) of the JSA act. Such pledged revenues are to be applied by the City to the
payment of debt service on the 1993 Bonds and the 1996B Bonds for such fiscal year
prior to being paid to the JPA. To the extent that the debt service on the 1993 Bonds and
the 1996B Bonds in any fiscal year exceeds the allocation of revenues to the JSA for
such fiscal year, then the amount of such deficiency shall be paid by the JEA to the City.
The 1996B bonds were refunded by the Excise Taxes Refunding Bonds, Series 2001A.

For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2002, the allocation of revenues from the City

to the JSA exceeded the debt service requirements of the 1993 Bonds, 1996B Bonds and
the 2001A Bonds by the amount of $3.9 million. In FY 01/02, $7.4 million was
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7.

INTERFUND RECEIVABLES, PAYABLES AND TRANSFERS (continued)
Jacksonville Seaport Authority: (continued)

distributed to the JSA. $4.0 million will remain in reserves to be applied to any future
debt service shortfalls of the 1993 Bonds, 1996B Bonds and the 2001 A Bonds and the
remaining amount will be expended on capital projects. At September 30, 2002, the
cumulative balance after the distribution to JSA is $4.0 million.

In previous years, the City expended $43.1 million on the Project from proceeds of the
1993 Bonds for the benefit of the JSA under the Amended and Restated Interlocal
Agreement, which completed the 1993 Bond Program. In previous years, the City
expended $64 million on the Project from proceeds of the 1996B Bonds for the benefit
of the JSA under the Interlocal Agreement. The City accounts for these expenditures in
the Capital Projects Funds. The City does not capitalize these capital outlay expenditures.

Jacksonville Transportation Authority:

Local Option One-Half Cent Sales Tax - On August 11, 1989, Jacksonville citizens
voted removal of all tolls from county/city bridges and certain roads and replaced the
revenue with a local option one-half cent sales tax that provides a permanent funding
source for the construction and maintenance of the City's roads and bridges; the operation
and maintenance of the bus system and the refinancing of existing bonds issued for the
construction of such bridges and roads. All collections from the one-half cent sales tax
are statutorily required to be remitted to the JTA. Accordingly, the City remitted all
collections from the one-half cent sales tax to the JTA in the amount of $57.4 million in
fiscal 2002. Such collection and payment by the City of this local option one-half cent
sales tax is recorded in the Transportation Special Revenue Fund as revenue and a
transportation expenditure in an equal amount. The JTA reports the $57.4 million transfer
from the City as sales tax revenue.

In fiscal year 2000, the City of Jacksonville and the Jacksonville Transportation
Authority entered into an interlocal agreement for the purposes of jointly exercising the
separate powers of each to the maximum extent allowable by law in the development,
scheduling, financing, planning, permitting, design, construction, and implementation
of a $750 million Road, Bridge and Drainage Capital Improvement Work Program. The
term of the agreement commenced on October 1, 2000 and continues in effect until all
of the Bonds have been duly paid in full or defeased in accordance with their terms. The
City and JTA agreed to pledge the Sales Tax and the Constitutional Gas Tax to the
payment of Bonds issued to implement the Program. Monies available above debt
service would be collected in a Pay-as-you-Go fund to assist with the payment of
Program expenditures. The City is making available the Local Option Gas Tax for the
operation of the JTA’s Mass Transit Division.
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8. LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS

A. Long-term Obligations at September 30, 2002, are comprised of the following (in thousands):

GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS PAYABLE
FROM AD VALOREM TAXES:

Duval County Certificates of Indebtedness of 1972
payable in semi-annual installments to 2003

Total General Obligation Bonds Payable
From Ad Valorem Taxes

SPECIAL OBLIGATION BONDS PAYABLE
FROM SPECIFIC REVENUE SOURCES
OTHER THAN AD VALOREM TAXES:

Excise Taxes Revenue Bonds, Series 1993
payable in semi-annual installments to 2021

Excise Taxes Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 1993A
payable in semi-annual installments to 2010

Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 1994
payable in semi-annual installments to 2020

Sunshine State Governmental Financing Commission, Series 1994
payable in monthly installments to 2006

Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 1995
payable in semi-annual installments to 2026

Sales Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 1995
payable in semi-annual installments to 2006

Excise Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 1995A
payable in semi-annual installments to 2010

Sunshine State Governmental Financing Commission, Series 1995A
payable in semi annual installments to 2012

Sunshine State Governmental Financing Commission, Series 1995B (AMT)

payable in semi-annual installments to 2016

Sales Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 1996
payable in semi-annual installments to 2019
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INTEREST
RATES

4.50 - 5.25%

5.00 - 6.30%

4.70 - 5.375%

5.05-5.875%

Variable Rate

Assumed at 9.20%

5.00 - 5.875%

5.00 - 6.00%

4.875-5.125%

4.75 - 5.65%

4.60 - 5.75%

4.35-5.50%

PRINCIPAL

$ 605

605

42,485

22,110

42,850

3,815

26,345

14,325

7,580

9,050

11,490

27,860
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8. LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (continued)

A. Long-term Obligations at September 30,2002:  (continued)

SPECIAL OBLIGATIONS BONDS PAYABLE
FROM SPECIFIC REVENUE SOURCES
OTHER THAN AD VALOREM TAXES:  (continued)

Excise Taxes Revenue Bonds, Series 1996B
payable in semi-annual installments to 2003

Excise Taxes Revenue Bonds, Series 1996C
payable in semi-annual installments to 2007

Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 1997
payable in semi-annual installments to 2026

Capital Project Revenue Bonds, Series 1997-1
payable in monthly installments to 2018

Capital Project Revenue Bonds, Series 1997-2
payable in monthly installments to 2023

Capital Improvement and Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 1998
payable in semi-annual installments to 2026

Excise Taxes Revenue Refunding and Capital Improvement Bonds,

Series 1999A payable in semi-annual installments to 2020

Local Government Sales Tax Refunding Revenue Bonds,
Series 2001 payable in semi-annual installments to 2019

Excise Taxes Refunding Bonds, Series 2001 A
payable in semi-annual installments to 2010

Excise Taxes Revenue Bonds, Series 2001B
payable in semi-annual installments to 2033

Excise Taxes Revenue Refunding & Improvement Bonds,
Series 2002A payable in semi-annual installments to 2014

Guaranteed Entitlement Revenue Refunding & Improvement
Bonds, Series 2002 payable in semi-annual installments to 2033

Capital Improvement & Refunding Revenue Bonds,
Series 2002A, Crossover Series 2002B and Crossover Series
2002C, payable in semi-annual installments to 2031

Total Special Obligation Bonds Payable From Specific
Revenue Sources Other Than Ad Valorem Taxes

Less: Deferred amounts on Special Obligation Bonds

Total Special Obligation Bonds Payable From Specific

Revenue Sources Other Than Ad Valorem Taxes, less deferred amounts
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INTEREST
RATES

4.75 - 4.90%
4.35-4.85%
4.20 - 5.25%

Variable Rate
Assumed at 7.81%

Variable Rate
Assumed at 8.89%
3.90 - 5.00%
3.30- 5.00%
3.00 - 5.00%
5.00%
4.000% - 5.125%

4.250% - 5.500%

3.000% - 5.375%

2.000% - 5.000%

PRINCIPAL

$ 3,360

2,430

7,650

27,735

43,500

36,145

64,670

103,645

42,485

46,735

56,685

115,265

123,225

$ 881,440
(896)

$ 880,544
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8. LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (continued)
A. Long-term Obligations at September 30, 2002:  (continued)

SPECIAL OBLIGATIONS BONDS PAYABLE
FROM OTHER SPECIFIC REVENUE SOURCES
OTHER THAN AD VALOREM TAXES:

Transportation Revenue Bonds, Series 2001
payable in semi-annual installments to 2032

Better Jacksonville Sales Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2001
payable in semi-annual installments to 2031

Total Special Obligation Bonds Payable From Other Specific
Revenue Sources Other Than Ad Valorem Taxes

TOTAL GENERAL AND SPECIAL OBLIGATIONS BONDS
BONDS PAYABLE FROM ENTERPRISE FUNDS:

Excise Taxes Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 1993A
payable in semi-annual installments to 2012

Excise Taxes Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 1995A
payable in semi-annual installments to 2010

Excise Taxes Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 1996A
payable in semi-annual installments to 2017

Excise Taxes Revenue Refunding and Capital Improvement Bonds,
Series 1999B payable in semi-annual installments to 2017

TOTAL BONDS PAYABLE FROM ENTERPRISE FUNDS

TOTAL BONDS PAYABLE
NOTES PAYABLE FROM GENERAL REVENUE:

U.S. Government Guaranteed Note Payable, Series 1994A (Vistakon)
payable in semi-annual installments to 2003

U.S. Government Guaranteed Note Payable, Series 1995 (Coach)
payable in semi-annual installments to 2014

U.S. Government Guaranteed Note Payable, Series 1996 (Sally Beauty)
payable in semi-annual installments to 2012
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INTEREST
RATES

3.00 - 5.25%

3.00 - 5.50%

4.70 - 5.375%

4.25-5.125%

4.00 - 5.50%

4.20 - 5.75%

6.44 - 6.53% (Taxable)

8.24 - 9.03% (Taxable)

6.23 - 6.88% (Taxable)

PRINCIPAL

$ 179,280

216,115

8 395395

$1,276,544

10,480

12,140

18,670

38,380

$ 79,670

$1,356,214

1,450

3,615

735
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FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2002

8. LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (continued)
A. Long-term Obligations at September 30,2002: (continued)

NOTES PAYABLE FROM GENERAL REVENUE: (continued)

U.S. Government Guaranteed Note Payable, Series 1996-B (Hilton Hotel)
payable in semi-annual installments to 2015

U.S. Government Guaranteed Note Payable, Series 1997 (Lavilla)
payable in semi-annual installments to 2016

U.S. Government Guaranteed Note Payable, Series 1997 (HTV Associates)
payable in semi-annual installments to 2010

U.S. Government Guaranteed Note Payable, Series 1997 (Armor Holdings)
payable in semi-annual installments to 2016

U.S. Government Guaranteed Note Payable, Series 1997 (Hampton Inns)
payable in semi-annual installments to 2015

TOTAL NOTES PAYABLE FROM GENERAL REVENUE

TOTAL BONDED INDEBTEDNESS

COMMERCIAL PAPER NOTES:

Outstanding in the amounts of $60,000,000 with interest rates ranging from
2.05% to 2.85% at original issue and maturing no later than 270 days after

date of issuance, and in no event later than October 1, 2018; renewable

annually, at the City's option, per credit agreement dated October 27, 1993

CAPITALIZED LEASE OBLIGATIONS:
Internal Service Fund:

Installment lease purchase of software payable monthly at $19,054 to

6.23 - 7.03% (Taxable)

6.23 - 7.08% (Taxable)

6.23 - 6.78% (Taxable)

6.23 - 7.08% (Taxable)

6.23 - 7.03% (Taxable)

May 2004 including interest at 5.60% with a collateralized value of $363 thousand

Installment lease purchase of telephone switches and wiring payable monthly
at $5,423 to February 2005 including interest at 5.20% with a collateralized

value of $148 thousand
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$

$

$

2,580

1,080

485

720

500

11,165

$ 1,367,379

60,000

363

148
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8. LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS
A. Long-term Obligations at September 30, 2002:

CAPITALIZED LEASE OBLIGATIONS: (continued)
Installment lease purchase of Unisys storage area network payable monthly
at $19,019 to January 2006 including interest at 5.95% with a collateralized $ 641
value of $641 thousand
Installment lease purchase of Verizon telephone switches payable monthly

at $8,589 to October 2004 including interest at 6.42% with a collaterized 179
value of $179 thousand

Installment lease purchase of Motorola 800 MHZ radios payable quarterly

at $727,534 to July 2009 including interest at 5.10% with a collaterized

value of $17,113 thousand 17,113
Total Capitalized Lease Obligations $ 18,444

ACCRUED COMPENSATED ABSENCES:

Represents the vested portion of accrued vacation and sick leave. See Note 1.M.
for a summary of the City's policy regarding compensated absences.

Governmental and Internal Service Funds $ 63,091
Business-type Funds 708
(Fiduciary - Pension Funds have compensated absences of $ 73 which are not

presented on the City-wide Statements)

Total Accrued Compensated Absences $ 63,799

OTHER LONG-TERM DEBT:

Estimated Liability for Self-Insured Losses $ 53,587
Liability for Landfill Closure and Postclosure Care 22,556
Total Other Long-Term Debt $ 76,143
TOTAL LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS $ 1,585,765

Less Unamortized Discount/Premium and Deferred
Loss on Advance Refunding (2,897)

Total, less Unamortized Discount/Premium
and Deferred Loss on Advance Refunding $ 1,582,868
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8. LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (continued)

B.Debt Service Requirement to Maturity:

Debt service requirement to maturity on the City's Long-Term Obligations at

September 30, 2002, are as follows (in thousands):

General Long-Term Bonds

Bonds Payable Commercial Total
Fiscal Year Special From Paper and Other Long-Term
Ending General Obligation Special Obligation Obligation BJP Enterprise Funds  ong-Term Obligation Obligations
September 30 Principal Interest Principal Interest  Principal  Interest  Principal Interest Principal Interest And Interest
2003 $ 605 $14 $ 24755 $ 40,853 $ 3,420 $ 19,714 $ 3,745 $ 3,937 $61,790 $ 824 $ 159,657
2004 - - 32,845 44,097 5,620 19,554 4,125 3,765 395 707 111,108
2005 - - 34,840 42,386 5,920 19,315 4,310 3,577 460 679 111,487
2006 - - 39,185 40,516 6,140 19,056 4,510 3,370 525 647 113,949
2007 - - 41,905 38,556 6,455 18,782 5,720 3,119 635 609 115,781
2008 - 2012 - - 197,338 167,311 36,910 89,549 33,285 10,432 4,485 2,193 541,503
2013 - 2017 - - 167,492 132,274 28,750 80,863 23,975 3,340 2,875 431 440,000
2018 - 2022 - - 160,070 68,629 40,905 71,837 - - - - 341,441
2023 - 2027 - - 88,760 35,026 99,005 54,825 - - - - 277,616
2028 - 2032 - - 84,165 12,538 162,270 21,267 - - - - 280,240
2033 - - 10,085 258 - - - - - - 10,343
Total Principal and
Interest 605 14 881,440 622,444 395,395 414,762 79,670 31,540 71,165 6,090 2,503,125
Less: Interest to
be paid - (14) - (622,444) - (414,762) - (31,540) - (6,090) (1,074,850)
Total Principal 605 - 881,440 - 395,395 - 79,670 - 71,165 - 1,428,275
Deferred amounts - - (896) - - - - - - - (896)
Unamortized Discount/Premium
and Deferred Loss on Advance
Refunding - - - - - - (2,897) - - - (2,897)
Totals $ 605 $ - $880,544 $ - $395395 § - $76,773 $ - $71,165 $ - $1,424482
Long-Term Obligations Not Included Above:
Accrued Compensated Absences 63,799
Capitalized Lease Obligations 18,444
Estimated Liability for Self-Insured Losses 53,587
Liability for Landfill Closure and Postclosure Care 22,556
TOTAL LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS

O Public Parking System $1,203 and Solid Waste Disposal $1,694
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8. LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (continued)

C. Changes in Long-Term Liabilities:

Changes in long-term liabilities for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2002, are

summarized as follows (in thousands):

Balance Balance
October 1, September 30, Due within
2001 Additions Reductions 2002 one year
Governmental activities:
General long-term obligations:
Commercial Paper Notes $ 60,000 $ - - $ 60,000 $ 60,000
General Obligation Bonds 1,195 - 590 605 605
Special Obligation Bonds 689,010 341,910 149,480 881,440 24,755
Special Obligaton -BJP 397,710 - 2,315 395,395 3,420
Notes Payable 13,025 - 1,860 11,165 1,790
Deferred amounts: -
Loss on Advance Refunding - (5,239) - (5,239) -
Issuance premiums - 5,833 128 5,705 -
Issuance discounts - (1,409) (CY)) (1,362) -
Total bonds and notes payable 1,160,940 341,095 154,326 1,347,709 90,570
Accrued Compensated Absences 57,235 5,856 - 63,091 20,281
Capitalized Lease Obligations 1,871 17,696 1,123 18,444 3,252
Due to Component Units 400 - 400 - -
Estimated Liability for Self-

Insured Losses 56,790 - 3,203 53,587 -
Governmental activity long-term obligations 1,277,236 364,647 159,052 1,482,831 114,103
Business-type activities:

Revenue Bonds 82,985 - 3,315 79,670 3,745
Less: Unamortized Discount/Premium and,
Deferred Loss on Advance Refunding (3,159) - (262) (2,897) -
Total Revenue Bonds, less Unamortized
Discount/Premium and, Deferred
Loss on Advance Refunding 79,826 - 3,053 76,773 -
Accrued Compensated Absences 635 73 - 708 519
Liability for Landfill Closure
and Postclosure Care 21,218 1,338 - 22,556 -
Business-type activity long-term
liabilities 101,679 1,411 3,053 100,037 4,264
TOTAL LONG-TERM
LIABILITIES $ 1,378,915 $ 366,058 $ 162,105 $ 1,582,868 $118,367

Internal Service Funds predominantly serve the governmental funds. Accordingly, long-term liabilities of $710 for compensated
absences payable and $15,209 for capital leases are included above in the totals for governmental activities. Compensated
absences for governmental activities are generally liquidated by the general fund.
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8.

LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (continued)

D. New Indebtedness and Refundings Issued by the City:

On April 8, 2002 the City closed on the sale of $46,735,000 Excise Taxes Revenue
Bonds, Series 2001B with an all-in true interest cost of 5.30%. The 2001B Excise Taxes
bonds carry coupon rates ranging from 4.00% to 5.125% with maturity dates ranging
from October 1, 2005 through October 1, 2032. The proceeds were used to provide funds
for public improvements and infrastructure improvements for the redevelopment of the
Jacksonville Shipyards property. The issuance provided net proceeds of $45,660,424
(after payment of $723,765 in underwriter’s discounts, accrued interest, insurance and
costs of issuance) to fund the improvements.

On July 3, 2002, the City closed on the forward delivery sale of $56,685,000 in Excise
Taxes Refunding and Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 2002A with an all-in true
interest cost of 4.32%. The 2002A Excise Taxes bonds carry coupon rates ranging from
4.250% to 5.500% with maturity dates ranging from October 1, 2003 through October
1, 2013. The proceeds were used to defease with a current refunding $57,255,000 of
previously outstanding Excise Taxes Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 1992 and for
improvements to the City’s Animal Care and Control Center. The issuance provided net
proceeds for the refunding of $59,516,070 (after payment of $610,349 in underwriter’s
discounts, insurance and costs of issuance) which was used to purchase securities that
were placed in an irrevocable trust with an escrow agent to provide all future debt service
payments on the applicable portion of the 1992 Bonds. As a result of the refunding, the
City realized an economic gain (difference between the present values of the old and new
debt service payments) of $4,065,665 or 7.10% as a percentage of bonds refunded. The
present value savings were used to lower future debt service and provide additional
proceeds as previously mentioned.

Also on July 3, 2002, the City closed on the sale of $115,265,000 Guaranteed
Entitlement Revenue Refunding and Improvement Bonds, Series 2002 with an all-in true
interest cost of 5.04%. The 2002 Guaranteed Entitlement Bonds carry coupon rates
ranging from 3.00% to 5.375% and maturity dates beginning October 1, 2003 through
October 1, 2032. The issuance provided net proceeds of $114,766,205 (after payment of
$1,413,081 for underwriter’s discounts, costs of issuance and bond insurance) to fund the
costs of various improvements and to purchase securities that were placed in an
irrevocable trust with an escrow agent to provide all future debt service payments on the
$61,360,000 refunded Guaranteed Entitlement Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 1992A.
As a result of the refunding an economic gain was realized (difference between the
present values of the old and new debt service payments) of $495,836.24 or 0.81% as a
percentage of bonds refunded. A portion of the proceeds of the 2002 Guaranteed
Entitlement Bonds will be applied by the City to pay the costs of a new building for the
Children’s Commission, a new documents processing facility for the Clerk of the Court,
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8.

LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (continued)
D. New Indebtedness and Refundings Issued by the City: (continued)

replacement or expansion of fire stations, historic preservation expenditures, a new
facility for processing and review of plans and permits, park development, acquisition
and development of renovations plans for the Haverty/YMCA building for City use and
other capital expenditures.

In addition, the City closed on September 9, 2002 on $123,225,000 Capital Improvement
and Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2002A, Crossover Series 2002B, and Crossover
Series 2002C with an all-in true interest cost of 4.84%. The 2002 Capital Improvement
Bonds carry coupon rates ranging from 2.00% to 5.00% and maturity dates beginning
October 1, 2005 and ending October 1, 2030. The issuance provided net proceeds of
$124,545,447 (after payment of $1,705,139 for underwriter’s discounts, costs of issuance
and bond insurance) to fund the $40,000,000 in improvements to Alltel Stadium and to
fund escrow deposits for crossover refunding of the City’s Capital Improvement Revenue
Bonds, Series 1994, lien ascension date October 1, 2004, and the Capital Improvement
Revenue Bonds, Series 1995, lien ascension date October 1, 2005. This debt will not be
legally defeased until each lien ascension date, therefore the liability for the 1994 and
1995 bonds has not been removed from the governmental activities column. This
advance refunding was undertaken to reduce total debt service payments by $84,606.36
and an economic gain was realized (difference between the present values of the old and
new debt service payments) of $2,399,380.86 or 3.70% as a percentage of bonds
refunded.

The City anticipates future debt activity to continue funding the Better Jacksonville Plan,
refinancing various bonds and additional needs for drainage and park improvements.

(The remainder of this page is intentionally left blank.)
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8. LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (continued)

E. DEFEASED DEBT:

The City has defeased certain serial bonds by placing the proceeds of new bonds in an irrevocable trust
to provide for all future debt service payments on the old bonds. Accordingly, the trust account assets
and the liability for the defeased bonds are not included in the City's financial statements.

The City presently has outstanding the following serial bonds, which are legally defeased (in thousands):

ISSUE (a)

REFUNDED BY

INVESTMENT
PRINCIPAL BALANCE WITH
BALANCE AT ESCROW AGENT AT
SEPTEMBER 30, 2002 SEPTEMBER 30, 2002 (b)

Excise Taxes Revenue
Refunding Bonds, Series 1977

Capital Improvement Revenue
Bonds, Series 1994

Sales Tax Revenue Bonds,
Series 1995 & Series 1996

Guaranteed Entitlement
Revenue, Series 1992A

Excise Taxes Revenue
Refunding Bonds, Series 1992

1984 C Excise Tax Revenue
Refunding Bonds

1998 Capital Improvement and
Revenue Refunding Bonds

2001 Local Government Sales Tax
Revenue Refunding Bonds

2002 Guaranteed Entitlement
Refunding & Improvement

2002A Excise Taxes Revenue
Refunding & Improvement

$ 18,405 $13,365
31,030 32,069
103,372 107,870
61,360 63,956
57,255 59,898

(a) Special Obligation Bonds payable from Specific Revenue Sources Other Than Ad Valorem Taxes

(b) Source: Escrow Agent's Records
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8.

LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (continued)

F. Lease Obligations:

At September 30, 2002, the City has several capital lease agreements in place. The
leases meet the criteria of a capital lease as defined by FASB Statement No. 13,
Accounting for Leases, which defines a capital lease generally as one which transfers
benefits and risks of ownership to the lessee. The lease agreements contain options that
allow the City to cancel the leases if sufficient funds are not appropriated. Since
cancellation of the leases is not foreseen, the leases have been capitalized. Further, upon
satisfaction of the lease obligations, asset title will pass to the City.

The City has a voice mail system, software, storage area network, two telephone switches
and wiring systems and motorola radios which were acquired through capital leases
(recorded in the Information Technologies Internal Service Fund). The carrying value for
these items (capitalized cost less accumulated depreciation) is $17.6 million at September
30, 2002. Depreciation of the items acquired through these capital leases was $612
thousand in fiscal year 2002.

The future minimum lease obligations as of September 30, 2002, were as follows (in
thousands):

Information
Technologies
Fiscal Year Ending September 30, Internal Service Fund
2003 $ 4,263
2004 3,442
2005 3,165
2006 2,929
2007 2,910
Thereafter 5,093
Total minimum lease payments 21,802
Less: Amount representing interest ( 3,358)
Present value of minimum lease
Payments $ 18,444
Classified as:
Current $ 3,252
Non-current 15,192
Total $ 18,444

The City does not have any material operating leases.
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8.

LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (continued)

G. Arbitrage Liability:

The City had no outstanding arbitrage liability as of September 30, 2002.

. Conduit Debt:

The City issued certain conduit debt in the form of industrial development revenue bonds
(IDB's) and private activity bonds (PAB's) to provide financial assistance to private-
sector entities for the acquisition and construction of industrial and commercial facilities
deemed to be in the public interest. Conduit debt refers to certain limited-obligation
revenue bonds or similar debt instruments issued by the City for the express purpose of
providing capital financing for a specific nongovernmental third party. Although conduit
debt bears the name of the City as issuer, it is collateralized by the resources provided
by the loan with the third party on whose behalf they are issued. The City acts solely as
a conduit issuer with respect to the debt.

Conduit debt is collateralized by the property financed and is payable solely from
payments received on the underlying mortgage loans. Upon repayment of the IDB's and
PAB's, ownership of the acquired facilities transfers to the private-sector entity served
by the bond issue. None of the assets or revenues of the City are pledged to the payment
of IDB's or PAB's and under the constitution and laws of Florida, the City may not
legally pledge any of its revenues or assets to the payment thereof. Neither the City, the
State, nor any political subdivision thereof is obligated in any manner for repayment of
the bonds. Accordingly, the bonds are not reported as liabilities in the accompanying
financial statements.

Effective January 1, 1983, the City pursuant to Chapter 159, Florida Statutes, assumed
responsibility for approving applications for IDB's and PAB's. As of September 30,
2002, the City had authorized $1,351,473,120 in IDB's and PAB's, of which
$1,131,576,902 have been issued. From time to time, certain of such conduit debt may
be in technical default or under investigation as to tax-exempt status of interest on such
debt, however, this has no effect on the City's financial position.

As of September 30, 2002, the City has authorized a total of $1,405,230,970 Duval
County Housing Finance Authority (DCHFA) Single Family and Multi-Family Bonds
of which $1,065,310,293 have been issued. The amount of Single Family Housing
Revenue Bonds authorized and issued are $844,000,000 and $789,030,331, respectively.
The amount of Multi-Family Housing Bonds authorized and issued is $302,263,970 and
$278,839,961, respectively. The amount of Single Family Housing Revenue Bonds
authorized and issued during the fiscal year ended 2002 is $20,000,000. The amount of
Multi-Family Housing Bonds authorized and issued during the fiscal year ended 2002
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8.

LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (continued)
H. Conduit Debt: (ocntinued)

is $8,775,000. Refundings of previous issues make up $228,811,526 of the total amount
authorized and issued.

As of September 30, 2002, the City has authorized $681,765,000 of Jacksonville Health
Facilities Authority (JHFA) Bonds, of which $555,446,184 have been issued. The
amount both authorized and issued during the fiscal year was $62,230,000. Of the total
amount of JHFA Bonds, refundings of previous issues make up $403,365,834 of the
authorizations and $328,074,166 of the issuances.

Special Assessment Debt: - The City has no special assessment debt.

. Demand Bonds: - The City has no demand bonds.

. JEA - Long-Term Debt:

The Electric System, SJRPP System, and Water and Sewer System Revenue Bonds (JEA
Revenue Bonds) are payable from and secured by a pledge of the Net Revenues of each
of the respective JEA Systems. JEA is required to deposit monthly, into separate debt
service sinking funds for each System, approximately one-twelfth of the aggregate
amount of principal and interest becoming payable on the outstanding JEA Revenue
Bonds within the bond year. Interest on the fixed rate portion of the JEA Revenue Bonds
(excluding SJRPP capital appreciation bonds) is payable semi-annually on April 1 and
October 1, with the principal amount payable on October 1. FPL is responsible for
certain debt service payments on SJRPP Revenue Bonds. These payments are made in
accordance with the requirements of the SJRPP Bond Resolution and Joint Ownership
Agreement between JEA and FPL.

(The remainder of this page is intentionally left blank.)

-92.-



CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2002

8.

LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (continued)
K. JEA - Long-Term Debt: (continued)

Amount
Long-term debt Interest rates ~ Due dates  (in thousands)
Electric System Revenue Bonds:
Series Two, 1987A 7.500% 2002-2004 $ 495
Series Three, 1993A 5.250-5.750% 2005-2016 -
Series Three, 1993B 4.800-5.250% 2005-2018 -
Series Three, 1998A 4.500-5.250% 2001-2033 124,995
Series Three, 2000A 5.000-6.100% 2006-2034 137,305
Series Three, 2000C 5.500-5.625% 2024-2035 59,930
Series Three, 2001A 5.125-5.250%  2020-2035 75,000
Series Three, 2001B 3.500-4.400% 2003-2011 83,025
Series Three, 2001C 5.000% 2021-2031 53,830
Series Three, 2002A 4.875-5.500% 2016-2041 75,000
Series Three, 2002B 3.250-4.700% 2008-2018 105,395
Total Electric System Revenue Bonds 714,975
SJRPP System Revenue Bonds:
Issue Two, Series Four 5.000% 2013 -
Issue Two, Series Six-B 6.650% 2002 1,775
Issue Two, Series Six-C 6.500% 2001 -
Issue Two, Series Seven 5.250-6.200% 2002-2014 15,954
Issue Two, Series Eight and Nine 4.750-5.250% 2002-2021 67,295
Issue Two, Series Ten 4.800-6.500% 2002-2013 303,435
Issue Two, Series Eleven 5.000-5.375% 2006-2020 154,480
Issue Two, Series Twelve 5.000-5.375% 2006-2018 141,755
Issue Two, Series Thirteen, Fourteen, and Fifteen 4.300-6.000% 2002-2016 207,065
Issue Two, Series Sixteen 4.200-5.375% 2002-2015 146,990
Issue Two, Series Seventeen 2.000-5.250% 2002-2019 513,200
Total SJRPP System Revenue Bonds 1,551,949
Water and Sewer System Revenue Bonds:
1997 Series A and B 4.375-5.625% 2002-2037 211,380
1999 Series A 4.500-5.400% 2009-2039 110,000
2000 Series A 6.000-6.125% 2018-2039 78,890
2001 Series A 4.200-5.375% 2002-2035 130,000
2001 Series C 4.150-5.250% 2002-2037 152,635
2002 Series A 5.375-5.500% 2024-2041 125,000
2000 Series B Variable Rate Obligations Variable 2030-2034 50,250
2001 Series D and E Variable Rate Obligations Variable 2003-2036 228,000
Total Water and Sewer System Revenue Bonds 1,086,155
Total Revenue Bonds 3,353,079
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8.

LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (continued)
K. JEA - Long-Term Debt: (continued)

Electric System Subordinated Debt:
Series B Commercial Paper Notes
Series C Commercial Paper Notes
Series 2000 A and B Variable Rate Obligations
Series 2000 F Variable Rate Obligations
Series 2001 B and C Variable Rate Obligations
Series 2001 D Variable Rate Obligations
2000 Series D
2000 Series E
2001 Series A
2001 Series E
2002 Series A
2002 Series B
2002 Series C
2002 Series D
Total Electric System Subordinated Debt

Water System Subordinated Debt:
Subordinated First Crossover Series (1)
Total debt principal outstanding

Plus Accretion of SJRPP Issue Two, Series Seven
Capital Appreciation Bonds
Total debt outstanding
Less debt due within one year
Total long-term debt

Variable
Variable
Variable
Variable
Variable
Variable
5.250-5.375%
4.400-5.125%
3.800-5.000%
3.000-4.200%
2.500-4.750%
3.000-5.000%
3.250-3.875%
4.000-4.875%

3.800-5.300%

N/a
N/a
2003-2010
2017-2030
2017-2030
2010-2031
2009-2011
2005-2014
2007-2016
2004-2013
2004-2015
2005-2008
2008-2011
2014-2037

2006-2039

14,447
121,650
200,000
125,000
132,000
175,100
31,105
50,840
30,370
15,000
33,485
72,710
153,305

1,155,012

81,990

4,590,081

12,844

4,602,925

(106,730)

$ 4,496,195

(1) On March 20, 2001, JEA issued its Water and Sewer System Subordinated Revenue Bonds
First Crossover Series. Upon the April 1, 2005 crossover date, unless certain conditions are

not satisfied, $78,890,000 of the 2000 Series A Bonds will be redeemed and the First

Crossover Series will be exchangeable for $81,990,000 of Series 2001 B Bonds. The first
Series Crossover and the refunded 2000 Series A bonds will both remain on JEA's balance
sheet until April 1, 2005. A corresponding escrow has been recorded which will generate
sufficient income to pay the debt service on the First Crossover Series until April 1, 2005.
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8. LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (continued)
K. JEA - Long-Term Debt: (continued)

Long-term debt activity for the year ended September 30, 2002 was as follows (in

thousands):
Accretion of
Bonds and SJRPP Issue2  Bonds and
commercial Series 7 commercial
paper payable Par Amount of Capital paper payable Current portion
September 30, Par Amount of Bonds Principal Appreciation September 30, September 30,
2001 Bonds Issued Refunded Payments Bonds 2002 2002
Electric System Revenue Bonds
and Commercial Paper $ 1,541,617 $ 539,095 ($207,165) $ 3,560) $ - $ 1,869,987 $ 1455
SJRPP System Revenue Bonds 1,662,154 513,200 (531,840) (80,370) 1,649 1,564,793 96,615
Water and Sewer System - -
Revenue Bonds 671,245 505,635 (8,735) 1,168,145 8,660
Total $ 3,875,016 $1,557,930 ($ 739,005) ($ 92,665) $ 1,649 $ 4,602,925 $ 106,730

The debt service to maturity on the outstanding JEA Revenue Bonds (excluding
Commercial Paper Notes and Variable Rate Obligations) as of September 30, 2002, is
summarized in the following table (in thousands):

Electric
Bond Yrs System SIRPP Water & Sewer (1)
Ending

October 1 Principal  Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest Total (2)
2002 (3) $ 1,455 $ 22,818 §$ 96,615 $ 29253 $ 8,660 $21,102 $ 179,903
2003 2,380 53,662 77,500 75,007 10,075 41,790 260,414
2004 6,130 52,770 81,555 70,913 10,510 41,337 263,215
2005 21,680 52,553 82,985 66,869 14,620 40,831 279,538
2006 19,145 51,657 87,300 62,546 15,930 40,192 276,770
2007-2011 280,670 236,993 475,819 273,344 95,675 189,588 1,552,089
2012-2016 175,630 180,996 456,610 110,146 100,805 166,457 1,190,644
2017-2021 120,850 144,672 193,565 27,367 87,370 141,291 715,115
2022-2026 99,530 115,290 - - 102,680 116,904 434,404
2027-2031 156,295 85,534 - - 114,520 86,040 442,389
2032-2036 158,110 38,845 - - 120,360 56,742 374,057
2037-2041 59,915 7,934 - - 126,700 21,412 215,961
Total $1,101,79 $1,043,72 $1,551,949 $715,445 $807,905 $963,686 $6,184,499

1) Excludes First Crossover Series Refunding Bonds.
2) Excludes debt service on variable rate debt.

3) Represents only the principal and interest paid on October 1, 2002; excludes interest paid on April 1,
2002 of this bond year.

The estimated fair values of the outstanding fixed rate JEA Long-Term Debt (does not
include commercial paper notes and variable rate demand obligations) at September 30,
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8.

LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (continued)
K. JEA - Long-Term Debt: (continued)

2002 was approximately $3,795,998. The estimated fair values at September 30, 2002
for the fixed rate portion of the JEA Revenue Bonds was determined through a nationally
recognized third-party financial information service.

The debt service to maturity on the principal outstanding (excluding interest) of the
Commercial Paper Notes and Variable Rate Obligations as of September 30, 2002, is
summarized in the following table (in thousands):

Electric System Water and Sewer Total Commercial
Bond Years Ending Electric System Variable Rate System Variable Rate Paper and Variable
October Commercial Paper (1) Obligations Obligations Rate Obligations

2002 $ - $ - $ - $ -
2003 8,744 17,800 3,950 30,494
2004 9,550 18,600 4,070 32,220
2005 7,326 13,800 4,190 25,316
2006 4,155 26,600 4,310 35,065
2007-2011 15,168 135,100 23,580 173,848
2012-2016 12,659 34,000 27,350 74,009
2017-2021 39,945 82,630 31,720 154,295
2022-2026 29,845 138,050 36,790 204,685
2027-2031 8,705 165,520 61,670 235,895
2032-2036 - - 80,620 80,620
$ 136,097 $ 632,100 $ 278,250 $ 1,046,447

(1) Amortization based uponJEA's current Commercial Paper Payment Plan and excludes payments made during Fiscal Year 2002.

The estimated fair values at September 30, 2002 for the $632,100 thousand of JEA
Variable Rate Electric System Subordinated Revenue Bonds and $278,250 thousand of
JEA Variable Rate Water and Sewer System Revenue Bonds were determined to be the
par amount outstanding at September 30, 2002.

JEA, at its option, may redeem specific outstanding JEA Revenue Bonds prior to
maturity, as discussed in the Official Statements covering their issue. A summary of the
redemption provisions is as follows:

Electric System SJRPP Water and Sewer
Earliest year for redemption 2002 2002 2002
Redemption price ranges 101% - 100% 101% - 100% 101% - 100%

Electric System

During fiscal year 2002, JEA issued Electric System debt as summarized in the following
table (in thousands):
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Par Par
Amount  Amount

Debt Issued Purpose  Priority Of Lien Month Issued Issued Refunded
Series Three 2001 C New Money Senior November 2001  $ 53,830 § -
2001 Series E New Money Subordinated November 2001 30,370 -
Series Three 2002 A New Money Senior May 2002 75,000 -
2002 Series A New Money Subordinated May 2002 15,000 -
Series Three 2002 B  Refunding Senior August 2002 105,395 104,640
2002 SeriesBand C”  Refunding  Subordinated  August 2002 106,195 102,525
2002 Series D New Money Subordinated September 2002 153,305 -

$ 539,095 $207,165

(1) Refunding was done as a single transaction; the combined estimated economic gain savings was $15,658 thousand. The estimated economic gain from the
issuance of the Series Three 2002 B and 2002 Series B and C Bonds is calculated as the difference between the present value of the debt service payments of the

refunded bonds and the debt service payments of the refunding bonds. The combined accounting loss on refunding was $8,855 thousand.

JEA has outstanding five series of subordinated variable rate demand obligations
(VRDO). Each series are subject to mandatory and optional redemption prior to their
scheduled maturity as set forth in the Official Statement relating to their issuance. The
VRDO were initially issued and currently are in the daily mode. They bear interest at
a daily rate which is determined on each business day. Interest is payable on the first
business day of each month. Liquidity support in connection with tenders for purchase
is provided by separate liquidity providers with respect to each separate series of VRDO
pursuant to a standby bond purchase agreement (the liquidity facility). With respect to
each separate liquidity facility, JEA can and expects to request extensions of the
termination dates. The purchase price of the VRDO tendered or deemed tendered for
purchase is payable solely from the proceeds of the remarketing thereof and moneys
drawn under the applicable liquidity facility and are not payable from any funds of JEA.

The following table summarizes JEA's outstanding subordinated VRDO:

Principal Average Interest
Amount Liquidity Facility =~ Rate for Fiscal
Series Outstanding Termination Date Year 2002

2000 Series A $ 100,000 January 18, 2003 1.432%
2000 Series B 100,000 January 12, 2003 1.432%
2000 Series F 125,000 December 3, 2002 1.432%
2001 Series B 66,000 May 22, 2004 1.432%
2001 Series C 66,000 May 22, 2006 1.432%

$ 457,000

JEA also has outstanding $175,100 thousand of its Variable Rate Electric System
Subordinated Revenue Bonds, 2001 Series D Short-Term Adjustable Rate Securities
(STARS). The 2001 Series D STARS are subject to the Auction Procedures as set forth

-97 -



CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2002

8.

LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (continued)
K. JEA - Long-Term Debt: (continued)

in the Electric System Seventeenth Supplemental Subordinated Resolution. The 2001
Series D STARS were initially issued and currently are in the auction mode. Interest for
each auction period will be an amount equal to the sum of the rate per annum determined
on the basis of orders placed in an auction conducted on the business day preceding the
commencement of such auction period and the service charge rate. Interest on the 2001
Series D STARS is currently payable every thirty-five days. The interest rate on the
2001 Series D STARS for any subsequent auction period may not exceed the lesser of
15% per annum and the maximum interest rate permitted by law. The average interest
rate during fiscal year 2002 was 1.54%.

SJRPP

On August 28, 2002, JEA issued $513,200 thousand of SJRPP System Issue Two Series
Seventeen Refunding Revenue Bonds (the "Refunding Bonds"). The Refunding Bonds
were issued to current refund $531,840 thousand of SJRPP System bonds of several prior
series. The refunding resulted in an accounting loss of $29,361 thousand. An estimated
economic gain of $38,500 thousand was realized as a result of the refunding. The
estimated economic gain from the issuance of the Refunding Bonds was calculated as the
difference between the present value of the debt service payments of the refunded bonds
and the debt service payments of the Refunding Bonds.

Water and Sewer System

JEA issued $152,635 thousand of Water and Sewer System Revenue Bonds 2001 Series
C on October 23, 2001 and $125,000 thousand of Water and Sewer System Revenue
Bonds 2002 Series A on April 11,2002 to fund various additions and improvements to
the Water and Sewer System.

On December 27, 2001, JEA issued $228,000 thousand of Variable Rate Water and
Sewer System Revenue Bonds 2001 Series D and 2001 Series E to provide moneys to
pay the costs of acquiring the assets and customers of UWF and certain other amounts
payable in connection with such acquisition.

On March 20, 2001, JEA issued $81,990 thousand of Water and Sewer System
Subordinated Revenue Bonds, First Crossover Series. The proceeds from the First
Crossover Series are to be held in a special escrow fund until the crossover date of
April 1,2005. The First Crossover Series are secured by a pledge upon the moneys and
eligible investments on deposit in the special escrow fund and by amounts on deposit in
the Subordinated Indebtedness Fund, the debt service account for the subordinated debt.
A portion of the invested proceeds (and income thereon) will be used to pay interest on
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the First Crossover Series until the crossover date. On the crossover date, unless certain
conditions are not satisfied, the balance of the funds on deposit in the special escrow fund
will be used to redeem the $78,890 thousand of Water & Sewer System Revenue Bonds
2000 Series A. On the crossover date, the First Crossover Series will be exchanged for
Water and Sewer System Revenue Bonds 2001 Series B (the "2001 Series B").Upon the
exchange, the 2001 Series B bonds will bear the same interest rates, have the same
maturity dates and be subject to optional and mandatory redemptions at the same times,
in the same amounts and at the same redemption prices as the First Crossover Series
bonds. In addition, upon the exchange the 2001 Series B bonds will be secured by a
pledge of the Revenues of the Water and Sewer System on a rank equal to that of any
other bonds outstanding under the Water and Sewer System Bond Resolution. The First
Crossover Series bonds bear interest rates ranging from 3.80% to 5.30% and mature in
the years beginning on October 1, 2006 through October 1, 2039.

As a result of the issuance of the First Crossover Series bonds and as a result of the
events to occur on the crossover date, the scheduled debt service will be adjusted for the
period ending September 30, 2005 to the maturity for the 2001 Series B bonds and the
total debt service on all Water and Sewer fixed rate bonds will be as follows (in
thousands):

Total Debt

Bond Year Ending October 1, 2001 Series B Service

2002 $ - $§ 29,762
2003 - 51,865
2004 - 51,847
2005 2,147 55,204
2006 4,419 55,754
2007 - 2011 22,095 283,423
2012 -2016 22,096 265,423
2017 - 2021 32,958 226,814
2022 - 2026 32,895 217,749
2027 - 2031 19,921 198,719
2032 - 2036 26,535 175,259
2037 - 2041 29,612 147,008
Total § 192,678 $ 1,758,827

JEA has outstanding three separate series of Water and Sewer System VRDO. The 2000
Series B VRDO are in the weekly mode and bear interest at the weekly rate which is
determined on Tuesday of each week with interest payable on the first Wednesday of
each month. The 2000 Series B VRDO are subject to mandatory and optional
redemption prior to maturity and to optional and mandatory tenders for purchase. The
2001 Series D and 2001 Series E VRDO are in the flexible mode and will bear interest
at flexible rates. While in the flexible mode, the 2001 Series D and 2001 Series E VRDO
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will bear interest at flexible rates for the interest periods determined by the remarketing
agent. The duration of each interest period will be the period determined by the
remarketing agent to be the interest period which, in its judgment, will produce the
greatest likelihood of the lowest overall debt service costs on the 2001 Series D or 2001
Series E VRDO, and will be a period of not less than one nor more than 270 days in
length. While in the flexible mode, interest on the 2001 Series D and 2001 Series E
VRDO is payable on the first business day following the end of each interest period. The
2001 Series D and 2001 Series E VRDO are subject to mandatory and optional
redemption prior to maturity and to optional and mandatory tenders for purchase.

Liquidity support in connection with tenders for purchase of the Water and Sewer
System VRDO is provided pursuant to standby bond purchase agreements (the liquidity
facilities). With respect to each liquidity facility, JEA can and expects to request an
extension of the termination date. The purchase price of the bonds tendered or deemed
tendered for purchase is payable solely from the proceeds of the remarketing thereof, and
moneys drawn under the liquidity facility and not payable from any funds of JEA.

The following table summarizes JEA's Water and Sewer System outstanding VRDO (in
thousands):

Average Interest
Principal Amount Liquidity Facility = Rate for Fiscal

Series Outstanding Termination Date Year 2002
2000 Series B $ 50,250 April 5, 2004 1.426%
2001 Series D 114,000 December 26, 2002 1.349%
2001 Series E 114,000 December 26, 2002 1.366%

$ 278,250

On October 1, 2002, JEA issued $79,840 thousand of Water and Sewer System Revenue
Bonds, 2002 Series B, to partially refund a prior series of Water and Sewer System
Revenue Bonds.

On October 24, 2002, JEA issued $160,000 thousand of Water and Sewer System
Revenue Bonds, 2002 Series C, to fund various additions and improvements to the Water
and Sewer System.

Commercial Paper
During fiscal year 2002, JEA retired $2,600 thousand of Series B and C Commercial

Paper Notes. The following table summarizes the outstanding Electric System
Commercial Paper Notes as of September 30, 2002 (in thousands):
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Principal Final Maturity Average Interest
Amount Date Not to Interest Rate Rate For
Outstanding Exceed Not to Exceed  Fiscal Year 2002
Series B (Taxable) $ 14,447 June7,2033 20% 2.082%
Series C (Tax exempt) 121,650  June 7, 2033 15% 1.819%
$ 136,097

The Commercial Paper Notes, shown in the previous table, have been classified as long-
term debt obligations and are junior and subordinate in all respects to the senior lien
Electric System Revenue Bonds. Valued at par, the estimated fair value of the
Commercial Paper Notes at September 30, 2002 was $136,097 thousand.

In order to manage more effectively its finances and to reduce the net cost of its debt,
JEA from time to time enters into interest rate cap agreements to limit the interest rate
risk associated with the Commercial Paper Notes. As of September 30, 2002, JEA has
BMA Index interest rate caps with a total notional amount of $60,000 thousand
associated with the Commercial Paper Notes. JEA is exposed to a potential nonpayment
in the event of nonperformance by the counter-party to its interest rate cap agreements.
JEA believes that the risk of nonpayment in the event of nonperformance by the counter-
party under these agreements is not significant and furthermore, JEA does not anticipate
nonperformance by the counter-party.

In order to provide liquidity support for each series of Commercial Paper Notes, JEA has
two separate revolving credit agreements with a single commercial bank. If moneys are
not available to pay the principal of any maturing Commercial Paper Notes during the
term of the credit agreements, JEA is entitled to make a borrowing under the applicable
credit agreements, provided that certain conditions are satisfied, in an amount equal to
the principal amount of the maturing Commercial Paper Notes. As of September 30,
2002, the expiration dates for the credit agreements are as follows:

Series B Commercial Paper Notes September 24, 2003
Series C Commercial Paper Notes May 12,2003

JEA has and will continue to request extensions of the credit agreements expiration dates
as provided for in the agreements, so that a current credit agreement is in place for each
of the outstanding Commercial Paper Notes. If JEA is unable to fund any Commercial
Paper Note maturities, JEA can utilize the credit agreements prior to their expiration
dates to the extent alternate sources of financing are not available. Upon the expiration
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of the term of any of the credit agreements, if any of the Commercial Paper Notes
secured thereby are outstanding, JEA is required to make a borrowing under the credit
agreements to repay the principal of all outstanding Commercial Paper Notes secured
thereby. Any loans outstanding under the credit agreements on the expiration date
thereof may be converted to a term loan that is repayable, in general, in twelve equal
semi-annual installments. JEA has not made any borrowings under the credit agreements
and does not expect to do so in the future.

In May 2000, JEA obtained an unsecured line of credit for $50 million which expires
May 3, 2003. As of September 30, 2002, there was no outstanding balance.

. JTA - Loan Payable:

On November 27, 2000, the Authority entered into a $21,000,000 State Infrastructure
Bank Loan Agreement with the Florida Department of Transportation, to be received in
disbursements of $12,000,000 in fiscal 2001 and $9,000,000 in fiscal 2002, the proceeds
of which are to be used for construction related to the Wonderwood Project. The loan,
which is interest-free, is to be repaid in a single payment of principal on or before
December 31, 2003, but may be repaid in whole or in part in $100,000 increments. The
amount of $21,000,000 was outstanding at September 30, 2002.

. JAA - Long-Term Indebtedness:

A summary of the long-term indebtedness changes during 2002 was as follows (in
thousands):

Beginning Ending Due within
Balance Issued Payments Balance one year
Bonds payable, notes payable and
capital leases:

Revenue bonds $ 47,460 $ - $ 660 $ 46,800 $ 685
Revenue refunding bonds 89,170 - 3,525 85,645 3,665
Revenue notes - 443 - 443 15
Notes payable - 4,326 325 4,001 776
Capital leases - 2,862 - 2,862 194

Total $ 136,630 $ 7,631 $ 4,510 $139,751 $ 5,335
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JAA Debt Issues
2000 Airport Revenue Bonds, Series A & B

In 2000, JAA issued $47,460,000 of Airport Revenue Bonds, with interest rates ranging
from 4.5% to 6.125%, with principal maturing in varying amounts through October 1,
2024. The proceeds of these Bonds were used for the acquisition, construction and
installation of capital improvements at Jacksonville International Airport.

Maturities of the long-term outstanding revenue bond issue will require the following
principal and interest payments based on the amounts outstanding at September 30, 2002
(in thousands):

Year ended Principal Interest Total
2003 $ 685 $ 2,769 $ 3,454
2004 720 2,735 3,455
2005 755 2,700 3,455
2006 790 2,661 3,451
2007 830 2,620 3,450
2008-2012 4,870 12,370 17,240
2013-2017 6,345 10,830 17,175
2018-2022 17,250 7,580 24,830
2023-maturity 14,555 1,401 15,956
Total $ 46,800 $ 45,666 $ 92,466

1998 Airport Revenue Refunding Bonds

In 1998, JAA issued $64,610,000 of Airport Revenue Refunding Bonds, with interest
rates ranging from 4.00% to 5.00%, with principal maturing in varying amounts through
October 1, 2017. The proceeds of these Bonds were used to pay the cost of refunding the
Airport Revenue Bonds, Series 1988, fund the Reserve Requirement for the Bonds and
pay the costs of issuance of the Bonds.

Maturities of the long-term outstanding revenue bond issue will require the following

principal and interest payments based on the amounts outstanding at September 30, 2002
(in thousands):
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Year ended Principal Interest Total
2003 $ 2515 $ 2,709 $ 5224
2004 2,620 2,602 5,222
2005 2,730 2,489 5,219
2006 2,850 2,359 5,209
2007 2,990 2,220 5,210
2008-2012 17,145 8,839 25,984
2013-2017 21,750 4,080 25,830
2018-maturity 5,025 126 5,151
Total $ 57,625 $ 25,424 $ 83,049

1993 Airport Revenue Refunding Bonds

In 1993, JAA issued $36,020,000 of Airport Revenue Refunding Bonds, with interest
rates ranging from 4.60% to 5.65%, with principal maturing in varying amounts through
October 1, 2009 and term bonds due October 1, 2017, subject to annul sinking fund
redemption.

Maturities of the long-term outstanding revenue bond issue will require the following
principal and interest payments based on the amounts outstanding at September 30, 2002
(in thousands):

Year ended Principal Interest Total
2003 $§ 1,150 $ 1,461 $§ 2,611
2004 1,210 1,401 2,611
2005 1,275 1,335 2,610
2006 1,345 1,265 2,610
2007 1,410 1,190 2,600
2008-2012 8,320 4,659 12,979
2013-2017 10,800 2,134 12,934
2018-maturity 2,510 66 2,576
Total $ 28,020 $ 13,511 $ 41,531

The Series 2000, 1998 and 1993 Airport Bonds are collateralized by a first lien upon and
pledge of the operating revenues derived from operation of the Airport System. JAA has
agreed to take necessary actions to attain and maintain operating revenues sufficient to
achieve certain minimum measures as to the ability of the Airport to service its
outstanding indebtedness.

2002 Revenue Note

In 2002, JAA entered into an $8,000,000 Revenue Note for the acquisition, construction
and installation of an administrative building to be located at Jacksonville International
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Airport. The Revenue Note consists of two series, a 2002A Subordinated Tax-Exempt
Revenue Note which will not exceed $5,666,667 and a 2002B Subordinated Taxable
Revenue Note which will not exceed $2,333,333, with variable interest rates calculated
by taking the one month LIBOR plus 18 basis points for the tax-exempt portion of the
Note and an additional 125 basis points for the taxable portion of the Note. The lease
term for the 2002 A Note is October 1, 2021 and the term for the 2002B Note is October
1,2011. The Revenue Note is subordinate to the 1993, 1998 and 2000 Revenue Bonds.

As of September 30, 2002, JAA had $443,000 outstanding principal balance on the
Revenue Note. JAA anticipates that this Revenue Note will be drawn to approximately
$7,500,000 by March 31, 2003.

Maturities of the long-term outstanding Revenue Note will require the following
principal and interest payments based on the amounts outstanding at September 30, 2002
(in thousands):

Year ended Principal Interest Total
2003 $ 15 $§ 3 $ 18
2004 30 5 35
2005 30 5 35
2006 30 4 34
2007 31 4 35
2008-2012 152 13 165
2013-2017 80 6 86
2018-maturity 75 2 77
Total $ 443 $ 42 $ 485
Notes Payable

In 2002, JAA entered into a Real Estate Purchase Agreement for the purchase of
approximately 317.25 acres in the amount of $2,926,000, with an interest rate of 6.5%,
with principal maturing in varying amounts through 2004. As of September 30, 2002,
JAA had an outstanding principal balance of $2,776,000.

In 2002, JAA entered into an Interlocal Agreement with the City of Jacksonville (City).
The City transferred and assigned all of its right, title and interest to a Lease, and to the
assets funded by the City in connection with the rehabilitation of facilities located on
JAA property at Cecil Field to JAA. In return, JAA agreed to pay the City $1,000,000
for the transfer of the improvements, with respect to the Lease, with no interest cost, with
principal maturing in varying amounts through 2006. As of September 30, 2002, JAA
had an outstanding principal balance of $900,000.
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In 2002, JAA entered into a Sublease Termination Agreement with a Tenant. The Tenant
conveyed, released, and quitclaimed to JAA the Tenant’s improvements. In return, JAA
agreed to pay the Tenant $400,000 with no interest cost, with principal maturing in
varying amounts through 2004. As of September 30, 2002, JAA had an outstanding
principal balance of $325,000.

Maturities of the long-term outstanding Notes will require the following principal and
interest payments based on the amount outstanding at September 30, 2002 (in
thousands):

Year ended Principal Interest Total
2003 $ 776 $ 4 § 780
2004 1,350 83 1,433
2005 1,275 162 1,437
2006 600 - 600
Total $ 4,001 $ 249 $ 4,250

2002 Master Equipment Lease-Purchase Agreement

In 2002, JAA entered into a Master Equipment Lease-Purchase Agreement for the lease-
purchase of baggage handling, screening and security purposes. The aggregate equipment
cost with respect to all equipment leased under this Agreement and all Leases will not
exceed $15,000,000, with variable interest rates calculated by multiplying 65% times the
three month LIBOR in effect as of the Reset Date, and adding 94 basis points. The lease
term for each lease will not exceed 120 months. The Master Equipment Lease-Purchase
Agreement is subordinate to the 1993, 1998 and 2000 Revenue Bonds.

As of September 30, 2002 JAA had entered into one lease under this Agreement with an
outstanding principal balance of $2,862,000 with a lease term through October 1, 2012.
The following is a schedule by years of future minimum lease payments under capital
leases together with the present value of the minimum lease payments as of September
30, 2002 (in thousands):

(The remainder of this page is intentionally left blank.)
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Lease

Year Ended Payments

2003 $ 247
2004 318
2005 318
2006 318
2007 318
2008-2012 1,591
2013-maturity 80
Total minimum lease payments 3,190
Less: Amount representing interest (328)
Present value of minimum lease payments $ 2,862

Special Purpose Facility Revenue Bond

JAA has issued one series of Special Purpose Facility Revenue Bonds to provide for the
construction of an air cargo shipping, storage and handling facility at the airport. These
bonds are special limited obligations of JAA, payable solely from and secured by a
pledge of rentals to be received from a lease agreement between JAA and an air cargo
company. The bonds do not constitute a debt or pledge of the faith and credit of JAA, the
County, or the State, and accordingly have not been reported in the accompanying
financial statements.

At September 30, 2002, Special Purpose Facility Revenue Bonds outstanding aggregated
approximately $3,100,000 with a final maturity of June 1, 2023.

N. JSA - Long-Term Debt, Capital Leases and Other Noncurrent Liabilities:

Noncurrent liability activity for the year ended September 30, 2002 was as follows (in

thousands):
Amounts Due
Beginning Ending within one
Balance Additions Reductions Balance year
Bonds payable, notes payable and
capital leases:
General obligation debt $ 797 $ - (8 790) $ 7 $ 7
Revenue bonds 39,625 - - 39,625 620
Revenue refunding bonds 62,080 - (1,090) 60,990 1,150
Capital leases 12,042 86 (705) 11,423 732
114,544 86 (2,585) 112,045 2,509
Less original issue discounts and
deferred loss on refunding (5,156) - 285 (4,871) -
109,388 86 (2,300) 107,174 2,509
Other liabilities:
Deferred capital contributions 16,500 - (9,500) 7,000 -
Total noncurrent liabilities  $ 125,888 $ 8 ($11,800) $114,174 $ 2,509
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(continued)

Long-term debt and capital leases at September 30, 2002 consisted of the following
(in thousands):

Revenue Bonds:
Revenue bonds, Series 2000, including serial bonds due in

varying amounts through 2030. Interest rates range from 4.5%

to 5.7%. $ 39,625
Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 1996, including serial bonds

due in varying amounts through 2019, subject to annual

sinking fund redemption. Interest rates range from 5.5% to

5.75%. 60,990
Equipment Capital Lease Obligation:
Subordinated Equipment Lease-Purchase Agreement with

quarterly principal and interest payments through 2005 with

interest at an annual rate of 3.55%. 79
Subordinated Equipment Lease-Purchase Agreement, Series

1999-A, with semiannual principal and interest payments

through 2014 with interest at an annual rate of 5.14%. 11,344
Note Payable:
Note payable, with monthly principal and interest payments of $3
through 2003 with interest at an annual rate of 4.9%. 7
112,045
Less current portion (2,509)
Total $ 109,536

In November 2000, JSA issued $39,625,000 principal amount of Revenue Bonds, Series
2000. The proceeds of the bonds are being used for the acquisition, construction and
installation of capital improvements to JSA's Facilities.

The Series 2000 and 1996 Bonds are collateralized by a lien upon and pledge of net
revenues of JSA's Facilities and certain monies held in trust funds. JSA has agreed in is
various bond related documents to establish and maintain rates charged to customers that
will be sufficient to generate certain levels of operating revenues and operating income
in excess of its annual debt service on the various outstanding Bonds. The Series 2000
and 1996 Bonds also place restrictions on JSA's issuance of debt on a parity with Bonds
currently outstanding.

JSA cash defeased $13,855,000 principal amount of Revenue Bonds, Series 1993 in
September 1999. JSA incurred a loss on defeasance of $1,325,000. JSA, through the
defeasance, reduced its aggregate debt service payments by $2,847,000 over the next 4
years and will obtain an economic gain (difference between the present value of debt
service of the refunded bonds and cash escrow) of $778,000.
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(continued)

In April 1999, JSA entered into a fifteen year Equipment Lease-Purchase Agreement
Series 1999-A (the Capital Lease) in the principal amount of $25,225,000. The proceeds
from the Capital Lease are being used for the acquisition, construction and installation
of four container gantry cranes and two rubber-tired cranes. During the fiscal year
ending September 30, 2001, JSA made unscheduled principal paydowns totaling
$10,422,000.

Debt Maturities - Required debt service for the outstanding revenue bonds and note
payable for the next five years and thereafter to maturity is as follows (amounts in
thousands):

Interest Principal
Years ending September 30:

2003 $ 5,527 § 1,777
2004 5,422 2,375
2005 5,292 2,805
2006 5,142 3,155
2007 4,978 3,320
2008 to maturity 52,385 87,190

Total $ 78,746 $ 100,622

The following is a schedule by years of future minimum lease payments under capital

leases together with the present value of the minimum lease payments as of September
30, 2002 (in thousands):

Years ending September 30:

2003 $ 1,308
2004 1,308
2005 1,301
2006 1,279
2007 1,279
Thereafter 8,949
Total minimum lease payments 15,424
Less: Amount representing interest (4,001)
Present value of minimum lease payments $ 11,423

Advance Refunding of Revenue Bonds - JSA has defeased a revenue bond issue by
placing funds in an irrevocable trust restricted for payment of all principal and interest
upon maturity of the revenue bond. This transaction has been treated as an in-substance
defeasement and, accordingly, has been accounted for as though the debt has been
extinguished. The debt that has been defeased and the related balances at September 30,
2002 are as follows (in thousands):

- 109 -



CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2002

8. LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (continued)
N. JSA - Long-Term Debt, Capital Leases and Other Noncurrent Liabilities:

(continued)
Investment
Balance with
Principal Balance =~ Escrow Agent
Revenue Bonds, Series 1993 $ 10,510 $ 11,616

9. PENSION PLANS

The City sponsors two employer public employee retirement systems (PERS), administered
by two separate and distinct pension boards of trustees, that provide retirement, death, and
disability benefits: the General Employees' Pension Plan and the Police and Fire Pension
Plan. Substantially all employees of the City participate in one of these two plans. In
addition, less than 1% of City employees participate in the State of Florida Retirement
System.

Under both the General Employees' and Police and Fire Pension Plans, the State of Florida
requires Plan contributions be made based upon an actuarial valuation and any contribution
shortfalls are the responsibility of the City to fund.

The General Employees’ Pension Plan and Police and Fire Pension Plan are considered to
be a part of the City’s financial reporting entity, as discussed in Note 1.B. Effective for the
fiscal year ending September 30, 1997, these PERS adopted GASB Statement No. 25,
Financial Reporting for Defined Benefit Pension Plans, intended to provide information
needed to assess (1) funding status of a PERS on a long-term, going-concern basis; (2)
progress made in accumulating sufficient assets to pay benefits when due; and (3) whether
employers are making actuarially determined contributions. These PERS also follow GASB
Statement No. 27, Accounting for Pensions by State and Local Governmental Employers,
which requires measurement and disclosure of an amount for annual pension cost on the
accrual basis of accounting, regardless of the amount recognized as pension expenditures.

A. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies:

(1) Basis of Accounting -The City's pension trust financial statements are prepared
using the accrual basis of accounting. Plan member contributions are recognized
in the period in which the contributions are due. Employer contributions to each
plan are recognized when due and the employer has made a formal commitment
to provide the contributions. Benefits and refunds are recognized when due and
payable in accordance with the terms of each plan.

2) Method Used to Value Investments - Investments are reported at fair value. Short-
term investments are reported at cost, which approximates fair value. Securities,

-110 -



CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2002

9.

PENSION PLANS (continued)
A. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies: (continued)

traded on a national or international exchange, are valued at the last reported sales
price at current exchange rates. Mortgages are valued on the basis of future
principal and interest payments, and are discounted at prevailing interest rates for
similar instruments. The fair value of real estate investments is based on
independent appraisals. Investments that do not have an established market are
reported at estimated fair value.

B. General Employees Pension Plan:

)

Plan Description - The General Employees' Pension Plan is a cost-sharing,
multiple-employer contributory defined benefit pension plan. All full-time City
employees, the employees of JEA, and the employees of JHA are eligible to
participate in the Plan upon employment. There are no separately issued financial
statements for the General Employees Pension Plan. The Plan is administered by
a seven-member board of trustees, that makes recommendations to the City
Council. The City Council is responsible for establishing or amending the
pension plan provisions.

The payroll for members covered by the plan was $233.9 million during the 2002
fiscal year, consisting of $138.5 million City of Jacksonville payroll, $91.8
million JEA payroll and $3.6 million JHA payroll. The total 2002 payroll was
$301.6 million for the City, $107.4 million for the JEA, $7.6 million for JHA,
$5.6 million for JSA and $6.8 million for JAA, for a total of $429 million.

The Plan provides for retirement, survivor, death and disability benefits. Under
normal retirement provisions, a member may retire after reaching the age of 55
with 20 years of credited service or at 65 with 5 years or more of credited service.
The requirements for early retirement are: (1) when an employee reaches age 50
and has 20 years of service, reduced 1/2% per month for retirement prior to age
55; (2) any age after 25 years of service adjusted to a benefit accrual rate of 2%
per year; and (3) any age after 30 years of creditable service at an unreduced rate
of 2 1/2% per year.

Benefits vest after 10 years of credited service equal to 2 1/2% of a member's
average earnings for each year of credited service up to 32 years with a maximum
of 80%. Average earnings is the average monthly salary or wages for the highest
36 months of employment within the ten years preceding retirement. The regular
benefit is increased by up to 3% on the April 1 nearest the fifth anniversary of the
initial benefit commencement date, and on each April 1 thereafter. A monthly
supplement is payable equal to $3 times the number of years of creditable service
to subsidize retiree's health insurance. However, only that portion of the increase
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9.

PENSION PLANS (continued)
B. General Employees Pension Plan: (continued)

)

in excess of the supplement is payable. Members who terminate covered
employment with less than ten years of credited service shall be paid a refund of
100% of their contributions to the Plan. All members of the General Employees'
Pension Plan are required to contribute 8% of their earnings actuarially
determined and required by City Ordinance effective October 1, 1993. There is
no mandatory retirement age.

At September 30, 2002, the Plan's membership consisted of:

Retirees and beneficiaries currently receiving benefits

and terminated employees with future benefits 4,153
Current employees:
Vested 3,079
Nonvested 2,573
Total Current Employees 5,652
Total Membership 9,805

Contributions - The City's funding policy provides for contributions at actuarially
determined rates that, expressed as percentages of annual covered payroll, are
adequate to accumulate sufficient assets to pay benefits when due. Level
percentages of payroll employer contribution rates are determined using the
"entry age" actuarial cost method. Under this method, the cost of each member's
projected retirement benefit is funded through a series of payments, determined
as a level percentage of each year's earnings, from age at hire to assumed exit
age. The level-percentage-of-payroll method is also used to amortize the
unfunded liability and changes in Plan provisions, actuarial assumptions and
gains and losses over a period of 30 years. If the Plan is in a surplus position, the
surplus is recognized as an amortization credit in a level dollar amount over 10
years. The amortization period is closed.

City contribution requirements are, as part of the funding policy, met through two
sources; cash payments from the City, and allocations from the Past Excess
Contribution account, maintained as part of the pension fund in accordance with
State requirements to track prior payments made in excess of the actuarially
required amounts. Contributions from all sources during fiscal year 2002 totaled
$33.6 million. The City contributed $13.2 million from the Past Excess
Contributions account. Employees paid $20.3 million ($16.0 million or 7% of
covered payroll in payroll deductions and $2.5 million from the Past Excess
Contribution account). Contributions during fiscal 2001 and 2000 were $30.4
million and $31.3 million, respectively. These contributions were made in
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9.

PENSION PLANS (continued)
B. General Employees Pension Plan: (continued)

3)

accordance with contribution requirements determined through an actuarial
valuation performed October 1, 2001. The actuarial methods used for this
purpose are the same as those used in determining funding progress.

Trend Information - Trend information gives an indication of the progress made
in accumulating sufficient assets to pay benefits when due. Six-year historical
trend information is being developed on a year by year basis and is included in
the accompanying required supplemental information.

C. Police and Fire Pension Plan:

)

Plan Description - The Police and Fire Pension Plan (the “Plan”) is a single-
employer contributory defined benefit pension plan covering all full-time civil-
service members of the City of Jacksonville’s Sheriff’s Office and Fire and
Rescue Departments. The Plan is administered solely by a five-member board of
trustees. The City’s payroll for members covered by the Plan was $101.7 million
during the fiscal year, excluding DROP participants. The Plan, as amended
effective April 1, 2001, provides, in general, retirement benefits after twenty
years of credited membership, regardless of age, with a minimum benefit of 60%
of the average salary received for the fifty-two pay periods immediately
preceding retirement. An additional 2% for each completed year over twenty up
to a maximum of 80% may be earned. There is no mandatory retirement age.
Effective October 1, 1996, the Plan provides for a cost of living increase to
pensioners and their beneficiaries of 3% per annum.

Pension benefits may be vested after a minimum of five years of membership.
Benefits are computed based on average salary for the fifty-two pay periods
immediately preceding vesting multiplied by 2.5% times the number of credited
years of service. Employees, in this category, may alternatively select a 100%
payout of member contributions to the Plan without interest, upon withdrawal
from the Plan.

At September 30, 2002, the Plan's membership consisted of:

Retirees and beneficiaries currently receiving benefits

and terminated employees with future benefits 1,466
DROP Participants 509
Active plan members 2,068
Total current employees 2,577

Total membership 4,043
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9.

PENSION PLANS (continued)
C. Police and Fire Pension Plan: (continued)

)

3)

4)

The City is currently contributing 9.25% of Plan members’ salaries. The Plan
members contribute 7.00% of salaries, and DROP participants contribute 2.00%.
Additional contributions are comprised of court fines & forfeitures, State
premium tax refunds (insurance contributions) and transfers from the Member
Reserve Account, the Base Benefit Reserve Account and the Enhanced Benefit
Reserve Account. Investment costs of the Plan are financed through investment
earnings. Other administrative costs are included in the annual required
contribution amount.

The State of Florida requires funding of pension contributions to be made based
upon an actuarial valuation; the most recent valuation is as of October 1, 2001.
The City Council has the authority to amend its contribution to the Plan to not
less than the minimum state requirement.

Net Assets Available for Benefits - Net assets available for benefits are
designated pursuant to an agreement between the Police and Fire Pension Plan
Board of Trustees and the City effective April 1, 2000, consisting of the
following actuarially computed components as of September 30, 2002 (in
thousands):

Combined Reserve Account V $ 12,265
Base benefits fund 627,361
Total net assets available for benefits $ 639,626

™ The value of the Combined Reserve Account is composed of the value of
the City Budget Stabilization Account and the Enhanced Benefit Account.

The City stabilization reserve account was established for the purpose of
cushioning actuarial losses in the base benefits fund and giving the City greater
flexibility in its funding of the Plan. The enhanced benefits account was
established to hold any remaining State premium tax refunds not assigned to
offset City contribution requirements. The base benefits fund consists of the
assets pledged to provide fund benefits. The combined balances as of
September 30, 2002, have been calculated under the terms of the 2001 agreement
between the Plan and the City of Jacksonville.

Trend Information - Trend information gives an indication of the progress made
in accumulating sufficient assets to pay benefits when due. Six-year historical
trend information, on a year by year basis, is included in the accompanying
required supplemental information. See Note 1.B. concerning financial statement
availability.
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9.

PENSION PLANS (continued)

D. Florida Retirement System:

(1)

)

G)

Plan Description - The City also participates in the Florida Retirement System
(FRS), a multiple-employer cost-sharing retirement system which covers less
than 1% of the City’s full-time employees. FRS is a defined-benefit contributory
retirement plan, administered by the State of Florida, Division of Retirement. The
City payroll for employees covered by FRS was $3.3 million during the fiscal
year; the City’s total payroll for all employees was $301.6 million.

The System provides vesting of benefits after six (6) years of creditable service.
Members are eligible for normal retirement after they have met one of the
following; (1) after thirty years of service regardless of age; (2) six years of
service and age 62; or (3) twenty-five years special risk service (age 55 if not
continuous). Early retirement may be taken any time after completing six years
of service; however, there is a 5% benefit reduction for each year prior to normal
retirement. Benefits are computed on the basis of age, average final compensation
and service credit. Average final compensation is the average of the five highest
years of earnings. The System also provides death and disability benefits.
Benefits are established by State statutes.

Contributions - During the years ended September 30, 2002, 2001, and 2000, the
City contributed $471 thousand, $274 thousand, and $321 thousand, respectively,
to the System for covered employees. For the fiscal year ended September 30,
2002, this contribution represented less than 1% of the total contributions
required by all participating employers. Contributions in both fiscal 2001 and
2000 were less than 1% of the total contributions required by all participating
employers which amounted to $2.1 and $2.2 billion, respectively. The funding
methods and the determination of benefits payable are provided in various Acts
of the State Legislature. These Acts provide that employers make required
contributions actuarially determined at the rates in effect at September 30, 2002,
of 5.76% of the compensation for regular members, 16.01% for special risk
members, and 11.86% for elected county officials.

Trend Information - Ten-year historical trend information showing the System’s
progress in accumulating sufficient assets to pay benefits when due is presented
in the System’s June 30, 2001 annual financial report. The report may be
obtained from the State of Florida, Department of Management Services,
Division of Retirement at 2639-C North Monroe Street, Tallahassee, Florida
32399-1560.

-115-



CITY OF JACKSONYVILLE, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2002

10.

11.

DEFERRED COMPENSATION PROGRAM

The City offers its employees a deferred compensation program created in accordance with
Internal Revenue Code (IRC) Section 457 and Chapter 112.215, Florida Statutes. During the
year ended September 30, 1999, the City complied with the requirements of subsection (g)
of IRC Section 457 and, accordingly, all assets and income of the plan are held in trust for
the exclusive benefit of the participants and their beneficiaries. Pursuant to the provisions of
GASB Statement No. 32, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Internal Revenue Code
Section 457 Deferred Compensation Plans, the financial statements no longer display
deferred compensation balances in an Agency Fund.

POST RETIREMENT BENEFITS

The City does not provide any post-retirement benefits for retired employees, such as health
care or life insurance, other than those disclosed in Note 9.

(The remainder of this page is intentionally left blank.)
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12. SEGMENT INFORMATION

A. The City's non-major enterprise activities consist of two funds: Motor Vehicle Inspection
and Mayport Ferry. Motor Vehicle Inspection accounts for the operations of the City's motor
vehicle inspection stations. The Mayport Ferry accounts for the operations of the ferry across
the St. Johns River at Mayport. Segment information for the year ended September 30, 2002

is as follows (in thousands):

CONDENSED STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

Assets:
Current assets
Capital assets
Total assets
Liabilities:
Current liabilities
Noncurrent liabilities
Total liabilities
Net assets:
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt
Unrestricted
Total net assets

CONDENSED STATEMENT OF REVENUES,
EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

Operating revenues

Depreciation expense

Other operating expenses
Operating income

Nonoperating revenues (expenses):
Investment earnings
Other

Transfer in

Capital contributions

Change in net assets
Beginning net assets
Ending net assets

CONDENSED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Net cash provided (used) by:
Operating activities
Noncapital financing activities
Capital and related financing activities
Investing activities

Net increase (decrease)

Beginning cash and cash equivalents
Ending cash and cash equivalents
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INSPECTION FERRY TOTAL
$ 630 $ 331 $ 961

79 4,808 4,887

709 5,139 5,848

211 253 464

12 - 12

223 253 476

79 4,808 4,887

407 78 485

— $486 T 4,886 $35,372
$ 548 $1,042 $ 1,590
17 (298) (315)
(689) (1,573) (2,262)
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10 12 22
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13.

RISK FINANCING

The Risk Management Division (Division) of the City administers general liability, workers'
compensation (up to $1 million) and public liability insurance programs covering activities
of City general government, JEA, Jacksonville Housing Authority, Jacksonville Seaport
Authority and Jacksonville Airport Authority under a comprehensive self-insurance program
wherein the City assumes substantially all risks of losses. The City funds assets on a dollar-
for-dollar basis for actuarially determined estimated losses in the City's Self-Insurance Fund,
an internal service fund. The Self-Insurance Fund, established under Jacksonville City
Ordinance, Chapter 128, services claims for tort liability claims brought against the City, its
officers, employees, or agents; workers' compensation; and direct physical damage or injury
due to operation of City vehicles. The City is not involved in any risk pools with other
governmental entities. The City purchases conventional, commercial insurance coverage
from various independent carriers on all other types of insurable risks including group health
and life, property and casualty, and blanket excess policies. There have been no significant
reductions in insurance coverage in the last year. Settled claims have not exceeded
commercial coverage in any of the past three fiscal years.

The City's liabilities are reported when it is probable that a loss has occurred and the amount
of that loss can be reasonably estimated. Liabilities include an amount for claims that have
been incurred but not reported. Because actual claim liabilities depend on such complex
factors as inflation and changes in legal doctrines and damage awards, the process used to
compute claim liabilities does not necessarily result in an exact amount. Claim liabilities are
reevaluated periodically with consideration of recently settled claims, the frequency of
claims, and other economic and social factors. The estimated liability for self-insured losses
is not discounted. Independent actuaries use all years of City claims data and the projected
number of employees, payroll, vehicles, and other property to estimate claims that have been
incurred, but not reported and to forecast ultimate losses by line of coverage.

The estimated liability for self-insured losses at September 30 (in thousands) consisted of:

2002 2001
Reported and known claims $30,078 $ 33,553
Incurred but not reported and claims development 23,509 23,237
Total estimated liability for self insured losses $ 53,587 $ 56,790

Changes in the estimated liability for self-insured losses were as follows (in thousands):

2002 2001
Balance, October 1 $ 56,790 $ 56,147
Current-Year Claims and Changes in Estimates 12,078 13,990
Claim Payments (15,281) (13,347)

Balance, September 30 $ 53,587 $ 56,790
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14. OTHER REQUIRED INDIVIDUAL FUND AND COMPLIANCE DISCLOSURES
A. Compliance With Finance Related Legal and Contractual Provisions:
The City has no violations of finance related legal and contractual provisions.
B. Fund Deficits and Excess of Expenditures Over Appropriations:

The following individual funds had a fund deficit at September 30, 2002, (in thousands):

Fund Balance/
Net Asset
(Deficit)
Major Enterprise Fund:
Public Parking ($ 6,400)
Non-major Governmental Funds:
Community Development Block Grant (4,120)
Housing Rehabilitation and Home Investment and
Opportunity Grants (1,058)
State Housing Initiative Partnership (770)
Grant Projects (2,857)

It is anticipated future revenues will eliminate these fund deficits.

The City had no funds with an excess of expenditures over appropriations for the year
ended September 30, 2002.

C. Landfill Closure and Postclosure Care Costs:

The State of Florida's Solid Waste Management Act of 1988 (the "Act") and regulations
of the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) and the State of Florida Department
of Environmental Protection (FDEP) require the City to be responsible for constructing
and maintaining the final landfill cover, monitoring ground water and methane gas, and
continuing leachate management thirty years after its municipally owned landfills stop
accepting solid waste and are closed. The estimated total costs of municipal solid waste
landfill (MSWLF) closure and postclosure care costs reported by the City are based upon
professional consulting engineers' studies prepared annually pursuant to rules
promulgated by EPA and FDEP. However, existing EPA and FDEP closure and
postclosure regulations may change which might require the City to revise its MSWLF
cost estimates used in the future.
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14. OTHER REQUIRED INDIVIDUAL FUND AND COMPLIANCE DISCLOSURES
(continued)
C. Landfill Closure and Postclosure Care Costs: (continued)

MSWLF costs, for open landfills, are recognized in accordance with GASB Statement
No. 18, Accounting for Municipal Solid Waste Landfill Closure and Postclosure Care
Costs. A liability of the Solid Waste Disposal Enterprise Fund (the "Fund") is recorded
based upon landfill capacity used at fiscal year-end and a current operating expense of
the Fund in the fiscal year in which the MSWLF costs are recovered through earned,
operating revenue.

The estimated liability for MSWLF closure and postclosure care costs at September 30,
2002, is (in thousands):

Balance, Accrual  Payment Balance,
October 1, of of September 30,
2001 Costs Costs 2002

Closed Landfills -

Postclosure care costs $11,945 ($ 173) ($337) $11,435
Operating Landfill -

Postclosure care costs 7,945 3,672 (1,695) 9,922
Total Landfill Postclosure

Care Costs 19,890 3,499 (2,032) 21,357
Waste Dump Site -

Long Term Care Costs 1,328 (129) - 1,199
Total Liability for Landfill Closure,
Postclosure, Decontamination and

Long Term Care Costs $21,218 $3,370 ($2,032) $22,556

At September 30, 2002, the closure and postclosure care costs for the closed landfills
(North and East sites) had been fully recognized as these two landfills both stopped
accepting solid waste in April 1992. Of the total MSWLF closure and postclosure care
cost liability, $45.1 million had been paid for the cost of closure and $3.4 million had
been paid for postclosure care costs through September 30, 2002.

Funding MSWLF costs for these two closed landfills will be provided from future
operating revenues of Solid Waste Disposal Enterprise Fund activities. As discussed in
Note 1.P., after adjustments for the current year change in estimate, the $61.2 million in
MSWLF closure and postclosure care costs recorded for the City's two closed landfills,
North and East, and the $9.1 million in Waste Dump Site decontamination costs has been
capitalized and recorded as a deferred charge in the Solid Waste Disposal Enterprise
Fund. Through fiscal 2001, $33.4 million of this deferred charge had been expensed to
solid waste disposal operations. Additionally, during fiscal 2002, $1.6 million of this
deferred charge was expensed to solid waste operations, resulting in a balance at
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14. OTHER REQUIRED INDIVIDUAL FUND AND COMPLIANCE DISCLOSURES
(continued)
C. Landfill Closure and Postclosure Care Costs: (continued)

September 30, 2002, of $35.3 million. It is the intent of the City that these costs be
recovered from future operating revenues of the Solid Waste Disposal Enterprise Fund,
and accordingly will be recognized as operating expense as such revenue is earned.

The total closure and postclosure liability for the operating landfill (Trailridge) is $9.9
million. This total is based on the estimated capacity used of 39.2% or 6,881,678 tons
used with a total estimated capacity of 17,542,735 tons. The City will recognize the
remaining estimated cost of closure and postclosure costs of $26.1 million as the
remaining capacity is filled. These amounts are based upon what it would cost to
perform all closure and postclosure care in 2002. The City expected to close the landfill
in approximately ten years (2012); however, it is presently extending the life of the
landfill by increasing the capacity (Phase III) and the life to 4 more years (2016). As
mentioned, actual costs may be higher due to inflation, changes in technology, or
changes in environmental regulations.

The liability for the Waste Dump Site at September 30, 2002, of $1.2 million is based
on the most recent estimate by the Federal Government of the City's allocated share of
the clean-up and long term care cost of the site under a Participation Agreement and
Consent Decree with the Environmental Protection Agency. The City was identified as
a responsible party, sharing 65% of the total clean-up costs.

Annually, the Florida Department of Environmental Protection (FDEP) requires the City
to meet a proof of financial responsibility for its two closed (East and North) and one
open (Trailridge) municipally owned landfills. This proof of financial responsibility
provides assurance to FDEP that future closure and postclosure care costs will be
adequately funded by the City. At September 30, 2002, this proof of financial
responsibility has been met by the City under Rule 62-701.630(5)(c) of the Florida
Administrative Code by $12.9 million in deposits made to a restricted cash escrow
account of the Solid Waste Disposal Enterprise Fund.

15. CHANGES IN REPORTING ENTITY

For the year ended September 30, 2002, the City had the following changes in reporting
entity.

The Jacksonville Economic Development Company, Inc. (JEDCO), was reported as a
component unit of the City in the prior year. City Ordinance 2001-1271-E authorized the
"privatization" of JEDCO. The Mayor and the Jacksonville Economic Development
Commission also approved a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) with JEDCO to
continue to provide certain services pursuant to the terms of the agreement. JEDCO and the
City determined that it was in their mutual best interest for JEDCO to become independent
of the City. Therefore, JEDCO is no longer a component unit of the City.
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15.

16.

CHANGES IN REPORTING ENTITY (continued)

The Jacksonville Port Authority was also reported as a component unit of the City in the prior
year. Resolution 2000-1104-A abolished the Jacksonville Port Authority (JPA) and created
the Jacksonville Seaport Authority (JSA), to own and operate the marine facilities, and the
Jacksonville Airport Authority (JAA), to own and operate the airport facilities. Both of the
new authorities are presented as component units for fiscal year 2002.

LESSOR OPERATING LEASE
A. Jacksonville Jaguars, Inc.

The City has entered into a lease dated September 7, 1993, pursuant to which the City
leases the ALLTEL Stadium and adjacent practice facilities to the Jacksonville Jaguars,
Inc. (Jaguars) for a period of thirty years from the first NFL regular season play in 1995.
The lease entitles the Jaguars to use the Stadium on game days, for practices and summer
training camp, and for the period necessary before game days. During other periods of
time, the City has the right to use the Stadium, except for certain administrative spaces,
training facilities, suites, and other areas that are for the exclusive use of the Jaguars.

For the first five years, rent is deferred in the amount of $250,000 per year; in years 6-10
rent is $500,000 per year; in years 11-20 $1,000,000; and in the final ten years $1.25
million. Rents from years eleven through the end of the lease are subject to escalation
based on one-half of any increase in the Consumer Price Index, but not to exceed 2.5%
per year. In addition, the Jaguars are obligated to pay supplemental rent in an amount
equal to the annual debt service incurred by the City for certain costs of renovation of
$20 million requested by the Jaguars over a thirty-year period with interest computed on
a tax-exempt basis.

The lease generally permits the City to retain all revenues from all activities at the
Stadium not connected with pre-season, regular season or post-season Jaguar games. The
City is required to provide electricity, water and sewer services for the Stadium at its
expense. The City must maintain the Stadium and all leasehold improvements. The City
is required to pay for game day personnel on the days of Jaguar games. The Jaguars
retain all net revenues from concessions and similar sales on NFL game days. The lease
obligates the Jaguars to maintain its franchise at the Stadium in Jacksonville and to not
relocate unless it pays the City certain guaranteed amounts.

B. Shands Jacksonville

Under an agreement with a not-for-profit corporation, Shands Jacksonville, formerly
known as University Medical Center, the City leases to Shands certain capital assets,
principally land and buildings, over a term to September 30, 2027 with an option to
renew for an additional forty years to 2067 at $1 per year. In addition, Shands is to be
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16. LESSOR OPERATING LEASE (continued)
B. Shands Jacksonville (continued)

a full service hospital in support of the indigent care programs of the City of Jacksonville
and Duval County under the agreement. Shands is to maintain, in good condition, and
make improvements and betterments to the Hospital as necessary over the life of the
lease. At termination of the lease, all leased property shall revert to the City.

17. LITIGATION, CONTINGENCIES, AND COMMITMENTS
A. Litigation:

The City is named as party in legal proceedings which occur in the normal course of
government operations. Such litigation includes, but is not limited to, claims asserted
against the City arising from alleged torts, alleged breaches of contract, condemnations
proceedings and other alleged violations of State and Federal laws.

It is not possible at the present time to estimate the ultimate outcome or liability, if any,
to the City for these proceedings. However, it is the City's opinion that any ultimate
liability is not expected to have a material adverse effect on the City's financial position.

B. Grants and Contracts:

The City participates in various federal and state assisted grant programs that are subject
to review and audit by the grantor agencies. Entitlement to these resources is generally
conditional upon compliance with the terms and conditions of grant agreements and
applicable federal and state regulations, including the expenditure of resources for
allowable purposes. Any disallowance resulting from a federal or state audit may become
a liability of the City.

All City agencies and departments are required to comply with various federal
regulations issued by the U.S. Office of Management and Budget if such agency or
department is a recipient of federal grant, contracts, or their sponsored agreements.
Certain agencies and departments may not be in total compliance with these regulations.
Failure to comply may result in questions concerning the allocability of related direct and
indirect charges pursuant to such agreements. It is believed that the ultimate disallowance
pertaining to these regulations, if any, will be immaterial to the overall financial
condition of the City.

C. Self-Insurance:
Through the City's Risk Management Division, the City maintains an insurance and self-

insurance program (See Note 13). Workers' compensation, public liability and general
liability, including motor vehicles operated by the City under the City's Ordinance Code
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17.

LITIGATION, CONTINGENCIES, AND COMMITMENTS (continued)
C. Self-Insurance: (continued)

Chapter 128, are self-insured. The City purchases commercial insurance for workers'
compensation claims in excess of $1 million. Under the laws of the State of Florida, the
City has limited sovereign immunity for certain self-insured losses in excess of
$200,000. The City retains coverage on all other types of insurance including real and
personal property damage. The self-insured programs of the City, which are included in
the Self-Insurance Internal Service Fund, are funded on a dollar-for-dollar basis
determined actuarially for the estimated losses for incurred but not reported and claims
development liabilities.

. Environmental Matters:

There are claims pending against the City as a potentially-responsible party (PRP) for
cleanup of hazardous and other contaminated waste sites under federal and state
superfund and other environmental laws as follows:

Several years ago, the City and other PRP's completed remedial action at the Pickettville
Road Landfill Superfund Site pursuant to a consent decree with the U.S. Environmental
Protection Agency (USEPA). During the post-construction monitoring phase,
contaminants were discovered in monitoring wells beyond the site, including the Realco
Wrecking Company construction and demolition debris landfill across Pickettville Road.
Following a remedial investigation and feasibility study, the PRP's recommended
constructing an iron reactive impermeable barrier between the landfill and Pickettville
Road and further monitoring on the other side of the landfill along Six Mile Creek. The
cost of the remedy is about $800,000, which the PRP's have deposited with the Site
Trustee. The PRP's are awaiting USEPA's approval of the proposed action which the
Agency advises may require an amendment to the Record of Decision. USEPA also
requested a focused feasibility study to address groundwater contamination on the other
side of the landfill. The study is underway.

USEPA identified the City as a PRP at the Whitehouse Waste Oil Pits Superfund Site in
western Duval County. The City and other PRP's participated in USEPA's Pilot
Allocation Project which resulted in EPA assuming as much as 80% of the liability at the
site, and the City being allocated slightly less than 10% of the liability. USEPA
estimates $20 million site costs, with the City paying approximately $2 million over the
life of the project (which includes a 20 year operations and maintenance period). A
complaint and consent decree have been lodged in the U.S. District Court for the Middle
District of Florida to memorialize the agreement between USEPA and the PRP's. Site
work is expected to begin in Summer, 2003.
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17.

LITIGATION, CONTINGENCIES, AND COMMITMENTS (continued)
D. Environmental Matters: (continued)

The City and other PRP's settled with the USEPA which had sought reimbursement of
its cost of a removal action in 1995, regarding the Bill Johns Waste Oil Site. The City's
liability is based on contracting with the waste oil service to empty used oil collection
points operated under a recycling grant from the State. The City agreed to pay $24,000
and USEPA has lodged a complaint and consent decree with the U.S. District Court for
the Middle District of Florida memorializing the agreement between the government and
the PRP's. The Florida Department of Environmental Protection (FDEP) has submitted
a demand to the PRP's to assess the site further to determine the extent of contamination
that may remain after the removal action. Liability to FDEP is being assessed, but the
site may be eligible for the state-funded clean up program, relieving the City of any
financial exposure.

USEPA is also investigating a former dump site known as Doeboy Dump. This site is
not, primarily, an ash dump site, but may have been an open dump that received some
waste for which the City may be liable. The City, the U.S. Navy, Millennium Specialty
Chemical Co., LLC, Kerr-McGee Chemical Co., Benjamin Moore Paint Co., and Waste
Management, Inc., have been identified by USEPA as PRPs, and have been asked to
enter into an Administrative Order on Consent to conduct a remedial investigation and
feasibility study at the site. Exposure is possible, but the value is presently
indeterminate.

Because of the uncertainty as to the amount of any environmental cleanup costs which
may ultimately be paid by the City no accrual has been made in the accompanying
financial statements at September 30, 2002, except as disclosed in Note 14.C. Funding
for such payment, if any, will be from general revenue sources, environmental protection
trust fund monies, third-party recoveries, Federal assistance and earnings.

. Construction Commitments:

At September 30, 2002, the City had major construction contracts for the following
projects:

Grand Park Area Drainage $8.0 million
Football Stadium Improvements $36.6 million
Northbank Riverwalk $6.0 million
Argyle Forest(Westport to East of Shindler) Road $7.3 million
Pritchard Road(Jones to I-295) $6.6 million
New Equestrian Center $8.5 million
Septic Tank Remediation $67.3 million
Zoo Improvements $6.2 million
Road Resurfacing $63.5 million
New Arena $65.6 million
New County Courthouse $22.7 million
New Baseball Park $18.0 million
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17.

18.

LITIGATION, CONTINGENCIES, AND COMMITMENTS (continued)
F. JSA - Commitments and Contingencies:

Prior to the 1998 tax year, the local Property Appraiser did not assess JSA-owned real
property, and consequently none of its property was subject to real estate taxes.
Beginning with the 1998 tax year, the local Property Appraiser began assessing JSA-
owned real property, based upon a 1997 Florida Supreme Court decision that seemed to
establish that local port authorities were not immune from ad valorem taxation. JSA
decided to pass some of the ad valorem taxes on to its tenants. As a result, several
tenants initiated a lawsuit against JSA, claiming that JSA was still immune from such
taxes. This suit went to final hearing in August 2002 and the court issued an order
sustaining the tenants' arguments. Upon becoming aware of the hearing, the local
property appraiser challenged its validity. The court heard arguments from all parties on
December 12, 2002 and issued an order dated December 17, 2002, upholding its previous
ruling. It is anticipated that the local Property Appraiser will appeal this decision and it
is unlikely that this issue will be resolved before the fall of 2003. Due to the uncertainty
surrounding the final resolution of this issue, JSA has recorded ad valorem tax expense
as if it were not immune from such taxes.

In December 1998, JSA became aware that a piece of its real property was contaminated
and may be subject to undetermined cleanup efforts. JSA's property was sampled by the
FDEP in connection with testing at an adjacent site, not owned by JSA, but known to be
contaminated. JSA has investigated the former uses of its property and is unable to
identify any source of contamination other than from the adjacent site not owned by JSA.
The owner of the adjacent property and the USEPA have entered into an Administrative
Order of Consent whereby the adjacent site will be further investigated and remediation
alternatives identified. The adjacent property owner has sampled soils and groundwater
from one well placed on JSA's property, which identified pesticide related contamination
at that location. Additional sampling may be conducted in the future. JSA believes that
it is not a responsible party.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On November 26, 2002, the City authorized the issuance of, not to exceed, $90,300,000
principal amount of Excise Taxes Revenue Bonds for funding (A) a grant to Shands
Jacksonville Healthcare, Inc. for public health care purposes and (B) a loan to the University
of Florida Health Services Institute, LLC, to assist with the construction of a building to
house medical facilities for Proton Beam Therapy. On November 15, 2002, the City closed
on the sale of $68,475,000 Excise Taxes Revenue Bonds, Series 2002B. These bonds were
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18.

19.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS (continued)

issued to provide funds which, together with other available funds of the City, will be used
to fund the grant mentioned above and to pay the costs of issuance of these bonds. The
interest rates on the bonds range from 2.50 to 5.375 percent and the maturity date is October
1, 2026. The City anticipates issuing the bonds for the loan mentioned above in late spring
or early summer 2003.

On December 16, 2002, the City closed on the sale of $63,060,000 Local Government Sales
Tax Refunding and Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 2002. These bonds provide funds,
together with other available funds of the City, to (1) currently refund $60,000,000
Commercial Paper Notes of the City in connection with the City’s River City Renaissance
Program, (2) finance the acquisition, construction and equipment of certain municipal
improvements, including, without limitation, library computer systems and park
improvements and (3) pay the costs of issuance of these bonds. The interest rates on the
bonds range from 3.00 to 5.375 percent and the maturity date is October 1, 2018.

On February 19, 2003, the City closed on the sale of $211,050,000 Better Jacksonville Sales
Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2003. These bonds provide funds, which will be used to (1) fund,
or to reimburse the City for expenses previously incurred in connection with, the acquisition
and construction of capital projects constituting part of the Better Jacksonville Plan, (2)
deposit funds to the Subaccount in the Debt Service Reserve Account in the Sinking Fund,
and (3) pay the costs of issuance of these bonds. The interest rates on the bonds range from
2.00 to 5.25 percent and the maturity date is October 1, 2030.

MAJOR DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS - ADDITIONAL
DISCLOSURE

A. JEA/City of Jacksonville

JEA is a component unit of the City and utilizes various services provided by
departments of the City, including revenue collections, insurance, legal and motor pool.
JEA is billed on a proportionate cost basis with other user departments and agencies.

JEA provides electric, water and sewer service to the City and its agencies and bills for
such service using established rate schedules. The revenues for services provided and
expenses for services received by JEA for these related party transactions with the City
were as follows (in thousands):

Revenues Expenses
Fiscal year 2002 §$ 14,771 $ 9,810
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19.

MAJOR DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS - ADDITIONAL
DISCLOSURE (continued)
A. JEA/City of Jacksonville (continued)

Beginning in fiscal year 1999, the JEA Electric System is required to contribute annually
to the General Fund of the City an amount not to exceed 7.5 mills per kilowatt hour
delivered by JEA to retail users in JEA’s service area, and to wholesale customers under
firm contracts having an original term of more than one year, other than sales of energy
to FPL from JEA’s St. Johns River Power Park System. The contribution rate, beginning
with fiscal year 1999, is the greater of 5.5 mills per kilowatt hour delivered or the 1998
fiscal year contribution of $52,039 thousand plus an increase of $3 million a year through
2003.

The contribution for fiscal year 2002 amounted to $65,490 thousand. A contribution of
$67,039 thousand has been budgeted for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2003.

Beginning in fiscal year 1999, the JEA Water and Sewer System is required to contribute
annually to the General Fund of the City an amount not to exceed 2.63 mills per cubic
foot of potable water and sewer service provided, excluding reclaimed water service.
The contribution amount for fiscal year 2002 was $11,117 thousand. This amount is
based on a contribution rate of 1.75 mills and such rate will be in effect through fiscal
year 2003. A contribution of $11,457 thousand has been budgeted for the fiscal year
ending September 30, 2003.

Although the calculation for the annual transfer of available revenue from JEA to the
City is based upon formulas that are applied specifically to each utility system operated
by JEA, JEA may, in its sole discretion, utilize any of its available revenues regardless
of source to satisfy its total annual obligation to the City.

In addition to the contributions described above, JEA is also obligated to make semi-
annual payments with respect to a portion of the debt service for the City’s Excise Tax
Revenue Bonds, Series 1999A and 1995A through fiscal year 2009. In fiscal year 2002,
JEA made principal and interest payments to the City of $3,186 thousand and $3,190
thousand. The total remaining principal amount due the City as of September 30, 2002
was $15,418 thousand.

Joint Projects Agreement

The Joint Projects Agreement (Agreement) between JEA and the City, entered into on
November 23, 1998, authorized the design and/or construction of certain JEA water,
sewer, and electric utility upgrades in conjunction with certain City projects for streets
and drainage to accomplish one-time construction within the public rights of way.
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19. MAJOR DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS - ADDITIONAL
DISCLOSURE (continued)
A. JEA/City of Jacksonville (continued)

Pursuant to this Agreement, JEA funded a $750 thousand working fund to be kept by the
City, from which monthly payments are made for JEA’s portion of these projects. The
working fund is replenished the following month for payments made on behalf of JEA.
JEA is not required to fund its unexpended project commitments other than the working
fund amount unless the working fund becomes inadequate, which would require
immediate wire transfer of needed funds. At September 30, 2002, JEA’s unfunded
project commitment to the City in excess of the working fund is approximately $1.5
million.

Better Jacksonville Plan

Beginning in fiscal year 2002, the City is providing funding for sewer improvements as
a part of the Better Jacksonville Plan. The City receives sales tax revenues, a portion of
which are used for capital contributions to JEA for sewer improvements. These
contributions amounted to $7,922 thousand in fiscal year 2002.

B. JEA - Acquisition of Assets and Customers of United Water Florida:

On December 31, 2001, JEA purchased the water and sewer assets and franchise of
United Water of Florida (UWF). UWF had provided water and/or wastewater services,
primarily to residential customers, in parts of Duval County, St. Johns County, and
Nassau County. The purchase price of such assets and franchise was $219 million. The
purchase price was recorded as an addition to the Water and Sewer System capital assets
based on an assessment of the fair value of the capital assets acquired. In addition to the
purchase price, JEA made a payment to UWF of $2 million that was intended to be a
reserve for UWF’s cost of capital items during the early years of the operation and
maintenance agreement referred to below. JEA and UWF also entered into a transition
services agreement pursuant to which JEA made payments to UWF of $4.7 million for
transition services.

In connection with the acquisition of UWF, JEA and UWF entered into an operation and
maintenance agreement pursuant to which UWF will operate the Monterey Sewer Plant
in Duval County and all of the UWF water and sewer plants and distribution and
collection systems in St. Johns County and in Nassau County for 20 years, subject to
renewal at the option of JEA. Under this agreement, JEA has agreed to pay an annual fee
to UWF for the services provided by UWF thereunder. For 2002, the fee is
approximately $3.3 million (prorated for the portion of the year following the closing of
the acquisition), and the fee escalates each year, with the fee in 2021 being
approximately $11.4 million. JEA is entitled to terminate the operation and maintenance
agreement after the seventh anniversary thereof wupon making a
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19. MAJOR DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS - ADDITIONAL
DISCLOSURE (continued)
B. JEA - Acquisition of Assets and Customers of United Water Florida: (continued)

termination payment. The amount of the termination payment initially will be $2.5
million and the amount of such payment will decline to zero after the tenth anniversary
of such agreement.

In connection with the acquisition of UWF, JEA made payments of $3.5 million and $1.5
million to Nassau County and St. Johns County for the purchase of UWF’s territory in
these counties. These payments have been recorded in debt issue costs and other in the
balance sheets. JEA financed the acquisition with proceeds of Water and Sewer System
Revenue Bonds.

C. JEA - Impairment of Long-Lived Assets:

Long-lived assets subject to the requirements of SFAS No. 121, Accounting for the
Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and for Long-Lived Assets to Be Disposed Of, are
evaluated for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount of any asset may not be recoverable. During 2002, JEA recorded an
adjustment of approximately $6,160 thousand due to the impairment determined in an
analysis related to the decommissioning of the Southside Generating Station.

20. DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS CONDENSED FINANCIAL

INFORMATION
Major Component Units

Jacksonville Jacksonville Jacksonville Non-major

Transportation  Airport Seaport ~ Component
Assets JEA Authority Authority Authority Units Total
Assets (other than capital assets) $1,633,964 $ 195,440 $ 75,085 $ 55346 $ 29,639 $1,989,474
Amounts due from primary government - - - 3,900 - 3,900
Capital assets 4,964,279 334,538 380,664 345,992 151 6,025,624
Total assets $6,598,243 $ 529,978  $ 455,749 $405,238 $ 29,790 $8,018,998
Liabilities
Liabilities (other than long-term debt $ 536,231 $ 16,774 $ 18,010 $ 16,847 $ 1,103 $ 588,965
outstanding
Long-term debt outstanding 4,496,195 24,065 139,751 114,174 - 4,774,185
Total Liabilities $5,032,426 $ 40,839 $ 157,761 $131,021 $ 1,103 $5,363,150
Net Assets
Invested in capital assets, net of related $ 768,106 $ 313,538 $ 248,889 $ 255,418 $ 64 $1,586,015
debt
Restricted 439,042 129,532 21,874 12,544 - 602,992
Unrestricted 358,669 46,069 27,225 6,255 28,623 466,841
Total Net Assets $1,565,817 $ 489,139 $297,988 $274,217 $ 28,687 $2,655,848
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20.

DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS CONDENSED FINANCIAL
INFORMATION (continued)

The following condensed financial statement information is presented for those component
units engaged in governmental activities.

Non-major
Major Component Component Unit
Program revenues Unit Net Revenue Net Revenue
Capital Grants (Expense) and (Expense) and
Charges for and Changes in Net Changes in Net
Expenses  Services Contributions Assets Assets

Jacksonville Transportation Authority

General government $ 2866 $ 1,928 $ 1,348 $ 410 $ -

Transportation 1,472 - 9,952 8,480 -

Unallocated depreciation 40 - - (40) -
Non-major component units

Housing finance 1,332 - - - (1,332)

Economic development 7,113 3 - - (7,110)

Downtown development 835 756 153 - 74
Total component units - governmental
activities $ 13,658 $ 2,687 $ 11,453 8,850 (8,368)
General revenues

Tax revenues 57,471 -

Unrestricted earnings on investments 6,890 647

Other non-tax general revenues 74 2,233
Payments (to) from primary government (32,982) 13,599
Transfers (56,967) -

(25,514) 16,479

Change in Net Assets (16,664) 8,111
Beginning Net Assets 292,407 20,576
Ending Net Assets $ 275,743 $ 28,687
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20.

DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS CONDENSED FINANCIAL

INFORMATION (continued)

The following condensed financial statement information is presented for those major
component units engaged in proprietary activities.

Jacksonville Jacksonville Jacksonville
Transportation Airport Seaport
JEA Authority Authority Authority Total

Operating revenues $ 987,839 $ 17,957 $ 40,309 $ 27,641 $1,073,746
Operating expenses  (other than 657,580 58,233 25,326 20,432 761,571
depreciation and amortization)
Depreciation and amortization 188,725 13,896 17,977 14,767 235,365
Operating Income (Loss) 141,534 (54,172) (2,994) (7,558) 76,810
Non-operating revenues (expenses)

Interest revenue 38,841 141 1,525 263 40,770

Interest expense (188,991) - (7,338) (4,343) (200,672)

Public funding - 7,347 - - 7,347

Other 72,367 399 7,435 - 80,201
Capital contributions (to) from (other

than City) 29,991 9,834 15,584 16,594 72,003
Shared revenue from primary

government - - - 7,400 7,400
Payments (to) from primary government (68,685) 31,187 512 3,900 (33,086)
Total non-operating, contributions, and (116,477) 48,908 17,718 23,814 (26,037)

transfers
Change in Net Assets 25,057 (5,264) 14,724 16,256 50,773
Beginning Net Assets 1,540,760 218,660 283,264 257,961 2,300,645
Ending Net Assets $1,565,817 $ 213,396 $ 297,988 $ 274,217 $2,351,418
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA

GENERAL FUND AND MAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (in thousands)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2002

GENERAL FUND

VARIANCE WITH
BUDGETED AMOUNTS FINAL BUDGET-
BUDGETARY POSITIVE
ORIGINAL FINAL ACTUAL ENCUMBRANCES = ACTUAL (NEGATIVE)

REVENUE:
Property taxes.........ccoceveueiniiiiiiieiniciieeeece e $ 298,437 $ 303,337 $ 310,460 $ - $ 310,460 $ 7123

Utility service taxes.... 91,813 91,813 93,978 - 93,978 2,165
Sales and tourist taxes.... - - - - - -
Licenses and permits.. 10,904 10,904 10,238 - 10,238 (666)
Intergovernmental....... 119,743 113,254 118,973 - 118,973 5,719
Charges for services.... 51,699 53,224 53,014 - 53,014 (210)
Fines and forfeitures....... . 8,941 8,941 8,425 - 8,425 (516)
Payment in lieu of taXes.........ccoeevierireieicniceceee e - - 2,984 - 2,984 2,984
TOEETESL. .ttt 9,515 9,530 4,769 - 4,769 (4,761)
OLRET.....coviieeee et 10,146 9,984 9,327 - 9,327 (657)
Total REVENUE...........covviierceieceeeeeeee e 601,198 600,987 612,168 - 612,168 11,181
EXPENDITURES AND ENCUMBRANCES:
Administration and Finance... 13,380 13,873 13,177 446 13,623 250
Agriculture.............cocoveennnne 1,205 1,158 1,104 45 1,149 9
City Council............ 6,461 7,022 6,633 151 6,784 238
Clerk of the Courts. 14,050 14,678 14,419 259 14,678 -
Courts.......ccceeeverereren 5,247 5,139 5,010 129 5,139 -
Community Services.. 29,060 29,923 29,410 513 29,923 -
Fire/Rescue......... . 89,363 97,142 96,776 366 97,142 -
General Counsel......... 307 511 508 3 511 -
Health Administrator...........c..cccooovvevvveveie e . 3,779 3,162 3,124 38 3,162 -
Jacksonville Economic Development Commission............ 4,558 4,472 3,785 687 4,472 -
MAYOT.....oveiiiiiieieieieeeee e 2,157 2,024 1,973 51 2,024 -
Mayor's Boards and Commissions.... 361 335 333 2 335 -
Medical Examiner...............cccccuo...... 1,500 1,465 1,433 29 1,462 3
Metropolitan Planning Organization. 110 110 96 14 110 -
Department of Neighborhoods.......... 16,219 15,466 14,810 656 15,466 -
Property Appraiser..................... 7,445 6,018 5,577 35 5,612 406
Public Defender................. 843 796 792 4 796 -
Planning and Development.... 8,055 7,589 5,797 1,412 7,209 380
Pension Funds..... 27 15 15 - 15 -
Public Libraries............c.cccooveveeennnn. 18,713 18,328 17,495 833 18,328 -
Parks, Recreation and Entertainment........ 22,641 24,038 22,742 1,242 23,984 54
Solid Waste and Resource Management...............cccc.coeveee. 39 - - - - -
PUbLic WOIKS......c.coiviiiiieiceiceerecee e 58,765 58,929 56,939 1,463 58,402 527
Regulatory and Environmental Services............c.ccoceeeenennee 7117 6,907 6,759 129 6,888 19
State AtLOTNEY ... eveveririeiieiieie it ie et ee b 2,057 2,290 2,290 - 2,290 -
Supervisor of Elections.. 3,491 3,451 3,343 108 3,451 -
Office of the Sheriff....... 206,650 202,571 200,436 2,055 202,491 80
Solid Waste ............ 3,609 3,687 3,658 29 3,687 -
Tax Collector............cc..... 9,890 9,780 9,743 37 9,780 -
Federal Program Reserve....... 3,973 342 - - - 342
Contribution to Shands-Jacksonville 23,776 23,776 23,776 - 23,776 -
Cash Carryover Reserves..................... 24,500 24,500 - - - 24,500
Jacksonville Misc. Citywide Activities................cccocoevenee. 21,854 20,902 11,769 2,111 13,880 7,022
Total EXpenditures............cocovevvivieriiiereiiiiereeeveeeeieeineas 611,202 610,399 563,722 12,847 576,569 33,830
EXCESS OF REVENUE OVER (UNDER)
EXPENDITURES (10,004) (9,412) 48,446 (12,847) 35,599 45,011
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Operating transfers in............ccccvveiiieiininnneceene 3,293 4,842 4,964 - 4,964 122
Operating transfers out.................. (117,422) (117,854)  (115,000) - (115,000) 2,854
Transfers - In from component units 76,606 76,681 76,682 - 76,682 1
Transfers - Out to component Units...............cecevveverrereenennnn (6,941) (7,497) (11,809) - (11,809) (4,312)
Total Other Financing Sources (USES)...........ccccoererrvencncninens (44,464) (43,828) (45,163) - (45,163) (1,335)
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES (54,468) (53,240) 3,283 (12,847) (9,564) 43,676
FUND BALANCES - BEGINNING...........ccccoeeiriiiernne, 58,101 58,101 58,101 - 58,101 -
Change in reserve for inventory of supplies............. - - 196 - 196 -
FUND BALANCES - ENDING $ 3,633 $ 4861 $ 61,580 ($ 12,847) $ 48,733 $ 43,676
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TRANSPORTATION

VARIANCE WITH
BUDGETED AMOUNTS FINAL BUDGET-
BUDGETARY POSITIVE
ORIGINAL FINAL ACTUAL  ENCUMBRANCES ACTUAL (NEGATIVE)
$ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -
85,153 85,153 85,153 - 85,153 -
5,366 5,366 6,543 - 6,543 1,177
(2,097) (2,097) 467 - 467 2,564
88,422 88,422 92,163 - 92,163 3,741

14,953 40,445 29,928 6,484 36,412 4,033
27,292 27,180 26,956 - 26,956 224
42,245 67,625 56,884 6,484 63,368 4,257
46,177 20,797 35,279 (6,484) 28,795 7,998
(4,337) (4,337) (4,513) - (4,513) 176
(30,428) (30,428) (30,428) - (30,428) -
(34,765) (34,765) (34,941) - (34,941) 176
11,412 (13,968) 338 (6,484) (6,146) 8,174
14,244 14,244 14,244 - 14,244 -
$ 25,656 $ 276 $ 14,582 ($ 6,484) $ 8,098 $ 8174

See accompanying independent auditors' report.
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SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS
GENERAL EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM

SEPTEMBER 30, 2002
(in thousands)
Plan Year Annual City Allotted from Total
Ending Required Cash Past Excess Employer Percentage
September 30 Contributions Contributions Contributions Contributions Contributed
1997 $ 25,754 $ 21,930 $ 3,824 $ 25,754 100%
1998 28,782 20,668 8,114 28,782 100%
1999 17,673 16,081 1,592 17,673 100%
2000 12,429 11,681 748 12,429 100%
2001 12,235 - 12,235 12,235 100%
2002 (1) 12,724 - 12,724 12,724 100%

(1) The financial statement expense requirement for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2002, was equal to the annual
required contribution of $12,724.

Certain adjustments are made to the annual required contribution if the plan carries a net pension obligation. The net
pension obligation (asset) is defined in GASB Statement No. 27 as the cumulative difference at date of adoption (or
transition) between annual requirements and actual contributions plus the cumulative difference between the requirements
and contributions after that date. Because the plan has no net pension obligation, no other adjustments were made to

determine expense this year.

Note that the net pension asset is not the same as "past excess contributions," which stand for the difference, including
interest, between the City's contributions for a plan year and that year's funding requirement determined as though the

fund's assets did not include any contributions made in a prior year in excess of that year's requirement.

See accompanying independent auditors' report.

- 136 -



CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS
POLICE AND FIRE RETIREMENT SYSTEM

SEPTEMBER 30, 2002
(in thousands)
Plan Year Annual City Alloted from Court Fines and Total Total
Ending Required Cash Contribution Premium-Tax Employer Member Percentage
September 30 Contribution (1) Contributions Reserves Refunds (2) Contributions Contributions Contributed
1997 $ 28,910 100%
1998 34,618 100%
1999 30,201 100%
2000 32,146 $ 9,187 $ 8,144 $ 6,830 $ 24,161 $ 7,985 100%
2001 26,875 9,058 3,170 6,881 19,109 7,766 100%
2002 (3) 35,585 9,896 9,080 8,492 27,468 8,117 100%

(1) Excess contributions from all sources are accumulated in the combined account which is drawn upon if actual contributions fall
below the annual required contribution.

(2) Includes refunds from premium tax under Florida Statutes Chapters 175 and 185.

(3) The financial statement expense requirement for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2002 was equal to the annual required
contributions of $35,585. The Plan has no net pension obligation.

See accompanying independent auditors' report.
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION

SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS

GENERAL EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM

SEPTEMBER 30, 2002
(in thousands)
Actuarial
Actuarial Accrued Annual UAAL
Value of Liability Unfunded Funded Covered as a % of
Valuation Assets (AAL) (1) AAL Ratio Payroll Covered Payroll
Date (a) (b) (b-a) (a/b) () ((b-a)/c)
09/30/97  (2) $ 1,137,301 $ 1,153,551 $ 16,250 98.59% $ 196,510 8.3%
09/30/98 1,261,363 1,217,641 (43,722) 103.59% 192,859 (22.7%)
09/30/99 1,324,735 1,321,083 (3,652) 100.28% 197,781 (1.8%)
09/30/00  (3) 1,426,926 1,426,745 (181) 100.01% 202,321 (0.1%)
09/30/01 1,461,866 1,511,829 49,963 96.70% 234,684 21.3%
09/30/02 1,425,708 1,528,742 103,034 93.26% 243,446 42.3%

(1) General Employees - Actuarial present values determined under the Entry Age Actuarial Cost Method for the October 1, 2002 valuation.

Actuarial Assumptions:

Investment rate of return

Projected salary increases

Includes inflation at:

Cost-of-living adjustments

8.40%
4.5%to 8.0%
4.00%

3.00% ann. Def. 5yrs.

(2) Actuarial present values calculated after changes in Plan provisions. The decrease in AAL (and UAAL) due to changes in

Plan provisions was measured to be $6,343.

(3) Net of the unassigned past-excess contributions separate account of $71,006.

See accompanying independent auditors' report.
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS
POLICE AND FIRE RETIREMENT SYSTEM
SEPTEMBER 30, 2002

(in thousands)

Actuarial
Actuarial Accrued Annual UAAL
Value of Liability Unfunded Funded Covered as a % of
Valuation Assets (AAL) (1) AAL Ratio Payroll Covered Payroll
Date (a) (b) (b-a) (a/b) (© ((b-a)/c)
09/30/97 $615,421 $ 842,849 $227,428 73.02% $ 106,111 214.33%
09/30/98 675,414 902,035 226,621 74.88% 110,598 204.91%
09/30/99 738,461 970,418 231,957 76.10% 97,666 237.50%
09/30/00 814,889 939,802 124,913 86.71% 97,207 128.50%
09/30/01  (2) 790,823 1,012,577 246,163 78.10% 96,199 255.89%
09/30/02 737,680 977,779 252,363 75.44% 101,698 248.15%

(1) Police and Fire - Actuarial present values determined under the Frozen Entry Age Actuarial Cost Method for the October 1, 2001 valuation.

Actuarial Assumptions:

Net investment rate of return 8.50%
Projected salary increases 5.00%
Includes inflation percent of 3.50%
Cost-of-living adjustments 3.00%

(2) The values were revised with the release of the October 1, 2001 Actuarial Report.

See accompanying independent auditors' report.
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NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS:
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

Special Revenue Funds account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources (other than
expendable trusts and major capital projects) that are legally restricted to expenditure for
specific purposes as described below.

The Concurrency Management Fund provides funding for maintenance and update of the
Concurrency Management System which is the basis for ensuring compliance with the 2010
Comprehensive Plan.

The Air Pollution Control and Monitoring Fund receives revenue from licenses and fees,
and contributions from the federal government to monitor and control environmental
problems related to the air quality in Jacksonville.

The Sports, Convention and Tourism Development Fund collects revenues from tourist
and convention development taxes and sales tax rebate revenue from the State to support
ALLTEL Stadium and surrounding sports complex and convention center facilities and to
fund tourism programs sponsored by the Tourist Development Council through the City.

The Budgeted General Government Fund accounts for numerous smaller accounts whose
revenues are dedicated to a variety of specific purposes.

The Public Safety Fund funds specific public safety programs through user fees and
intergovernmental revenue for emergency management planning and disaster medical
services provided by the Office of the Sheriff and the City Department of Fire and Rescue.

The Emergency 9-1-1 Fund receives revenues from a fee added to the telephone bill of
telephone customers that may be used for system operations and improvements.

The Tax Increment Districts Fund receives a distribution of ad valorem tax revenue levied
and collected in the City's four tax increment districts used to promote future commercial
business development that expands property tax base values in the City's core downtown
areas and the northwest region.

The Jacksonville Children's Commission Fund receives City funds, and various grants,
to serve as the community coalition for children. The autonomous board has the ongoing
responsibility of improving the lives of Jacksonville's children by serving as the central focus
for the evaluation, planning and distribution of funds for children's services that are
consistent with City programs and goals.

The Community Development Block Grant Fund receives monies from the federal
government in the form of community development block grants made available to specific
targeted areas of Jacksonville to assist in rehabilitation and revitalization in support of the
area's future economic growth and stability.



The Housing Rehabilitation and Home Investment and Opportunity Grants Fund
accounts for federal grant funds expended within federal guidelines to help Jacksonville
citizens to secure home ownership through a variety of private/public partnership mortgage
and rehabilitation loan programs.

The Job Training Partnership Act Grant Fund accounts for direct federal assistance to
the Private Industry Council of Jacksonville in providing employment and training services
to the economically disadvantaged and displaced citizens of Jacksonville through cooperative
efforts with local private sector businesses.

The Maintenance, Parks and Recreation Fund receives revenues from user fees and
charges from parks and recreation facilities that are dedicated to parks maintenance and
improvements, and acquisition of new recreational facilities.

The Metropolitan Planning Organization Fund receives funds from the Federal Highway
Department and the Federal Urban Mass Transportation Administration, and the Florida
Department of Transportation for planning the future of Jacksonville's metropolitan area,
principally in the area of transportation.

The Other Federal, State and Local Grants Fund records all other miscellaneous grants
administered by the City from federal, state and local sources not specifically accounted for
by other funds covering diverse programs such as: day care, adult homemaker, beach
erosion, base conversion and redevelopment, economic capital development, aids treatment
care, senior services and nutrition, crime prevention and drug abuse, teenage pregnancy and
childhood development, foster grandparents, and waste tire disposal.

The State Housing Initiative Partnership Fund accounts for revenue collected by the
Clerk of the Circuit Court on certain property transactions in Duval County passed from the
State earmarked for housing assistance and financial incentive programs to increase the
availability of affordable housing in Jacksonville including down payment assistance,
homeowner repair and rehabilitation and acquisition of existing single family dwellings for
home ownership.

The Better Jacksonville Trust Fund receives revenue from the half-cent infrastructure sales
tax. All monies placed into this trust are appropriated for Debt Service requirements and
contributions to the Better Jacksonville Capital Projects Fund.

The Non-Budgeted General Government Fund accounts for the Public Records
Modernization activity which receives revenues from a service charge authorized by Florida
Statute 28.24(15)(d) to be held in trust and used exclusively for equipment, personnel
training, and technical assistance in modernizing the official public records system of the
Clerk’s office and also accounts for numerous smaller funds whose revenues are dedicated
to a variety of specific purposes.



DEBT SERVICE FUNDS

Debt Service Funds account for the accumulation of resources for, and the payment of,
interest and principal on most general governmental obligations that are included in the
General Long-Term Obligations Account Group. Individual debt service funds are described
below.

The General Bonded Debt Obligations Fund accounts for the accumulation of resources
for, and the payment of, principal and interest on the Duval County Certificates of
Indebtedness of 1972 General Obligation Bonds of the construction of the Police
Administration Complex.

The Special Bonded Debt Obligations Fund accounts for the accumulation of resources
for, and the payment of, principal and interest on the City's special and limited bonded
obligations payable solely from and secured by a lien upon and pledge of the revenues under
the respective bond ordinances.

The Special Bonded Debt - Better Jax Obligations Fund accounts for the accumulation
of resources for, and the payment of, principal and interest on the City's special bonded
obligations payable, which are related to the Better Jacksonville Plan.

The Other Non-Bonded Debt Obligations Fund accounts for the accumulation of
resources for, and the payment of, principal and interest on other non-bonded debt
obligations including the River City Renaissance Commercial Paper debt.

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS

Capital Projects Funds account for financial resources segregated for the construction or
acquisition of major capital facilities (other than those financed by proprietary funds and
fiduciary funds). Descriptions of individual funds in this fund type follow.

The Grant Projects Fund accounts for monies received by the City under various federal,
state and local grants restricted to expenditure of specific capital improvements funded under
the grant program.

The River City Renaissance Project Fund accounts for proceeds of a comprehensive
capital improvement initiative (the "River City Renaissance") for projects concerning the
environment, children, health and social services, economic development, neighborhoods
and downtown, parks and recreation, and the arts.

PERMANENT FUND

The Permanent Fund is used to report resources that are legally restricted to the extent that
only earnings, and not principal, may be used for purposes that benefit the government or its
citizenry. The City accounts for its Cemetery Maintenance Funds as a Permanent Fund.



CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET -
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS (in thousands)

SEPTEMBER 30, 2002
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
SPORTS,
AIR POLLUTION CONVENTION AND
CONCURRENCY CONTROL AND TOURISM
MANAGEMENT MONITORING DEVELOPMENT
ASSETS

Equity in cash and investments............ccceoeineicciiininecieeee $ 10,420 $1,176 $ 3,765
Cash in escrow and with fiscal agents............cccoeveeiiinincncnne. - - 100

Receivables (net, where applicable, of
allowances for uncollectibles):

ACCOUNLS .ottt - - 7
IMOTEZALES. ...cuveeriieeiieeiie ettt - - -
Due from independent agencies and other governments............. - 158 -
TOTAL ASSETS $ 10,420 $ 1,334 $3,872

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities...............cccceoenenenn $ 38 $ 45 $ 152
Contracts payable..........cocciveiiiiiieiiie e - - -
Due to other funds........ s
Due to individuals.......c..ccooiiiiniiiniee - - -
Matured bonds and interest payable............c.cooeeeeiriiinenenn. - - -
DEPOSILS....coveveeieeicieiiricce e 362 - -
Deferred revenue

TOTAL LIABILITIES 400 45 152
FUND BALANCES:
Reserved for:
Encumbrances..........ccccovevivieieiiienencene e 711 42 1,205
Cash in escrow.............. - - 100
Mortgages receivable.... - - -
DEDBL SEIVICE. ...ttt - - : -
Unreserved:
Designated for capital projects...........cocveeevirienirienenenenn - - -
Designated for subsequent years' budget - - -
Designated for changes in fair value of investments........... 38 4 14
Undesignated (deficit).......c..coocoevirieievieiiiieieiiececeeeeee 9,271 1,243 2,401
Total Fund Balances...........ccovveveeiiieieninieniceieieeeess e 10,020 1,289 3,720
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES..........ccucc... $ 10,420 $ 1,334 $ 3,872
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SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

BUDGETED JACKSONVILLE
GENERAL PUBLIC EMERGENCY TAX INCREMENT CHILDREN'S
GOVERNMENT SAFETY 9-1-1 DISTRICTS COMMISSION
$ 17,348 $ 308 $3,748 $1,351 $ 5,544
39 - - - -
31 - 254 - 1,703
$17,418 $ 308 $ 4,002 $ 1,351 $ 7,247
$ 737 $ 23 $ 160 $ - $ 471
737 23 160 - 471
978 67 149 746 1,201
- - 28 - -
- - 379 - -
64 1 14 5 20
15,639 217 3,272 600 5,555
16,681 285 3,842 1,351 6,776
$17,418 $ 308 $ 4,002 $ 1,351 $ 7,247
(continued)

See accompanying independent auditors' report.
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET -
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS (in thousands; continued)

SEPTEMBER 30, 2002
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
HOUSING
REHABILITATION
COMMUNITY AND HOME
DEVELOPMENT INVESTMENT AND JOB TRAINING MAINTENANCE,
BLOCK OPPORTUNITY PARTNERSHIP PARKS AND
GRANT GRANTS ACT GRANT RECREATION
ASSETS
Equity in cash and investments...........cccocccvvvevieiinncncnnenes $ - $ 1,255 $ 494 $ 5,962
Cash in escrow and with fiscal agents............ccccoceceeeeinnnn 784 2,215 - -
Receivables (net, where applicable, of
allowances for uncollectibles):
ACCOUNLES ..ttt - - - -
MOTEAZES. ..eeeeeiieeiieciieieecee ettt 1,035 9,716 - -
Due from independent agencies and other governments...... 1,678 270 - -
TOTAL ASSETS $ 3,497 $ 13,456 $ 494 $ 5,962
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities.......................... $ 737 $ 661 $ - $ 53
Contracts payable 216 - - -
Due to other funds..........ccocevveineiineienicncccee 1,262 - - -
Due to individuals.........cocooeieiiiiiiiiiiee - - - -
Matured bonds and interest payable... - - - -
DEPOSILS....c.oiviiiiiiiiiieiicc s 6 77 - -
Deferred revenue..............ccooevevievieieie e 1,069 - - -
TOTAL LIABILITIES 3,290 738 - 53
FUND BALANCES:
Reserved for:
EncCumbrances.........cccovveiiioiii it 2,508 1,840 - 427
Cash in escrow 784 2,215 - -
Mortgages receivable...........coeeerieiiiniinieiencee e 1,035 9,716 - -
DeEDbt SEIVICE....c.cviiveiiiitiirieeietet e - - - -
Unreserved:
Designated for capital projects.........ccccovverirecrnenennes - - - 884
Designated for subsequent years' budget....................... - - - -
Designated for changes in fair value of investments..... - 5 2 22
Undesignated (deficit).........cccccevevvinieviininiiiereeienns (4,120) (1,058) 492 4,576
Total Fund Balances..........ccocccovvveieeneenieiinseecec e 207 12,718 494 5,909
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES........... $ 3,497 $ 13,456 $ 494 $ 5,962
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SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

METROPOLITAN OTHER FEDERAL, STATE HOUSING BETTER NON-BUDGETED
PLANNING STATE AND INITIATIVE JACKSONVILLE GENERAL
ORGANIZATION LOCAL GRANTS PARTNERSHIP PLAN TRUST GOVERNMENT TOTAL
$ - $ 8,050 $ 5264 $ - $ 6,592 $ 71,277
- 40 - - 825 3,964
- - - - 2 48
- - 4,014 - - 14,765
645 4,303 - 13,612 - 22,654
$ 645 $ 12,393 $9,278 $ 13,612 $7,419 $ 112,708
$ 102 $ 1,740 $ 933 $ - $ 159 $ 6,011
- - - - 23 239
267 - - - - 1,529
- - - - 305 305
- - - - 8 453
- - - - - 1,069
369 1,740 933 - 495 9,606
208 5,834 5,082 - 1,363 22,361
- 40 - - 825 3,964
- - 4,014 - - 14,765
- - - - - 912
- - - - - 379
- 30 19 - 24 262
68 4,749 (770) 13,612 4,712 60,459
276 10,653 8,345 13,612 6,924 103,102
$ 645 $ 12,393 $ 9,278 $ 13,612 $7,419 $ 112,708

See accompanying independent auditors' report.

(continued)
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET -

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS (in thousands; continued)

SEPTEMBER 30, 2002
DEBT SERVICE FUNDS
SPECIAL
BONDED DEBT-
BETTER OTHER
GENERAL SPECIAL JACKSONVILLE NON-BONDED
BONDED DEBT BONDED DEBT PLAN DEBT
OBLIGATIONS OBLIGATIONS OBLIGATIONS OBLIGATIONS TOTAL
ASSETS

Equity in cash and investments...........cccccevivciniininnnnnn.
Cash in escrow and with fiscal agents.............c.cccoeeeene

Receivables (net, where applicable, of
allowances for uncollectibles):

ACCOUNES ..o
MOTEZALES. ..o
Due from independent agencies and other governments..

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

LIABILITIES:

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities......................

Contracts payable.........cccccocevineineininnne

Due to other funds....

Due to individuals..........c...coveevvveennnnne.

Matured bonds and interest payable...........c.cccccoeeienee

DEPOSItS....eveeeeeiriieiieiieie e
Deferred revenue

TOTAL LIABILITIES

FUND BALANCES:
Reserved for:

Encumbrances..........cccoooevviiiiiiiiiniie et

Cash in escrow.............
Mortgages receivable

DDt SEIVICE....cvvivviiiiecitieceecteecte e

Unreserved:

Designated for capital projects...........ccccoveereeerinnennnn

Designated for subsequent years' budget

Designated for changes in fair value of investments..
Undesignated (deficit)........c.coceovevenniiencrenninncnnn

Total Fund Balances..............ccceovveevieveeieecieeceeeevee e

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES......

$ - $ 127,075 $ 19,787 116 $ 146,978
39 - 30,0583 - 30,092

$ 39 $ 127,075 $ 49,840 $ 116 $ 177,070
$ - $ - $ - $ - $ -
39 - - - 39
39 - - - 39

- - 30,053 - 30,053

- 126,860 15,462 116 142,438

- 215 4,325 - 4,540

- 127,075 49,840 116 177,031

$ 39 $ 127,075 $ 49,840 $116 $ 177,070
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CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS
RIVER CITY
GRANT RENAISSANCE
PROJECTS PROJECT TOTAL
$ 1,983 $ 4,670 $ 6,653
261 13 274
— 4818 u 4818
$ 7,062 $ 4,683 $ 11,745
$ 1,267 $ 39 $ 1,306
138 13 151
1,405 52 1,457
8,246 241 8,487
261 13 274
. 4,360 4,360
7 17 24
(2,857) - (2,857)
5,657 4,631 10,288
$ 7,062 $ 4,683 $ 11,745

PERMANENT
FUND

CEMETERY
MAINTENANCE
FUNDS

TOTAL
NONMAJOR
GOVERNMENTAL
FUNDS

$ 170

$ 170

170
170

$ 170

$ 225,078
34,330

48
14,765
27,472

$ 301,693

$ 7317
390

1,529

305

39

453

1,069

11,102

30,848
34,291
14,765
142,438

5,272

379

4,826
__ 512
290,591

$ 301,693

See accompanying independent auditors' report.
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS (in thousands)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2002

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
SPORTS,
AIR POLLUTION CONVENTION AND
CONCURRENCY CONTROL AND TOURISM
MANAGEMENT  MONITORING DEVELOPMENT
REVENUE:
PrOPEItY TAXES...c.oiiiiiiiiiiicecir ettt $ - $ - $ -
Sales and tOUTISt tAXES. ....c.euvvrrierrieireeieireiei ettt - - 11,084
Intergovernmental........... - 2,044 2,000
Charges for services................... 4,713 - -
Fines and forfeitures - - -
Interest.......cccevvvvininnn 213 28 83
(01113 OSSR RRURUSURRSNE - - 367
TOtal REVEIUE....cccciiiciiieiieiiee ettt e eaaaeeees 4,926 2,072 13,534
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
General GOVEIMMENL.....c..oouiiiiiiiiriiiiit ettt ens 130 - -
Human services.......... s - - -
PUbIic SAfEty......ccoveiiiiiiieiie e - - -
Culture and recreation... et - - 535
Transportation................... e 288 - -
Economic environment.............coceeeerenennennens - - 3,992
Physical environment.............cccoceeevevererennne e —— - 2,213 -
Capital QULIAY........ooviviiiiiiiciccc e - - -
Debt service:
PrNCIPaAL.....c.coveiiiiiciiiiici e - - -
Interest on fiscal Charges..........ccoveerriiniiire e - - -
Total EXPenditures........c.ccovereriiieieieieiesieeeecee e 418 2,213 4,527
EXCESS OF REVENUE OVER (UNDER)
EXPENDITURES 4,508 (141) 9,007
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Long-term debt iSSUEd.........ccoveiriiiiieiirieeic e - - -
Payment to escrow agent - refunded bonds.................. - - -
Operating transfers iN...........coccoceverenieninenencneene - 400 -
Operating transfers OUt.............cceveeveeeivieieeiiireeenans (146) - (10,598)
Transfers - In from component units..................... - - -
Transfers - Out to cOMPONENt UNILS.........cervvveririeriiereireeneeeeeenes - - -
Total Other Financing Sources (USES).........cccceeveevevveieeereeecereeeneenan. (146) 400 (10,598)
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES 4,362 259 (1,591)
FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING OF YEAR, AS RESTATED......... 5,658 1,030 5,311
FUND BALANCES, END OF YEAR $ 10,020 $ 1,289 $ 3,720
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SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

BUDGETED JACKSONVILLE
GENERAL PUBLIC EMERGENCY TAX INCREMENT CHILDREN'S
GOVERNMENT SAFETY 9-1-1 DISTRICTS COMMISSION
$ - $ - $ - $ 2,091 $ -
2,270 286 - - 34,858
10,414 - 3,600 - .
2,385 - - - -
404 11 81 - 100
3,525 - - 151 -
18,998 297 3,681 2,242 34,958
3,949 - - - .
882 - - - 19,952
7,639 454 2,774 - .
- - - 758 25,358
2,903 - - - -
15,373 454 2,774 758 45310
3,625 (157) 907 1,484 (10,352)
933 - - 2 14,139
(5,323) - - (2,530) (156)
(4,390) - - (2,528) 13,983
(765) (157) 907 (1,044) 3,631
17,446 442 2,935 2,395 3,145
$ 16,681 $ 285 $ 3,842 $ 1,351 $ 6,776

(continued)
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS (in thousands; continued)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2002

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
HOUSING
REHABILITATION
COMMUNITY AND HOME
DEVELOPMENT INVESTMENT AND JOB TRAINING MAINTENANCE,
BLOCK OPPORTUNITY PARTNERSHIP PARKS AND
GRANT GRANTS ACT GRANT RECREATION
REVENUE:
PrOPEITY tAXES......cvveeviieirrcircecereserecieeee et $ - $ - $ - $ -
Sales and tOULISt tAXES......e.eueveriirieiiireeiictee ettt - - - -
Intergovernmental..............ccocviiiiiiiniinini e 12,072 1,902 - -
Charges fOr SEIVICES.......coueiiuirinieieieeeeee e - - - 1,758
Fines and forfeitures...........coooeiiininnniicnecceceeees - - - -
Interest 15 49 12 136
OBheT.....iiiiiiiii et 1,185 100 - 132
Total REVENUE.........ooeviiiiiicccecece e 13,272 2,051 12 2,026
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
General government - - - -
Human services.........c.cccveininnenne - - - -
Public safety......c.ccoveiiiiiiiiiic e - - - -
Culture and recreation...............cceeeveeveieeieee e - - - 1,681
TranSpOrtation..........ccooerverieiiiiiie e - - - -
Economic environment 13,176 4,128 - -
Physical environment.............c.ccccooveniinincninenns - - - -
Capital OULIAY......c.ccorieieiiiiirieie e - - - -
Debt service:
Principal........ccoooooiiiiiiiiiii e - - - -
Interest on fiscal Charges..........ccoovveerveincincencee e - - - -
Total EXPEnditures........cccovvirinirienieieiiieie e 13176 4,128 - 1,681
EXCESS OF REVENUE OVER (UNDER)
EXPENDITURES 96 (2,077) 12 345
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Long-term debt iSSUEd.........ccueviviiiiiiieiciiceeeecee e - - - -
Payment to escrow agent - refunded bonds.............cccecereinnnnne - - - -
Operating transfers iN...........ccocooeoviiinniiniince e 75 - - 796
Operating transfers OUL............ccceveverieieienininieneseeee s - - - (260)
Transfers - In from component units...........ccccccevveievrieiiirennnne. - - - -
Transfers - Out to component Units..............cocevveeriereerierereenennan - - - -
Total Other Financing Sources (USES).........cccevevirveireecerieieeirenenne 75 - - 536
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES 171 (2,077) 12 881
FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING OF YEAR, AS RESTATED... 36 14,795 482 5,028
FUND BALANCES, END OF YEAR $ 207 $ 12,718 $ 494 $ 5,909
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SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

METROPOLITAN OTHER FEDERAL, STATE HOUSING BETTER NON-BUDGETED
PLANNING STATE AND INITIATIVE JACKSONVILLE GENERAL
ORGANIZATION LOCAL GRANTS PARTNERSHIP PLAN TRUST GOVERNMENT TOTAL

s - s - s - . s - $ 2,001

i ) i 55,324 - 66,408

1,028 19,299 7,463 - 238 83,460

- 35 - - 775 21,295

- - - - 136 2,521

- 195 112 59 86 1,584

- 168 - - 1,102 6,730

1,028 19,697 7,575 55,383 2,337 184,089
1,144 1,085 - - 708 7,016

- 6,868 - - 399 28,101

- 12,287 - - 1,062 24,216

- 2,264 - - 560 5,040

- - - - - 288

- 289 9,593 - 17 57,311

- - - - 268 5,384

1,144 22,793 9,593 - 3,014 127,356
(116) (3,096) (2,018) 55,383 (677) 56,733

136 5,779 - - 904 23,164
- 71) - (50,796) (665) (70,545)
: ! (317) - - (317)
136 5,708 (317) (50,796) 239 (47,698)

20 2,612 (2,335) 4,587 (438) 9,035

256 8,041 10,680 9,025 7,362 94,067

$ 276 $ 10,653 $ 8,345 $ 13,612 $ 6,924 $ 103,102

See accompanying independent auditors' report.

(continued)
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES,

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS (in thousands; continued)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2002

REVENUE:
Property taxes......ccocoiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiicicrc et
Sales and tOUTriSt tAXES........veiveeriiiniieeiieniie e
Intergovernmental...........ccccceveveiiiiiiniiiii
Charges for services....
Fines and forfeitures.........ccoovvereerieiieeiieccceeecceee

EXPENDITURES:
Current:
General ZOVErNMENL.........ccceiiiriiiiiiiiieciiicic e
HUMAN SEIVICES. . .iiitviieiiiieeiiieeeiiie et ereee e
Public safety........cocoviviiiiiiiiiic
Culture and recreation....

Transportation..........coceevvivecireiiiiiiinii e
Economic environment..........ccocceeeovieienneeniinieiieieicieeiniieinene
Physical environment
Capital OULIAY........ceirieiireiccc
Debt service:
Principal.......ccociiiiniciiiiiicc
Interest on fiscal charges..........ccccceviviiiiiiiiii

Total EXPenditures..........coooeveiiiiiiiiiiiiii i

EXCESS OF REVENUE OVER (UNDER)
EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Long-term debt iSSUEd.........cccoveiriviiinieiiiiiiiiiiiicccs
Payment to escrow agent - refunded bonds..........c.cccovvniinnns
Operating transfers in..........ccococeviiiiiiii
Operating transfers OUt............ooecvrieiiiicniiiiiiic
Transfers - In from component units...... e
Transfers - Out to component Units...........cocceeevvviiiiiiiiniiinnns

Total Other Financing Sources (USEs)..........cecvveivieriiniiiiniiiinnne

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES

FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING OF YEAR, AS RESTATED...

FUND BALANCES, END OF YEAR

DEBT SERVICE FUNDS
SPECIAL
BONDED DEBT-
BETTER OTHER
GENERAL SPECIAL  JACKSONVILLENON-BONDED
BONDED DEBT BONDED DEBT PLAN DEBT

OBLIGATIONS OBLIGATIONS OBLIGATIONSOBLIGATIONS TOTAL
$ $ - $ - $ - $ -
918 4,420 891 6,229

918 4,420 891 6,229

31,785 2,315 1,860 35,960

32,761 18,147 1,767 52,675

64,546 20,462 3,627 88,635

(63,628) (16,042) (2,736) (82,406)

203,220 - - 203,220

(123,854) - - (123,854)

64,096 14,117 2,815 81,028

- 9,004 - 9,004

143,462 23,121 2,815 169,398

79,834 7,079 79 86,992

47,241 42,761 37 90,039

$ $ 127,075 $ 49,840 $ 116 $ 177,031
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CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS

GRANT
PROJECTS

RIVER CITY
RENAISSANCE
PROJECT

TOTAL

PERMANENT
FUND

CEMETARY

MAINTENANCE

TRUST

TOTAL
NONMAJOR

GOVERNMENTAL

FUNDS

598

(477)

1,425

(477)

5,108

3,369

6,919

$ 4,631

$ 10,288

166

$ 170

$ 2,091
66,408
90,788
21,295

2,521
7,943
8,114

199,160

7,016
28,101
24,216
5,040
288
57,311
5,384

6,894

35,960
52,675

222,885
(23,725)

203,220
(123,854)
105,617
(70,545)
9,004
(317)

123,125
99,400
191,191

$ 290,591

See accompanying independent auditors' report.
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS (in thousands)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2001

CONCURRENCY MANAGEMENT

VARIANCE WITH
BUDGETED AMOUNTS FINAL BUDGET -
BUDGETARY POSITIVE
ORIGINAL FINAL ACTUAL ENCUMBRANCES ACTUAL (NEGATIVE)

REVENUE:

Charges for services . $ 265 $4,639 $4,713 $ - $4,713 $ 74

INtErest.....cooveveiiiiiiicirree e 45 45 213 - 213 168
Total Revenue.........cccccoveeeiinninnierenineeenne 310 4,684 4,926 - 4,926 242
EXPENDITURES:

Planning and development............ccocceuernenee. 3,737 1,980 53 31 84 1,896

Public WOTKS......c.ooviiiiiniiircceecene 869 6,964 365 680 1,045 5,919
Total EXpenditures............cococeereeeereennnsienenenens 4,606 8,944 418 711 1,129 5,919
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUE

OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES......... (4,296) (4,260) 4,508 (711) 3,797 6,161
OTHER FINANCING (USES):

Operating transfers out...........coccoeeveenincrienene (110) (146) (146) - (146) -
Total Other Financing (Uses).........cccccceerrunene (146) (146) (146) - (146) -
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES....... (4,442) (4,406) 4,362 (711) 3,651 6,161
FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING................... 5,658 5,658 5,658 - 5,658 -
FUND BALANCE, ENDING.......ccoceveuearsusee $ 1,216 $ 1,252 $ 10,020 ($711) $ 9,309 $ 6,161

See accompanying independent auditors' report.
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS (in thousands)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2001

AIR POLLUTION CONTROL AND MONITORING

VARIANCE WITH
BUDGETED AMOUNTS FINAL BUDGET -
BUDGETARY POSITIVE
ORIGINAL FINAL ACTUAL ENCUMBRANCES ACTUAL (NEGATIVE)
REVENUE:

Intergovernmental..........c..coovevencnninncnenes $ 2,009 $ 2,359 $ 2,044 $ - $ 2,044 ($ 315)

INEEIESt.. ..o 25 26 28 - 28 2
Total Revenue..........cocceeveiecieciniicecieieiesiene 2,034 2,385 2,072 - 2,072 (313)
EXPENDITURES:

Regulatory and Environmental...........c.c........ 2,577 2,839 2,213 42 2,255 584
Total Expenditures...........cccceveirniecinnniinnnnes 2,577 2,839 2,213 42 2,255 584
EXCESS OF REVENUE OVER (UNDER)

EXPENDITURES (543) (454) (141) (42) (183) 271
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES:

Operating transfers in...........c.cocoovevcecccennns 400 400 400 - 400 -
Total Other Financing Sources...........ccocccevennene 400 400 400 - 400 -
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES....... (143) (54) 259 (42) 217 271
FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING................... 887 1,030 1,030 - 1,030 -
FUND BALANCE, ENDING.......ccccoceuraerenese $ 744 $ 976 $ 1,289 ($ 42) $ 1,247 $ 271

See accompanying independent auditors' report.
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS (in thousands)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2001

SPORTS, CONVENTION AND TOURISM DEVELOPMENT

VARIANCE WITH
BUDGETED AMOUNTS FINAL BUDGET -
BUDGETARY POSITIVE
ORIGINAL FINAL ACTUAL ENCUMBRANCES  ACTUAL (NEGATIVE)

REVENUE:

Sales and tourist taXes.........ccoeerveireerienieenne $ 10,900 $ 10,900 $11,084 $ - $ 11,084 $ 184

Intergovernmental.......... 2,000 2,000 2,000 - 2,000 -

Interest.........ccoevuenee 150 159 83 - 83 (76)

OFhET...o.eveeieiecc e - 354 367 - 367 13
Total REVENUE......c.ooveviveeiicinceceeceeenes 13,050 13,413 13,534 - 13,534 121
EXPENDITURES:

City Council......ccoeueueueremeucciiccccceceeee 7,579 6,789 3,992 1,145 5,137 1,652

Neighborhoods . 310 669 390 - 390 279

Sports COmMPIEX.......ccovvererreerereeierrrcccne 205 205 145 60 205 -
Total Expenditures............cccoveveerncircerennenenn. 8,094 7,663 4,527 1,205 5,732 1,931
EXCESS OF REVENUE OVER (UNDER)

EXPENDITURES 4,956 5,750 9,007 (1,205) 7,802 2,052
OTHER FINANCING (USES):

Operating transfers OUt............ccceevricccacne (9,814) (10,558) (10,598) - (10,598) 40
Total Other Financing (Uses)......c.ccccoevevvvueuennne (9,814) (10,558) (10,598) - (10,598) 40
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES....... (4,858) (4,808) (1,591) (1,205) (2,796) 2,092
FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING................... 5,311 5,311 5,311 - 5,311 -
FUND BALANCE, ENDING.......ccccvcevrucnenas $ 453 $ 503 $ 3,720 ($ 1,205) $ 2515 $ 2,092

See accompanying independent auditors' report.
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS (in thousands)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2001

BUDGETED GENERAL GOVERNMENT

VARIANCE WITH
BUDGETED AMOUNTS FINAL BUDGET -

BUDGETARY POSITIVE
ORIGINAL FINAL ACTUAL ENCUMBRANCES  ACTUAL (NEGATIVE)

REVENUE:
Intergovernmental.............ccoeeeenicnccnnenns $ 2,447 $ 4,384 $ 2,270 $ - $ 2,270 ($ 2,114)
Charges for services....... 8,717 9,068 10,414 - 10,414 1,346
Fines and forfeitures...... 1,873 1,873 2,385 - 2,385 512
Interest........cccovveenennne 252 259 404 - 404 145
Other ..o 691 691 3,525 - 3,525 2,834
Total REVENUE.......cooveiieieeinieeirrieeieeeeeeen 13,980 16,275 18,998 - 18,998 2,723
EXPENDITURES:
COUTTS...eeeereeeieeeereeteesee e sere e eeee e e eenreenee 4125 4,093 3,627 37 3,664 429
Community SErvices........cocoveeveeirerrrueereenens 830 1,335 1,016 - 1,016 319
Neighborhoods...........ccccccvvviiiiiiincinnnn 44 125 90 3 93 32
Public Works........cccoovvveieennne 9,308 10,537 8,328 912 9,240 1,297
Regulatory and Environmental.... 2,285 4,365 2,214 15 2,229 2,136
Tax ColleCtOr......ceovrveieeeeeceeeeeeeerieeeeene 207 207 98 11 109 98
Total EXpenditures...........cceveeeeeeeeeeeciecneeecreenene 16,799 20,662 15,373 978 16,351 4,311
EXCESS OF REVENUE OVER (UNDER)
EXPENDITURES (2,819) (4,387) 3,625 (978) 2,647 7,034
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Operating transfers in...........ccoecoeveecvuerreenee 933 933 933 - 933 -
Operating transfers out..........cocoeeecerrrcrneneene (5,100) (5,285) (5,323) - (5,323) 38
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses).............. (4,167) (4,352) (4,390) - (4,390) 38
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES....... (6,986) (8,739) (765) (978) (1,743) 7,072
FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING................... 17,446 17,446 17,446 - 17,446 -
FUND BALANCE, ENDING.......ccccoeeeruerruens $ 10,460 $ 8,707 $ 16,681 ($ 978) $ 15,703 $7,072

See accompanying independent auditors' report.
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS (in thousands)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2001

PUBLIC SAFETY
VARIANCE WITH
BUDGETED AMOUNTS FINAL BUDGET -
BUDGETARY POSITIVE
ORIGINAL FINAL ACTUAL ENCUMBRANCES @ ACTUAL (NEGATIVE)
REVENUE:

Intergovernmental...........cocoeverririeeerccninens $ 282 $ 286 $ 286 $ - $ 286 $ -

Interest.....ccoooinereniiiic e - 48 11 - 11 (37)
TOtal REVENIUE. .....coooeeeeeeeeereeeeeeeereees e 282 334 297 - 297 (37)
EXPENDITURES:

Fire and ReSCUE...........cccovrmviciviniicicicreinns 232 535 454 67 521 14
Total EXpenditures...........coocoriececennninnnenene 232 535 454 67 521 14
EXCESS OF REVENUE (UNDER)

EXPENDITURES 50 (201) (157) (67) (224) (23)
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES....... 50 (201) (157) (67) (224) (23)
FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING................... 442 442 442 - 442 -
FUND BALANCE, ENDING.......ccccoeverurnenes $ 492 $ 241 $ 285 ($ 67) $ 218 ($ 23)

See accompanying independent auditors' report.
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS (in thousands)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2001

EMERGENCY 9-1-1

VARIANCE WITH
BUDGETED AMOUNTS FINAL BUDGET -
BUDGETARY POSITIVE
ORIGINAL FINAL ACTUAL ENCUMBRANCES  ACTUAL (NEGATIVE)
REVENUE:

Charges for Services.........ccoeveueurvreveueeeereeenen $ 3,300 $3,903 $ 3,600 $ - $ 3,600 (3 303)

INEEIESE.c.cvveneeireeeieeeee e 36 36 81 - 81 45
Total REVENUE.......c.coovueuiriiiciiiciceicnae 3,336 3,939 3,681 - 3,681 (258)
EXPENDITURES:

Office of the Sheriff..........cccccovvnnvninnee 4,745 6,419 2,774 149 2,923 3,496
Total Expenditures..........cccccecuremeenucrcuencecucnnne 4,745 6,419 2,774 149 2,923 3,496
EXCESS OF REVENUE OVER (UNDER)

EXPENDITURES (1,409) (2,480) 907 (149) 758 3,238
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES....... (1,409) (2,480) 907 (149) 758 3,238
FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING................... 2,935 2,935 2,935 - 2,935 -
FUND BALANCE, ENDING........cccccvverrnnec $ 1,526 $ 455 $ 3,842 ($ 149) $ 3,693 $ 3,238

See accompanying independent auditors' report.
P!
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS (in thousands)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2001

TAX INCREMENT DISTRICTS

VARIANCE WITH
BUDGETED AMOUNTS FINAL BUDGET -

BUDGETARY POSITIVE
ORIGINAL FINAL ACTUAL ENCUMBRANCES ACTUAL (NEGATIVE)

REVENUE:

Property taxes........coocriiiiiniiiiiciinie $ 6,532 $ 6,532 $ 2,091 $ - $ 2,091 ($ 4,441)

Other.ceei e - - 151 - 151 151
Total REVENUE.......covveeiriiicinieieeecneeeenee 6,532 6,532 2,242 - 2,242 (4,290)
EXPENDITURES:

Administration and Finance............c.cc......... 2,179 2,279 658 450 1,108 1,171

Jacksonville Economic

Development Commission..........c.ccceueueee 1,684 1,684 100 296 396 1,288

Total Expenditures...........ocecervrueeeriererinnenecrenenes 3,863 3,963 758 746 1,504 2,459
EXCESS OF REVENUE OVER

EXPENDITURES 2,669 2,569 1,484 (746) 738 (1,831)

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):

Operating transfers in............c.cccoovvcnicnnnn - - 2 - 2 2
Operating transfers out............c.cccccveierccnnen. (2,771) (2,671) (2,530) - (2,530) (141)
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses).............. (2,771) (2,671) (2,528) - (2,528) (139)
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES....... (102) (102) (1,044) (746) (1,790) (1,970)
FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING................... 2,395 2,395 2,395 - 2,395 -
FUND BALANCE, ENDING.......ccccevusururanane $ 2,293 $ 2293 $ 1,351 ($ 746) $ 605 ($ 1,970)

See accompanying independent auditors' report.
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS (in thousands)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2001

JACKSONVILLE CHILDREN'S COMMISSION

VARIANCE WITH
BUDGETED AMOUNTS FINAL BUDGET -
BUDGETARY POSITIVE
ORIGINAL FINAL ACTUAL ENCUMBRANCES ACTUAL (NEGATIVE)
REVENUE:

Intergovernmental............cccovveririninioiiciccanne $ 34,128 $ 37,465 $ 34,858 $ - $ 34,858 ($2,607)

INtErest...cvveeeieeie e (75) (64) 100 - 100 164
Total REVenue.........cooeveeverieiieeiieieieieee e 34,053 37,401 34,958 - 34,958 (2,443)
EXPENDITURES:

Jacksonville Children's Commission.............. 49,233 49,233 45,310 1,201 46,511 2,722
Total EXpenditures...........cocovevenevervecnnnieecnennes 49,233 49,233 45,310 1,201 46,511 2,722
EXCESS OF REVENUE (UNDER)

EXPENDITURES (15,180) (11,832) (10,352) (1,201) (11,553) 279
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):

Operating transfers in..........coocvveevveicneinnnes 14,139 14,139 14,139 - 14,139 -

Operating transfers out (156) (156) (156) - (156) -
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses).............. 13,983 13,983 13,983 - 13,983 -
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES....... (1,197) 2,151 3,631 (1,201) 2,430 279
FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING.........c.o.... 3,145 3,145 3,145 - 3,145 -
FUND BALANCE, ENDING.......ccccoueusreresnns $ 1,948 $ 5,296 $ 6,776 ($ 1,201) $ 5,575 $ 279

See accompanying independent auditors' report.
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NON-MAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS:

Enterprise Funds account for operations that are financed and operated in a manner similar
to private business enterprises and where the costs of providing goods or services to the
general public are recovered primarily through user charges; or where the city has decided
that determination of net income is appropriate for capital maintenance, public policy,
management control, accountability or other purposes. Individual non-major enterprise
funds are described below.

The Motor Vehicle Inspection Fund accounts for the operations of the City's motor vehicle
inspection stations.

The Mayport Ferry Fund accounts for the operation of the City’s ferry across the St. Johns
River at Mayport.



CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

- NONMAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS (in thousands)
SEPTEMBER 30, 2002

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS:
Equity in cash and investments............ccccocevvenrcrinenennenns
Receivables (net, where applicable, of
allowances for uncollectibles):

ACCOUNES. ..ottt ettt
Due from other governments.............ceceeeereneneenieneennene
Inventories
Prepaid expenses and other assets...........cccccoeeviiiiiicnns

Total Current ASSELS........ceueueuierieireeiirieirieeirire e
CAPITAL ASSETS:
Land and work in progress..........coceeeeverenieninereenieenenienee
Other capital assets, net of depreciation............c..c.ccoeeeeee.

Total Capital ASSets - Net........cooerreenieineiniecenereneeenene

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES

CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities.............cccevrenenne
Accrued compensated absences, current portion
Deferred reVenue.........o.ooviieieeiiiiiieeneeeee e

NONCURRENT LIABILITIES:
Accrued compensated abSences...........cceeververrereeriiniienienns

Total Noncurrent Liabilities..............cccoovvvivviiiieiiiciecee e,

TOTAL LIABILITIES

NET ASSETS:
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt......................
UNIestricted.......coovviiiiieeieie e

TOTAL NET ASSETS

TOTAL
MOTOR NONMAJOR
VEHICLE MAYPORT ENTERPRISE
INSPECTION FERRY FUNDS

$ 334 $ 229 $ 563

90 2 92

203 - 203

3 - 3

- 100 100

630 331 961

32 610 642

47 4,198 4,245

79 4,808 4,887

709 5,139 5,848

183 230 413

28 - 28

- 23 23

211 253 464

12 - 12

12 - 12

223 253 476

79 4,808 4,887

407 78 485

$ 486 $ 4,886 $ 5,372

See accompanying independent auditors' report.
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENSES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS

NONMAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS (in thousands)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2002

TOTAL
MOTOR NONMAJOR
VEHICLE MAYPORT ENTERPRISE
INSPECTION FERRY FUNDS
OPERATING REVENUE:

Charges fOr SEIVICES......c.eriuiiiiiiiieiiieeree e $ 548 $ 1,042 $ 1,590
Total Operating REVENUE...........cccoviiiniiininiiiceeeee e 548 1,042 1,590
OPERATING EXPENSES:

Personal SEIVICES........civiiueiiriiniiriiieieiceieer e 375 758 1,133

Supplies and materials............ccceeirieierireeee e 13 131 144

Central SEIVICES.....c.cuiieiiuiieiiiiciinieiee ettt 24 - 24

Other services and Charges..........c.cooeveeeeriiiinciese e 277 684 961

Depreciation and amortization 17 298 315
Total Operating EXPeNSes..........covevieieiiiriiniriniieseeieee e evenevs e 706 1,871 2,577
OPERATING LOSS (158) (829) (987)
NON-OPERATING REVENUE (EXPENSES):

INTEreSt FEVENUE.......oiviiiiiiiiicieieriietc et 10 12 22

ORI, ettt (5) - (5)
Total Non-Operating Revenue (EXpenses)...........ccccoevrerenennieeenennnn. 5 12 17
LOSS BEFORE CONTRIBUTIONS AND TRANSFERS................ (153) (817) (970)
Capital contribUtioNS.........oceveueririiiiieiricecc s - 5 5
Operating transfers iN..........covieieirnniie e - 823 823
CHANGES IN NET ASSETS....c.ooiiiiiiececeeeeee e (153) 11 (142)
TOTAL NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR........cccccovvirennenne 639 4,875 5,514
TOTAL NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR $ 486 $ 4,886 $ 5372

See accompanying independent auditors' report.
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
NONMAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS (in thousands)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2002

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
RECEIPLS 10 CUSLOMETS. .....cvvviniiiitesietieeict ettt e
Payments t0 SUPPLIETS.......c.ooiiiiiiiiieee e
Payments t0 €MPIOYEES.......c.ccuveiiriiiiiriiiieieite ettt

Other receipts (expenses)
NET CASH USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES..........cccoovvrivinnnne

NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Cash received through operating transfers from other funds...........c.ccccoenenee.

NET CASH PROVIDED BY NONCAPITAL FINANCING
ACTIVITIES......coooiiiiiitreceeeett ettt

CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Additions to property, plant and equipment.............cccooceeeeernieieireirieieea

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment.............cocccervrererrreennnnnn.

NET CASH (USED IN) CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES......c.ccooiiiiiiiiceeensceereereee s

INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

Interest and dividends on inVEStMENLS..........covueerieirieirieineeeeee et
NET CASH PROVIDED BY INVESTING ACTIVITIES.........cccooeeninieinnne
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS................
Cash and cash equivalents at OCtober 1..........cococuvvirieineienieee e

Cash and cash equivalents at September 30...........ccoovivieiinniinneeeee

TOTAL

MOTOR NONMAJOR

VEHICLE MAYPORT  ENTERPRISE
INSPECTION FERRY FUNDS

$ 255 $ 1,039 $1,294

(148) (737) (885)

(360) (758) (1,118)

(5) 5 -

(258) (451) (709)

- 823 823

- 823 823

(17) (298) (315)

15 73 88

$_2 ($ 225) ($ 227)

$ 10 $ 12 $ 22

10 12 22

(250) 159 (91)

584 70 654

$ 334 $ 229 $ 563
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RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING (LOSS) TO NET CASH USED IN:
OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
OPERATING INCOME (LOSS).....cctoiiiuiiimeeirieeneminernieienennenes e snesesseseseseesaenes
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss)
to net cash (used in) operating activities:
Depreciation and amortiZation.............ccccoceeererineninieineeeeeeese e
Other non-operating revenue/(EXpenses).........cccvveerrreiinierinninnsesennnnes
Change in assets and liabilities:
Decrease (increase) in receivables and other current assets, net.............cccceeveeeene
(Increase) in due from other gOVErNMmENnts...........ccecevireriiiiiiiciiiiciicees
(Increase) in prepaid expenses
Increase in accounts payable and accrued EXPenses.........cceverueevrerivereeneenenieenneas
(Decrease) in deferred reVENUE.........cc.cvviviriineniniiicicte e
Increase in accrued compensated abSENCes...........ccveveireriiiiininicieieceee

TOTAL ADJUSTMENTS

NET CASH (USED IN)
OPERATING ACTIVITIES....... ooveeeeeeeeeeeeeeseesseseesseeeesesseesseeeeesesseeens

TOTAL

MOTOR NONMAJOR
VEHICLE MAYPORT  ENTERPRISE
INSPECTION FERRY FUNDS
($ 158) ($ 829) ($ 987)
17 298 315
(5) 5 -
(90) 24 (66)
(203) (203)
- (20) (20)
166 78 244
- 7 (7)
15 - 15
(100) 378 278
($ 258) ($ 451) ($ 709)

See accompanying independent auditors' report.
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INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

Internal Service Funds account for the financing of goods and services provided by one
City department or agency to other City departments or agencies on a cost-reimbursement
basis. Descriptions of individual funds in this category are presented below.

The Fleet Management Fund accounts for the operation of the City's fleet of police cars,
fire and rescue vehicles, public works and public utilities trucks, and many other automotive
on and off road type equipment.

The Copy Center Fund accounts for the operation of the centralized copy center, mail and
messenger service functions for City agencies.

The Information Technologies Fund accounts for centralized information management and
computer services that includes data processing, central telephone and network
communications, and other voice/data electronic media services.

The Legal Fund accounts for centralized legal services to all City departments and agencies
through the Office of General Counsel.

The Self-Insurance Fund accounts for centralized risk management and safety and loss
prevention services to all City departments self-insured for workers' compensation, public,
and general and vehicle liability.

The Group Health Fund accounts for employee health and life insurance premiums and
manages third party health care contracts to all City employees.

The Insured Programs Fund accounts for providing all forms of property and casualty,
commercial liability and other types of coverage to City departments.



CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS (in thousands)
SEPTEMBER 30, 2002

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS:

Equity in cash and investments...........ccccoveeeenreeneeneeneeeene
Accounts receivable...................... e
Other receivables.........ccccoovevernircicncennns

Due from other funds...........ccooeiniieniiniinicee e
Due from independent agencies and other governments....
Advances to other funds.........coccoveenennienininecen
Inventories.........coocevvverevrnvnececnnnen
Prepaid expenses and other assets............cccereeevrieiierinienininnen,

Total CUITeNt ASSELS.......ccviivieieeieieeeie et e

CAPITAL ASSETS AND INFRASTRUCTURE (Note 1)
Land and work in progress.........coeveenrevioerinneennenneesesenns
Other capital assets, net of depreciation

Total Capital ASSets, Net.........cooveveieieieieieeeeeeee e

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES

CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities..........c.cccovvireirneenen.
Due to other funds
Due to independent agencies and other governments................
Capitalized lease obligations, current portion
Deferred revenue...........cccoovvveirieiniennieiieeeeeeenn
Accrued compensated absences, current portion.......................
Total Current Liabilities.........cccceviririeeininvneeeeeeceeeceeens

NONCURRENT LIABILITIES, net of current portion:
Estimated liability for self-insured losses
Accrued compensated absences.....................

Capitalized lease obligations.............c.ccceverierrnennnnnn.

Total Long-Term Liabilities..........ccccoceriieriiiiniiienieieecce

TOTAL LIABILITIES

NET ASSETS:
Invested in capital assets
Unrestricted (defiCit).........oevinviniiiniiiieereeeeee e

TOTAL NET ASSETS

FLEET COPY INFORMATION

MANAGEMENT CENTER TECHNOLOGIES
$ 63,575 $ 482 $ 17,861
8 - 6
1,129 - 221
1,048 - 358
65,760 482 18,446
36 - 22
42,354 - 21,276
42,390 - 21,298
108,150 482 39,744
1,434 36 1,296
- - 3,252
773 20 865
2,207 56 5,413
115 26 213
- - 15,192
115 26 15,405
2,322 82 20,818
42,390 - 2,854
63,438 400 16,072
$ 105,828 $ 400 $ 18,926
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LEGAL

$ 2,852

10
388

3,250

38
38

3,288

1,153

38

2,097

$ 2,135

SELF-

INSURANCE

$ 45,641
127

3,974
1,339
12,593

63,674

63,679

1,182

16

i
1,229

53,587
53,591

54,820

8,854

$ 8,859

GROUP
HEALTH

$ 4426

4,511

23
23

4,534

3,925

23

23

3,948

23
563

$ 586

INSURED
PROGRAMS TOTAL
$ - $ 134,837
- 188
56 56
1,364 5,362
- 3,101
- 12,593
- 1,406
2,059 2,059
3,479 159,602
- 58
77 63,773
77 63,831
3,556 223,433
83 8,264
2,444 2,444
- 16
- 3,252
269 269
28 2,239
2824 16,484
- 53,587
6 710
- 15,192
6 69,489
2,830 85,973
77 45,387
649 92,073
__ 876 __8 137,460

See accompanying independent auditors' report.
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENSES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS (in thousands)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2002

OPERATING REVENUE:

Total Operating REVENUE.........c.ccveeieriieieiieieniiie et

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Personal SEIVICES. ......ueuiriiiiiiiieieieiieiiete et
Supplies and materials..........cccooviiiiiiiiiniii e
Central services
Other services and charges
DEPIECIAtION. .....eiuiiiiiiiieiterieriie ettt
Court reporter services...
Claims and losses
Insurance premiums and participant dividends

Total Operating Expenses

OPERATING INCOME (LOSS)

NON-OPERATING REVENUE (EXPENSES):
Interest revenue

INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE CONTRIBUTIONS AND
OPERATING TRANSFERS

Capital CONtrIDULIONS. .......ccveiiiiiiiiicieiee e
Operating transfers in..........
Operating transfers out

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR

NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR

FLEET

MANAGEMENT

$ 32,225
5,430
47

37,702

36,889

813

1,464
553
2,017

2,830

2,923

5,753

100,075

_8 105828

COPY
CENTER

$ 1,074
3

1,077

198
459

984

93

(54)
(53)

40

40

360

$ 400

INFORMATION
TECHNOLOGIES

$ 27,475
2,451
88

30,014

8,390
1,273
1,361
16,136
3,010

17
30,187
(173)
378
(1,172)
(794)
(967)
141
104
(920)
(1,642)
20,568

$ 18,926
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SELF-

LEGAL INSURANCE
$ 5,892 $ 15,773
2,086 5,669
5 253
7,983 21,695
4,653 549
100 16
469 1,244
1,315 3,259
14 2

25 -

- 12,079

1 1,699
6,577 18,848
1,406 2,847
59 1,494
(293) (546)
(234) 948
1,172 3,795
9 3

- 1,072
(1,850) (7,097)
(669) (2,227)
2,804 11,086
$ 2,135 $ 8859

GROUP INSURED

HEALTH PROGRAMS TOTALS
$ 43,603 $ 5,480 $ 131,522
- - 15,639

11 - 404
43614 5,480 147,565
667 410 22,484

35 15 11,388

376 42 4310

335 609 26,461

13 60 17,544

- - 25

- - 12,079

41,802 6,179 49,737
43,228 7,315 144,028
386 (1,835) 3,537

92 22 3,510
(375) 486 (1,401)
(283) 508 2,109
103 (1,327) 5,646

- 4 157

45 28 4,172
(400) (1,300) (11,567)
(252) (2,595) (1,592)

838 3,321 139,052

$ 586 $ 726 $ 137,460

See accompanying independent auditors' report.
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

ALL INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS (in thousands)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2002

FLEET COPY INFORMATION
MANAGEMENT CENTER TECHNOLOGIES
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Receipts from CUSLOMETS...........ciiiiiieiieietieie ettt ettt $ 37,773 $ 1,080 $ 30,042
Payments to suppliers (14,338) (777) (18,217)
Payments t0 EMPLOYEES. ....c..ovuiviieriiiiiietieie sttt nne e (7,698) (213) (8,404)
Internal activity- payments to other funds...........cocevvvierenienieneneeee e - - -
Other receipts 553 (54) (1,031)
Other operating cash PAYMENLS.........ccovveeieriieieriereee e nes (7) - 4
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES................ 16,283 36 2,394
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Cash received through operating transfers from other funds..........ccccocevvevnninncnnne 2,923 - 104
Cash payments through operating transfers to other funds............c.cocvviiiinininnnns - - (920)
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN)
NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES........cccooiiiiiiniiiceeeeeee e 2,923 - (816)
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Additions to property, plant and €qUIPMENt..........cccoeveieinireeineeinceeee e (19,408) - (18,040)
Additions to contributed capital ASSELS..........cccerueriiiriiriieiieierieneee e - - -
Increase in capitalized lease obligations...........coccoveveiiievnniniiciine e - - 2,713
Principal paid on long-term obligations..............cceeirieirnreiieniencinccnere e - - 13,860
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) CAPITAL AND
RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES.......coiiiieeeeeeeeseeseeie e (19,408) - (1,467)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from sales of inVEStMENtS..........ooverieieiiieiiiric e
Interest and DivIdends..........c..ooiiiiiiiiiiiicec et 1,464 1 378
NET CASH PROVIDED BY
INVESTING ACTIVITIES.. ..ottt 1,464 1 378
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS ..ottt sttt 1,262 37 489
Cash and cash equivalents at October 1...........ccoccovveiiiirieiiiiiiiccce e 62,313 445 17,372
Cash and cash equivalents at September 30...........cccooereriiirininieeeeee e $ 63,575 $ 482 $ 17,861
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LEGAL

$ 7,977
(1,615)
(4,578)

(282)

1,507

(1,850)

(1,850)

(14)

(14)

59

59

(298)

3,150

$ 2,852

SELF-

INSURANCE

$ 21,121
(5,109)
(542)

(546)
(16,268)

(1,344)
1,072

(7,097)

(6,025)

@

1,494
1,494

(5,874)
51,515

$ 45,641

See accompanying independent auditors' report.

GROUP
HEALTH

$ 43,615
(41,870)
(667)

(375)

703

45

(400)

(355)

(an

an

92
92

429

3,997

$ 4,426

(continued)
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INSURED
PROGRAMS

$ 3,422
(6,968)
(404)
2,444
486
(1,095)

(2,115)

28

(1,300)

(1,272)

“

22

22

(3,365)

3,365

TOTALS

$ 145,030
(88,894)
(22,506)

2,444
(1,249)

(17,361)

17,464

4,172

(11,567)

(7,395)

(37,479)
7
2,713

13,860

(20,899)

3,510

3,510

(7,320)

142,157

$ 134,837



CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

ALL INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS (in thousands; continued)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2002

FLEET COPY INFORMATION
MANAGEMENT CENTER TECHNOLOGIES
RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Operating iNCOME (10SS) .....veveuirveiiriereiinirieienr ettt $ 813 $ 93 ($ 173)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss)
to net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization. .............ccecerevuereinencnieieireee e 14,445 - 3,010
Other non-operating revenue/(EXPEnSEs)......c..evveuerurereeeeerieeeieersreseeeeeneeeeeeens 553 (54) (1,031)
Change in assets and liabilities:
Decrease in receivables and other current assets, NEt..........ccccceervvriierieereerieeeneens - - -
Decrease (increase) in due from other funds..........c.ccoooiiiiiiniiniiininiee @) - 4
Decrease (increase) in due from independent agencies and other governments...... 71 3 28
Decrease (inCrease) in iNVENLOTIES. ...........cvreirierireireininreiereenreenreneene e eeeeereeenes (24) - 6
(Increase) in Prepaid EXPENSES......coeveuiriiriieuiriene ettt - - -
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and
ACCTUEA EXPEIISES. .. euvierenreeiierrinteieeteenteestesseentessesseesaenteaseessessaesseeneesseensenseensesseens 513 9 564
Increase in due to other funds..........ooeiveiiiiniiiic e - - -
Increase (decrease) in compensated absences... (81) (15) (14)
Increase in deferred revVenUE. ...........ooeeviiiiiiiiinincc e - - -
(Decrease) in liability for self-insured I0SSES.........ccvvvverieriienieieiieiiesieie e - - -
TOTAL ADJUSTMENTS. ...ttt 15,470 (57) 2,567
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN)
OPERATING ACTIVITIES.....cccooiiiiniirrccee et $ 16,283 $ 36 $ 2,394
NONCASH INVESTING, CAPITAL AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Change in the fair value of iInVEStMENtS..........ooiiiiiineniiie e $ 74 $ 1 $ 22
TOTAL NONCASH INVESTING, CAPITAL AND
FINANCING ACTIVITIES ...ttt e $ 74 $ 1 $ 22
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SELF-
LEGAL INSURANCE
$ 1,406 $ 2,847
14 2
(282) (546)
1 18
5 (496)
@ (1,082)
295 1,109
75 7
- (3,203)
101 (4,191)
$ 1,507 ($ 1,344)
$ 2 $ 29
$ 2 $ 29

GROUP
HEALTH
$ 386
13
(375)

23

(22)

678

317

$ 703
$ 6
$ 6

INSURED
PROGRAMS

($ 1,835)

60
486

(1,364)
(2,059)
(123)
2,444
269

(280)

($2,115)

¢ 9

¢ 9

TOTALS

$ 3,537

17,544
(1,249)

43
(1,858)
(1,009)

(18)
(2,059)

3,045

2,444
(22)

269

(3,203)

13,927

$ 17,464

$ 125

$ 125

See accompanying independent auditors' report.

-179 -



(This page is intentionally left blank.)



FIDUCIARY FUNDS

Fiduciary Funds account for assets held by the City in a trustee capacity or as an agent for
individuals, private organizations, other governmental units and/or other funds. Below are
descriptions of the generic fund types within this category and specific funds within each
fund type.

PENSION TRUST FUNDS are funds administered by independent boards for which the
City performs a fiduciary role under a defined benefit program those retirement funds for
which the participant's retirement annuity is based on a statutory formula utilizing such
factors as age, average salary, length of service and others. The City has two pension trust
funds as described below.

The General Employees Pension Trust Fund includes resources accumulated to
pay present and future retirement annuities to eligible employees of the City except
for employees of the Office of the Sheriff and City Department of Fire and Rescue.

The Police and Fire Pension Trust Fund accounts for a single employer,
contributory defined benefit plan for City police officers and firefighters.

PRIVATE PURPOSE TRUST FUND is used to report all trust arrangements, other than
those properly reported in pension trust funds, under which principal and income benefit
individuals. The City reports its James Brady Disabled Scholarship, Michael Jackson Music
Scholarship, and J.B. Smith Memorial Scholarship funds as private purpose trusts.

AGENCY FUNDS are funds which hold monies in an agency capacity for various
government units, individuals or funds. Individual fund descriptions follow.

The Treasurer Fund is the clearing fund used to account for all cash received and
disbursed on behalf of the City's payroll.

The Tax Collector Fund accounts for assets and liabilities from the collection of all
taxes, revenues and other cash amounts on behalf of the City and various of its
agencies, authorities, organizations, individuals, and funds.

The Clerk of the Circuit Court Fund accounts for assets and liabilities from
revenues collected on behalf of the State and City by the Court System for various
judgements, fines, bonds, fees and licenses, and other miscellaneous amounts.
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Plat Deposits Fund accounts for the deposits placed with the City as collateral to
insure the completion of improvements in the event of default by a developer or
failure by the developer to complete improvements within the time specified by the
ordinance approving the Final Plat.

The Duval County School Readiness Coalition Fund accounts for the assets and
liabilities from revenues collected on behalf of the Duval County School Readiness
Coalition from the State, pursuant to Florida Statute 411.01, to provide
comprehensive programs of readiness services to children.

The Florida Retirement System Fund accounts for a multiple-employer, cost-
sharing defined benefit plan for certain City employees who elected to remain with
the State of Florida Retirement System.



CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS -
PENSION TRUST FUNDS (in thousands)

SEPTEMBER 30, 2002
PENSION TRUST FUNDS
GENERAL POLICE
EMPLOYEES AND FIRE
PENSION PLAN PENSION PLAN TOTAL
ASSETS
Equity in cash and investments. ..........cc.coccoevincneniiiiciicceineee $ 84,654 $ 31,179 $ 115,833

Receivables (net, where applicable, of
allowances for uncollectible):

Interest and dividends............cceevviivieieiicie e 5,672 4,846 10,518
ACCOUNTS.....ooiiiiiiiiicie et e e e et sae e - 45 45
Total receivables..........c..ccviiiiiiiiiiieeee e 5,672 4,891 10,563

Investments, at fair value:
U.S. Government obligations.............cccovvvviiineinncnecinenne, 286,110 185,331 471,441
Municipal Bonds......c.cccccoviviinveiiiinnne e 1,114 - 1,114
Domestic corporate bonds.... et 231,634 125,908 357,542

Commercial paper...... BTN - 5,996 5,996
Domestic stocks......... 560,603 325,519 886,122
International StOCKS.......cccovvviiiiiiiiiee e 127,658 31,560 159,218
Real EState.......ccocouiiviiiiiiiiiieicctccscc e - 7,250 7,250
Total INVEStMENLS. .......ooviiiiiieriieieieie e 1,207,119 681,564 1,888,683
Capital assets:
Other capital assets, net of depreciation............ccoeeveeevenineennnne. 47 271 318
Net capital @SSELS.....cveiviiieiieeierierii et e 47 271 318
TOTAL ASSETS 1,297,492 717,905 2,015,397
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities.............ccccecvevenienne 2,614 694 3,308
Current portion of long-term liabilities 3 28 31
Accrued Compensated AbSENCES..........ccoeceviririneniineeiinrene 23 19 42
Due to Drop Participants............ccceoeeivenenencieieieeneecses - 77,538 77,538
TOTAL LIABILITIES 2,640 78,279 80,919
NET ASSETS HELD IN TRUST FOR PENSION BENEFITS....  $ 1,294,852 $ 639,626 $ 1,934,478

(See schedule of funding progress on pages 138 - 139.)

See accompanying independent auditors' report. - 184 -



CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS

PENSION TRUST FUNDS (in thousands)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2002

ADDITIONS

Contributions:
EMPIOYET....iiiiiiiiiiiiieee e
Plan Member
Total contributions.............cceevieeiuieeieecieeee e

Other additions:
State insurance contributions............cccceveeeviieieviieesiee e
Court fines & penalties
Parking revenues
MIiSCEIlANEOUS......cuveevvivieeiricie ettt
Gain/Loss on Sale of Fixed ASSets........cccceeevvieeiieeinineennnnen.
Total other additions.............cccoeereieeeiieieeccecce e,

Investment income:
Net depreciation
in fair value of Investments.........c...coeevvveeiveeeviceecieeereens
INtEIESt....oieiiiiee e e
Dividends.........ccoceovveiiiiiiiiiee e
Rebate of Commissions............cceeeeevvveeveeennenns
Rental Income..........cccocoveevreninns
Earnings other Miscellaneous...... TP
Total investment inCOME...........c..cevveerveeenren.
Less InVeStmMent EXPENSE........cveverveerueneerienverrenrenseeeesenens
Less rental €Xpense..........cccveverieieiiieiiiiieieeeeeeeeee
Net investment iNCOME..........c..covueeereeeiieeiieeeieiee e

TOTAL ADDITIONS

DEDUCTIONS

Benefits payments...........cccoovivieiiiiiiiiiiiiic
Refunds of contributions.............ccceevveiiiiviiviiciiiccccccee
Operating transfers OUL............oooiiiieniiininiic e
Administrative expenses

TOTAL DEDUCTIONS

Net change in net assets

NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR

NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR

PENSION TRUST FUNDS
GENERAL POLICE
EMPLOYEES AND FIRE
PENSION PENSION
PLAN PLAN TOTAL
¢ 277 $ 9,89 $ 9619
16,407 8,117 24,524
16,130 18,013 34,143
. 5,222 5,222
- 3,117 3,117
- 155 155
- 89 89
- 104 104
: 8,687 8,687
(111,027) (71,069) (182,096)
37,011 18,769 55,780
8,436 6,845 15,281
132 594 726
. 493 493
492 545 1,037
(64,956) (43,823) (108,779)
(3,901) (3,458) (7,359)
- (135) (135)
(68,857) (47,416) (116,273)
(52,727) (20,716) (73,443)
75,703 64,958 140,661
1,932 424 2,356
- 123 123
1,667 1,815 3,482
79,302 67,320 146,622
(132,029) (88,036) (220,065)
1,426,881 727,662 2,154,543

$ 1,294,852

$ 639,626

$ 1,934,478

See accompanying independent auditors' report.
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

AGENCY FUNDS (in thousands)

SEPTEMBER 30, 2002
DUVAL CO
CLERK OF SCHOOL FLORIDA
TAX THE CIRCUIT PLAT READINESSRETIREMENT
TREASURER COLLECTOR COURT DEPOSITS COALITION SYSTEM TOTAL

ASSETS:

Equity in cash and investments............ccccocviienenecnennens $ 47 $ 11,709 $ 16,730 $398 $ 40 $ 35 $ 28,959

Receivables (net, where applicable, of

allowances for uncollectibles):

ACCOUNTS. ...couiiiiiieiiieicetete ettt 88 3,176 113 - - - 3,377
TOTAL ASSETS $ 135 $ 14,885 $ 16,843 $ 398 $ 40 $ 35 $ 32,336
LIABILITIES:

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities...........c.ccccoenenine $ 135 $ - $ - $ - $ 40 $ - $ 175
Due to independent agencies and other governments....... - 4,529 3,979 - - 35 8,543
Due to individuals............ - 323 1,788 - - - 2,111
Deposits held in escrow - 10,033 11,076 398 - - 21,507
TOTAL LIABILITIES $ 135 $ 14,885 $ 16,843 $ 398 $ 40 $ 35 $ 32,336

See accompanying independent auditors' report.
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COMPONENT UNITS

Component Units are legally separate organizations for which the primary government is
financially accountable. Financial accountability is defined as appointment of a voting majority of
the component unit's governing body with certain exceptions, and either (a) the ability to impose will
by the primary government, or (b) the potential for the organization to provide financial benefits to,
or impose financial burdens on the primary government. The City's non-major component units
follow:

NON-MAJOR COMPONENT UNITS:

The Duval County Housing Finance Authority provides money for loans and technical
assistance for construction and rehabilitation of housing to alleviate a shortage of housing
and capital for investment in housing in Jacksonville.

The Jacksonville Economic Development Commission provides a focal point for
economic development in the City that results in a centralization of economic development
programs.

The Downtown Vision, Inc. provides community enhancements, such as, security,
hospitality and clean teams, within the downtown area.



CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA

COMBINING STATEMENTS OF NET ASSETS

NON-MAJOR DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS (in thousands)

SEPTEMBER 30, 2002
DUVAL COUNTY JACKSONVILLE
HOUSING ECONOMIC
FINANCE DEVELOPMENT DOWNTOWN
AUTHORITY COMMISSION VISION, INC. TOTALS
ASSETS:
Equity in pooled cash and investments..............c..ccuenue.. $ 9,068 $ 10,563 $ - $ 19,631
Cash and equivalents..........ccccoocvereeriiieneninieenceenee - - 727 727
Receivables (net, where applicable, of
allowances for uncollectibles):
Accounts and interest...........cooeveeveeniinnieniennens - - 537 537
MOTtAZES...cveeeeeiieeiieeee et 7,627 - - 7,527

Due from other governments............cceceecverercenennennnne - 1,211 - 1,211
Prepaid expenses and other assets - - 6 6
Capital aSSets, NEt.........cocoviiveririinieieireree e 34 30 87 151
TOTAL ASSETS 16,629 11,804 1,357 29,790
LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities...................... 161 906 36 1,103
TOTAL LIABILITIES 161 906 36 1,103
NET ASSETS:

Investment in capital assets.........c.cocceveceririncnennnn. 34 30 - 64

Unrestricted......uoeveriieiiecieeie e 16,434 10,868 1,321 28,623
TOTAL NET ASSETS $ 16,468 $ 10,898 $1,321 $ 28,687

See accompanying independent auditors' report.
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA

COMBINING STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES

NON-MAJOR DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS (in thousands)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2002

NON-MAJOR COMPONENT UNITS NET REVENUE

PROGRAM REVENUES (EXPENSE) AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS:
DUVAL COUNTY JACKSONVILLE
CHARGES CAPITAL HOUSING ECONOMIC
FOR GRANTS AND FINANCE DEVELOPMENT DOWNTOWN
EXPENSES SERVICES CONTRIBUTIONS AUTHORITY COMMISSION VISION, INC.
NON-MAJOR COMPONENT UNITS:
Housing finance............ccccocoveeevevvoeerennn. $ 1,332 $ - $ - ($ 1,332) $ - $ -
Economic development............cccooevieeennne. 7,113 3 - - (7,110) -
Downtown development................ccooeveeeee 756 153 - - 74
Total non-major component units................... $ 9,280 $ 759 $ 153 (1,332) (7,110) 74
General revenues:
Other non-tax general revenues................... (38) 2,271 -
Unrestricted earnings on investments.......... 525 106 16
Payments (to) from primary government..... 242 13,357 -
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS.....ccccoiiiieiene (603) 8,624 90
BEGINNING NET ASSETS......cccoooevviiiiens 17,071 2,274 1,231
ENDING NET ASSETS.....ccccecvvrennnnrercnscnssens $ 16,468 $ 10,898 $ 1,321

See accompanying independent auditors' report.
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SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION

The Supplemental Information provided herein contains schedules
of the Debt Service Funds bonded indebtedness and debt service
requirements detail.



CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA
SCHEDULE OF LONG-TERM BONDED INDEBTEDNESS (in thousands)
SEPTEMBER 30, 2002

GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS PAYABLE
FROM AD VALOREM TAXES:

Duval County Certificates of Indebtedness of 1972.......c..cccocveiinininninincncneeeee

TOTAL PAYABLE FROM AD VALOREM TAXES

SPECIAL OBLIGATION BONDS PAYABLE FROM SPECIFIC REVENUE
SOURCES OTHER THAN AD VALOREM TAXES:

Excise Taxes Revenue Bonds, Series 1993.........cccccvevieeciiveniiiceniieens e ———
Excise Taxes Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 1993A......
Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 1994...........ccccovvivvrneninnnn,
Sunshine State Governmental Finance Commission Bonds, Series 1994.....
Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 1995.............ccccoviciiinnnee
Sales Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 1995........ccccceevvvvennen.
Excise Taxes Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 1995A
Sunshine State Governmental Finance Commission Bonds, Series 1995A.................
Sunshine State Governmental Finance Commission Bonds, Series 1995B (AMT).....
Sales Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 1996..........c..covevvieieieeeeiriireeie et eeesreeve e
Excise Taxes Revenue Bonds, Series 1996B
Excise Taxes Revenue Bonds, Series 1996C
Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 1997.........cccocvevieieiiiiicieiiceceeeens
Capital Project Revenue Bonds, Series 1997-1........ccccoovevinieeiienieieeceeevee
Capital Project Revenue Bonds, Series 1997-2.......c..ccovvvvnecnnenne
Capital Improvement and Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 1998...
Excise Taxes Revenue Refunding and Capital Improvement Bonds, Series 1999A....
Local Government Sales Tax Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2001.......................
Excise Taxes Refunding Bonds, Series 2001 A...........covvriveeeiineecireeseeeenens
Excise Taxes Revenue Bonds, Series 2001B........cccoovvveiiiviecieieiieeeeveeeee
Excise Taxes Revenue Refunding and Improvement Bonds, Series 2002A................
Guaranteed Entitlement Revenue Refunding and Improvement Bonds, Series 2002..
Capital Improvement and Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2002............ccccovvnnnnnen.

TOTAL PAYABLE FROM SPECIFIC REVENUE SOURCES

Transportation Revenue Bonds, Series 2001.........c.ccvoevevivivieeeiieeieeciieeeeeeeveene
Better Jacksonville Sales Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2001....

TOTAL PAYABLE FROM OTHER SPECIFIC REVENUE SOURCES.........c.ceu....

TOTAL GENERAL AND SPECIAL OBLIGATION BONDS

(1) The above rates represent assumed rates on variable rate debt for coverage analysis or other purposes.
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INTEREST PAYMENT ISSUE
RATES DATES DATE
450-525%  4/1;10/ 10/01/72
500 -6.30 %  4/1; 10/1 02/23/93
470 -5375%  4/1; 10/1 08/11/93
505 -5.875%  4/1: 10/ 08/17/94

9.20 % (1) Monthly 08/24/94
500 -5.875%  4/1;10/1 03/14/95
500 -6.00 %  4/1;10/1 06/28/95
4.875-5125%  4/1; 10/1 01/04/96
475 -565 %  4/1;10/1 10/05/95
460 -575 %  4/1; 10/1 10/05/95
435 -550 %  4/1;10/1 01/07/97
475 -4.90 %  4/1;10/1 11/05/96
435 -485 %  4/1;10/1 11/05/96
420 -525 %  4/1; 10/1 03/11/97

7.81 % (1) Monthly 01/22/98

8.89 % (1) Monthly 11/04/99
3.90 -5.00 %  4/1;10/1 08/26/98
330 -5.00 %  4/1; 101 03/09/99
3.00 -5.00 %  4/1: 1011 04/24/01

500 %  4/1; 10/1 07/03/01
4.00 -5.125%  4/1; 10/1 04/01/02
425 -550 %  4/1; 10/1 07/03/02
3.00 -5.375%  4/1;10/1 07/03/02
2.00 -5.00 %  4/1;10/1 09/09/02
3.00 -525 %  4/1;10/1 06/05/01
3.00 -550 %  4/1;10/1 06/05/01



FINAL

MATURITY
DATE AUTHORIZED ISSUED RETIRED OUTSTANDING
10/01/02 $ 9,370 $ 9,370 $ 8,765 $ 605
9,370 9,370 8,765 605
10/01/20 43,605 43,605 1,120 42,485
10/01/09 35,085 35,085 12,975 22,110
10/01/19 74,995 74,995 32,145 42,850
09/15/06 10,075 9,825 6,010 3,815
10/01/25 27,855 27,855 1,510 26,345
10/01/05 100,000 100,000 85,675 14,325
10/01/09 7,580 7,580 - 7,580
10/01/11 9,050 9,050 - 9,050
10/01/15 15,945 15,945 4,455 11,490
10/01/18 65,640 65,640 37,780 27,860
10/01/02 57,150 57,150 53,790 3,360
10/01/06 4,055 4,055 1,625 2,430
10/01/25 8,285 8,285 635 7,650
10/01/17 54,000 30,000 2,265 27,735
10/01/22 45,000 45,000 1,500 43,500
10/01/25 37,310 37,310 1,165 36,145
10/01/19 75,890 75,890 11,220 64,670
10/01/18 127,000 103,725 - 103,645
10/01/09 49,000 42,485 - 42,485
10/01/32 49,000 46,735 - 46,735
10/01/13 65,000 56,685 - 56,685
10/01/32 125,000 115,265 - 115,265
10/01/30 130,000 123,225 - 123,225
1,216,520 1,135,390 253,950 881,440
10/01/31 750,000 179,280 - 179,280
10/01/30 1,500,000 218,430 2,315 216,115
2,250,000 397,710 2,315 395,395
$ 3,475,890 $ 1,542,470 $ 265,030 $ 1,277,440

(continued)

Unaudited - see accompanying independent auditors' report.
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA

SCHEDULE OF LONG-TERM BONDED INDEBTEDNESS (in thousands; continued)

SEPTEMBER 30, 2002

PAYABLE FROM ENTERPRISE FUNDS:

Excise Taxes Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 1993A
Excise Taxes Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 1995A
Excise Taxes Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 1996A

Excise Taxes Revenue Refunding and Capital Improvement Bonds, Series 1999B....

TOTAL PAYABLE FROM ENTERPRISE FUNDS

PAYABLE FROM GENERAL REVENUE:

U.S. Government Guaranteed Note Payable, Series 1994A (Vistakon)...........ccceveennene

U.S. Government Guaranteed Note Payable, Series 1995 (Coach)
U.S. Government Guaranteed Note Payable, Series 1996 (Sally Beauty)
U.S. Government Guaranteed Note Payable, Series 1996-B (Hilton)
U.S. Government Guaranteed Note Payable, Series 1997 (LaVilla)

U.S. Government Guaranteed Note Payable, Series 1997 (HTV Associates)..............

U.S. Government Guaranteed Note Payable, Series 1997 (Armor Holdings)

U.S. Government Guaranteed Note Payable, Series 1997 (Hampton Inns)..................

TOTAL PAYABLE FROM GENERAL REVENUE

TOTAL BONDED INDEBTEDNESS

INTEREST PAYMENT ISSUE
RATES DATES DATE
4.70 - 5.375% 4/1; 101 08/11/93
4.25-5.125% 4/1; 101 01/04/96
4.00-5.00 % 4/1; 101 02/28/96
420-575 % 4/1; 101 09/23/99
6.44 -6.53 % 2/1; 811 03/02/94
8.24-9.03 % 2/1; 8/1 02/01/95
6.23-6.88 % 2/1; 8/1 12/18/96
6.23-7.03 % 2/1; 81 11/20/96
6.23-7.08 % 2/1; 811 02/19/97
6.23-6.78 % 2/1; 811 04/02/97
6.23-7.08 % 2/1; 81 10/28/97
6.23-7.03 % 2/1; 811 10/28/97
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FINAL

MATURITY

DATE

10/01/11
10/01/09
10/01/16
10/01/16

08/01/03
08/01/14
08/01/12
08/01/15
08/01/16
08/01/10
08/01/16
08/01/15

AUTHORIZED

$ 14,780
12,270
19,965

40,835

87,850

10,000
3,845
1,065
2,850
1,700

700
775
550

21,485

$ 3,585,225

ISSUED

40,835

21,485

$ 1,651,805

14,780
12,270
19,965

87,850

10,000
3,845
1,065
2,850
1,700

700
775
550

RETIRED

$ 4,300
130
1,295

2,455

8,180

8,550
230
330
270
620
215

55
50

10,320

$ 283,530

OUTSTANDING

$ 10,480
12,140
18,670
38,380

79,670

1,450
3,615
735
2,580
1,080
485
720
500

11,165

$ 1,368,275

Unaudited - see accompanying independent auditors' report.
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA

SCHEDULE OF DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS
COMPARED TO CASH IN SINKING FUND
LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2002

General Obligation Bonds Payable from Ad Valorem Taxes:
Duval County Certificates of Indebtedness of 1972.........cccceoiiiiiiininininenceee

Special Obligation Bonds Payable from Specific Revenue Source other than Ad Valorem Taxes:

Excise Taxes Revenue Bonds, Series 1993........ccceviriiiieniinieieneeeee e

Excise Taxes Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 1993 A.........ccoviviiiciiininicnceineee

Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 1994
Sunshine State Governmental Finance Commission Bonds, Series 199%4................
Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 1995..........ccocoiiiiiii
Sales Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 1995.........cccoovvvveevennnee.

Excise Taxes Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 1995A

Sunshine State Governmental Finance Commission Bonds, Series 1995A.........cccccoeevvevieennnnne

Sunshine State Governmental Finance Commission Bonds, Series 1995B (AMT).

Sales Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 1996.........cccovvveiieiiienienieie et

Excise Taxes Revenue Bonds, Series 1996B
Excise Taxes Revenue Bonds, Series 1996C
Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 1997..........ccceveinviniinivcncnniinnene
Capital Project Revenue Bonds, Series 1997-1
Capital Project Revenue Bonds, Series 1997-2

Capital Improvement and Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 1998.............ccccceeee
Excise Taxes Revenue Refunding and Capital Improvement Bonds, Series 1999A

Local Government Sales Tax Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2001

Excise Taxes Refunding Bonds, Series 2001 A........c..ccooiiiieineiniiieicene e

Excise Taxes Revenue Bonds, Series 2001B.........ccccoovvevieiiiecieiiieieeeieeeee e

Excise Taxes Revenue Refunding and Improvement Bonds, Series 2002A..........c.cocoverevevenienne
Guaranteed Entitlement Revenue Refunding and Improvement Bonds, Series 2002
Capital Improvement and Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2002..........cccceceveirenininnicninenennne

PRINCIPAL
OUTSTANDING

$ 605,000

605,000

42,485,140
22,110,000
42,850,000
3,815,000
26,345,000
14,325,000
7,580,000
9,050,000
11,490,000
27,860,000
3,360,000
2,430,000
7,650,000
27,735,000
43,500,000
36,145,000
64,670,000
103,645,000
42,485,000
46,735,000
56,685,000
115,265,000
123,225,000

881,440,140

Special Obligation Bonds Payable from Other Specific Revenue Source other than Ad Valorem Taxes:

Transportation Revenue Bonds, Series 2001.........ccccoevevierieniieieneseeieeeeeeeieeiee

Better Jacksonville Sales Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2001............ccooeevevvvvveeinnnnn.

Payable from Enterprise Funds:
Excise Taxes Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 1993A..........ccccoovviveiiicneniennne.
Excise Taxes Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 1995A....

Other Long - Term Obligations:
U.S. Government Guaranteed Note Payable, Series 1994A (Vistakon)...................
U.S. Government Guaranteed Note Payable, Series 1995 (Coach)..........cccecevnnnee.

U.S. Government Guaranteed Note Payable, Series 1996 (Sally Beauty)................

U.S. Government Guaranteed Note Payable, Series 1996-B (Hilton)

U.S. Government Guaranteed Note Payable, Series 1997 (LaVilla)........................

U.S. Government Guaranteed Note Payable, Series 1997 (HTV Associaties).........
U.S. Government Guaranteed Note Payable, Series 1997 (Armor Holdings)....

U.S. Government Guaranteed Note Payable, Series 1997 (Hampton Inns)..............

179,280,000
216,115,000

395,395,000

10,480,000
12,140,000
18,670,000
38,380,000

79,670,000

1,450,000
3,615,000
735,000
2,580,000
1,080,000
485,000
720,000
500,000

11,165,000




TOTAL
INTEREST
TO

MATURITY

$ 13,613

13,613

50,570,643
4,922,826
26,982,587
889,640
23,346,615
1,645,050
2,412,491
2,902,081
6,166,900
14,989,412
82,320
294,937
5,699,644
20,589,231
57,848,032
34,035,721
17,845,270
56,388,923
10,578,625
47,199,358
17,981,594
109,572,562
109,499,348

622,443,810

211,660,911
203,100,867

414,761,778

2,973,551
3,380,083
7,831,844
17,354,203

31,539,681

94,685
2,610,977
282,167
1,495,463
693,755
161,481
454,312
296,849
6,089,689

$ 1,074,848,571

TOTAL
DEBT SERVICE
REQUIREMENTS
TO MATURITY

$ 618,613

618,613

93,055,783
27,032,826
69,832,587
4,704,640
49,691,615
15,970,050
9,992,491
11,952,081
17,656,900
42,849,412
3,442,320
2,724,937
13,349,644
48,324,231
101,348,032
70,180,721
82,515,270
160,033,923
53,063,625
93,934,358
74,666,594
224,837,562
232,724,348

1,503,883,950

390,940,911
419,215,867

810,156,778

13,453,551
15,520,083
26,501,844
55,734,203

111,209,681

1,544,685
6,225,977
1,017,167
4,075,463
1,773,755

646,481
1,174,312

796,849

17,254,689

$ 2,443,123,711

CASH
IN
SINKING
FUND

1,351,973
3,979,020
1,969,426
209,959
1,130,403
3,685,250
906,608
239,979
1,338,200
2,936,507
3,442,320
511,575
369,726
1,231,116
848,803
1,000,871
8,570,420
2,763,744
1,062,125
5,682,087
708,669
1,332,531
7,766,706

53,038,018

4,557,137
8,745,633

13,302,770

1,149,881
2,791,678

3,941,559

$ 70,282,346

NET
DEBT

$ 618,613

618,613

91,703,811
23,053,806
67,863,161
4,494,681
48,561,212
12,284,800
9,085,883
11,712,102
16,318,700
39,912,905
2,213,362
12,979,918
47,093,115
100,499,229
69,179,850
73,944,850
157,270,179
52,001,500
88,252,271
73,957,925
223,505,031
224,957,642

1,450,845,932

386,383,774
410,470,235

796,854,009

13,453,551
15,520,083
25,351,963
52,942,526

107,268,122

1,544,685
6,225,977
1,017,167
4,075,463
1,773,755

646,481
1,174,312

796,849

17,254,689

$ 2,372,841,365

Unaudited - see accompanying independent auditors' report.
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA

SCHEDULE OF DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS TO MATURITY -
GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS

PAYABLE FROM AD VALOREM TAXES

SEPTEMBER 30, 2002
Purpose: Construction
of Police
Administration
Complex
Duval County
Certificates of
Indebtedness of 1972 Total
Fiscal Principal
Year Principal Interest and Interest
2003 $ 605,000 $ 13,613 $ 618,613
$ 605,000 $ 13,613 $ 618,613
Interest Rates: 4.50 - 5.25%

Unaudited - see accompanying independent auditors' report.
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA

SCHEDULE OF DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS TO MATURITY -

SPECIAL OBLIGATION BONDS PAYABLE FROM SPECIFIC REVENUE SOURCES
OTHER THAN AD VALOREM TAXES

SEPTEMBER 30, 2002
Purpose: Development of Third To Refund Excise Superstructure
Terminal for Operation by the Taxes Revenue Refunding Renovation of the
Jacksonville Port Authority Bonds, Series 1987A ALLTEL Stadium
Excise Taxes Excise Taxes Revenue
Revenue Bonds, Refunding Bonds, Capital Improvement
Series 1993 Series 1993A Revenue Bonds, Series 1994
Fiscal
Year Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest
2003 $ 350,000 $ 1,994,845 $ 2,315,000 $ 1,080,948 $ 785,000 $ 2,348,639
2004 225,000 1,979,783 2,430,000 965,853 860,000 2,305,850
2005 260,000 1,966,800 2,545,000 842,693 940,000 2,258,365
2006 300,000 1,951,530 2,670,000 710,315 1,025,000 2,205,780
2007 355,000 1,933,340 2,805,000 567,931 1,625,000 2,133,418
2008 395,000 1,912,142 2,950,000 415,018 1,755,000 2,039,590
2009 445,000 1,887,980 3,115,000 253,968 1,890,000 1,936,585
2010 190,465 2,209,610 3,280,000 86,100 2,040,000 1,823,560
2011 1,076,112 3,978,963 2,200,000 1,699,775
2012 1,061,197 4,148,878 2,370,000 1,569,975
2013 1,352,429 5,042,646 2,545,000 1,434,812
2014 1,313,363 5,276,712 2,730,000 1,289,750
2015 1,288,056 5,507,019 2,930,000 1,134,100
2016 1,263,518 5,746,557 3,135,000 967,313
2017 5,360,000 1,720,975 3,615,000 781,687
2018 5,900,000 1,397,250 3,865,000 575,988
2019 6,480,000 1,041,325 4,130,000 356,125
2020 7,100,000 650,900 4,410,000 121,275
2021 7,770,000 223,388
2022
2023
2024
2025
2026
2027
2028
2029
2030
2031
2032
2033

$ 42,485,140 $ 50,570,643 $ 22,110,000 $ 4,922,826 $ 42,850,000 $ 26,982,587

Interest Rates: 5.00 - 6.30% 4.70-5.375% 5.05 - 5.875%
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Construction of the Superstructure River City
Automated Skyway Express Renovation of the Renaissance
River Crossing Leg ALLTEL Stadium Projects

Sunshine State

Governmental Finance Capital Improvement Sales Tax Revenue
Commission Bonds, Series 1994 Revenue Bonds, Series 1995 Bonds, Series 1995
Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest

$ 915,000 $ 350,980 $ 370,000 $ 1,511,371 $ 3,275,000 $ 722,250
940,000 266,800 415,000 1,491,250 3,470,000 519,900
965,000 180,320 460,000 1,468,604 3,680,000 305,400
995,000 91,540 510,000 1,443,256 3,900,000 97,500

560,000 1,415,029

610,000 1,383,719

670,000 1,348,824

735,000 1,309,819

805,000 1,266,296

880,000 1,218,274

955,000 1,165,738

1,040,000 1,107,731

1,130,000 1,043,988

1,230,000 974,663

1,320,000 899,756

1,345,000 821,472

1,370,000 741,719

1,400,000 660,350

1,430,000 577,219

1,455,000 492,472

1,485,000 406,109

1,510,000 318,131

2,210,000 208,856

2,450,000 71,969
$ 3,815,000 $ 889,640 $ 26,345,000 $ 23,346,615 $ 14,325,000 $ 1,645,050

Variable Rate 5.00 - 5.875% 5.00 - 6.00%

Assumed at 9.20%
(continued)
Unaudited - see accompanying independent auditors' report.
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CITY OF JACKSONYVILLE, FLORIDA

SCHEDULE OF DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS TO MATURITY -

SPECIAL OBLIGATION BONDS PAYABLE FROM SPECIFIC REVENUE SOURCES
OTHER THAN AD VALOREM TAXES (continued)

SEPTEMBER 30, 2002
Purpose: To Partially Refund Closure of Expansion of Trail
Excise Taxes Revenue North Landfill Ridge Landfill

Refunding Bonds, Series 1988A

Excise Taxes Revenue Sunshine State Governmental Sunshine State Governmental
Refunding Bonds, Finance Commission Finance Commission
Series 1995A Bonds, Series 1995A Bonds, Series 1995B (AMT)
Fiscal
Year Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest
2003 $ 379,181 $ 479,958 $ 1,020,000 $ 612,175
2004 379,181 479,957 1,070,000 562,538
2005 379,182 $ 670,000 464,045 450,000 525,875
2006 379,181 1,180,000 415,683 514,625
2007 379,181 1,240,000 352,232 514,625
2008 $ 2,850,000 309,713 1,310,000 287,828 514,625
2009 2,995,000 163,497 1,380,000 217,335 514,625
2010 1,735,000 43,375 1,460,000 140,097 514,625
2011 1,545,000 57,460 514,625
2012 265,000 7,486 1,370,000 475,237
2013 1,735,000 385,969
2014 1,835,000 283,331
2015 1,945,000 174,656
2016 2,065,000 59,369
2017
2018
2019
2020
2021
2022
2023
2024
2025
2026
2027
2028
2029
2030
2031
2032
2033
$ 7,580,000 $2,412,491 $ 9,050,000 $ 2,902,081 $ 11,490,000 $ 6,166,900
Interest Rates: 4.875-5.125% 4.75 - 5.65% 4.60-5.75%
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River City
Renaissance
Projects

Sales Tax Revenue

Port Improvements
by the Jacksonville
Port Authority

Excise Taxes
Revenue Bonds

Jacksonville
Beach Downtown
Revitalization

Excise Taxes
Revenue Bonds

Bonds, Series 1996 Series 1996B Series 1996C
Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest
$ 2,250,000 $ 1,323,514 $ 3,360,000 $ 82,320 $ 455,000 $ 103,026
2,350,000 1,221,139 470,000 82,210
2,455,000 1,111,799 485,000 60,241
2,570,000 994,939 505,000 36,971
934,544 515,000 12,489
934,544
934,544
934,543
934,544
934,543
934,544
934,543
934,544
4,225,000 826,278
4,440,000 604,237
4,665,000 370,922
4,905,000 125,691
$ 27,860,000 $ 14,989,412 $ 3,360,000 $ 82,320 $ 2,430,000 $ 294,937
4.35-5.50% 4.75-4.90% 4.35-4.85%

(continued)

Unaudited - see accompanying independent auditors' report.
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA

SCHEDULE OF DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS TO MATURITY -

SPECIAL OBLIGATION BONDS PAYABLE FROM SPECIFIC REVENUE SOURCES
OTHER THAN AD VALOREM TAXES (continued)

SEPTEMBER 30, 2002
Purpose: Superstructure Drainage and Drainage and
Renovation of the General Capital General Capital
ALLTEL Stadium Programs Programs
Capital Project Capital Project
Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds Revenue Bonds
Revenue Bonds, Series 1997 Series 1997 - 1 Series 1997 - 2
Fiscal
Year Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest
2003 $ 175,000 $ 385,690 $ 1,200,000 $ 2,166,103 $ 800,000 $ 3,867,150
2004 180,000 377,968 1,255,000 2,072,383 800,000 3,796,030
2005 190,000 369,827 1,305,000 1,976,186 900,000 3,728,340
2006 200,000 361,148 1,365,000 1,870,723 900,000 3,641,544
2007 210,000 351,817 1,430,000 1,765,841 1,000,000 3,564,890
2008 215,000 341,935 1,495,000 1,654,158 1,000,000 3,475,990
2009 230,000 331,363 1,565,000 1,538,814 1,100,000 3,390,209
2010 240,000 319,962 1,640,000 1,413,869 1,100,000 3,286,271
2011 250,000 307,833 1,720,000 1,287,088 1,200,000 3,191,510
2012 265,000 294,825 1,805,000 1,152,756 1,200,000 3,084,830
2013 275,000 280,986 1,895,000 1,012,717 1,300,000 2,980,892
2014 290,000 266,365 1,995,000 862,991 1,400,000 2,859,944
2015 305,000 250,819 2,095,000 707,977 1,400,000 2,738,120
2016 320,000 234,412 2,205,000 544,357 1,500,000 2,613,660
2017 340,000 217,087 2,320,000 372,489 1,600,000 2,482,594
2018 355,000 198,844 2,445,000 190,779 1,700,000 2,335,917
2019 375,000 179,681 4,400,000 2,186,940
2020 395,000 159,469 4,600,000 1,795,780
2021 415,000 138,206 4,900,000 1,388,117
2022 435,000 115,894 5,200,000 950,354
2023 460,000 92,400 5,500,000 488,950
2024 485,000 67,594
2025 510,000 41,475
2026 535,000 14,044
2027
2028
2029
2030
2031
2032
2033
$ 7,650,000 $ 5,699,644 $ 27,735,000 $ 20,589,231 $ 43,500,000 $ 57,848,032
Interest Rates: 4.20-5.25% Variable Rate Variable Rate
Assumed at 7.81% Assumed at 8.89%
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To Refund a Portion To Refund a Portion To Refund a Portion
of Capital Improvement of Excise Taxes Revenue Refunding of Sales Tax Revenue Bonds,
Revenue Bonds, Series 1994 Bonds, Series 1988A and 1991 and Series 1995 and 1996
Preservation and Recreational Programs

Capital Improvement Excise Taxes Revenue Local Government Sales Tax
and Refunding Revenue Refunding and Capital Improvement Refunding Revenue Bonds,
Bonds, Series 1998 Bonds, Series 1999A Series 2001
Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest
$ 145,000 $ 1,708,842 $ 7,185,000 $ 2,645,102 $ 155,000 $ 5,215,066
155,000 1,702,843 7,435,000 2,389,252 160,000 5,209,843
160,000 1,696,462 7,690,000 2,066,890 165,000 5,204,073
165,000 1,689,718 8,075,000 1,721,215 175,000 5,197,954
175,000 1,682,577 7,385,000 1,383,165 6,965,000 5,064,210
180,000 1,675,078 3,670,000 1,125,140 7,230,000 4,743,829
190,000 1,667,167 3,815,000 975,440 7,600,000 4,402,041
195,000 1,658,793 1,410,000 870,940 7,905,000 4,087,001
205,000 1,649,890 1,465,000 811,608 8,230,000 3,751,130
215,000 1,640,332 1,530,000 747,965 8,580,000 3,342,350
225,000 1,630,100 1,590,000 680,473 9,050,000 2,857,525
235,000 1,619,231 1,665,000 608,030 9,545,000 2,346,162
245,000 1,607,525 1,740,000 530,548 10,075,000 1,806,613
260,000 1,594,900 1,820,000 447,758 6,405,000 1,353,413
270,000 1,581,650 1,905,000 359,744 6,760,000 991,375
285,000 1,567,775 1,995,000 264,625 7,125,000 609,538
300,000 1,553,150 2,095,000 162,375 7,520,000 206,800
315,000 1,538,169 2,200,000 55,000
5,035,000 1,411,106
5,330,000 1,164,937
5,640,000 904,400
5,970,000 628,663
5,640,000 352,925
4,610,000 109,488
$ 36,145,000 $ 34,035,721 $ 64,670,000 $ 17,845,270 $ 103,645,000 $ 56,388,923
3.90 - 5.00% 3.30-5.00% 3.00 - 5.00%

(continued)
Unaudited - see accompanying independent auditors' report.
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA

SCHEDULE OF DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS TO MATURITY -

SPECIAL OBLIGATION BONDS PAYABLE FROM SPECIFIC REVENUE SOURCES
OTHER THAN AD VALOREM TAXES (continued)

SEPTEMBER 30, 2002
Purpose: To Refund a Portion To Fund a Redevelopment To Refund Excise
Excise Taxes Revenue  Agreement with Trilegacy Group, LLC  Taxes Revenue Refunding
Bonds, Series 1996B Riverfront Development Bonds, Series 1992 and
Jacksonville Shipyards Animal Care and Control Facility
Excise Taxes Revenue
Excise Taxes Refunding Excise Taxes Revenue Refunding and Improvement
Bonds, Series 2001A Bonds, Series 2001B Bonds, Series 2002A
Fiscal
Year Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest
2003 $ 2,124,250 $ 2,300,773 $ 2,158,219
2004 $ 4,025,000 2,023,625 2,300,772 $ 4,605,000 2,783,975
2005 4,615,000 1,807,625 2,300,773 4,845,000 2,547,725
2006 5,260,000 1,560,750 $ 850,000 2,283,772 5,080,000 2,299,600
2007 5,950,000 1,280,500 880,000 2,249,173 5,335,000 2,039,225
2008 6,710,000 964,000 915,000 2,213,272 5,605,000 1,758,719
2009 7,530,000 608,000 955,000 2,175,395 5,895,000 1,486,319
2010 8,395,000 209,875 995,000 2,134,674 6,155,000 1,199,481
2011 1,035,000 2,091,277 6,465,000 868,206
2012 1,080,000 2,045,265 6,805,000 511,362
2013 1,130,000 1,996,080 2,865,000 245,438
2014 1,180,000 1,943,515 3,030,000 83,325
2015 1,235,000 1,887,353
2016 1,290,000 1,827,370
2017 1,355,000 1,763,212
2018 1,420,000 1,694,515
2019 1,490,000 1,621,765
2020 1,565,000 1,544,608
2021 1,645,000 1,462,547
2022 1,730,000 1,376,062
2023 1,815,000 1,285,222
2024 1,910,000 1,189,769
2025 2,010,000 1,089,319
2026 2,110,000 983,744
2027 2,220,000 872,787
2028 2,335,000 756,066
2029 2,450,000 633,450
2030 2,580,000 504,556
2031 2,710,000 369,000
2032 2,850,000 226,525
2033 2,995,000 76,747
$ 42,485,000 $ 10,578,625 $ 46,735,000 $ 47,199,358 $ 56,685,000 $ 17,981,594
Interest Rates: 5.00% 4.000% - 5.125% 4.250% - 5.500%

-208 -



To Refund Guaranteed Capital Improvements at Alltel Stadium

Entitlement Revenue Refunding and to Crossover Refund Capital Improv
Bonds, Series 1992A and Revenue Bonds, Series 1994 and Series 1995
Various Other Projects

Capital Improvement and

Guaranteed Entitlement Revenue Refunding Revenue Bonds,
Refunding and Improvement Series 2002A, Crossover Series 2002B
Bonds, Series 2002 and Crossover Series 2002C Total
Principal

Principal Interest Principal Interest and Interest
$ 4,058,162 $ 3,234,437 $ 65,608,001
$ 2,000,000 5,421,263 5,764,342 76,941,757
2,060,000 5,360,362 5,764,343 77,225,930
2,120,000 5,297,663 $ 1,340,000 5,750,942 79,701,349
2,185,000 5,233,087 3,290,000 5,698,474 80,460,748
2,250,000 5,165,156 3,380,000 5,613,775 79,048,231
2,320,000 5,089,400 3,460,000 5,516,245 79,592,751
2,400,000 5,006,800 3,570,000 5,406,332 76,101,192
2,485,000 4,918,206 3,685,000 5,266,508 64,961,031
2,580,000 4,821,625 3,845,000 5,098,230 64,945,130
2,680,000 4,718,038 4,025,000 4,920,208 61,908,595
2,785,000 4,608,737 4,205,000 4,726,987 62,065,717
2,895,000 4,493,328 4,410,000 4,518,344 59,027,990
3,015,000 4,352,591 4,620,000 4,290,556 59,186,715
3,180,000 4,186,100 5,110,000 4,042,000 57,577,906
3,350,000 4,010,606 5,360,000 3,780,250 57,628,481
3,530,000 3,825,706 5,625,000 3,505,625 57,726,902
3,720,000 3,630,863 5,915,000 3,217,125 44,993,539
3,920,000 3,425,537 1,505,000 3,031,625 38,277,745
4,130,000 3,216,938 1,520,000 2,956,000 30,072,657
4,335,000 3,005,312 1,540,000 2,879,500 29,836,893
4,555,000 2,783,063 1,555,000 2,802,125 23,774,345
4,780,000 2,549,687 2,245,000 2,707,125 24,344,387
5,020,000 2,304,688 3,415,000 2,565,625 24,189,558
5,270,000 2,047,438 8,975,000 2,255,875 21,641,100
5,535,000 1,777,313 9,425,000 1,795,875 21,624,254
5,810,000 1,491,375 9,900,000 1,312,750 21,597,575
6,105,000 1,188,506 10,395,000 805,375 21,578,437
6,415,000 869,756 10,910,000 272,750 21,546,506
6,745,000 534,206 10,355,731
7,090,000 181,050 10,342,797
$ 115,265,000 $ 109,572,562 $ 123,225,000 $ 109,499,348 $ 1,503,883,950

3.000% - 5.375% 2.000% - 5.000%

Unaudited - see accompanying independent auditors' report.
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA
SCHEDULE OF DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS TO MATURITY -
SPECIAL OBLIGATION BONDS PAYABLE FROM SPECIFIC REVENUE SOURCES

OTHER THAN AD VALOREM TAXES - BETTER JACKSONVILLE PLAN

SEPTEMBER 30, 2002
Purpose: Better Jacksonville Better Jacksonville

Transportation Infrastructure

Projects Projects
Transportation Better Jacksonville
Revenue Bonds Sales Tax Revenue Bonds
Series 2001 Series 2001 Total
Fiscal Principal
Year Principal Interest Principal Interest and Interest
2003 $ 110,000 $ 8,892,625 $ 3,310,000 $ 10,821,615 $ 23,134,240
2004 2,215,000 8,855,535 3,405,000 10,698,450 25,173,985
2005 2,365,000 8,778,708 3,555,000 10,536,060 25,234,768
2006 2,410,000 8,693,940 3,730,000 10,362,230 25,196,170
2007 2,555,000 8,602,015 3,900,000 10,179,775 25,236,790
2008 2,595,000 8,501,570 4,095,000 9,979,900 25,171,470
2009 2,730,000 8,393,705 4,300,000 9,779,025 25,202,730
2010 8,337,740 4,500,000 9,577,365 22,415,105
2011 8,337,740 4,705,000 9,373,047 22,415,787
2012 9,080,000 8,120,129 4,905,000 9,149,265 31,254,394
2013 7,902,519 5,150,000 8,885,015 21,937,534
2014 7,902,519 5,435,000 8,593,928 21,931,447
2015 7,902,519 5,735,000 8,286,752 21,924,271
2016 7,902,519 6,050,000 7,962,665 21,915,184
2017 7,902,519 6,380,000 7,622,090 21,904,609
2018 7,902,519 6,730,000 7,262,815 21,895,334
2019 7,902,519 7,100,000 6,882,490 21,885,009
2020 7,902,519 7,490,000 6,492,500 21,885,019
2021 7,902,518 7,880,000 6,092,880 21,875,398
2022 3,415,000 7,815,009 8,290,000 5,680,750 25,200,759
2023 3,625,000 7,636,875 8,705,000 5,255,875 25,222,750
2024 10,980,000 7,271,750 9,140,000 4,809,750 32,201,500
2025 11,520,000 6,709,250 9,600,000 4,341,250 32,170,500
2026 12,090,000 6,119,000 10,080,000 3,849,250 32,138,250
2027 12,685,000 5,499,625 10,580,000 3,332,750 32,097,375
2028 13,315,000 4,832,981 11,110,000 2,790,500 32,048,481
2029 20,260,000 3,951,638 11,665,000 2,221,125 38,097,763
2030 21,325,000 2,860,031 12,250,000 1,623,250 38,058,281
2031 22,440,000 1,739,250 26,340,000 658,500 51,177,750
2032 23,565,000 589,125 24,154,125
$ 179,280,000 $ 211,660,911 $ 216,115,000 $ 203,100,867 $ 810,156,778

Interest Rates: 3.00 - 5.25% 3.00 - 5.50%

Unaudited - see accompanying independent auditors' report.
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA
SCHEDULE OF DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS TO MATURITY -
PAYABLE FROM ENTERPRISE FUNDS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2002
Purpose: To Refund Parking and To Refund Parking and Excise
Excise Taxes Revenue Taxes Revenue Refunding
Bonds, Series 1986A Bonds, Series 1987
Excise Taxes Revenue Excise Taxes
Refunding Bonds, Revenue Refunding
Series 1993A Bonds, Series 1995A
Fiscal
Year Principal Interest Principal Interest
2003 $ 825,000 $ 521,733 $ 420,000 $ 584,847
2004 870,000 480,617 440,000 565,980
2005 910,000 436,552 460,000 545,950
2006 960,000 389,082 485,000 524,384
2007 1,010,000 337,850 1,500,000 477,544
2008 1,060,000 282,850 2,800,000 373,669
2009 1,120,000 224,962 2,935,000 230,209
2010 1,180,000 164,587 3,100,000 77,500
2011 1,240,000 101,062
2012 1,305,000 34,256
2013
2014
2015
2016
2017
$ 10,480,000 $ 2,973,551 $ 12,140,000 $ 3,380,083
Interest Rates: 4.70 - 5.375% 4.25-5.125%
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To Partially Refund
Excise Taxes Revenue
Bonds, Series 1991A

Excise Taxes

Revenue Refunding
Bonds, Series 1996A

Principal Interest
$ 695,000 $ 895,863
930,000 862,781
970,000 822,987
1,010,000 774,600
1,065,000 717,538
1,120,000 662,490
1,175,000 609,117
1,230,000 551,985
1,285,000 490,983
1,350,000 425,750
1,420,000 356,500
1,490,000 283,750
1,565,000 207,375
1,645,000 127,125
1,720,000 43,000
$ 18,670,000 $ 7,831,844

4.00 - 5.50%

To Partially Refund
Excise Taxes Revenue
Bonds, Series 1991B
and Construction of Trail
Ridge Landfill

Excise Taxes Revenue
Refunding and Capital

Improvement Bonds, Series 1999B

Principal Interest
$ 1,805,000 $ 1,934,548
1,885,000 1,855,212
1,970,000 1,771,345
2,055,000 1,681,768
2,145,000 1,585,927
2,245,000 1,483,005
2,355,000 1,372,283
2,465,000 1,253,255
2,590,000 1,120,405
2,730,000 974,105
2,880,000 816,230
3,050,000 645,742
3,220,000 471,115
3,400,000 290,675
3,585,000 98,588

$ 38,380,000 $ 17,354,203

4.20 - 5.75%

Total
Principal

And Interest

$ 7,681,991
7,889,590
7,886,834
7,879,834
8,838,859

10,027,014
10,021,571
10,022,327
6,827,450
6,819,111
5,472,730
5,469,492
5,463,490
5,462,800
5,446,588

$ 111,209,681

Unaudited - see accompanying independent auditors' report.
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA
SCHEDULE OF DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS TO MATURITY -
PAYABLE FROM GENERAL REVENUE

SEPTEMBER 30, 2002
Purpose: HUD Section 108 HUD Section 108 HUD Section 108
Program Loan for Program Loan for Program Loan for
Vistakon Project Coach Distribution Project Sally Beauty Project
U.S. Government U.S. Government U.S. Government
Guaranteed Note Guaranteed Note Guaranteed Note
Payable, Series 1994A Payable, Series 1995 Payable, Series 1996
Fiscal
Year Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest
2003 $ 1,450,000 $ 94,685 $ 80,000 $ 318,165 $ 65,000 $ 48,501
2004 115,000 311,548 65,000 44,399
2005 150,000 302,073 65,000 40,266
2006 170,000 289,487 70,000 36,099
2007 235,000 275,089 75,000 31,577
2008 285,000 254,949 75,000 26,709
2009 335,000 230,239 80,000 21,752
2010 385,000 200,860 80,000 16,392
2011 420,000 166,749 80,000 10,968
2012 455,000 129,327 80,000 5,504
2013 500,000 88,696
2014 485,000 43,795
2015
2016
$ 1,450,000 $ 94,685 $3,615,000 _$2610977 $735000 _$282,167
Interest Rates: 6.44 - 6.53% 8.24 -9.03% 6.23 - 6.88%
(Taxable) (Taxable) (Taxable)
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HUD Section 108 HUD Section 108 HUD Section 108

Program Loan for Program Loan for Program Loan for
Hilton Hotel Project LaVilla Project HTYV Associates Project
U.S. Government U.S. Government U.S. Government
Guaranteed Note Guaranteed Note Guaranteed Note
Payable, Series 1996-B Payable, Series 1997 Payable, Series 1997
Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest
$ 80,000 $ 174,609 $ 30,000 $ 73,609 $ 50,000 $ 31,787
90,000 169,560 35,000 71,717 50,000 28,631
105,000 163,837 40,000 69,490 50,000 25,452
140,000 157,106 45,000 66,927 50,000 22,246
160,000 148,062 55,000 64,019 50,000 19,017
175,000 137,678 60,000 60,450 55,000 15,771
195,000 126,110 60,000 56,484 85,000 12,136
215,000 113,046 70,000 52,464 95,000 6,441
250,000 98,468 90,000 47,718
275,000 81,394 100,000 41,571
295,000 62,473 110,000 34,691
300,000 42,030 125,000 27,068
300,000 21,090 130,000 18,343
130,000 9,204
$2580,000 _$ 1495463 $ 1,080,000 $ 693,755 $ 485,000 $ 161,481

6.23 - 7.03% 6.23 - 7.08% 6.23-6.78%
(Taxable) (Taxable) (Taxable)

(continued)
Unaudited - see accompanying independent auditors' report.
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA
SCHEDULE OF DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS TO MATURITY -
PAYABLE FROM GENERAL REVENUE (continued)
SEPTEMBER 30, 2002

Purpose:

Fiscal
Year

2003
2004
2005
2006
2007
2008
2009
2010
2011
2012
2013
2014
2015
2016

Interest Rates:

HUD Section 108
Program Loan for
Armor Holdings

U.S. Government
Guaranteed Note
Payable, Series 1997

Principal Interest
$ 20,000 $ 49,012
25,000 47,750
30,000 46,160
30,000 44,237
35,000 42,299
40,000 40,027
45,000 37,384
55,000 34,368
60,000 30,640
65,000 26,541
75,000 22,070
80,000 16,872
80,000 11,288
80,000 5,664
$ 720,000 $ 454312
6.23 - 7.08%
(Taxable)

HUD Section 108
Program Loan for

Hampton Inns

U.S. Government
Guaranteed Note
Payable, Series 1997

Principal Interest
$ 15,000 $ 33,904
15,000 32,957
20,000 32,003
20,000 30,721
25,000 29,429
40,000 27,806
40,000 25,163
45,000 22,482
45,000 19,432
50,000 16,358
55,000 12,918
65,000 9,106
65,000 4,570
$ 500,000 $ 296,849
6.23 - 7.03%
(Taxable)

Total
Principal
And Interest

$ 2,614,272
1,101,562
1,139,281
1,171,823
1,244,492
1,293,390
1,349,268
1,391,053
1,318,975
1,325,695
1,255,848
1,193,871

630,291
224,868
$ 17,254,689

Unaudited - see accompanying independent auditors' report.
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA

SUMMARY OF PLEDGED REVENUES AND BOND COVERAGE

DISCLOSURE OBLIGATION
SEPTEMBER 30, 2002

Pledged Revenue for the Fiscal Year Ended September 30

Local Government 1/2 Cent Sales Tax:
Local Government 1/2 Cent Sales Tax (1)

7th Cent Gasoline Tax:
7th Cent Gasoline Tax

Excise Taxes:
Utilities Service Taxes:
City Water Department
Peoples Gas
Telecommunications Tax (3)
Communications Services Taxes (3)
JEA (2)
Miscellaneous
Total Utilities Service Tax
Fuel Oil Tax
Occupational License Taxes
Total Excise Tax Pledged Revenues

Junior Lien Excise Taxes:
Total Excise Taxes
Total Junior Lien Excise Tax Revenues

Sports Facilities Capital Improvements:
Franchise Fees:
Peoples Gas
Southern Bell
Cable Television
Total Franchise Fees
Communications Services Taxes (4)
Sports Facility Sales Tax Rebate
Convention Development Tax (2%)
Sports Facility Tourist Development Tax (2%)
Total Sports Facility Capital Improvements Pledged Revenues

Infrastructure Improvements (Better Jacksonville Infrastructure):
Infrastructure Sales Tax (5)

Transportation Improvements (Better Jacksonville Transportation):
Transportation Sales Tax (1)
Gas Tax (Constitional Fuel Tax) (1)

Total Transportation Improvements Pledged Revenues

(1) Recognition of revenue per GASB 33.

(2) Variance between 2000 and 2001 financial statements due to incorrect recognition of revenue.

1998 1999 2000
$ 57,609,792 $ 61,775,050 $ 67,373,395
$ 2,814,214 $ 3,231,997 $ 3,447,789
$ 4,408,422 $ 4,633,183 $ 4,878,361
1,135,414 1,120,391 1,068,503
19,370,288 23,013,866 23,894,566
39,972,094 40,051,957 40,965,363
3,217,673 2,764,122 2,534,348
68,103,891 71,583,519 73,341,141
237,661 232,255 245,233
6,522,655 6,674,579 6,720,992
74,864,207 78,490,353 80,307,366
$ 74,864,207 $ 78,490,353 $ 80,307,366
74,864,207 $ 78,490,353 80,307,366
$ 824720 $ 729,692 $ 665978
2,731,112 2,835,185 3,405,328
2,902,976 2,904,064 3,127,769
6,458,808 6,468,941 7,199,075
1,999,944 1,999,944 1,999,944
2,883,981 3,058,553 3,134,146
3,094,453 3,285,332 3,365,147
$ 14,437,186 $ 14,812,770 $ 15,698,312
$ - $ - $ -
$ 48,240,640 $ 51,976,595 $ 56,745,904
7,434,738 7,554,095 8,557,846
$ 55,675,378 $ 59,530,690 $ 65,303,750

(3) Beginning October 1, 2001 85% of the Communications Services Tax replaced the Telecommunications Tax.

(4) Beginning October 1, 2001 15% of the Communications Services Tax replaced the franchise fees for Southern Bell.

(5) The Infrastructure Sales Tax was approved by voters and is effective for a thirty-year period commencing January 1, 2001.
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2001
$ 67,487,001

$ 3,469,260

$ 4,890,098
904,315
26,267,409
43,336,805
3,087,032
78,485,659
287,443
6,910,069

$ 85,683,171

$ 85,683,171
$ 85,683,171

$ 1,012,176
3,524,759
3,309,345
7,846,280
1,833,292
3,474,960
3,737,587

~$ 16,892,119

$ 38,496,315

$ 57,496,406
8,475,125
$ 65,971,531

2002
$ 71,688,673

$ 3,585,283

$ 5,393,416
593,671
2,165,646
34,588,391
42,857,680
2,111,122
87,709,926
164,199
7,089,446

—$ 94963571

$ 94,963,571
$ 94,963,571

$ 553,140
1,180,053
1,029,768
2,762,961
6,103,834
2,000,004
3,524,332
3,780,078

$ 18,171,209

$ 55,324,038

$ 57,471,472
8,174,201

$ 65,645,673

Maximum

Annual Debt
Service

$ 13,098,160

$ 1,265,980

$ 45,241,661

$ 45,241,661

$ 11,705,488

$ 13,305,640

$ 37,147,975

(continued)

Unaudited - see accompanying independent auditors' report.

Pledged
Revenue

Coverage

5.48 x

2.84 x

2.10x

210 x

1.56 x

416 x

1.77 x

Additional
Bonds
Test

1.35x

1.50 x

1.40 x

1.25 x

1.35 x

1.35x

1.35 x



CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA

SUMMARY OF PLEDGED REVENUES AND BOND COVERAGE

DISCLOSURE OBLIGATION (continued)
SEPTEMBER 30, 2002

Guaranteed Entitlement Revenues:

County Revenue Sharing:
Cigarette Tax
Intangible Tax (1)
Sales Tax (1)

County Total

County Guaranteed

County Coverage

City Revenue Sharing:
Cigarette Tax (2)
Sales and Use Tax (2)

City Total

City Guaranteed

City Coverage

Aggregate City / County Guaranteed

Statewide Revenue Sharing - Counties:
Intangible Tax (1)
Cigarette Tax
Sales Tax (1)
Total Receipts
Guaranteed Entitlement for all Florida Counties
Average Coverage - All Florida Counties

Statewide Revenue Sharing - Municipalities:
Cigarette Tax (2)
8th Cent Motor Fuel Tax
Special Tax and Alternative Fuel User Decal Fee
Sales and Use Tax (2)
Total Receipts
Guaranteed Entitlement for all Florida Municipalities
Average Coverage - All Florida Municipalities

(1) Prior to July 1, 2000 intangible tax revenues, not Sales Tax, funded the State Revenue Sharing Trust Fund for Counties.

Pledged Revenue for the Fiscal Year Ended September 30

1998 1999 2000
$ 742,319 $ 705,953 $ 673,724
21,322,225 22,025,365 19,509,391
$ 22,064,544 $ 22,731,318 $ 20,183,115
$ 1,999,042 $ 1,999,042 $ 1,999,042
11.04 x 11.37 x 10.10 x
$ 10,169,136 $ 9,366,612 $ 9,803,251
$ 10,169,136 $ 9,366,612 $ 9,803,251
$ 5,826,077 $ 5,826,077 $ 5,826,077
1.75x 1.61x 1.68 x
$ 7,825119 $ 7,825119 $ 7,825119
$ 380,824,284 $ 409,844,667 $ 355,976,483
11,875,417 10,494,872 12,117,511
$ 392,699,701 $ 420,339,539 $ 368,093,994
$ 95,086,330 $ 95,086,330 $ 95,086,330
413 x 442 x 3.88 x

$ 132,677,078

$ 127,545,634

$ 123,878,513

74,511,080 76,852,577 80,870,856

438,636 736,176 1,028,891

$ 207,626,794 $ 205,134,387 $ 205,778,260

$ 110,811,385 $ 112,261,230 $ 112,261,230
1.87 x 1.83 x 1.84 x

(2) Effective July 1, 2000 the New Guaranteed Entitlement Laws eliminated the cigarette tax and replaced it with 1.0175% of the

available proceeds of the sales and use tax.
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2001

$ 596,894

16,718,361

17,315,255

&8N &

1,999,042
8.66 x

$ -
10,404,649

$ 10,404,649

2

5,826,077
1.79 x

$ 7,825,119

$ -
11,149,461

306,361,416

$ 317,510,877

$ 95,086,330

3.34 x

$ -
80,474,387
1,060,517

145,896,115

$ 227,431,019

$ 112,304,159

2.03 x

2002

$ 579,774

16,698,273

©*

17,278,047

1,999,042

-

8.65 x

$ -

10,663,344

©*

10,663,344

5,826,077

A2

1.83 x

$ 7,825,119

$ -
11,229,107

309,765,152

$ 320,994,259

_$ 95086330

3.38 x

$ -
82,184,764
953,804
147,517,049

$ 230,655,617
$ 117,046,851

1.97 x

Maximum
Annual Debt
Service

$ 7,452,100

Pledged
Revenue

Coverage

1.05 x

Additional
Bonds
Test

1.05x

Unaudited - see accompanying independent auditors' report.
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STATISTICAL SECTION

The Statistical Section presents comparative data for the past ten
years, and other pertinent information involving taxes, revenues,
expenditures, demographic data and other miscellaneous statistics.

The statistical data is presented to give report users a better historical
perspective and assist in assessing current financial status and trends
of the governmental unit. Economic data is presented to allow a
broader understanding of the economic and social environment in
which City government operates.



CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA
GENERAL GOVERNMENTAL REVENUES
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS (in thousands)

2002 % 2001 % 2000 % 1999 %

SOURCE
TaAXES. ..ot $558,000 60.91 $507,253 58.63 $464,004 57.31 $425912 58.28
Licenses and Permits............ccccccceeviiiinnnnn. 10,238 1.12 14,806 1.71 13,970 1.73 13,194 1.81
Intergovernmental.............ccocoveenieiieiniennne 216,304 23.61 210,053 2428 202,150 24.97 182,643  24.98
Charges for Services.........cooverevnieencnennn 74,309 8.11 68,394 7.91 62,302 7.70 55,275 7.56
Fines and Forfeitures...........c.cccocevrvinnennnn 10,946 1.19 10,415 1.20 9,938 1.22 8,948 1.21
Payment in Lieu of Taxes.........cccceovvveninnnnn 2,984 0.33 3,344 0.39 3,583 0.44 3,799 0.52
INEEIEST....vvviiiiecie e 23,118 2.52 29,496 3.41 29,864 3.69 22,373 3.06
Other.....cviiiciiieiiccce e 20,275 2.21 21,361 2.47 23,790 2.94 18,820 2.58

Total General Governmental Revenue....... $916,264 100.00 $865,122 100.00 $809,601 100.00 $730,864 100.00

Note: This schedule includes Revenues of the General Fund, Special Revenue Funds, Debt Service Funds and Capital Projects Funds.
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1998 % 1997 % 1996 % 1995 % 1994 % 1993 %
$ 406,372 57.60 $378665 56.87 $ 370,590 59.11 $349,208 5834 $329,993 59.83 $319,032 56.04
13,028 1.85 12,499 1.88 12,129 1.93 11,592 1.94 11,442 2.07 11,377 2.00
166,477 23.60 149,095 2239 148,789 23.74 143,141 23.91 132,635  24.03 162,282  28.51
57,652 8.17 55,209 8.29 51,192 8.17 50,644 8.46 45,725 8.29 44,387 7.80
9,914 1.40 7,485 1.12 6,521 1.04 6,380 1.07 7,232 1.31 5,917 1.04
3,904 0.55 4,027 0.60 4,275 0.68 3,612 0.60 3,808 0.69 4,134 0.73
22,055 3.13 18,900 2.84 19,217 3.07 22,1563 3.70 12,717 2.31 13,188 2.32
26,068 3.70 39,992 6.01 14,161 2.26 11,825 1.98 8,089 1.47 8,893 1.56
$705470 100.00 $665872 100.00 §$ 626,874 100.00 $ 598,555 100.00 $ 551,541 100.00 $ 569,210 100.00

Unaudited - see accompanying independent auditors' report.
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA
GENERAL GOVERNMENTAL EXPENDITURES
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS (in thousands)

2002 % 2001 % 2000 % 1999 %

FUNCTIONAL AREA

General GOvernment..........cocceeeveieeeieieenecnennan $ 102,169 9.28 $ 100,232 1059 $ 92,281 11.03 §$ 85213  11.07
Human ServiCes..........cooviiivviiivveeeeeieeeeeireeeeeieeeenne 94,375 8.58 90,601 9.57 81,451 9.73 75,358 9.79
Public Safety.......c.ccoovviviiniinieniiceneeeneee 327,634 29.77 311,732 32.93 298,131 35.61 276,361 35.88
Culture and Recreation............ocovvevevivnnicncnnn 49,592 4.51 44,018 4.65 40,725 4.87 38,350 4.98
Transportation..........ccceevvrreiveeenerinenineenieeenne 91,939 8.35 110,765  11.70 119,741 14.31 110,019  14.29
Economic Environment.................ccoooveiiinieinnnn. 64,567 5.87 57,411 6.06 43,296 5.17 44 555 5.79
Physical Environment.........c..cccooeovevinineninennnns 17,686 1.61 21,346 2.25 15,352 1.83 13,891 1.80
Debt Service.........ccovvverinineeniiicireeeeeeen 93,050 8.46 73,670 7.78 70,451 8.42 64,443 8.37
Capital Outlay........ccooevivieiinineniiicccceeee 259,486  23.58 136,910  14.46 75,548 9.03 61,826 8.03

Total General Governmental Expenditures........ $1,100,498 100.00 $946,685 100.00 $836,976 100.00 $770,016 100.00

Note: This schedule includes Expenditures of the General Fund, Special Revenue Funds, Debt Service Funds and Capital Projects Funds.
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1998 % 1997 % 1996 % 1995 % 1994 % 1993 %
$ 85,213 1151 § 75,064 9.37 $ 69,054 9.45 § 69,527 8.42 § 65,120 10.23 § 63,882 10.14
71,290 9.63 63,071 7.88 59,991 8.21 53,866 6.53 50,768 7.47 51,993 8.26
267,017 36.04 257,565 3217 243,139 33.26 232,820 28.20 218,350 31.49 204,971 32.53
36,202 4.89 36,413 4.55 33,854 4.63 34,263 4.15 32,490 4.78 30,264 4.81
106,854 14.43 106,943 13.36 103,606 14.17 102,145 12.37 100,169 14.74 99,915 15.86
40,663 5.49 43,215 5.40 39,899 5.46 40,937 4.96 42,776 6.29 75,008 11.91
11,812 1.60 15,220 1.90 15,937 218 16,180 1.96 21,099 3.10 18,235 2.90
59,147 7.99 104,298 13.03 58,145 7.95 78,635 9.53 39,871 5.87 36,380 5.78
62,330 8.42 98,830 12.34 107,370 14.69 197,118  23.88 108,921 16.03 49,167 7.81
$ 740,528 100.00 $800,619 100.00 $730,995 100.00 §$825491 100.00 $679564 100.00 $629,815 100.00

Unaudited - see accompanying independent auditors' report.
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA

TAX REVENUE BY SOURCE
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
2002 2001 2000 1999
Ad Valorem Taxes (1)
General Services District..........ccoecvvivvcninciinenns $ 310,460,077 $ 293,080,537 $ 278,501,775 $ 266,765,762
Urban Services DIStrict.........coooocceveninicieiienenns - - - 24,024
Tax Increment District.........cc.coceveivirinencrennnns 2,090,966 6,251,919 4,263,409 5,441,737
Total Ad Valorem Taxes..........coceeeeiiinnnnne 312,551,043 299,332,456 282,765,184 272,231,523
Utility Service Taxes
Fuel Oil Companies.........c..coceevveriineneeinirieciiiennns 164,199 287,443 245,233 232,255
City Water......ooeiuieeeiiircceeeeeeese e 5,393,416 4,890,098 4,878,361 4,633,183
People's Gas.......ccoevereneennene 593,671 904,315 1,068,503 1,120,391
Telecommunications.... 42,857,871 26,267,409 23,894,566 23,013,614
JEA o 42,857,680 39,815,943 44,486,956 36,255,365
OLhETS.....oeeivieiereeseeeee e 2,111,122 3,087,032 2,534,348 2,764,122
Total Utility Service Taxes.......c..cocevircvirennnne 93,977,959 75,252,240 77,107,967 68,018,930
Tourist Development TaX........c.ccccoeevviveeinniiicnnns 7,559,593 7,477,106 6,729,490 6,570,683
Convention Development Tax.........ccocoeviiiiiininnns 3,524,332 3,474,960 3,134,146 3,058,553
Local Option Gas TaX (2)......cccccervererervecreriveniennenne 27,681,053 25,723,304 27,408,778 24,055,882
Local Option Sales Tax - Transportation (3).............. 57,471,472 57,496,406 66,858,197 51,976,595
Local Option Sales Tax - Infrastructure (4)............... 55,324,038 38,496,315 - -
Total Tax Revenue..........ccocooevevinincncninennne $ 558,089,490 $ 507,252,787 $ 464,003,762 $ 425,912,166

(1)  Property taxes include interest and penalties on delinquent taxes.

(2) A six cent local option gas tax was instituted in 1987 to fund capital road construction projects throughout Duval County.

(3) A one-half cent local option sales tax was passed by Jacksonville voters in 1989 to replace bridge tolls. All revenue received
from this tax is remitted directly to the Jacksonville Transportation Authority (a component unit of the primary government)

to fund Duval County transportation operations.

(4) A one-half cent sales tax was passed by Jacksonville voters in September, 2000 to fund the Better Jacksonville Plan.

Source: Tax Collector's Office
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1998 1997 1996 1995 1994 1993
$ 255,789,300 $ 231,645,388 $ 225,044,088 $ 215,496,848 $ 204,462,560 $ 200,036,912
1,887,009 1,735,471 1,794,848 1,727,718 1,762,200 1,781,704
3,996,224 4,569,270 4,355,758 4,662,265 4,627,753 5,872,261
261,672,533 237,950,129 231,194,694 221,886,831 210,852,513 207,690,877
237,661 212,660 366,168 330,737 406,171 280,361
4,408,512 4,136,209 3,833,754 3,202,330 2,698,922 2,048,399
1,135,414 1,091,841 1,390,202 1,282,169 1,317,215 1,422,389
19,370,288 17,387,934 16,689,932 13,452,383 12,977,579 11,227,650
36,068,367 37,217,093 39,975,747 37,649,886 36,807,357 36,020,218
3,217,673 3,183,882 3,329,476 2,975,258 3,172,871 3,349,904
64,437,915 63,229,619 65,585,279 58,892,762 57,380,115 54,348,921
6,189,018 5,478,886 4,853,878 4,022,243 2,531,120 1,871,328
2,883,981 2,542,967 2,253,466 1,991,297 1,679,594 1,754,974
22,948,341 24,228,183 22,508,967 21,847,527 21,975,041 21,317,284
48,240,640 45,235,670 44,193,979 40,565,755 35,673,977 32,048,807
$ 406,372,428 $ 378,665,454 $ 370,590,263 $ 349,206,415 $ 329,992,360 $ 319,032,191

Unaudited - see accompanying independent auditors' report.
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA

PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
Percent
Current Current Tax of Levy
Year Tax Levy (1) Collections Collected
1993 General Fund - General Services District $ 206,741,651 $ 196,190,115 94.9%
General Fund - Urban Services District 2,029,008 1,893,355 93.3%
Totals $ 208,770,659 $ 198,083,470 94.9%
1994 General Fund - General Services District $211,012,591 $ 201,414,185 95.5%
General Fund - Urban Services District 1,956,505 1,835,711 93.8%
Totals $ 212,969,096 $ 203,249,896 95.4%
1995 General Fund - General Services District $ 224,122,401 $ 212,579,284 94.8%
General Fund - Urban Services District 1,948,887 1,821,716 93.5%
Totals $ 226,071,288 $ 214,401,000 94.8%
1996 General Fund - General Services District $ 229,855,681 $ 221,114,198 96.2%
General Fund - Urban Services District 1,969,347 1,870,103 95.0%
Totals $ 231,825,028 $ 222,984,301 96.2%
1997 General Fund - General Services District $ 244,346,056 $ 234,578,690 96.0%
General Fund - Urban Services District 2,022,502 1,893,107 93.6%
Totals $ 246,368,558 $ 236,471,618 96.0%
1998 General Fund - General Services District $ 257,656,758 $ 244,965,131 95.1%
General Fund - Urban Services District 2,075,611 1,919,421 92.5%
Totals $ 259,732,369 $ 246,884,552 95.1%
1999 General Fund - General Services District $ 275,432,033 $ 261,480,331 94.9%
General Fund - Urban Services District (2) - - 0.0%
Totals $ 275,432,033 $ 261,480,331 94.9%
2000 General Fund - General Services District $ 287,849,421 $ 274,189,507 95.3%
General Fund - Urban Services District (2) - - 0.0%
Totals $ 287,849,421 $ 274,189,507 95.3%
2001 General Fund - General Services District $ 303,152,394 (3) $ 290,003,150 95.7%
General Fund - Urban Services District (2) - - 0.0%
Totals $ 303,152,394 $ 290,003,150 95.7%
2002 General Fund - General Services District $ 317,428,233 $ 302,003,381 95.1%
General Fund - Urban Services District (2) - - 0.0%
Totals $ 317,428,233 $ 302,003,381 95.1%

™

@)
(©)

December - 3%
January -2%
February -1%

Figures have been updated to reflect 2000 tax roll.

Source: Tax Collector's Office

Beginning in 1999, the amounts for USD represent delinquent collections.

Tax levies are final certified amounts net of discounts allowed. The discount schedule is as follows:
For taxes paid in: November - 4%
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Total Outstanding

Delinquent Collections Outstanding Delinquent
Tax Total Tax as Percent of Delinquent Taxes as Percent
Collections Collections Current Levy Taxes of Current Levy
$ 9,656,052 $ 205,846,167 99.6% $ 10,551,536 51 %
112,899 2,006,254 98.9% 135,653 6.7 %
$ 9,768,951 $ 207,852,421 99.6% $ 10,687,189 51 %
$ 8,159,804 $ 209,573,990 99.3% $ 9,598,406 45 %
99,170 1,934,882 98.9% 120,793 6.2 %
$ 8,258,974 $ 211,508,872 99.3% $ 9,719,199 46 %
$ 7,885,069 $ 220,464,353 98.4% $ 11,543,117 52 %
93,859 1,915,676 98.3% 127,171 6.5 %
$ 7,978,928 $ 222,379,929 98.4% $ 11,670,288 52 %
$ 8,129,025 $ 229,243,224 99.7% $ 8,741,482 3.8 %
94,724 1,964,827 99.8% 99,244 5 %
$ 8,223,749 $ 231,208,051 99.7% $ 8,840,726 3.8 %
$ 7,839,598 $ 242,418,109 99.2% $ 9,767,546 4%
97,423 1,990,530 98.4% 129,395 6.4 %
$ 7,937,021 $ 244,408,639 99.2% $ 9,896,941 40 %
$ 8,950,810 $ 253,915,941 98.5% $ 12,691,627 49 %
97,861 2,017,282 97.2% 156,191 7.5 %
$ 9,048,671 $ 255,933,223 98.5% $ 12,847,818 49 %
$ 10,916,310 $ 272,396,641 98.9% $ 13,951,702 51 %
108,071 108,071 0.0% - 0.0 %
$ 11,024,381 $ 272,504,712 98.9% $ 13,951,702 51 %
$ 8,866,740 $ 283,056,247 98.3% $ 13,659,914 4.7 %
12,057 12,057 0.0% - 0.0 %
$ 8,878,797 $ 283,068,304 98.3% $ 13,659,914 4.7 %
10,588,622 $ 300,591,772 99.2% $ 13,149,244 (3) 43 %
6,418 (3) 6,418 0.0% - 0.0 %
10,595,040 $ 300,598,190 99.2% $ 13,149,244 43 %
11,858,005 $ 313,861,386 98.9% $ 15,424,852 49 %
6,409 6,409 0.0% - 0.0 %
11,864,414 $ 313,867,795 98.9% $ 15,424,852 49 %
Unaudited - see accompanying independent auditors' report. -231-



CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA
ASSESSED AND ESTIMATED ACTUAL VALUES OF TAXABLE PROPERTY
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS (in thousands)

Assessed Taxable Values

Centrally Total Estimated Ratio of
Real Personal Assessed Taxable Actual Assessed to

Year Property (1) Property (2) Property (3) Property Values (4) Actual Values
1993 $ 15,995,946 $ 3,238,039 $ 72,328 $ 19,306,313 $ 30,648,376 62.99%
1994 16,141,786 3,321,345 65,037 19,528,168 30,750,732 63.50%
1995 16,577,725 3,553,360 70,912 20,201,997 31,944,549 63.24%
1996 17,425,021 3,947,455 75,478 21,447,954 33,474,993 64.07%
1997 18,459,034 4,137,983 85,635 22,682,652 35,304,582 64.25%
1998 19,683,790 4,230,470 124,628 24,038,888 37,202,821 64.62%
1999 21,189,061 4,414,181 138,561 25,741,803 39,448,272 65.25%
2000 22,747,401 4,517,816 108,934 27,374,151 41,803,761 65.48%
2001 24,706,692 4,700,314 138,448 29,545,454 44,158,093 66.91%
2002 26,947,330 4,672,059 130,112 31,749,501 47,888,763 66.30%
(1) Prior to fiscal year 1981, State Homestead Exemption Laws exempted from taxation the first $5,000 of assessed value for

qualified homeowners. For 1981, the homestead exemption was increased to $15,000; for 1982, it was increased to
$20,000; and for 1983 and subsequent years, it was increased to $25,000.

(2) Personal property values are also net of certain allowable exemptions - primarily for inventories (which have not been
assessed since 1982) and government property.

(3) Centrally assessed property is primarily railroad property and private car line property, which must be separately assessed.
4) Estimated actual values are the total "just” values or property subject to taxation, as defined by Section 193.011 of the

Florida Statutes.

Source: Property Appraiser's Office

Unaudited - see accompanying independent auditors' report.
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA
PROPERTY TAX RATES - DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTS
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS (Per $1,000 of Assessed Value)

City of Jacksonville Other Taxing Authorities
Water Combined

District Debt Management FIND Millage

Year (Note 1) Operations Service Total Schools District (Note 3) Total
1993 GSD(2) 11.1367 0.1791 11.3158 9.8420 0.3580 0.0520 21.5678
USD 11.5823 0.3054 11.8877 9.8420 0.3580 0.0520 22.1397
1994 GSD(2) 11.1628 0.1530 11.3158 9.8420 0.4700 0.0530 21.6808
USD 11.6008 0.2869 11.8877 9.8420 0.4700 0.0530 22.2527
1995 GSD(2) 11.2131 0.1027 11.3158 10.3210 0.4820 0.0490 22.1678
USD 11.6934 0.1943 11.8877 10.3210 0.4820 0.0490 22.7397
1996 GSD(2) 11.1196 0.0962 11.2158 10.3070 0.4820 0.0400 22.0448
USD 11.6 0.1877 11.7877 10.3070 0.4820 0.0400 22.6167
1997 GSD(2) 11.0866 0.0292 11.1158 10.0670 0.4820 0.0380 21.7028
USD 11.6417 0.0460 11.6877 10.0670 0.4820 0.0380 22.2747
1998 GSD(2) 10.9883 0.0275 11.0158 9.8750 0.4820 0.0500 21.4228
USD 11.5602 0.0275 11.5877 9.8750 0.4820 0.0500 21.9947
1999 GSD (4) 10.8901 0.0257 10.9158 9.8560 0.4820 0.0470 21.3008
2000 GSD (4) 10.7618 0.0243 10.7861 9.3660 0.4820 0.0440 20.6781
2001 GSD (4) 10.5498 0.0225 10.5723 9.2580 0.4720 0.0410 20.3433
2002 GSD (4) 10.3465 0.0210 10.3675 8.8720 0.4620 0.0386 19.7401
M The GSD (General Services District) millage rate is the one which applies to most taxpayers in the City of Jacksonville,

and it is effectively a county-wide rate. Due to the existence of six other taxing districts, a total of seven combined millage
rates apply to taxpayers within the City of Jacksonville. The two most prevalent millage rates are shown here.

The USD (Urban Services District 1) millage rates apply to the area of the preconsolidation City of Jacksonville. The
millage rates shown include the GSD rate.

(2) Beginning in 1981, as the result of a double-taxation suit settlement, the four independent Urban Services Districts within
Duval County began paying 18.8% less than the GSD millage rate, subject to a limit of 10.0000 mills plus debt service.
Each of the four levies additional taxes for its own municipal services.

(3) Florida Inland Navigational District

4) Beginning in 1999, the same rates apply to the consolidated City of Jacksonville.

Source: Property Appraiser's Office

Unaudited - see accompanying independent auditors' report.
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA
RATIO OF NET GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDED DEBT
TO ASSESSED VALUE AND NET BONDED DEBT PER CAPITA

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
Net General Obligation
Gross Less Bonded Debt
General Respective
Obligation Debt Ratio to
Assessed Bonded Service Assessed Per

Year Population (1) Value (2) Debt (3) Funds Amount Value Capita
1993 701,608 $ 19,306,313,000 $ 12,310,000 $ 1,108,244 $ 11,201,756 0.06% 16.97
1994 716,472 19,528,168,000 9,090,000 696,559 8,393,441 0.04% 11.71
1995 732,034 20,201,997,000 6,335,000 - 6,335,000 0.03% 8.65
1996 740,870 21,447,954,000 4,190,000 - 4,190,000 0.02% 5.66
1997 754,048 . 22,682,652,000 3,260,000 - 3,260,000 0.01% 4.32
1998 766,705 24,038,888,000 2,785,000 - 2,785,000 0.01% 3.63
1999 778,341 25,741,803,000 2,285,000 - 2,285,000 0.01% 2.94
2000 791,507 27,374,151,000 1,755,000 - 1,755,000 0.01% 2.22
2001 793,898 29,545,454,000 1,195,000 - 1,195,000 0.00% 1.51
2002 807,012 31,749,501,000 605,000 - 605,000 0.00% 0.75

(1)  Population estimates for Duval County from the University of Florida, Bureau of Economic and Business Research,
as revised after the 2000 census analysis. General obligation bonded debt applies to all of Duval County.

(2)  Assessed values are the final adjusted appraisals as reported by the Duval County Property Appraiser.

(3)  Gross general obligation bonded debt represents bonds payable from ad valorem taxes only.

Unaudited - see accompanying independent auditors' report.
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA

COMPUTATION OF DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDED DEBT

SEPTEMBER 30, 2002
Percentage City of
Applicable to Jacksonville's
Name of Governmental Debt City of Share of
Agency Outstanding (1) Jacksonville (2) Gross Debt
City of Jacksonville, Florida $ 605,000 100% $ 605,000
Duval County School Board 84,105,000 100% 84,105,000
$ 84,710,000

(1) The gross debt outstanding includes debt which is secured by the authority to levy taxes on real estate.

(2) The applicable percentage is based on the municipality's geographical boundaries within Duval County.

CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA
LEGAL DEBT LIMIT
SEPTEMBER 30, 2002

Neither the City of Jacksonville charter or code nor the Florida State Statutes limits the amount of debt the City of

Jacksonville can issue.

Unaudited - see accompanying independent auditors' report.
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA
RATIO OF ANNUAL DEBT SERVICE EXPENDITURES FOR GENERAL
OBLIGATION BONDED DEBT TO TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL EXPENDITURES
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Total Ratio of
General Obligation Debt General Debt Service
Governmental to General

Expenditures (1) Governmental
Year Principal Interest Total (in thousands) Expenditures
1993 $ 3,165,000 $ 607,645 $ 3,772,645 $ 629,815 0.60%
1994 3,295,000 476,449 3,771,449 679,564 0.55%
1995 2,755,000 357,992 3,112,992 825,491 0.38%
1996 2,145,000 260,424 2,405,424 730,995 0.33%
1997 930,000 178,905 1,108,905 799,495 0.14%
1998 475,000 154,144 629,144 740,528 0.08%
1999 500,000 128,550 628,550 770,016 0.08%
2000 530,000 101,513 631,513 836,976 0.08%
2001 560,000 72,900 632,900 946,685 0.07%
2002 590,000 42,713 632,713 1,100,498 0.06%

Q)

Includes General Fund, Special Revenue Funds, Debt Service Funds and Capital Projects Funds.

Unaudited - see accompanying independent auditors' report.
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA
REVENUE BOND COVERAGE - PARKING SYSTEM

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
Net Revenue
Available for
Year Revenue (1) Expenses (2) Debt Service
1993 $ 86,618,000 $ 57,943,000 $ 28,675,000
1994 95,615,000 68,923,000 26,692,000
1995 112,292,000 60,975,000 51,317,000
1996 122,927,000 63,086,000 59,841,000
1997 (4) 84,019,000 45,413,000 38,606,000
1998 (4) 5,508,000 2,473,000 3,035,000
1999 (4)(5) (6,071,000) 2,392,000 (8,463,000)
2000 4,373,000 2,917,000 1,456,000
2001 3,112,000 2,710,000 402,000
2002 4,085,000 2,951,000 1,134,000
(1) Revenue includes interest earned and other non-operating revenue.
(2) Expenses exclude depreciation and interest expense.
(3) Coverage is an expression of the number of times "Net Revenue Available for Debt Service" exceeds

"Debt Service Requirements" (P & I).

(4) Reduced amounts reflect the transfer of the Water and Sewer Utility Enterprise Fund to JEA on June 1, 1997;
the "Debt Service Requirements" shown here are not covered by Enterprise Fund pledged revenues.

(5) Parking Garage given to Adam's Mark Hotel.
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Debt Service Requirements

Principal Interest Totals Coverage (3)

$ 5,238,770 $ 14,715,676 $ 19,954,446 1.44
6,086,909 13,888,233 19,975,142 1.34
7,530,661 13,187,611 20,718,272 2.48
8,231,974 13,048,240 21,280,214 2.81
1,665,000 3,840,694 5,505,694 7.01
1,740,000 3,598,168 5,338,168 0.57
1,830,000 3,508,238 5,338,238 (1.59)
1,925,000 4,027,263 5,952,263 0.24
2,115,000 4,204,152 6,319,152 0.06
3,315,000 4,089,647 7,404,647 0.15

Unaudited - see accompanying independent auditors' report.
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA
PROPERTY VALUE, CONSTRUCTION AND BANK DEPOSITS
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS (in thousands)

New Construction (1) Real Property (3)
Bank

Year  Residential Commercial Alterations (1) Deposits (2) Commercial Residential Nontaxable

1993 $ 345,648 $ 220,053 $ 230,406 $6,192,683 $7,618,317,883 $13,228,964,522  $ 3,938,609,825
1994 352,166 124,571 363,420 6,365,459 7,604,099,466 13,864,791,273 4,081,588,110
1995 361,598 209,100 337,284 7,502,639 7,730,829,569 14,770,621,802 4,095,070,672
1996 510,739 162,925 370,106 8,118,088 8,034,155,678 16,121,151,945 4,381,582,635
1997 453,670 301,790 671,128 8,583,244 8,445,725,666 17,207,002,871 5,978,050,566
1998 472,076 309,018 753,196 10,973,592 9,108,427,299 18,789,586,995 4,362,323,727
1999 594,438 376,159 479,738 10,127,170 9,688,132,922 20,147,735,943 4,357,721,556
2000 600,833 259,934 854,827 9,780,491 10,610,894,987 21,736,221,819 4,362,900,928
2001 622,959 374,950 688,407 8,882,117 11,330,305,166 24,657,180,107 4,364,901,962
2002 711,968 232,161 853,260 11,646,987 12,179,411,401 27,207,404,144 4,483,005,286

Source (1) Building and Zoning Division

(2) Florida Bankers Association

(3) The Property Appraiser's Office

Unaudited - see accompanying independent auditors' report.
ying p p
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA
DEMOGRAPHIC STATISTICS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2002
POPULATION
Year JACKSONVILLE DUVAL COUNTY
1910 57,699 75,163
1920 92,588 113,540
1930 129,549 155,503
1940 173,065 210,143
1950 204,517 304,029
1960 201,030 455,411
1970 504,265 (1) 528,865
1980 540,920 (1) 571,003
1990 635,230 (1) 672,971
1995 690,996 (1) 732,034
2000 747,270 (1)(2) 791,507 (2)
2001 750,513 (1)(2) 793,898 (2)
2002 762,369 (1)(2) 807,012 (2)
(1) After Consolidation
(2) Asof April 1
POPULATION PROJECTIONS (3)
YEAR DUVAL COUNTY STATE OF FLORIDA
2005 846,458 16,882,830
2010 896,652 18,121,273
2015 953,508 19,400,913
2020 978,510 21,792,600

Source: University of Florida, Bureau of Economic and Business Research, June 2000
City of Jacksonville, Planning and Development Department

(3) Five year projections done in 2000

POPULATION DISTRIBUTION BY AGE*

STATE OF FLORIDA

AGE DUVAL COUNTY
0-14 22.06%

15-24 14.13%

25-44 31.72%

45-64 21.63%

65+ 10.46%

18.91%
12.38%
27.97%
23.26%
17.48%

Source: University of Florida, Bureau of Economic and Business Research, Population Program
Florida Population Studies, July 2002, Volumn 35, No 3, Bulletin No. 133.

*April 1, 2001 Estimates

Unaudited - see accompanying independent auditors' report.
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA

TEN LARGEST TAXPAYERS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2002
Taxpayer Type of Business Valuation Percentage

Bell South/Jacksonville MSA Limited................... Communications $ 388,615,393 1.19%
AT&T/Media One........ccooovivieciciicnnicccenenns Communications 362,146,974 1.12%
Anheuser-Busch/Metal Container Corp................. Manufacturing 294,388,539 0.91%
Bank of AMErica.........cceeirieinreneiiecciiccenne Banking 244,721,979 0.76%
Cedar Bay Generating Co.......ccccccovevrecrinninennnne. Utilities 195,602,797 0.61%
Liberty Property Limited Partnership..................... Real Estate Management/Development 193,147,696 0.60%
Blue Cross & Blue Shield...........cccoovevevviciininnne Insurance 192,771,325 0.60%
Flagler Development Company...........c.cocceereveunne. Real Estate Management/Development 183,040,969 0.56%
Vistakon/Johnson & Johnson Vision..................... Manufacturing 174,679,397 0.54%
Gate Petroleum/Maritime /Lands..........c.cooeeeeee. Pertroleum 167,014,172 0.49%
Total Taxable Assessed Value of 10 Largest Taxpayers 2,386,129,241 7.38%
Total Taxable Assessed Value of Other Taxpayers 29,939,364,057 92.62%
Total Taxable Assessed Value of All Taxpayers $ 32,325,493,298 100.00%

Source: Tax Collector's Office

Unaudited - see accompanying independent auditors' report.
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA
MISCELLANEOUS STATISTICAL DATA

SEPTEMBER 30, 2002
First Charter February 11, 1832
Consolidation October 1, 1968

Form of Government

Mayor and City Council

Area of City 840.1 square miles
Miles of Streets: 3,402.5
Streets - Paved 3,395.8
Streets - Unpaved 6.7
State Maintained Primary 372.7
Interstate 95.1
Wastewater System:
Number of Treatment Plants 10
Total Miles of Sewer Lines 2,521
Fire Protection:
Stations 49
Employees - Sworn 1109
Employees - Civilian 76
Police Protection:
Employees - Sworn 1,579
Employees - Civilian 1,095
Vehicular Patrol Units - Patrol Cars 1,144
Motorcycles 17
Other Vehicles 178
Unmarked 352
Horse Patrol 7
Electric Utility Customers 363,053
Water Utility Customers 200,276
Sewer Utility Customers 148,338
Recreation:
Acreage of parks and open spaces 6,338
Basketball courts 198
Boat ramps 23
Community Centers 30
Softball and baseball diamonds 209
Swimming pools 33
Tennis Courts 127
Soccer Fields 27

Unaudited - see accompanying independent auditors' report.
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA
FUND CONVERSION TABLE
SEPTEMBER 30, 2002

FINANCIAL
STATEMENT SUBFUND
CATEGORY FUND TITLE NUMBERS
Major Governmental Funds General Fund

General Services District 011
Mosquito Control State I 012
Property Appraiser 015

Special Revenue Fund

Transportation Fund

Streets & Highways 5-Year Road Program 141
Local Option 1/2 Cent Transportation 142
Local Option Gas Tax 143

Capital Projects Funds

Bond Projects Fund
1983 Capital Improvement Revenue Construction 311
1985A Excise Tax Revenue Bond Construction 312
1986 A Excise Taxes Revenue Bonds 313
1988A ETR Refunding Construction 314
1988B ETR Bond Construction 315
1991 ETR Refunding Construction 316
1992 ETR Refunding Construction, 1986A 317
1992 ETR Refunding Construction, 1988B 318
1993 ETR Bond Construction 319
1993A ETR Bond Construction 31A
Streets and Drainage Bond Construction 31B
1994 Alltel Stadium Bond Construction 31C
1996B ETR Bonds Construction Fund 31D
1996C ETR Bond Construction Fund 31E
1988 Capital Improvement Revenue Construction 31F
Criminal Justice 1987A Construction 31G
1995A ETR Refunding Construction 31H
1995 Alltel Stadium Bond Construction 311
1995 Sunshine State Construction 31
1997 Alltel Stadium Bond Construction Fund 31K
Capital Project Revenue Bond Construction 31L
1999 Alltel Stadium Construction 31M
2001A ETR Refunding Bonds 31N
Excise Taxes Revenue Bonds, Series 2001B 310
2002 Guaranteed Entitlement Construction Fund 31P
1999A ETR Bond Construction 31R
ETR Refunding & Improvement Bonds, Series 2002A 318
Series 2002A Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds 31T
Series 2002B & C Capital Improvement & Refunding
Revenue Bonds 31U
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA
FUND CONVERSION TABLE
SEPTEMBER 30, 2002

FINANCIAL
STATEMENT SUBFUND
CATEGORY FUND TITLE NUMBERS
Major Governmental Funds (continued) Capital Projects Funds (continued)

General Projects Fund
River City Renaissance Pay-As-You-Go 321
General Capital Projects 322
First Municipal Loan Construction 323
Jacksonville Environmental Land Acquisition 324
St Andrews Church Renovation 325
Recreation Lands and Park Acquistion 1D3

Better Jacksonville Plan Construction Project Fund
City/JTA Transportation Projects Pay-As-You-Go 351
City/JTA Transportation Projects Bonds 352
Better Jax Projects Pay-As-You-Go 353
Better Jax Projects Bonds 354

Major Enterprise Funds Public Parking System Fund

Public Parking System 411
Parking Garage Revenue 412
Parking & ETR S/F RSV 413
1986 Parking & ETR Construction 414
1987 Parking & ETR Refunding S/F 415

Sports Complex, Convention Center and Auditorium Fund
Sports Complex 421
Convention Center and Auditorium 422
SMG - Jacksonville 423
Alltel Stadium 424

Solid Waste Disposal Fund
Solid Waste Disposal 441
Contamination Assessments 442
Landfill Closure 443
Solid Waste Grants 444
Solid Waste Facilities Mitigation 445
Solid Waste Class III Mitigation 446
1991A Excise Tax Bonds S/F 447
1991B Excise Tax Bonds S/F 448
1991A Construction 449
1991B Construction 44A
1996A ETR Refunding S/F 44B
1999B ETR Construction 44C
1999B ETR Refunding S/F 44D
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA
FUND CONVERSION TABLE
SEPTEMBER 30, 2002

FINANCIAL
STATEMENT SUBFUND
CATEGORY FUND TITLE NUMBERS
Nonmajor Governmental Funds Special Revenue Funds

Concurrency Management
Concurrency Management System 112
Concurrency Management Traffic Data 113
Fair Share Sector Areas Transportation Improvement 114

Air Pollution Control and Monitoring Fund
Air Pollution Tag Fee 121
Air Pollution EPA 122
Air Monitoring 123
Ambient Air Monitoring 124
Title V 125
Air Monitoring - Grants 126
Air Pollution EPA 127
Ambient Air Monitoring 128

Sports, Convention and Tourism Development Fund
Allte]l Stadium Revenue 131
Tourist Development Council 132
Convention Development 133
Special Events 134
Neighborhood Services Community Activities 135
Tourist Development Special Revenue 136

General Government Fund (Budgeted)
Tax Collector / JEA Modernization 151
Local Government Criminal Justice 152
Construction Trades Qualifying Board 153
Hazardous Waste Program 154
Gas Storage Tank Inspections and Cleanup 155
Duval County Drug Abuse Program 156
Alcoholic Rehabilitation Trust 157
Court Facilities/Civil Trust 158
Building Inspection 159
Environmental Protection 15A
Duval County Law Library 15B
Family Mediation/County Mediation 15C
Animal Care and Control 15D
Victim Assistance Services 15E
Tree Protection & Related Expense 15F
Veterinary Services 15G
Environmental Protection 15H
Tax Collector / JEA Modernization 151
Court Capital Improvement 15
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA
FUND CONVERSION TABLE
SEPTEMBER 30, 2002

FINANCIAL
STATEMENT SUBFUND
CATEGORY FUND TITLE NUMBERS
Nonmajor Governmental Funds (continued) Special Revenue Funds (continued)
General Government Fund (Budgeted) (continued)
County Mediation 15K
Duval County Teen Court Programs 15L
Gas Storage Tank Inspections and Cleanup 15M
Tree Mitigation and Related Expense 15N
Mayor's Commission on Status of Women 15P
Public Safety Fund 161
Emergency 9-1-1
911 Emergency User Fee 171
911 Capital Equipment Replacement 172
E911 Emergency Wireless User Fees 173
E911 Wireless Capital Equipment Replacement 174
Tax Increment Districts Fund
USD1 C Northeast Tax Increment 181
USD1 A Southside Tax Increment 182
USD1 B Northwest Tax Increment 183
JIA Area Redevelopment Trust 185
Jacksonville Children's Commission
Jacksonville Children's Commission 191
Jacksonville Children's Commission Grants 192
Jacksonville Children's Commission Projects 193
Community Development Block Grant Fund
Community Development 1A1
Housing Opportunity for Persons with AIDS 1A2
Housing Rehabilitation and Home Investment and
Opportunity Grants Fund
Rehabilitation Loan Program 1B1
HOME Investment Trust 1B2
HOPE Program 1B3
HUD Miscellaneous Grants 1B4
Housing UDAG 1BS
Rental Rehabilitation Program 1B6
Springfield SE Quadrant NR Historic District 1B7
Job Training Partnership Act Grant Fund
JTPA Title I ABC & III 1C1
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA
FUND CONVERSION TABLE
SEPTEMBER 30, 2002

FINANCIAL
STATEMENT SUBFUND
CATEGORY FUND TITLE NUMBERS
Nonmajor Governmental Funds (continued) Special Revenue Funds (continued)

Maintenance, Parks and Recreation Fund
Huguenot Park 1D1
Kathryn A. Hanna Park Improvement 1D2
Metropolitan Park Maintenance 1D4
Recreation Maintenance and Improvements 1D5
Parks and Recreation Facilities Trust 1D6
Woodstock Park Development Trust 1D7
FL Boating Improvement Program 1D8
Sisters Creek Park Maintenance and Improvements 1D9

Metropolitan Planning Organization Fund 1E1

Other Federal, State and Local Grants Fund
Miscellaneous Federal Projects 1F1
Prepaid Grants 1F2
Beach Erosion - State 1F3
Beach Erosion - Local 1F4
Library Grants (Council Appropriated) 1F5
Community Service Grants 1F6
Sheriff's Office Grants 1F7
Library Grants (Self-Appropriated) 1F8
Fire and Rescue Grants 1F9
Parks, Recreation and Enterntainment Grants 1FA
Regulatory and Environmental Grants 1FB
Supervisor of Election Grants IFC

DCHFA State Housing Initiatives Partnership Fund 1G1

Better Jacksonville Plan Trust Fund 111

General Government Fund (Non-Budgeted)
Public Records Modernization 1H1
Animal Care and Control Programs 1H2
Legal Aid Program 1H3
Senior Services 1H4
Fire/Rescue Production Revolving Fund 1H6
Parks & Recreational Activities 1H7
Handicap Parking Fines 1H8
Choose Life Trust Fund 11
Derelict Vessel Removal Fund 1K1
Special Assessment Fund 1L1
Mayor's Hispanic Advisory Board Trust Fund IM1
Pickettville Rd Dump Site 641
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA

FUND CONVERSION TABLE
SEPTEMBER 30, 2002
FINANCIAL
STATEMENT SUBFUND
CATEGORY FUND TITLE NUMBERS
Nonmajor Governmental Funds (continued) Special Revenue Funds (continued)
General Government Fund (Non-Budgeted) (continued)
Cemetery Perpetual Care and Maintenance 642
City Council Parks Acquisition, Development
and Maintenance 643
Treaty Oak Park Trust 644
Jacksonville Veterans Memorial Wall Trust 645
Child Services Trust 646
City Access Cable Enhancement Trust 647
Mimi & Lee Adams Trust 648
Board of Library Trustees Trust 649
Sheriff's Trusts (Carryforward/Council-appropriated) 64A
Sheriff's Trusts (Lapse/Self-appropriated) 64B
Sheriff's Trusts (Carryforward/Self-appropriated) 64C
Sheriff's Trusts (Lapse/Council-appropriated) 64D
Federal Forfeitures Trust 64E

General Trust & Agency (Carryforward/Council-appropriated) 64F

General Trust & Agency (Carryforward/Self-appropriated)
General Trust & Agency (Lapse/Council-appropriated)
General Trust & Agency (Lapse/Self-appropriated)
Flexible Spending Plan

Lavilla Cultural and Heritage District Trust

Youth Travel Trust (Jacksonville Children's Comm.)
Art in Public Places Trust Fund

Balis Estate Trust Fund

Unclaimed Checks

Tax Deed Sale - Surplus

Outstanding Checks - Treasury

Duplicate Checks- Treasury

Unclaimed Refunds

Execution Funds 5 Year

Debt Service Funds
General Bonded Debt Obligations Fund

Special Bonded Debt Obligations Fund
1992 ETR Refunding S/F
1993 Excise Tax Revenue Bonds S/F
1993A ETR Refunding S/F
ETR Refunding 1984C New Money S/F
1988A ETR Refunding S/F
1991 ETR Refunding S/F
Criminal Justice Bond S/F
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64H
641
64]
64L
64M
64N
64P
662
663
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA

FUND CONVERSION TABLE
SEPTEMBER 30, 2002
FINANCIAL
STATEMENT SUBFUND
CATEGORY FUND TITLE NUMBERS
Nonmajor Governmental Funds (continued) Debt Service Funds (continued)
Special Bonded Debt Obligations Fund (continued)
1992 Guaranteed Entitlement Revenue 22D
1995A ETR Refunding S/F 22E
1994 Municipal Stadium Capital Improvement Bonds S/F 22F
1995 Sales Tax Bonds (RCR) S/F 22G
1996 Sales Tax (RCR) S/F 221
1995 Municipal Stadium Capital Improvement Bonds S/F 22]
1995A Guaranteed Entitlement Revenue Refunding S/F 22K
1996B ETR Bonds S/F 22L
1996C ETR Bonds S/F 22M
1995 Sunshine State S/F 22N
2002A, B & C Capital Improvement & Refunding
Revenue Bonds S/F 220
1997 Municipal Stadium Capital Improvement Bonds S/F 22P
1997 Capital Project Revenue Bonds S/F 22R
1998 Alltel Stadium S/F 228
1999A ETR Refunding S/F 22T
2001 Sales Tax Refunding 22U
2001A ETR Refunding S/F 22V
Excise Taxes Revenue Bonds, Series 2001B S/F 22W
ETR Revenue Refunding & Improvement Bonds,
Series 2002A S/F 22X
Guaranteed Entitlement Revenue Refunding &
Improvement Bonds, 2002 S/F 22Y
ETR Bonds Series 2002B (Shands Jacksonville Loan) 227
Sunshine State S/F 231
Capital Improvement 2002A Reserve Account 271
Special Bonded Debt - Better Jax Obligations Fund
BJP Transportation Series 2001 241
BJP Infrastructure Series 2001 242
BJP Transportation Series 2001 Reserve 243
BJP Infrastructure Series 2001 Reserve 244
BJP Infrastructure Swap 245
Other Non-Bonded Debt Obligations Fund
River City Renaissance Bond S/F 232
HUD 108 Loan S/F - Vistakon 233
HUD 108 Loan S/F - Coach Distribution 234
HUD 108 Loan S/F - Southside Harbor 235
HUD 108 Loan S/F - Hilton Hotel 236
HUD 108 Loan S/F - Sally Beauty 237
HUD 108 Loan S/F - LaVilla 238
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA

FUND CONVERSION TABLE
SEPTEMBER 30, 2002
FINANCIAL
STATEMENT SUBFUND
CATEGORY FUND TITLE NUMBERS
Nonmajor Governmental Funds (continued) Debt Service Funds (continued)
Other Non-Bonded Debt Obligations Fund (continued)
HUD 108 Loan S/F - HTV Associates 239
HUD 108 Loan S/F - Jax Landing 23A
HUD 108 Loan S/F - American Body Armor 23B
HUD 108 Loan S/F - Hampton Inn 23C
Capital Projects Funds
Grant Capital Improvements Projects Fund 331
River City Renaissance Bond Construction Project Fund
River City Renaissance Bond Construction 341
2001 Sales Tax Refunding 342
Permanent Fund
Cemetary Maintenance Trust 652
Nonmajor Enterprise Funds Motor Vehicle Inspection Fund 431
Mayport Ferry 451
Internal Service Funds Fleet Management Fund
Motor Pool 511
Motor Pool - Vehicle Replacement 512
Copy Center Fund
Copy Center 521
Storeroom/Printing 522
Information Technologies Fund
Information Technologies 531
Information Technologies (Lapse/Self-appropriating) 532
Communications 533
Communications - Radio Replacement 534
Office of General Counsel 551
Self Insurance Fund 561
Group Health Fund 571
Insured Programs Fund 581
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA

FUND CONVERSION TABLE
SEPTEMBER 30, 2002
FINANCIAL
STATEMENT SUBFUND
CATEGORY FUND TITLE NUMBERS
Fiduciary Funds Pension Trust Funds
General Employees 611
Police and Fire 621
Private Purpose Trust Funds
James Brady Disabled Scholarship 1HS
Michael Jackson Music Scholarship Trust 651
J. B. Smith Memorial Scholarship Trust 653
Agency Funds
Treasurer Agency Fund 661
Plat Deposits 665
Tax Collector Agency Fund 671
Clerk of the Circuit Court Fund 681
Florida Retirement System 6A1
Duval Co School Readiness Coalition, Inc 6B1
Discretely Presented Component Units Duval County Housing Finance Authority 721
Jacksonville Economic Development Commission
Jacksonville Economic Development Commission 751
Sports Development Events 752
Jacksonville Film & Television Office Trust 753
International Marketing Trust 754
SS Redevelopment Trust Parks and Recreation 755
Greenleaf/Jacobs Clock Restoration 756
JEDC Prepaid Grants 757
JEDC Miscellaneous Federal/State/Local Grants 758
JEDC Cecil Field Trust 759
Downtown Historic Preservation & Revitalization 75A
Jacksonville Game Trust Fund 760
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